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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Monday, November 10, 2025 
9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter 

Lihu'e Civic Center, Moikeha Building 
Meeting Room 2A-2B 

4444 Rice Street, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

D. MINUTES OF THE MEETING(Sj OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

1. August 26, 2025.

2. September 9, 2025.

E. RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

F. HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT

1. Continued Agency Hearing

a. None for this meeting.

2. New Agency Hearing

a. None for this meeting.

3. Continued Public Hearing

25 OCT 2.3 P 1 :04 

a. ZA-2026-1: A bill (2969) for an ordinance amending Chapter 8, Article 27 of the Kaua'i

County Code 1987, as amended, relating to Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection.

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Shoreline Setback Ordinance by adding

safeguards that protect life and property and ensure the longevity and integrity of

Kauai's coastal and beach resources along the shoreline= KAUAI COUNTY COUNCIL.

[Director's Report, Received, Hearing Continued, 8/26/2025].

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.

4. New Public Hearing

a. County Zoning Amendment (ZA-2026-2) A petition for a bill to amend Ordinance No.

PM-2001-356 as amended in part by Ordinance No. PM-2006-385 to rezone

approximately 171.72 acres of real property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island

of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i, identified by Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005:001 to the

designations that existed prior to Ordinance No. PM-2001-356, as amended =

COUNTY OF KAUAI, PLANNING DEPARTMENT.

1. Transmittal of public testimony to Planning Commission.
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G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Status Reports

a. 2025 Annual Report on the progress of compliance and conditions of the subject

permits for SHERATON KAUAI RESORT in accordance with condition No. 4 of Special

Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2007-13, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2007-29,

Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25, Tax Map Keys: (4)2-8-015:043, 044 &

082; 2-8-016:003, 004, Poipu, Kauai= KAUAI BLUE INC. (FORMERLY SVO PACIFIC,

INC. & VSE PACIFIC, INC.)

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.

2. Director's Report for Project(s) Scheduled for Agency Hearing

a. None for this meeting.

3. Class Ill Zoning Permits

a. None for this meeting.

H. GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

1. Petition to Revoke Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2002- 6, Project

Development Use Permit PDU-2002-15, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2002-20 pertaining

to Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001, Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i.

2. Director of Planning's Recommendation to Revoke Applicant Jens Olsson Non-Conforming

Use Transient Vacation Rental Certificate TVNCU #5032 and Issue an Order to Show Cause

and Set Hearing; Memorandum in Support of Petition; Declaration of Kaaina S. Hull; Notice of

Meeting; and Certificate of Service, 2672 Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key (4)26007007-1, Koloa

Kauai.

a. Notice of Appeal of Revocation of TVNCU Permit #5032 from Jens E. Olsson dated

October 13, 2025.

3. Petition to Appeal Action of the Planning Director in the Administration of the Subdivision

Ordinance as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai County Code, as Memorialized in That

Certain Letter Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision Application No. 5-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2,

F2, F3 for properties located at Lawai Ahupuaa, Kona District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key

No. (4) 2-6-022:020, BBCP Kukuiula Development, LLC received on July 28, 2025. [Referred to

Contested Case Hearing, 8/12/2025].

a. Notice of Withdrawal of Petition to Appeal Action of the Planning Director in the

Administration of the Subdivision Ordinance as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai

County Code, as Memorialized in That Certain Letter Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision

Application No. 5-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2, F2, F3 for properties located at Lawai

Ahupuaa, Kona District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key No. (4) 2-6-022:020.
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4. In the Matter of a Notice of Violation and Order to Pay Fines, for 1) illegal commercial events

within the Agricultural District (weddings, retreats, spiritual events and private ceremonies)

and the failure to cease and desist and secure the required permits, and 2) the construction

of seven (7) yurts without the required permits, related to the property located at Hui Road,

Anahola, Kauai, TMK 49003001, KALALEA TRUST, applicant, as Appeal File CC-2025-1.

a. Petitioners' equitable objection to County of Kauai's Memorandum in opposition to

entry of default.

I. COMMUNICATIONS

1. None for this meeting.

J. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Subdivision Committee Report

a. Subdivision Application No. S-2025-1

Sueoka Store Expansion Project

SMK, Inc.

Proposed 11-Lot Consolidation into 1-Lot

TM Ks: (4) 2-8-008: 020, 022 - 029, 034, 035

Koloa, Kaua'i

b. Subdivision Application No. S-2025-8

Calipjo Properties, LLC.

Proposed 4-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 3-3-021: 048

Nawiliwili, Niumalu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i

c. Subdivision Application No. S-2026-3

State of Hawai'i / Charles K. and Eileen I. Bright

Proposed 2-Lot Consolidation

TM Ks: (4) 4-6-027: 010 and 025 (por.)

Kawaihau, Kapa'a, Kaua'i

d. Subdivision Application No. S-2023-1

Kukui'ula Parcel A2F2F3 Subdivision

BBCP Kukui'ula Development, LLC.

Proposed 31-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 2-6-022: 020

Lawai, Koloa, Kona, Kaua'i

e. Subdivision Application No. S-2024-2

Moloa'a Farms, LLC. et al.

Proposed 11-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 4-9-009: 001

Moloa'a and Papa'a, Kawaihau, Kaua'i
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f. Subdivision Application No. S-2019-4

Tim Beckman and Mira Hess

Proposed 4-Lot Consolidation and Re-subdivision into 3-Lots

TM Ks: (4) 2-8-014: 038 and 042

Koloa, Kaua'i

K. UNFINISHED BUSINESS {For Action)

1. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2025-6), USE PERMIT (U-2025-4), and SPECIAL PERMIT (SP-

2025-1) to conduct outdoor commercial events, including but not limited to weddings and

public/private gatherings, on a parcel situated along the mauka side of Kaumualii Highway in

Kalaheo (formerly Olu Pua Gardens site), situated approximately 0.5 mile west of Kalaheo

Town, approximately 3,000 feet mauka of the Halewili Road/Kaumuali'i Highway intersection,

further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-4-007:016, containing a land area of 12.285 acres =

OLU PUA GARDENS LLC. [Director's Report Received, 12/24/2024; Hearing Closed, Deferred,

1/14/2025; Deferred, 6/10/2025; Deferred, 8/12/2025).

a. Transmittal of supplemental information to Planning Commission.

L. NEW BUSINESS {For Action)

1. None for this meeting.

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5{a){4), the purpose of this executive

session is to consult with the County's legal counsel on questions, issues, status, and procedural

matters. This consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or

liabilities of the Commission and the County as they relate to the following matters:

1. ZA-2026-1: A bill (2969) for an ordinance amending Chapter 8, Article 27 of the Kaua'i County

Code 1987, as amended, relating to Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection. The purpose of

this Ordinance is to amend the Shoreline Setback Ordinance by adding safeguards that protect

life and property and ensure the longevity and integrity of Kauai's coastal and beach resources

along the shoreline = KAUAI COUNTY COUNCIL. [Director's Report, Received, Hearing

Continued, 8/26/2025).

2. County Zoning Amendment (ZA-2026-2) A petition for a bill to amend Ordinance No. PM-

2001-356 as amended in part by Ordinance No. PM-2006-385 to rezone approximately 171.72

acres of real property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i,

identified by Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005:001 to the designations that existed prior to

Ordinance No. PM-2001-356, as amended= COUNTY OF KAUAI, PLANNING DEPARTMENT.

3. 2025 Annual Report on the progress of compliance and conditions of the subject permits for

SHERATON KAUAI RESORT in accordance with condition No. 4 of Special Management Area

Use Permit SMA(U)-2007-13, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2007-29, Project Development Use

Permit PDU-2007-25, Tax Map Keys: {4)2-8-015:043, 044 & 082; 2-8-016:003, 004, Poipu,

Kauai= KAUAI BLUE INC. (FORMERLY SVO PACIFIC, INC. & VSE PACIFIC, INC.)
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4. Petition to Revoke Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2002- 6, Project

Development Use Permit PDU-2002-15, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2002-20 pertaining

to Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001, Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i.

5. Director of Planning's Recommendation to Revoke Applicant Jens Olsson Non-Conforming

Use Transient Vacation Rental Certificate TVNCU #5032 and Issue an Order to Show Cause

and Set Hearing; Memorandum in Support of Petition; Declaration of Kaaina S. Hull; Notice of

Meeting; and Certificate of Service, 2672 Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key (4)26007007-1, Koloa

Kauai.

6. Petition to Appeal Action of the Planning Director in the Administration of the Subdivision

Ordinance as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai County Code, as Memorialized in That

Certain Letter Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision Application No. 5-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2,

F2, F3 for properties located at Lawai Ahupuaa, Kana District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key

No. (4) 2-6-022:020, BBCP Kukuiula Development, LLC received on July 28, 2025. [Referred to

Contested Case Hearing, 8/12/2025].

7. Subdivision Application No. S-2025-1

Sueoka Store Expansion Project

SMK, Inc.

Proposed 11-Lot Consolidation into 1-Lot

TM Ks: (4) 2-8-008: 020, 022 - 029, 034, 035

Koloa, Kaua'i

8. Subdivision Application No. 5-2025-8

Calipjo Properties, LLC.

Proposed 4-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 3-3-021: 048

Nawiliwili, Niumalu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i

9. Subdivision Application No. 5-2026-3

State of Hawai'i / Charles K. and Eileen I. Bright

Proposed 2-Lot Consolidation

TM Ks: (4) 4-6-027: 010 and 025 (par.)

Kawaihau, Kapa'a, Kaua'i

10. Subdivision Application No. 5-2023-1

Kukui'ula Parcel A2F2F3 Subdivision

BBCP Kukui'ula Development, LLC.

Proposed 31-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 2-6-022: 020

Lawai, Koloa, Kana, Kaua'i

11. Subdivision Application No. 5-2024-2

Moloa'a Farms, LLC. et al.

Proposed 11-Lot Subdivision

TMK: (4) 4-9-009: 001

Moloa'a and Papa'a, Kawaihau, Kaua'i
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12. Subdivision Application No. 5-2019-4

Tim Beckman and Mira Hess

Proposed 4-Lot Consolidation and Re-subdivision into 3-Lots

TM Ks: (4) 2-8-014: 038 and 042

K6Ioa, Kaua'i

13. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2025-6), USE PERMIT (U-2025-4), and SPECIAL PERMIT (SP-

2025-1) to conduct outdoor commercial events, including but not limited to weddings and

public/private gatherings, on a parcel situated along the mauka side of Kaumualii Highway in

Kalaheo (formerly Olu Pua Gardens site), situated approximately 0.5 mile west of Kalaheo

Town, approximately 3,000 feet mauka of the Halewili Road/Kaumuali'i Highway intersection,

further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-4-007:016, containing a land area of 12.285 acres =

OLU PUA GARDENS LLC. [Director's Report Received, 12/24/2024; Hearing Closed, Deferred,

1/14/2025; Deferred, 6/10/2025; Deferred, 8/12/2025).

N. ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Topics for Future Meetings.

The following regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., or

shortly thereafter, on December 9, 2025. The Planning Commission anticipates this meeting

to be held in-person at the Lihue Civic Center, Moikeha Building, Meeting Room 2A-2B, 4444

Rice Street, Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii. The Commission will announce its intended meeting method

via an agenda electronically posted at least six days prior to the meeting date.

0. ADJOURNMENT
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA (SMA) Minor Determinations 

Date (Action) SMA Minor Permit Location (TMK) Activity/ structure 

number 

9.26.2025 (Approved) SMA(M )-2026-6 Koloa (2-6-011:006) Construction and 

installation of a new 

Individual Wastewater 

System {IWS) and concrete 

driveway. 

10.03.2025 (Approved) SMA(M)-2026-7 LThu'e (3-2-003:030) Construction/ New 

Individual Wastewater 

System {IWS). 

10.03.2025 (Approved) SMA(M)-2026-8 Kekaha (1-3-010:113) Construction/ New 

Individual Wastewater 

System (IWS). 

10.13.2025 (Approved) SMA(M)-2026-9 Kapa'a (4-1-004:034) Construction/ New 

Individual Wastewater 

System and Grass Crete 

driveway. 
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Pursuant to Section 8-27.8 (6) of the Kaua'i County Code (1987), as amended, the following shoreline 

setback determinations by the Director are disclosed for purposes of public notification. 

November 10, 2025 

SHORELINE SETBACK DETERMINATIONS 

Application Name of Applicant(s) Property I.D. Location Development/Reasons 

No. (Tax Map Key) 

SSD-2026-10 Village Manor 4-3-007:013 Kapa'a Stair demolition and rebuild 

at Building A./ Required 

setback: 130.7 ft. Work is 311 

ft beyond required setback. 

SSD-2026-11 Christopher and Ani Turner 5-8-008:006 Hanalei Proposed new single-family 

dwelling and ADU. The 

required shoreline setback is 

89 feet, and the dwelling is 

located an additional 361 to 

389 feet inland from that 

required setback. 

SSD-2026-12 Village Manor 4-3-007:013 Kapa'a Stair demolition and rebuild 

at Building C./ Required 

setback: 130.7 ft. Work is 311 

ft beyond required setback. 

SSD-2026-13 Jeff Lewis 1-3-003:022 CPR Kekaha New rock wall/ Rock wall is 

Unit 1 and 2 located more than 40 feet 

from shoreline. 
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KAUA'I PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

August 26, 2025 
  DRAFT 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i was called to order 
by Chair Francis DeGracia at 9:09 a.m. - Webcast Link:  https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-
Meetings 

The following Commissioners were present: 
Mr. Gerald Ako 
Ms. Helen Cox 

Mr. Francis DeGracia 
Ms. Glenda Nogami Streufert 

Mr. Jerry Ornellas 
Ms. Lori Otsuka 

  Excused or Absent 

The following staff members were present: Planning Department - Director Ka'aina Hull; Staff 
Planner Kenny Estes, Dale Cua; Staff Services Leila Kim; Planning Secretary Shanlee Jimenez; 
Office of the County Attorney - Deputy County Attorney Laura Barzilai, Office of Boards and 
Commissions - Support Clerk Lisa Oyama. 

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Francis DeGracia: Good morning. The time is 9:09, I'd like to call to order the Planning 
Commission meeting for Tuesday, August 26, 2025. Could we get a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk. 

ROLL CALL 

Planning Department Director Ka'aina Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Commissioner Gerald Ako: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox: 

Commissioner Helen Cox: Here.  

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Commissioner Jerry Ornellas: Here. 

D.1.
NOV 10, 2025

https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings
https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings
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Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka? 

Commissioner Lori Otsuka: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

Commissioner Glenda Nogami Streufert: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair Francis DeGracia: Here. 

Mr. Hull: You have a quorum, Mr. Chair. 6:0. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Hull: Next is the Approval of the Agenda. The department recommend amending the agenda 
first to reflect, L. New Business items to directly proceed their respective agency hearings in 
G.2.

Ms. Cox: I move we approve the agenda as suggested. 

Ms. Streufert: Second.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion on the floor is to approve the agenda as amended 
by the clerk. We'll do a voice vote on this. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). 
Opposed. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING(S) OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION (None) 

Mr. Hull: Next, we have Minutes of the Meeting of the Planning…oh, I apologize. There are no 
previous minutes, so we move directly into Committee Reports. I’ll turn it over to the 
Subdivision Committee Chair. 

RECEIPT FOR ITEMS FOR THE RECORD (None) 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Subdivision Committee Report 

Subdivision Committee Chair Gerald Ako: Good morning. The Subdivision Committee met this 
morning. We had six items on the agenda, however four of the items were Extensions for 
Requests. Requests for Extensions and two of them were a request for termination of a prior 
permit, so with that, if you have any other questions. 

Chair DeGracia: If no questions, Commissioners, I’ll seek a motion. 
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Ms. Streufert: I move to approve the Subdivision Committee Report. 

Ms. Cox: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion on the floor is to approve the Subdivision 
Committee Report. If there's no discussion, we'll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye 
(unanimous voice vote). Oppose. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT (None) 

Continued Agency Hearing (None) 

New Agency Hearing 

Mr. Hull: Next, we move on to New Agency Hearing, 2.A. 

CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT Z-IV-2026-1 to allow the construction of a 42,000 
square feet warehouse/distribution facility and associated site improvements on 
Lot 4 of the Ahukini Business Park Subdivision in Lihue, involving a parcel 
situated on the makai side of Kapule Highway and immediately adjacent to the 
County of Kauai Ahukini Transfer Station, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 
3-7-002:021 and containing a total area of 14.671 acres - BHD LAND
DEVELOPMENT LLC. [Director's Report Received, 8/12/2025]. 

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.
2. Transmittal of agency comments to Planning Commission.

Mr. Hull: I don’t have anybody signed up to testify on this agenda item. Are there any members 
of the public that would like to testify on this agenda item? Seeing none, the department would 
recommend closing agency hearing.  

Unknown Woman from public audience: For the applicant (inaudible)? 

Mr. Hull: Oh no, no, during the…yeah, this is just for public testimony. 

Unknown Woman from public audience: Okay. Thank you. 

Ms. Cox: I move we close the agency hearing.  

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, motion on the floor is to close agency hearing on this agenda 
item. Any discussion? Hearing none, we'll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye 
(unanimous voice vote). Oppose. Motion carries. 6:0. 

Mr. Hull: With that I'll turn over to the staff planner to give the Directors Report, and then as the 
applicant’s here and if they’d like to give a brief presentation, so we may have to take a small 
recess when we get into them, to set them up, but I'll turn over to Kenny for now.  



4 

Staff Planner Kenny Estes: Good morning, Chair and members of the Planning Commission. I'll 
go over the report for the record.  

Mr. Estes read the Summary, Project Data, Project Description and Use, Additional 
Findings, Preliminary Evaluation, and Preliminary Conclusion sections of the 
Director’s Report for the record (on file with the Planning Department). 

Mr. Estes: I'll hold off on the department 's recommendation.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Thank you. Commissioners, any questions for the planner or the 
department? 

Ms. Streufert: (Inaudible). It’s on. Got it. On this 14.671-acre property there’s a 42,000 square 
foot facility, but I don't see that where that's going to be located on the, on the… 

Mr. Estes: They provided a site plan with the application, which shows the proposed facility on 
the lot.  

Ms. Streufert: I can’t seem to find it. I’ll ask the applicant (inaudible). 

Mr. Hull: (Inaudible). I’m certain they’ll be going over that in their presentation as well. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any further questions? Additional? I have a question for the 
department, but this is not concerning our application, but just curious about parking 
requirements in industrial under that Section 87.3 and what is the logic behind having only one 
parking stall for each 3 employees? (Inaudible). It doesn't pan out in my mind.  

Mr. Hull: Yeah, well, philosophically from a zoning perspective, parking standards are 
absolutely arbitrary, that you will look across to zoning code to zoning code to zoning code and 
every zoning code for each different municipality will have different parking requirements, so 
how they're created, I'm not sure where three came from originally in 1972. There is some, you 
know thought within the planning industry that the parking requirement should just be turned 
over the applicants and they know their parking better than government does. Having said that, 
sorry, little parking rant there. The one in three you can surmise that not every employee is going 
to be on site during the working hours, so you don't necessarily need a parking stall for every 
single employee employed by an operation and that they'll be there during different times. but 
being that generally of the belief that operations know their parking better than us, like the 
question would be pointed to ask the applicant as well whether or not that's (inaudible). 

Chair DeGracia: It's just on a case by case, but this is just written into the code. 

Mr. Hull: It's written in the code, we have to apply it but yeah… 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Thank you. Commissioners, any further questions? If not, do we need a 
few minutes to… 
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Ms. Streufert: Is that the same…I'm sorry, for the parking thing, is that also the same rationale 
for the number of photovoltaic recharging stations because there's only five and I don't know 
how that works.  

Mr. Hull: The…so, the trigger for photo, for, not photovoltaic, but I think you’re talking about 
EV charging stations. 

Ms. Streufert: I’m sorry, yes. 

Mr. Hull: EV charging stations is off of what the code requirements are once you hit 100 units, 
so many additional EV charging stations are required. The 100 units is in state law and then the 
county law goes a bit beyond that. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, anything further for the department? If not, did I hear 
that they need a few minutes… 

Mr. Hull: Kenny, are they set up already or are they going to take some time to set up before? 

Mr. Estes: I believe they have to set up. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. 

Mr. Hull: Maybe a 5-minute recess. 

Chair DeGracia: We'll take a short recess for setting up.  

   The Commission went into recess at 9:25 a.m. 
The Commission reconvened from recess at 9:27 a.m. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Thank you for your patience. I'd like to call the meeting back to order. 

Mr. Hull: And with that I'll turn it over to the applicant, BHD Land Development LLC. 

Ms. Onaona Thoene: Mahalo nui. Can you folks hear me okay? Alright. Good morning, Chair, 
Commissioners, Planning Director, and Planning Staff. My name is Onaona Thoene and I 
represent the applicant, BHD Land Development LLC. We thank you folks for hearing this 
application this morning. We prepared just a very brief PowerPoint presentation to bring up 
some of the visuals from our application to help orient you with our project. With me today are 
Steve Bachman and Tracy Hammer of BHD. We also have a number of our technical consultants 
with us should you folks have any questions on the project. So, as reported by the Planning 
Department this project is going to be cited on Lot 4 of the Ahukini Makai Subdivision. Project 
is located near the Līhu'e Airport and the Līhu'e Refuse Station. So, that's right here, you can see 
it on the map. The line is designated in the State Land Use Urban District and it's zoned in the 
General Zoning, General Industrial Zoning District. As they reported the projects approximately 
42,000 square feet, warehouse and distribution facility on approximately 8.8 acres of a larger 
14.6-acre parcel. The proposed warehouse and distribution use is a permitted use in the General 
Industrial Zoning District and is consistent with the General Plan and the urban center 
designation. In terms of economic benefits, we are expecting that this project will create 
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approximately 169 permanent employment positions on the island. So, with that, I'll go ahead 
and turn it over to Steve and Tracy to provide you some additional details on the project site plan 
and elevations.  

Mr. Steve Bachman: Good afternoon, good morning, sorry, afternoon back in Arizona. Can you 
guys hear me okay? 

Mr. Hull: Yes. 

Mr. Bachman: Okay, great. I'm Steve Bachman with BH DevCo, also the owners of BHD Land 
Development, which is the LLC. that we are (inaudible) contract to purchase this land through. 
My partner is Tracy Hammer; he's sitting to my left. We're happy to be here, so thank you guys 
for taking the time to hear our application. Love to give you a little overview of what the site 
looks like, certainly answer the question about where the 42,000 square foot facility is within the 
overall subdivision, but to start I guess I'll tell you in 30 seconds about us. So, BHD is a national 
developer that works directly for end users, so we do not (inaudible) developments, so there is 
always an actual user behind us that is certainly the case here. I'm always under, and Tracy 's 
always under an NDA, Non-Disclosure Agreement, so we can't specifically talk about who we 
are representing. So, therefore we go under project code names. This one we call Project 
Winston. And we're very happy to be in front of all of you to talk about Project Winston. 
Certainly getting answer any questions you have about operations, how the building functions, 
hours of operation, the type of construction, all those things. We just wanted to kind of tell you 
who we are, and that it's not just the two of us up here, there is a, an end user behind us. So, as to 
the site plan, what you see in front of you is the overall 14-acre parcel and within the, what I'll 
call (inaudible), right side or what appears to be east, but it's more the South side is the regional 
retention facility for the Ahukini Subdivision that is being developed currently by Grove Farm. 
So, that is the drainage facility that will serve the entire project, so within the 14-acres that 
includes that portion of the project as well as our project, which is on the plan, west side. So, I 
don't know if we have anything that shows the overall subdivision but… 

Ms. Theone: (Inaudible). 

Mr. Bachman: We could potentially get there if you want to see how it fits within the overall 
subdivision, but to kind of go through the operations of the site and what we're currently showing 
you, is the area in the center of the colored areas is the actual building, and just for the record I'd 
like to make, I'd like to make a correction for the record, when we submitted the application we 
submitted it as a 35,994 square foot building, with a 6,545 foot canopy area, since that time, and 
is often the case, there's minor modifications that get made as we start to work with the end user 
on some design elements, very minor in this case, but for the record I'd like to state that we are 
now showing a 36,148 square foot building with 5,015 square feet of canopy, so the total square 
footage of the overall, call it canopy and building area is now 41,163 square feet, whereas before 
we were a little over 42,000. So, minor modification, but just wanted it for the record state that. 
That is within the kind of the blocked area in the middle. The canopy area is over the green area, 
those are the parking stalls for the vans that we'll be leaving the facility to go make parcel 
deliveries. The blue area is where the vans park when they're not in operation. They come in, 
they park or go through and then go to the green area to back in, get loaded with packages and 
then exit out of the facility. The yellow area is where the employees park in. To the question 
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earlier, we certainly exceed the standard and that is often the case with almost all of these 
buildings, do…you know exceed the standards of what the local codes are. I would agree that the 
codes are sometimes a little bit outdated in how they, how they interpret what the employment or 
what the, you know, facilities will be for current industrial buildings. We design it for the end 
user and for their potential growth, potential, so that is what the yellow area is and the yellow 
area is a total of 89 parking stalls currently. I should mention that the blue area is 46 parking 
stalls and the green dock area includes 9 loading docks for those vans. The red area to the plan 
north is where the trucks would come in with the prepackaged addressed packages, they would 
be unloaded in the red area, that is 6 depressed dock areas, we're going to show you the next 
slide that shows you a little bit of the elevation of the building. So, that is a depressed dock you 
see it down here in the bottom right, so that's a 4-foot high dock area, so the trucks back in there, 
they unload the packages, they then get sorted by the employees inside of the facility, they then 
get ready to go into the vans and as the vans pull up they get loaded into the vans and off to their 
final destination. The other view, so that view is kind of from what would be the plan southeast 
corner looking at the canopy and look at the dock area. The other view is kind of from the plan 
southwest corner looking back at the building, showing where the office entry is. On the…there 
under that canopy as well as the canopy itself for the van loading, so that is kind a, kind of the 
overall design and operations for the facility. Certainly happy to answer any questions. Often 
we’re asked about timelines, so I’d be happy to give you just a very quick timeline. You know, 
as you all know, I believe you guys have approved the overall subdivision agreement that 
subdivision for Grove Farm and their master development. They are currently under construction 
with their master plan doing their phased grading, utilities, paving, all the things they're supposed 
to do and they're doing a great job, we're enjoying our relationship with them. So, a lot of what 
we're doing within this project kind of gets dovetails into what they're doing for the master 
development, master subdivision standpoint. So, based on their timing, we will continue with the 
design, again assuming, well not assuming, but hoping that we get your approval today. We 
would kick off our design, go through design and be planning to commence construction in 
2026, with a building opening and operating in 2027. And that does coordinate with the 
construction activity that Grove Farm is doing within the overall subdivision. So, with that, kind 
of a general overview of off site by them, our timing and then I'm happy to answer any questions 
or Chair, if you have no questions at this time, I'll turn it back to Onaona and she’ll give you a 
little bit more on the project.  

Ms. Theone: Thanks, Steve. Just a couple more slides here again, so this is all part of our 
application showing, you know generally where the location of the property, General Plan 
Designation, Zoning Designation, State Land Use, flood zone, tsunami zone, and SMA, and 
because the portion of the project as you can see back in this slide, very kind of top corner of the 
project, portions in the SMA, we did apply for SMA Minor Permit and it covers just some simple 
elements that are located in the SMA that you can see, here we have perimeter fencing, bio swell, 
landscaping, we have a trash enclosure a little bit of some pavement areas and then of course a 
portion of the regional retention basin. So, that SMA Permit was granted on August 11th, and 
then lastly, we did get the Shoreline Setback Determination, so this graphic here shows, you 
know the shoreline, it's the 100 setback in relation to the project. So, you know we just again, 
thank you folks very much for your time, hearing our application. We have the approvals that 
we're going through to get this project going and our team is available for questions if you have 
any.  
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Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, questions for the applicant? 

Mr. Ako: Real quick, if I can. Relative to the Refuse Transfer Station, where is that? Real close, 
right? 

Ms. Theone: It's the next door neighbor, yeah. 

Mr. Ako: On the Hanamā'ulu side? 

Ms. Theone: On the south side…right? 

Mr. Ako: South side… 

Mr. Bachman: It’d be to the south, yes.  

Ms. Theone: So, right here, these guys are right…the refuse station if you can see, that's their 
parcel right there. See if I can get a better…here we go.  

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, there you go. 

Mr. Hammer: (Inaudible) corner of the building, that white (inaudible). 

Mr. Ako: So, as I come into Ahukini as I’m going to the beach, it's on the left, mauka side? Next 
to the… 

Ms. Theone: Ahukini Road... sorry, okay. 

Mr. Ako: Which is the… 

Ms. Theone: So, the beach is on this side, yeah, the refuse station is right here. 

Mr. Hull: So, behind (inaudible). 

Mr. Bachman: So, we’re above the beach… 

Ms. Theone: Yeah. 

Mr. Bachman: …but adjacent to the refuse station. 

Ms. Theone: Yeah. 

Mr. Ako: Got it. Okay.  

Ms. Cox: So how…I know that you've met the setback requirements, but how close are you to 
the bay, and what is the visibility?  

Mr. William Eddy: Good morning. My name is William Eddy with Kodani & Associates 
Engineers. We’re the civil engineer consultants for the project. So, the…on the map here there's 
two red lines, the first red line that is closest to the (inaudible) that says Hanamā'ulu Bay, is the 
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certified shoreline. And that is really just what it sounds like, it's…the vegetation line of the bay, 
and then there's a 100-foot setback from that, and so that's where development has restrictions. 
So, the terrain there is quite steep, it's like a rocky headland there, you can kind of see it when 
you fly into the airport where it's rocky shoreline, and so the elevation at the project site is…I’m 
kind of guessing, but maybe about 80 feet (inaudible) sea level.  

Ms. Cox: Okay. 

Mr. Eddy: And then at the edge of the property there, is close to the top of the slope where that 
Lot 4 is kind of a nice plain surface, and you know it was a sugar cane field at one time and then 
it drops off quite steeply to the ocean. So, there are nice views of Hanamā'ulu Bay from this lot 
for sure, but there's also a lot of trees along the cliffside… 

Ms. Cox: So, if you’re down on the bay you’re not going to see the building…or will you? 

Mr. Eddy: You won’t…it’s…the angles just don’t work out. Maybe if you were directly across 
the bay and then looking through the trees and, you know it's up at a higher elevation, so we 
haven't really done any studies as such, but I wouldn't expect that you could see the building 
itself, it's not a tall building… 

Ms. Cox: Right. 

Mr. Eddy: …it's a (inaudible) 28 feet in height, yeah. 

Ms. Cox: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: There's a Shoreline Setback Ordinance Amendment on the agenda, and Ms. Diamond 
is sitting in the back, so I just want to clarify a certified shoreline is no longer the vegetation line, 
it is the highest (inaudible) to the highest (inaudible).  

Ms. Cox: That’s right. 

Mr. Hull: As enumerated in the Supreme Court ruling per Diamond v State, so, thank you. 

Ms. Streufert: Before you go. I just have a couple of questions. I misstated my question earlier. I 
did see this map, but I cannot quite figure out how close you are to the approach, the airport 
approach or the airplane approach because I'm more concerned about…I'm concerned about the 
view plain, but I am more concerned about the safety because it is so close to the airport. So, 
could you explain a little bit about what kinds of mitigating factors you're using to ensure that 
there is safety that we can assure safety at the airport? 

Mr. Eddy: Okay. All of Ahukini Makai Subdivision is subject to an agreement with the 
Department of Transportation Airports Division and the name of the agreement is called 
Avigation Agreement, and so there's rules for development within the subdivision and per the 
agreement. One of the conditions of the Avigation Agreement is that each development submits 
to the FAA, the Federal Aviation Administration for a certain permit for development in 
proximity to an airport and so there's a standard application and we've completed that 
application, and then the FAA does a, they call that aeronautical study and the application seems 
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to be most concerned with tall things like antennas and also with lighting, and so they have it 
reviewed and approved the application for this project. So, that would be an FAA approval. 

Ms. Streufert: So, I see this report from the Department of Transportation that was included in 
this and their comments included complying with conditions and terms outlined in the 
memorandum of agreement of mitigation measures for traffic and there are a few others in here. 
Would this be acceptable if this were also part of the conditions for approval? If this is from the 
department or the state Department of Transportation? 

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, from the applicant standpoint, we do adhere to and are part of the overall 
subdivision and we do understand that Grove Farms is adhering to the criteria that they have 
been told by the DOT, so we would be fine if that was a condition of our approval. 

Ms. Streufert: Which is this particular document. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, to clarify. So, that conditions, sorry, Hawai'i Department of Transportation 
submitted separate comments to this particular application that aren’t necessarily the exact same 
comments typed (inaudible) subdivision requirements, and so what the commissioner is asking 
is, would you, as the applicant be open to an amendment to the department's proposed conditions 
of approval to incorporate the HDOT comments as requirements as well. 

Mr. Bachman: Just to our project application or to the overall? Because I can't, we can't agree to 
something… 

Mr. Hull: No, no, yeah, it’d just be for, just for your project site application. Correct. 

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, we've reviewed those and we don't see any issue with that. That'd be fine. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, further questions. 

Ms. Otsuka: I… 

Mr. Ornellas: Yes, I’m… 

Ms. Otsuka: Go ahead. 

Mr. Ornellas: I'm just curious as to why, and I don't think you can answer the question, but I'm 
just curious to why the end user wishes to remain anonymous. I mean if they coming to Kaua'i 
to do business here and they’re a reputable firm, you would think that they would have no 
problem telling us who they are. 

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, you're probably right that I can't answer that for them, what I can tell you is 
that it is not specific to Hawai'i, it's not specific to this project, it is the standard course of 
business that my partner and I have to go through. We would love to tell you, but we just can't do 
the NDA, but yeah, the reason for why they want to remain somewhat anonymous I don't, I 
wouldn't speculate I guess as to what that is, but we do…our experience with this particular end 
user is that they are a great end user, they are of the highest quality, and when the time is right 
they do make announcements so that everyone knows who they are. So… 
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Mr. Ornellas: As you can see our names are right here, right, so…we can’t be anonymous. 

Mr. Bachman: Yes, understood. 

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Mr. Bachman: Thank you. 

Mr. Ako: If I can follow up on that and if you cannot tell us, who could? 

Mr. Bachman: Who could? The end user only can, themselves. 

Mr. Ako: And would they be willing to disclose that to this Commission? 

Mr. Bachman: To this Commission today, I don't believe that they would be willing to disclose 
that. But I can't speak for the end user on that specific item.  

Mr. Ako: Okay. 

Chair DeGracia: I got a question. In the application… 

Mr. Hull: Sorry, I just gotta…just with the way the conversations going, I just want to also, just 
point out that the department when we accept applications, just is reviewing the proposal as long 
as the landowner is authorizing the proposal to be, you know, applied for, there's no way that the 
department can compel, you know what the specific operation is. We have to look at the 
operation as proposed regardless of who is applying. So, that’s why the department can’t…I 
mean I think we all know who we're talking about, but… 

Chair DeGracia: My question is, there was a section on community outreach and it stated that 
when an application is submitted and accepted by the department that you would initiate, so two 
part question, what is the goal of that community outreach and then the other part is, where are 
you at with this outreach to the community? 

Mr. Bachman: We would…a lot of that has been done through the master subdivision, we're 
working closely with Grove Farm, where they have had, you know many meetings over the last 
call it 10 plus years with the community. They've given us you know names and contacts of 
people to be reaching out to. Some of them with the end user and we are beginning and working 
through that process now. We have our cultural team with us here today and will continue to 
follow up with kind of some, what I’d call key stakeholders with both the end user and with 
Grove Farm. But a lot of that outreach was done and approved or done, done through the 
subdivision agreement that Grove Farm already completed. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. 

Mr. Bachman: But nothing (inaudible) that. 

Chair DeGracia: Specific to this project though, has there…is there goals for the community 
outreach specific to this project or… 
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Mr. Bachman: Absolutely. 

Chair DeGracia: What is your goal? 

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, the goal for the end user and we’ll be alongside them is to have community 
outreach to reach out to different stakeholders within, you know local community to start to 
integrate with local groups as to employment as they get closer to, assuming an approval and 
moving forward, you know getting closer to bringing employment on, so they have what they 
call, you know some of these, some of the things you'll see in here are what they call, like flex 
drivers, I believe it was in the application, there are local, there are opportunities for local people 
to work for them not just as an employee, but otherwise through other contract things and they 
will engage with the community directly for that, and that they've had, you know we will have, 
my partner and I will engage with the community through the contractor base, so while we 
haven't hired a general contractor yet, we hope to in the coming months and when we do that we 
will have outreach to the contractor community as well, so that we have sub-contractors that are 
all, you know have an opportunity to see the project as well, which is typical of all the projects 
we work on, Mr. Chair, but here I think, you know we certainly have already had those 
conversations with them, (inaudible) my partners met with, you know three different general 
contractors, Swinnerton, Layton and PLC… 

Mr. Hammer: PCL. 

Mr. Bachman: PCL. And you know, with part of that direction being that local outreach will be 
part of what we will pursue with the, the contracting of this project for construction. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, and you brought us something interesting, what is a flex driver and 
what's the difference between a flex driver and an employee driver? 

Mr. Bachman: I don't know that I can fully answer it 100% accurately, but I'll give it a shot and 
someone will tell me if I, if I messed it up behind me. A flex driver is not an actual true 
employee of the end user, they are a contract employee that works through a contract to have the 
opportunity to drive for that end user, so there's separate things that are set up, so there's full time 
employees, they're employees, you know with the, you know kind of call it the typical 
employment base, but then there also are flex drivers, which are not direct employees, but have 
contracts with the company to drive and some of those are done through what they, you know it's 
part of this outreach where they do have, where they work within the local community to find, 
you know leaders for that on that opportunity to bring others in.  

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. And then one last question. I was looking at the rendering of the 
warehouse, how are you guys planning on cooling it down for workers inside?  

Unknown Male: It will be an air-conditioned warehouse. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. 

Unknown Male: And then when I was going to add to the outreach, we have reached out to four 
general contractors, and all have a local presence and certainly work on the islands and as part of 
RFP to the general contractors, will be outreach to the local folks, so we will have a diversity 
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component as part of that RFP, where we'll set goals and objectives for the project and then I do 
think as well it's good to add the sustainability portion to that, it is a company that's focused on 
low carbon emissions, there will be a recycling  program, we do have the 5 EV charging stations 
as required, but there's definitely a goal and a target to hire local wherever we can. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. Because this operation, it looked this a considerable operation and 
the size of it would like to see a good partnership with the community. Thank you. 
Commissioners, any further questions? 

Ms. Streufert: I do. Go ahead. 

Mr. Ako: Let's see, I think one of the big issues that we face here on Kaua'i is the fact of, you 
know our economic stability that we have here. The big issue is that we're just losing our next 
generations that are moving off island because one, they cannot afford to stay here or the lack of 
job opportunities. I know you mentioned that there's about 69 jobs that this project here will 
employ. What type of jobs are we talking about? About the 69 or whatever that number is.  

Mr. Bachman: Yeah, I think it’s a 169. 

Mr. Ako: 169. 

Mr. Bachman: 169. You know, drivers, warehouse workers, maintenance, there's a variety of 
things that people that work within the warehouse. There's also obviously the people that oversee 
them, so the management of the of the facility and things like that, so a myriad of things, but a 
lot of, you know, it's, this is a true warehouse facility, it's a distribution facility and it is a 
delivery facility, so it will be, you know warehouse workers and drivers.  

Mr. Ako: So, if we talking about salary, any idea about what that average, what the mean salary 
would be for an employee. 

Mr. Bachman: I don't know that myself and I wouldn't guess, especially since we're talking about 
here in the islands where I'm not sure what the, what the pay is myself but… 

Mr. Ako: And you also mentioned that the warehouse itself will…it's going to be a warehouse 
and distribution center, yeah, what does that mean? That means products will be coming in and 
going out as well as products that will be stored within the facility for say, distribution. 

Mr. Bachman: Generally, the project, so to go back to the site plan, so, prepackaged things come 
in daily into the red area, which would be the unloaded through by in the docs, so they come in 
through trucks and get unloaded. They then, the workers then sort them.  

Mr. Ako: And those are designated for no particular individual or residents, they're just this 
block of goods that are coming in. 

Mr. Bachman: No, no. They are already prepackaged. 

Mr. Ako: Prepackaged. 
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Mr. Bachman: Yes so, they already have been, delivery station wise, someone has already made 
an order, that package has been put into the box that has your name on it and then it gets shipped 
to this from a from a…through a truck from another facility and then gets sorted and gets placed 
on a van and gets delivered out to your house or whomever 's house or business from this 
facility. So, it's not actually storing overnight, you know a bunch of materials that are going to be 
orders placed for them to be packaged in this facility, that is not the current operation of this 
facility, it's more things coming in, warehoused, loaded, sorted throughout the day and then 
distribute it out later in the day. John? 

Unknown Male: Yeah, that was right and (inaudible). Very good. 

Mr. Bachman: John Karnowski is the Traffic Engineer for us, as well as works actually for this 
particular end-user, so he is very familiar with their operations and can help answer questions as 
well. 

Mr. John Karnowski: And then what I was going to add real quick as well, if you do read the 
type 4 application I think there's a great section or paragraph in there in regards to the 
employment, the hourly wage, the benefits that the client provides, but the great written narrative 
that I think does speak to Steve's point that, you know this client is a great steward of the 
community and they hold that in very high regard, but there's a lot of detailed information in the 
application.  

Ms. Otsuka: I have a question. With the amount of vehicles proposed, was there any discussions 
regarding our future need for above ground fuel station?  

Unknown Male: Fuel station. 

Ms. Otsuka: Fuel… 

Mr. Karnowski: I don't think that's part of the plan. 

Ms. Otsuka: Okay. Thanks. 

Ms. Streufert: On page 4 of your application it that says that there is going to be, using, handling 
or storing hazardous materials in the ordinary course of business. It’s on page 4. And there was a 
concern in the Director’s Report about drainage with the airport runway area so close, and also it 
goes into the potentially go into Ahukini Bay, can you address that? 

Mr. Karnowski: I'll try and touch on the hazardous materials to start. Currently and initially there 
are no plans to store hazardous materials. I know it was part of the clients operation on occasion 
they may have facilities that do store hazardous materials and if that were to occur there would 
certainly be a follow up process to the requirements entitlement side of that as far as what, how 
those materials may be handled, but initially no hazardous materials.  

Ms. Streufert: And the drainage part of that…is that… 
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Mr. Karnowski: The drainage is part of the overall Master Plan as Steve had mentioned, the area 
to plan (inaudible), the large basin, that is a self-contained basin, so we will not be sending any 
stormwater off property, if you will, that’ll all be contained within the master basin.  

Ms. Streufert: So, this is all part of the Master Plan, but not specifically to this project. Is that 
correct? 

Mr. Karnowski: When the Master Plan was designed this particular lot was planned as part of 
that overall master retention detention basin, so… 

Ms. Streufert: Okay. 

Mr. Ako: At 40,000 square feet, warehouse, are you aware of, if there's any other warehouse or 
distribution center on the island equivalent to…it's about the size of Longs, right? About 40,000 
square feet. Are you aware of any other warehouse or distribution center on island or maybe in 
state, maybe might be a better question, that exist? 

Mr. Bachman: On the island, not aware of any. Certainly, there are other opportunities or other 
things in state, absolutely. On O'ahu there's buildings that big and larger, but here on Kaua'i, 
(inaudible) I don't know of any nor have I seen it. But what I can say to that is that, you know the 
way that these operations get designed and specifically for this type of facility is that every 
building is…it's not a cookie cutter at all. We, my partner and I have developed many of these 
buildings around the country and this one might be 42, the next one might be 26, the next one 
might be 87, every building is designed for the market based on the capacity of what the end user 
specifically believes the needs of that community are, so this is not an over designed, if anything 
it's the right size for the market with maybe a little bit of room for growth and expansion, but 
yeah they (inaudible) to really, especially in this product type, there are other buildings that 
another users would work with, where they do just kind of  building the same building often, but 
that is certainly not the case for this facility, since it is right sized.  

Mr. Hull: The only one I can think of, Commissioner, would possibly be the building supply 
warehouse in Lawa'i. 

Mr. Ako: Lawa'i. 

Mr. Hull: It’s not receiving things from the airport, per say, but receives material and then 
distributes the material. 

Ms. Otsuka: Comment, I appreciate the investment in the Hawai'i workforce, it says the end user 
invest up to $5250.00 per associate annually to support their educational enrichment and career 
goals, so I appreciate that.  

Chair DeGracia: I've got a question. This facility is it designed mainly to self-perform instead of 
contracting out your business or will it also, or and will it expedite the current service that's 
going on now? 

Mr. Bachman: I'll talk in general because again I'm not the end user, but our understanding is 
both of those things will be true. One, it will…these efforts are designed to expedite delivery to 
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enhance the customers experience with the end user by not relying on others to do the delivery, 
specifically. So, by having the delivery network more contained, I believe it is easier for this end 
user to control the outcome a little more and they, and it will enhance customer experience, may 
shorten some other delivery timelines and third, it may take the relief off of some other facilities 
that are, that are a little bit stressed by the need to assist this particular end user. So…and again 
we're seeing this, my partner and I are working on this with them in many locations and we 
we've heard that, call that second hand information, but in other presentations that I'm, so I'm 
kind of repeating what I've, what I've heard previously, but I do believe that to be the case. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. Appreciate it. 

Mr. Ako: I have one question. You know, as you just mentioned there that the, you relieving 
stress from some of the other, I guess distributors that are out there, does that mean we moving 
employees from one enterprise to another enterprise or are we increasing the workforce itself? 

Mr. Bachman: I don't know that I could answer that myself. 

Mr. Karnowski: Yeah, I think what I would add, you are increasing the workforce and what we 
do see nationally is some of the other entities are overstressed and they can't keep up with the 
volume, so it's more of a volume capacity timing consideration than it is an employment 
consideration.  

Mr. Ako: Just wondering because I think right now we're looking at employment, unemployment 
at about 2.4%, 2.3%, and I think when you looking for the need for labor, where does that labor 
come from (inaudible), so, you know if we actually want to be increasing the workforce I think 
that's really good, yeah. We're bringing the 2.3% even further down, but I think at 2.3% you 
almost looking at a, everybody that's ready, willing and able to work, yeah, are already working, 
yeah at that level. Okay, so I'm hoping that you increasing the work, the labor workforce.  

Ms. Streufert: Is there a requirement for workforce housing? 

Mr. Hull: Not that I’m aware of.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, any further questions for the applicant and or the 
department? Or any further comments? 

Mr. Ornellas: Yeah. You know, this type of operation is one that lends itself readily to 
automation, to what extent are these sorting lines automated.  

Mr. Karnowski: This is all manual sorting, so this isn't a highly automated facility, so there's 
some conveyors in it, but it's all supported by the labor.  

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, anything further? All right I guess we'll be ready for the 
Director’s recommendation or unless we need to take a…we can take a recess for (inaudible) of 
the conditions. 
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Mr. Hull: Well, the departments recommendation stands as it is, with the proposed 
recommendation of approval. Did the applicant have any objections to those recommended 
conditions of approval?  

Mr. Bachman: No objections. 

Ms. Streufert: I would also like to consider adding all of the recommendations from the 
Department of Transportation for safety and as you have stated previously you have no problems 
with that, so if we could add that with one change to those. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, there's one condition in there, Commissioner, almost all the conditions 
recommended by, sorry if I take a step back, generally speaking, the department is hesitant about 
incorporating other agencies comments as a clearing house set of conditions of approval and 
recommending it (inaudible) this body, this body absolutely has the ability and authority to do it, 
but generally the department would recommend not doing that because agencies are signatories 
to the building permit and will sometimes change their requirements post Planning Commission 
actions whereby will necessitate coming back to the Commission, so generally we recommend 
not, but for those agencies that are not signatories to building permits, that is, I think in a, an 
appropriate action to consider adopting their conditions that they're recommending. HDOT is not 
a signatory to the building permits, I think it's absolutely appropriate to consider adopting it. 
There is just one condition that HDOT is recommending that I'll be honest, from the departments 
standpoint we have a bit of a concern on, and it has to do with the fact that, I think it's Condition 
3, which states that based on the information provided, the proposed projects does not anticipate 
to significantly impact the state highway system, however in the event that there are any 
unexpected traffic issues attributed to the project, the applicant shall mitigate them to the 
satisfaction of HDOT, at no cost to the state. That one, you know, all the other are pretty much 
reiterations of code requirements that they are (inaudible) to stand by those code requirements. 
This one is kind of an open-ended cart blanch, well HDOT would never do something, but like, 
in the extreme and in a hyperbolic statement, HDOT could be like, oh, there’s too trucks on the 
road, we need you to build another lane to Kapa'a. I’m not saying they’re to do that, but that's 
where there's some…it's (inaudible) simplified and if, you know perhaps, Commissioner, we 
could take a 5 or 10 minute recess and I can discuss with the applicant potential amendments that 
they might be open to, which I think will implement the intent of the condition while not leaving 
it entirely open-ended.  

Ms. Streufert: Thank you. I would like that. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. We’ll take a 10-minute recess. 

 The Commission went into recess at 10:09 a.m. 
The Commission reconvened from recess at 10:17 a.m. 

Chair DeGracia: Like to call the meeting back to order. And are we ready for the Director’s 
recommendations? 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, so the department still holds to its original set of recommended Conditions of 
Approval and the department is also by reference, recommending all of HDOT's 
recommendations be included as a new Condition 6, with HDOT's recommendations being 
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alphabetized with the final one being numerical and specifically the departments recommending 
one small change to Conditions 3 of HDOT, which be Condition C, as recommended to read as 
follows; based on the information provided the proposed project is not anticipated to 
significantly impact the state highway, however in the event that there are any unexpected traffic 
issues attributed to the project the applicant shall mitigate them to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Department will work in consultation with HDOT to make that determination.  

Ms. Streufert: Should it state the Kaua'i Planning Department? 

Mr. Hull: I can say that, I can adjust it, to the satisfaction of the Kaua'i Planning Department, 
who will work in consultation with HDOT to make that determination. 

Unknown Male: I guess (inaudible). 

Mr. Bachman: We do not object, we accept that modification. Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Commissioners, any further discussion on the, the amendment? Any 
concerns?  

Ms. Cox: No. 

Chair DeGracia: If not, then are we going back to the Director’s recommendation? 

Mr. Hull: No, that was it. 

Chair DeGracia: Or that was it? Okay. Commissioners, any further discussion? 

Ms. Cox: Yeah. I just had a…I was thinking about seems to be there’s a, I don’t know if it’s a 
contradiction, but at least a possible problem, and that is Gerald pointed out, Commissioner Ako 
pointed out that our unemployment rate is very low and you also said that you were going to be 
increasing the workforce rather than just moving people, so it seems like, either the project is 
going to steal jobs because of the unemployment rate is so low that people are going to leave 
other jobs to come to you or you really are going to increase the workforce, which is great, but 
then we have a housing problem and I was just wondering if you could speak to how you would 
imagine this working.  

John Karnowski: I do know as part of the overall Master Plan with Grove Farms they do have a 
affordable housing component to that, which I think is a compliment to the overall Master Plan 
and I think based on the job growth and opportunities coupled with the overall Master Plan and 
the affordable housing component there I think they complement one another and then, you 
know from a job employment standpoint, you know certainly understand the low employment 
rate, but the objective and goal is to certainly, you know create new jobs and I think the benefits 
that come along with it and, you know when you really have a chance to read the Type 4 
application and the written narrative, you know I think it does a great job just beyond the 
employment consideration factor of what the client tries to do in the community, so a lot of great 
information in that section without getting into a lot of detail.  

Ms. Cox: Thank you. 
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Mr. Hull: I apologize to interject at the last minute, right before (inaudible) and action be called. 
Recognizing that we have two separate agenda items, we have the Agency Hearing, which was 
closed this morning, and we have the actual New Business, technically we didn't call for public 
testimony on the New Business. So, if you guys could take a seat and we’ll call for any public 
testimony. 

Ms. Theone: Thank you, folks. 

Mr. Hull: Sunshine Law, sorry about that. So, while the Agency Hearing has been closed for this 
item there is technically a business section, New Business section. Is there any, we don’t have 
anybody signed up, but there is anybody in the public that would like to testify on this agenda 
item? Okay, seeing none. Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. With that, Commissioners, any further questions? If not, I'll 
entertain a motion.  

Ms. Streufert: I move to approve Class IV 4 Zoning Permit, Z-IV-2026-1, with the amendments 
suggested by the department,  

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Commissioners, motion has been made and seconded to approve Class 
IV Zoning Permit, Z-IV-2026-1, with the additional condition. Do we have any further 
discussion before we go to a roll call vote? Okay, hearing none, could we get a roll call vote, Mr. 
Clerk. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Mr. Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox? 

Ms. Cox: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka? 

Ms. Otsuka: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

Ms. Streufert: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Aye. 
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Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Moving on to number, G.2.b.  

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2026-1), CLASS 
IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2026-2), and USE PERMIT (U-2026-1) to 
accommodate improvements to the existing Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) on property identified as the Ching Young Village Shopping Center in 
Hanalei Town, further identified as 5-5190 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map Key: (4) 5-
5-002:040, containing a total area of 2.485 acres = MICHAEL G. CHING, ET
AL. [Director's Report Received, 8/12/2025]. 

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.
2. Transmittal of agency comments to Planning Commission.

Mr. Hull: We don't have anybody signed up to testify in this agenda item, but is there any 
member of the public that would like to testify on this agenda item?  

Ms. Theone: Just mahalo to you all. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Hull: Seeing none, the department would recommend closing the agency hearing. 

Ms. Streufert: I move to close the agency hearing. 

Ms. Cox: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Commissioners, motion has been made and seconded to close the agency 
hearing on this agenda item. We’ll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice 
vote). Oppose. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

Continued Public Hearing (None) 

NEW BUSINESS (For Action) 

Mr. Hull: Moving into the business, New Business for this agenda item and agency hearing 
previously listed. The department’s going to call right now for any public testimony on this item. 
Seeing none, the department will turn it over to Dale for the Director’s Report pertaining to this 
matter.  

Staff Planner Dale Cua: Good morning, Mr. Chair and members of the Planning Commission. 

Mr. Cua read the Summary, Project Data, Project Description and Use, Additional 
Findings, Preliminary Evaluation, and Preliminary Conclusion sections of the 
Director’s Report for the record (on file with the Planning Department). 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. Commissioners, any questions for the department, planner? 
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Ms. Streufert: On the historical resources, it says that SHPD, this is their application, it says that 
SHPD requested submittal of the HRS 6E form to formally begin their review processes,  the 
appropriate document was submitted to SHPD. Has any response been received? 

Mr. Cua: We’re still waiting for their reply. 

Ms. Streufert: Okay.  

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any other questions for the department? If not, I'd like to invite 
the applicant up to add or applicants representative. We have anybody in the room? Good 
morning. If there's anything you'd like to add to the report from the department and be available 
for any questions from the Commissioners.  

Ms. Otsuka: Should they state their names?  

Mr. Larry Harper: My name is Larry Harper; I'm the General Manager of Ching Young Village. 

Mr. Waioli Forrest: I’m Waioli Forrest, the Assistant Manager, and, you know, it's a long time 
coming, we've been looking to update this for the couple of years, and we just look forward to 
getting the approval and, hopefully, you know, allow us to improve (inaudible) the shopping 
center (inaudible). Oh…yeah, we’re just hoping to improve the environment, the community 
and, you know just update the existing shopping center, so it just optimizes our operations, you 
know.  

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any questions for applicant? 

Ms. Otsuka: You mentioned you're the General Manager and Assistant of the village? 

Mr. Forrest: Yeah. 

Mr. Harper: The shopping center. 

Ms. Otsuka: The shopping center. Thank you. 

Ms. Streufert: After this project is completed, what will happen to the temporary wet water 
treatment…product. 

Mr. Harper: The temporary… 

Ms. Streufert: Yeah, but… 

Mr. Harper: (Inaudible). 

Ms. Streufert: …right, the temp…there’s a temporary WWTP, I can’t think of what the “P” is. 

Mr. Harper: It's basically just a rented temporary system, and then the company that we rent 
from (inaudible). 

Ms. Streufert: Okay, so then the old one will then be taken out… 
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Mr. Forrest: Decommissioned, yeah.  

Ms. Streufert: Okay, because it’s not in (inaudible). 

Mr. Forrest: Oh, sorry about that. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, anything further? The applicant or department or would you 
guys like to start a discussion? If not, you know if you'd like to, get the departments Director’s 
recommendation.  

Mr. Cua: Chair, the department stands by its recommendation. There are a total of 8 conditions 
listed. I did want to make a note that Condition No. 8, there's a small little amendment to the 
condition where it would read, the Planning Commission reserves the right to add, modify or 
delete conditions of approval. But other than that it’ll stand by its original recommendations.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Thank you. Commissioners, last questions, discussion. If not, I'll 
entertain a motion. 

Mr. Ako: Let's see, regarding Special Management Area Use Permit, SMA(U)-2026-1, Class IV 
Zoning Permit, Z-IV-2026-2, and Use Permit, U-2026-1, I move to approve. 

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion on the floor is to approve Special Management 
Area Use Permit, SMA(U)-2026-1, Class IV Zoning Permit, Z-IV-2026-2, and Use Permit, U-
2026-1. Any last minute discussion before we go to a roll call vote? 

Ms. Cox: Do we have to mention that the little modification? 

Chair DeGracia: With the, with the correction and addition to Condition No. 8. Okay, if not, no 
further discussion. Could we get a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Mr. Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox? 

Ms. Cox: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Otsuka? 

Ms. Otsuka: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 
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Ms. Streufert: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Mr. Ako: Thank you. 

Mr. Forrest: Thank you. 

New Public Hearing 

Mr. Hull: Next on the agenda, the final agenda item is; 

ZA-2026-1: A bill (2969) for an ordinance amending Chapter 8, Article 27 of the 
Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, relating to Shoreline Setback and Coastal 
Protection. The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Shoreline Setback 
Ordinance by adding safeguards that protect life and property and ensure the 
longevity and integrity of Kauai's coastal and beach resources along the shoreline 
= KAUAI COUNTY COUNCIL. 

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.
2. Transmittal of agency comments to Planning Commission.

Mr. Hull: Do we have any members of the public that would like to testify on this agenda item? 
If you could state your name and three minutes for testimony.  

Ms. Caren Diamond: Aloha Caren Diamond. I just want to thank Planning Department and 
support the changes to this. I think all the changes are excellent, the Director’s Report explains 
everything. And really amazing and I just want to add my support for all the changes and thank 
you. Aloha. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Ms. Otsuka: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Is there any other members of the public who would like to testify on this agenda item? 
Seeing none…moving…okay, generally at this point the department would give its report, the 
staff planner assigned to this agenda item is out sick today. I can go over briefly, so you can 
understand. Ultimately, we're asking for deferral to have a little more time to digest and then, 
yeah, thank you to Ms. Diamond, I've been in discussions with her for now, a year and a half, 
trying to massage parts of the ordinance and the implementation of it that could be built better 
and then there's some additional things in it as well that go beyond just making the ordinance 
better, but the first and foremost, it's kind of a 3-pronged approach, first and foremost is, we've 
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noticed over time that, I’m sorry, with the Shoreline Setback Ordinance, to give it in a nutshell, 
the purpose of the setback is to ensure that the built environment is adequately setback from the 
shoreline enable to ensure that the new proposed structures are not impacted by coastal hazards, 
particularly coastal erosion, but other coastal hazards as well, and then also so that the built 
environment proposed new structures as the shoreline moves mauka, those built structures aren't 
going to impact and create tension and conflict between the public realm of the beach and the 
private realm of the private property, which we often see in coastal areas where land owners 
often at times can be found encroaching upon, what is public domain and whether, you know 
you're talking about just access issues, traditional issues, gathering and fishing issues, that 
conflict between the built environment is part of why the Shoreline Setback Ordinance was 
created. A lot of people look at the Shoreline Setback Ordinance, and is like, “oh, it’s just to 
make sure the house can we move adequately to accommodate coastal erosion”, that's a part of it, 
but that's not the only reason. So, in looking at the proposed amendments, one area where we 
found that there has been some insufficiencies in administering the ordinance is when it comes to 
renovations, repairs and rebuilds, so when you rebuild a structure in the shoreline setback area, 
you are required to move it back or out of the setback, and if you're going to repair a structure in 
the setback area, you're allowed to repair up to 50% of the assessed value of the structure. And 
what we found is that a fair, not a lot, but some applications over the past have provided a certain 
amount that they're proposing to improve the structure by and after we approve it as a repair to 
happen, that considerable efforts were made whereby it would appear significant amounts of 
money may have been invested in that structure beyond (inaudible) originally listed in the 
building permit repair application. And so, the first thrust of what this ordinance does is it grants 
the Planning Department the authority to require that after construction has happened, well, one 
that renovations and repair, repairs, sorry, anybody asking for repair exemption has to itemize 
exactly what is being proposed to be repaired, and the material and labor that's going to go into 
those repairs, and so we can itemize and look that it's actually is within the 50% threshold, and 
then it also authorized the department that should it require receipts after construction, we 
have…it would provide the department ability to require those receipts and if receipts are not 
provided, that the department can make a market analysis of what that would have cost it, and 
whether through the market analysis or through the receipts, it’s demonstrated at 50% has been 
exceeded, it just further clarifies that we can have them either apply for a Shoreline Setback 
Variance or they have to remove those improvements. So, that's the first thrust of it. The second 
thrust is looking at the minimum buildable footprint, which when building in the setback, right 
now the minimum buildable footprint was set at 1,000 square feet. The Planning Commission in 
reviewing the variance has to at least consider allowing a minimum of a thousand square foot 
dwelling unit, and the proposal reduces it down to 500. Again, reducing that conflict between the 
built environment and the public space and what may be subject to coastal hazards. And the 3rd 
one, and I don't know if it's not getting that much attention, there’s been a fair amount of 
discussion statewide around the draft ordinance and this one doesn't get much discussion, but it's 
the one I’m kind of somewhat most excited about. I can't take credit for it. Caren came up with it 
and I was, kind of like, is that legal…and the 3rd one is this notion of, even if you're doing 
repairs, once you hit and it’s well within that 50%, once you hit 125,000, it's going to (inaudible) 
for shoreline structures, it's going to necessitate a shoreline survey be done. And you know, 
(inaudible), (inaudible), I’ve even spoke to some private sector attorneys and they're like, oh, 
that's asking a lot, and I was like, well, is it legal and they're like, well, in (inaudible), and their 
response, no, it’s legal. And this speaks to the conflict that we often see between public users and 
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private property and that, you know, we just don't have many surveys of our beaches, we don’t 
actually know where that line exists and so, when property owners and not all, I don’t want to 
speak poorly and dimly on, and be like, oh, all ocean property owners are the pits and they're 
jerks and they're trying to take away public rights, definitely (inaudible) the case, but there are 
definitely some, where indeed they are trying to exert additional property, private property rights 
on what is otherwise clearly public lands and the reason we have such a hard time pushing back 
on those property owners or DLNR has problems pushing back on those property owners, is 
because we just don't have many certified shorelines out there and this mechanism, this trigger 
could in theory get a substantial part of our beaches that are abutting the built environment, 
certified and us (inaudible)  stand exactly where that line is. So, I know it’s kind of long winded, 
but that's what the proposed bill is in a nutshell. So, I don’t know if there's any questions 
commissioners have.  

Ms. Otsuka: I have a question. It says the structure cost less than 125,000, but are you taking into 
consideration the cost of construction as the years progress? Because you can have the same 
today, the value of 125,000 five years from now, the cost of the construction will be higher.  

Mr. Hull: Yeah. 

Ms. Otsuka: So… 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, the…technically with the Coastal Erosion Ordinance there's a study that's done 
in every five or seven years to update the erosion rates. And I think, so, it’s constantly 
(inaudible) ordinance in that, the erosion rates as time passes are updated through a map 
certification at UH, so in theory, every time we update it we could look at increasing, per say, for 
inflationary purposes the 125,000 threshold. 

Ms. Otsuka: Thank you. 

Mr. Ornellas: Along those lines, not only the 125k, but where the property is located. If I’m in 
Kapa'a, you know, contractor is going to charge me a lot less than if I say, I’m in Hā'ena, right, 
so it’s kind of a moving target. The other question I had was regarding the 50% rule, is that 
based on the current assessed value of the property because that's also a moving target, right? 

Mr. Hull: Yes. 

Mr. Ornellas: Every year there seems… 

Mr. Hull: The assessed value of the structure. 

Mr. Ornellas: …to be…yeah, these beach front properties are assessed at higher values 
constantly, right. So, it’s based on the current assessed value. 

Mr. Hull: Of the structure, not the property (inaudible)… 

Mr. Ornellas: Yeah, of the structure. 

Mr. Hull: …the structure… 
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Mr. Ornellas: Right. 

Mr. Hull: …and then if there is some concern around the real property assessed value of the 
structure, the applicants provide an appraised amount from an appraiser, who will appraise the 
actual structure. So…and usually you can tell…not at all, I mean if it's a clear-cut quick case the 
applicants we find will generally use the real property assessment of those structure just because 
it's readily available, but as we see some property owners especially in these high-end, larger 
units wanting to push that envelope more. I don't think the appraisers are held to a specific 
standards, so I'll don’t think they’re out there blowing loads of building up these numbers, but 
the real property assessment process as I understand it, is generally kept them on the 
conservative side to keep the…so the assessors, generally as I understand it, going a little bit and 
as low as they possibly can in their analysis, whereas an appraiser might go a little bit higher, so 
you'll almost always see these applications especially for these higher-end properties and the 
ones we often come into conflict with using appraisers.  

Mr. Ornellas: Yeah, because if you're looking at replacement value then that’s a game changer. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah. 

Mr. Ornellas: You know, not necessarily (inaudible) maybe an old structure. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah. 

Mr. Ornellas: And not worth much. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah. 

Mr. Ornellas: But if the appraiser says, what is the replacement cost of this building today, in 
todays dollars, then that's significantly higher.  

Mr. Hull: Yeah. Absolutely. 

Mr. Ornellas: Thank you. 

Ms. Streufert: And this is more of a an overall kind of question. Based upon the data that's here, 
in the past century, on average the beaches have lost four inches per year because it's 36 feet for 
the last century, and if this is correct based upon those projections, by 2050 it will be double that, 
so that'll be eight inches per year, and if you go to 2020 or 2100, it’s two and a half times, so that 
would be 10 inches per year. When that happens, where does the private property begin and the 
public beaches start? Is that based upon from the…from where it is today or where…each year 
that it goes up? So, that the property owners will actually lose land… 

Mr. Hull: Yep. 

Ms. Streufert: …as they go on. Is that correct? 

Mr. Hull: That is correct. 
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Ms. Streufert: So, that's about 10 feet or 10 feet over high tide is always going to be there. 

Mr. Hull: Correct. And it moves, right, so in Alisha’s report she's just, she's taking it from the 
abstract…an island wide picture of overall. Now granted, if you're sitting on a beach front 
property that doesn't mean your property itself is going to be subject to that. It could be subject to 
much more than that, it could be subject to less than that, and that's what the coastal erosion 
study that the Shoreline Setback Ordinance is attached to intimately, is that erosion rate coastal 
study, each area has 50 foot transects of what the erosion rate is, and so, if you're looking at, you 
know, a 5-foot erosion rate in front of your property, you're going to have much more than what 
Alisha is laying out, but if you have a static shoreline or rocky shoreline it won't necessarily have 
the same impacts. 

Ms. Streufert: So, if my calculations are correct and I’m not a…I'm a statistician not a 
mathematician. By 2100 we could lose something like 67 feet from the shoreline, that's…that's 
the significant chunk of land. So, I just wanted to lay that out there. But the other part of it is 
Hawaiian burials tended to be on the beach or close to the beach, is that correct? And our policy 
about iwi, is that while you're building or when you have any ground disturbing activities then 
you have to call SHPD to let them know. When this goes up, when you've got all this erosion and 
these iwi may come out, is there any requirement for the landowner or the homeowner to report 
this? 

Mr. Hull: There generally is, and also to one set of erosion is happening, right, technically the 
shoreline being the highest wash of the highest wave, and I'm not a 100% certain on the overall 
process, but because the highest wash of the highest wage is going to generally be where erosion 
is exposing iwi then it's now technically in DLNR’s domain, that's (inaudible) the public’s fear. 
And so, yeah, how, so they're essentially navigating how you deal with those and if there are any 
lineal descendants and the appropriate process for reinterning those. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Commissioners, any further questions for the Director? 

Ms. Barzilai: Are we taking substantive action today? 

Mr. Hull: No, the department is recommending a deferral, apologies, I’m looking at the calendar. 

Ms. Barzilai: I also wanted to know, Ka'aina, that we opened up a Rule 5, Public Hearing, but I 
don’t think we closed it. We opened up the hearing, take testimony... 

Mr. Hull: Okay. 

Ms. Barzilai: …we just need to close the Rule 5 hearing. 

Mr. Hull: Okay. Sorry. Recognizing what the October agendas are shaping up to be, the 
department would recommend deferring this to November 11th. Oh, and I apologize, I believe 
somebody from the public was raising their hand. If, Chair, if you’d like to still consider taking 
public testimony. 

Ms. Barzilai: Yes, because the hearing’s still open. 
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Mr. Hull: Yeah. Okay. 

Ms. Felicia Cowden: For the record, Felicia Cowden, both as a resident of the North Shore for 40 
year, for more than 40 years and as a council member. The pattern is, you know, very simple 
houses get rebuilt into something really grand. So, I think, you know there's good questions, 
maybe there needs to be a metric on how to determine the percentage of the cost that becomes 
the trigger for a significant or even minor change because definitely building cost change, but I’ll 
tell you, you have an old house, quaint little old house that becomes a brand new very significant 
house. What has bothered me over the years as an individual and then also as a council person is 
the landscaping that happens on that that really works almost like a hardened sea wall, and so it 
will erode the area next to it, it takes beach areas away. In the past I haven't been down there as 
much because I'm kind of busy, but they'll be four houses in a row that add 10 feet one week, 
two weeks later another 10 feet are added, two weeks later another 10 feet, till, if you look where 
the beach signs are they're 40 feet back and they've taken the view, you know it’s…when you 
allow these improvements to happen, not you, but when improvements are allowed that are so 
significant typically these people want privacy and is a complete change of the parcel, so it's the 
taking of the beach and there's no room to see around, you no longer see the view, you can't walk 
around, you can't take your kids there, in the winter time the waves come up. Certainly in 
Hanalei when the yards were put quite a long way in, the sand line went back to the normal place 
and that was looked at as sea level rise, (inaudible) sea level rise, it was just evidence of the 
encroachment on the beach. So, it's just an important element and I am thankful that we had a 
community member here who has been diligent on this and is looking at it, and what also 
happens when we look the other way on our Shoreline Setback and what is a renovation, these 
properties become worth millions and millions of dollars, and so it's very difficult, real property 
tax wise and everything else for any of the existing homeowners and people who live there to be 
able to continue to live there, so it basically gentrifies and changes, and privatizes the beach in 
many ways. So, I just appreciate the intention behind this very, very well needed adaptation. 
Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Is there any other member of the public who would like to testify on this item? Seeing 
none, the department would recommend closing the public hearing.  

Ms. Cox: I move we close the public hearing. 

Ms. Streufert: Second.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion has been made and seconded to close agency, 
public hearing on this agenda item. We'll do a voice vote. All in favor say. Aye (unanimous 
voice vote). Opposed. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

Mr. Hull: If there's other questions, Commissioners has, but otherwise we’d be recommending a 
deferral to November 11th.  

Ms. Streufert: I move to defer Zoning Amendment, ZA-2026-1 to the November 11th meeting. 

Mr. Ako: Second.  
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Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, a motion has been made and seconded to defer this agenda 
item, ZA-2026-1, to the November 11th meeting. Any further discussion? 

Ms. Streufert: Can I ask you a question though? November 11th is a holiday. 

Mr. Hull: Oh. 

Ms. Streufert: It's Veteran's Day. 

Mr. Hull: That’s right. So, it would to move to actually, it’s going to be November 12. 

Ms. Streufert: The 12th? 

Mr. Hull: Yeah. 

Ms. Streufert: I amend my motion to… 

Mr. Hull: Sorry. 

Ms. Streufert: …read to November the 12th. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Motion on floor is to defer this agenda item to November 12th. Any 
further discussion? Okay, if not, we’ll take a voice vote on this one. All in favor say aye. Aye 
(unanimous voice vote). Opposed. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

CONSENT CALENDAR (None) 

Status Report (None) 

Director's Report for Project(s) Scheduled for Agency Hearing 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2026-2), CLASS 
IV ZONING PERMIT Z-IV-2026-3, and USE PERMIT U-2026-2 for the 
construction of a farm dwelling unit and associated site improvements within Lot 
15 of the Seacliff Plantation Subdivision in Kilauea, involving a parcel situated at 
the terminus of Makana'ano Place, approx. 1,200 east of its intersection with Pali 
Moana Place, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 5-2-004:088 containing a 
total area of 5.11 acres = CAROLINE NEAL. 

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.

Class III Zoning Permits (None) 

GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS (None) 

COMMUNICATIONS (None) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action) (None) 
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EXECUTIVE SESSION (None) 

Mr. Hull: We have no further agenda items, so that will close out the agenda. 

Ms. Barzilai: One more thing, Ka'aina, sorry about that. I just want to make sure on the Consent 
Calendar that we take note for the record that there's nobody here to testify on the Neal 
application, just so we take note. We have one Consent Calendar item it went in and just noting 
that nobody was testifying on the item. 

Mr. Hull: Is there anybody that would like to testify? We don’t have anybody signed up, but is 
there anybody that would like to testify on H. Consent Calendar, 2. Special Management Area 
Use Permit 2026-2? Seeing none. 

Ms. Barzilai: That’s it. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Topics for Future Meetings 

Mr. Hull: Now we have no further agenda items, except for Announcements. We do have a next 
scheduled meeting for September 9, 2025, which will have the Public Agency Hearing for the 
Consent Calendar item just discussed, however I think we anticipate quorum not being made. 
We’ll verify that further. If quorum is not made then any agenda items get moved to the 
subsequent September meeting at the end of the month. With that we have no further items. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Commissioners all entertain a motion to adjourn. 

Ms. Cox: I move we adjourn. 

Ms. Streufert: Second.  

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Motion on the floor, a motion has been made and seconded to adjourn 
this meeting. We'll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). 
Opposed. Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. Meeting is adjourned.  

Chair DeGracia adjourned the meeting at 10:53 a.m. 
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 Respectfully submitted by: 

 _________________________ 

        Lisa Oyama, 
  Commission Support Clerk 

(  ) Approved as circulated (date of meeting approved). 

(  ) Approved as amended. See minutes of ______________ meeting. 
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KAUA'I PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

September 09, 2025 
       DRAFT 
 NO QUORUM 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i was called to order 
by Chair Francis DeGracia at 9:00 a.m. - Webcast Link:  https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-
Meetings 

The following Commissioners were present: 
Mr. Francis DeGracia 

  Excused or Absent 

  Mr. Gerald Ako 
       Ms. Helen Cox 

  Ms. Glenda Nogami Streufert 
  Mr. Jerry Ornellas 
   Ms. Lori Otsuka 

The following staff members were present: Planning Department - Director Ka'aina Hull; 
Planning Secretary Shanlee Jimenez; Office of the County Attorney - Deputy County Attorney 
Chris Donahoe, Office of Boards and Commissions - Support Clerk Lisa Oyama. 

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Francis DeGracia: Good morning. The time is 9 o’clock, I'd like to call to order the 
Planning Commission meeting for Tuesday, September 9, 2025. Roll call, Mr. Clerk. 

ROLL CALL 

Planning Department Director Ka'aina Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako is excused. 
Commissioner Cox is excused. Commissioner Ornellas is excused. Commissioner Otsuka is 
excused. Commissioner Streufert is excused. Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Chair, you do not have a quorum. For members of the public, we're aware that at least 
three other Commissioners would not be able to make this meeting, so the other Commissioners 
didn't…there’s no point in them showing up, but Chair is here for any public testimony because 
this is a published agenda so, the Chair came to make sure that public testimony could be 

D.2.
NOV 10, 2025

https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings
https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings
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provided, but without quorum you're unable to have any discussions or take any actions. Having 
said that, looking at the list of signups for all agenda items, we don't have anybody signed up to 
testify in any agenda item. Is there any member of the public here that would like to testify on 
any agenda item? If so, please approach the microphone. Seeing none, no action can be taken on 
any agenda items, all agenda items will be moved to the subsequent Planning Commission 
meeting on September 23, 2025, and with that.  

Chair DeGracia: Do I need a motion to adjourn or should I just adjourn? 

Mr. Hull: You can’t even take the vote to adjourn. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Meeting adjourned. 

Chair DeGracia adjourned the meeting at 9:02 a.m. 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 _________________________ 

        Lisa Oyama, 
  Commission Support Clerk 

(  ) Approved as circulated (date of meeting approved). 

(  ) Approved as amended. See minutes of ______________ meeting. 
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IV. DESCRIPTION OF THE AMENDMENT

The proposed bill (see attached Exhibit A), amends the Shoreline Setback and Coastal 
Protection Ordinance as outlined in Chapter 8, Article 27 of the Kaua'i County Code. The 
purpose of this amendment is to strengthen the existing shoreline setback regulations in 
order to more effectively mitigate the adverse impacts associated with the improper siting, 
renovation, or improvement of structures located within shoreline setback areas that are 
vulnerable to coastal hazards. This amendment is being introduced in recognition of the 
increasing variety and intensity of natural hazards- including, but not limited to, tsunamis, 
high surf, coastal flooding and erosion associated with sea level rise, and other climate­
related impacts- which pose significant threats to public health, safety, and property. As 
these threats continue to escalate, it is the County's responsibility to take proactive 
measures to protect life and property, reduce exposure to coastal hazards, and preserve 
Hawaii's critical coastal and beach resources. This amendment is being proposed as a 
direct action to fulfill that responsibility. 

To effectuate these changes, the proposed bill includes the following amendments: 
• New and Revised Definitions: Introduces and updates definitions to improve

clarity and consistency. New definitions include "Beach," "Beach Processes,"
"Primary Coastal Dune," "Sea Level Rise Exposure Area (SLR-XA)," and
"Seawall." Existing definitions, including "Coastal Hazard," "Minor structure"
"Repair," "Revetment," and "Substantial Construction" are revised.

• Shoreline Setback Line Calculation: Includes an additional 20-foot safety buffer
in the average lot depth calculation and certain existing standard setback
requirements to account for storm surge and sea level rise risks.

• Updated Requirements for the Repair of Existing Structures: Establishes
updated requirements for shoreline property owners seeking to repair lawfully
existing structures to better ensure such work does not qualify as a substantial 
improvement. 

• Shoreline Survey Requirement: Requires a certified state shoreline survey for any
repair project with estimated costs exceeding $125,000.

• Retreat Agreement: Requires the applicant to enter into an agreement to retreat,
relocate, or remove proposed or existing structures before or when the shoreline
reaches the structure(s). This requirement applies to lots identified as being
threatened by sea level rise-related or historical coastal erosion

• Construction Timeline Modification: Reduces the time allowed to initiate and
complete substantial construction within the shoreline setback area.

• Adjustment to Minimum Buildable Footprint for Rebuilding: Reduces the
minimum buildable footprint for rebuilding a dwelling unit that cannot be sited
mauka of the shoreline setback.

• Clarification of Hardship Criteria: Specifies that small lot size does not qualify
as an economic hardship for the purposes of obtaining a hardship variance.

• Enforcement of Removal for Improvements to Existing Structures: Enables the
enforcement of removal of improvements to existing structures, e�suring consistent
implementation of related repair provisions.
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Please refer to attached (Exhibit A) proposed draft bill language for further details. 

V. AMENDMENT JUSTIFICATION

Hawaii's beaches are vital socio-ecological habitats that provide a wide range of benefits, 
including natural coastal protection from storms, support for tourism and food production, 
and the sustenance of diverse ways of life- such as subsistence practices, recreational 
activities, historical heritage, and spaces for social connection and spirituality- that are 
integral to the identity and well-being oflocal communities. 1 Recognizing the significant 
benefits of natural resources and the deep-rooted relationships that c01mnunities maintain 
with beaches and coastlines, the Hawai'i State Constitution affinns the obligation of the 
State and counties to preserve and protect these resources, stating that "the State and its 

political subdivisions shall conserve and protect Hawaii's natural beauty and all natural 

resource. "2 

In addition to the constitutional mandate, additional rules and regulations at the county, 
state, and federal levels have been enacted to preserve and protect Hawaii's coastal zones. 
At the county level, two primary mechanisms regulate coastal development: the Special 
Management Area (SMA) Rules and Regulations and the Shoreline Setback and Coastal 
Protection Policy. The SMA Rules and Regulations, adopted in 1975, establish special 
controls on development within designated shoreline areas. In 2008, the County of Kaua'i 
adopted its first Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection Ordinance, creating a 
development prohibition zone along the island's shoreline. 

However, despite the constitutional directive and the implementation of regulations to 
manage coastal development, studies of historical shoreline change have found that 
approximately 71 % of Kauai's beaches are eroding, with shorelines retreating by an 
average of 36 feet over the past century and nearly four miles of beach having been 
completely lost.3 Climate change further exacerbates these challenges, posing a serious 
threat to beaches and coastal dune systems, which are highly vulnerable to its impacts. 
Projections indicate that by 2050, average shoreline recession may be nearly double that 
estimated through historical trends, and nearly 2.5 times by 2100.4 In light of these impacts 
and projections, it is evident that current regulatory frameworks are inadequate in 

effectively preventing long-tenn coastal erosion and the loss of beach resources. Research 
highlights persistent regulatory challenges, including the use of allowances for the 

1 Bremer. L. L., Coffman, M., Summers, A., Kelley, L. C., & Kinney, W. (2022). Managing for diverse coastal uses 

and values under sea level rise: Perspectives from O'ahu, Hawai'i. Ocean & Coastal Management, 225, 106151. 
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ocecoaman.2022.106151 
2 HAW. CONST. art. XI, § 1. 
3 Fletcher, C.H., Romine, B.M., Genz, A.S., Barbee, M.M., Dyer, Matthew, Anderson, T.R., Lim, S.C., Vitousek, 

Sean, Bochicchio, Christopher, and Richmond, B.M., 2012, National assessment of shoreline change: Historical 

shoreline change in the Hawaiian Islands: U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 2011-1051, 55 p. (Also 

available at http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2011/1051.) 
4 Anderson, T.R., Fletcher, C.H., Barbee, M.M. et al. (2015). Doubling of coastal erosion under rising sea level by 
mid-century in Hawaii. Nat Hazards 78, 75-103 https://doi.org/ 10.1007 /s 11069-015-1698-6 
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maintenance and renovation of non-conforming structures, which can further entrench 
vulnerability to coastal hazards and accelerate shoreline degradation. 5 

In response to the growing threat of climate change, Kaua'i County has taken a leadership 
role in strengthening its planning and regulatory framework to address climate impacts. To 
address chronic coastal erosion driven by sea level rise, the County amended its Shoreline 
Setback and Coastal Protection Policy in 2014, implementing an erosion rate-based setback 
calculated from historical shoreline change. Following this, Kaua'i County adopted its 

2035 General Plan in 2018, which called for integrating climate change risks into future 
land use, development, and infrastructure planning, as well as periodically updating the 
Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection provisions of the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance to reflect the best available sea level rise data. In 2022, the County further 
advanced climate resilience by adopting the Sea Level Rise Constraint District, which 
established climate-resilient design standards, including elevation requirements infonned 
by spatial and depth projections for sea level rise. 

This proposed bill builds upon these efforts by introducing targeted amendments to the 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance's Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection policy, 
aimed at strengthening shoreline protections, preserving the island's beach resources, 
reducing long-term risk, enhancing regulatory implementation, and safeguarding public and 
environmental interests. The objectives and justifications for these amendments are 
outlined below: 

• To enhance consistency and enforceability, the bill adds and clarifies key definitions,
thereby reducing ambiguity in regulatory interpretation and streamlining the
permitting process.

• To ensure permitted development decisions account for future climate change risks,

additional sea level rise considerations are incorporated into shoreline setback
calculations, providing a more accurate and forward-looking buffer from the
shoreline.

• To prevent development from circumventing shoreline regulations through repairs,
the bill includes additional requirements for repairs to lawfully existing structures,
ensuring such work does not qualify as a substantial improvement that would trigger
stricter standards.

• To safeguard public trust resources and maintain lateral beach access, the bill

requires certified shoreline surveys for repair projects exceeding $125,000,
providing clear delineation between public trust lands and private property to help
prevent disputes.

• To minimize reliance on reactive emergency responses that may threaten public
safety and coastal resources, property owners seeking a permit in high-risk areas
must enter into agreements to retreat, relocate, or remove structures once they are
threatened by shoreline erosion.

• To promote risk-informed and timely development, the timeframe to initiate and
complete substantial construction is shortened.

5 Summers. A., Fletcher, C.H., Spirandelli, D., McDonald, K., Over, J.-S., Anderson, T., Barbee, M., & Romine, B. 

M.(2018). Failure to protect beaches under slowly rising sea level. Climatic Change, 151(3-4), 427-443. 
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• To limit the scale of a rebuild in hazardous areas, the bill reduces the minimum
buildable footprint for rebuilding a dwelling that cannot be sited mauka of the
setback, ensuring that only smaller structures are constructed, thereby minimizing
risks to property, public safety ,and coastal ecosystems.

• To ensure the appropriate application of hardship variances, the bill specifies that
small lot size does not constitute an economic hardship, thereby preventing it from
being used as the justification for development in hazardous coastal areas.

Please refer to the following Preliminary Evaluation for further discussion. 

VI. AGENCY COMMENTS

Attached through separate transmittal.

VII. PRELIMINARY EVALUATION

In evaluating the proposed zoning amendment, the following aspects should be taken into
consideration:

-The County of Kauai's Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection policy, outlined in Article
27, regulates the location and type of development near the shoreline with the following
intention:

... to protect life and property, provide access to and along the shoreline, protect and 
preserve Native Hawaiian cultural resources and communities threatened by sea level 
rise, ensure the longevity and integrity of Kaua'i's coastal and beach resources along 
Kaua'i's shoreline and to strengthen shoreline setback requirements in this Article by 
incorporating science-based erosion rates established in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion 
Study and current coastal hazard mitigation best practices and strategies. (Ord. No. 979, 
December 5, 2014; Ord. No. 1088, February 4, 2021) 

Building on this foundation, the proposed bill aims to further strengthen shoreline setback 
requirements by integrating the latest coastal hazard mitigation strategies and best 
practices. These updates are intended to enhance the County's ability to protect life and 
property, mitigate risks posed by coastal hazards such as erosion exacerbated by sea level 
rise, and preserve critical coastal resources. 

The specific mechanisms by which the proposed bill intends to achieve these goals- along 
with their policy implications and potential impacts- are further examined below. 

CZO Amendment 

Amendment of Sec. 8-27.2 (Definitions) 
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The proposed bill amends Section 8-27.2 by introducing new and revised definitions. 
Below are a each listed amendments pertaining to Section 8-27.2 with their respective 
justifications: 

1) "Beach" means a coastal landform primarily composed of sand from eroded rock,
coral, or shell material, or any combination thereof, that is established and shaped by
wave action or tidal processes. Beach includes sand deposit in nearshore submerged
areas, or coastal dunes or upland beach deposits landward of the shoreline that provide
benefits for public use and recreation, for coastal ecosystems, and as a natural buffer
against coastal hazards.

This new definition is being proposed to enhance clarity and consistency in the 
application of Article 27. Although the term "beach" is referenced throughout the 
existing Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection policy-as well as within several 
newly proposed definitions in the bill-it is not currently defined. Establishing a 
clear and specific definition is essential to ensure consistent regulatory 
interpretation and effective implementation. 

2) "Beach processes" means the dynamic interactions between waves, currents, and
sediment along coastal shorelines, influencing the formation and evolution of beaches.

The new definition is being proposed because it is frequently referenced throughout 
Article 27; however, it currently lacks any definition. For example, when 
considering variance approvals, a common criterion requires that the proposed 
structure "not adversely affect beach processes". Therefore, establishing a clear and 
precise definition of "beach processes" is essential to promote consistent regulatory 
interpretation. This is particularly important for agency personnel, who typically do 
not possess scientific training in coastal dynamics. 

However, it should be noted that this definition could be further strengthened by: 
1. Incorporating additional key interactions, such as those involving wind and

water levels;
2. Clarifying that the interaction occurs with sediment mobility, not merely the

presence of sediment; and
3. Specifying that these interactions shape beach formation and evolution

through erosion, transportation, and deposition of sediment.

3) "Coastal hazard" means [natural processes in the coastal zone that are generated by
geologic, oceanographic, and/or meteorological processes that place people and/or
improvements at risk for injury and/or damage] elevated risk to public health or safety,
property, and the environment in coastal areas resulting from physical phenomena,
including but not limited to high waves, storm surge, tsunami, sea level rise, coastal
erosion, and other hazards.

This amendment is necessary to improve the functionality and relevance of the 
. definition for use in regulatory contexts. For instance, it replaces the vague term 
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"natural processes" with a more specific list of identifiable coastal hazards-such as 
high waves, storm surge, sea level rise, tsunami, and coastal erosion-offering 
clearer guidance for regulators and applicants. By explicitly naming climate-driven 
hazards, the revised definition addresses previous omissions related to 
anthropogenic climate change. It also adopts a risk-based framing, shifting focus 
from the origin of hazards to their impacts on public health and safety, property, 
and the environment. Additionally, the scope of identified risks is expanded beyond 
just "people and improvements" to include broader considerations aligned with the 
purpose of Article 27, which is to protect life, property, and natural resources. 

It should be noted that Hawai'i Revised Statutes Chapter 205A defines "Coastal 
Hazards" as "any tsunami, hurricane, wind, wave, storm surges, high tide, flooding, 
erosion, sea level rise, subsidence, or point and nonpoint source pollution." While 
this definition expressly includes point and nonpoint source pollution and 
subsidence, the revised definition in this proposed amendment does not emphasize 
these hazards. This is because the primary purpose of the shoreline setback is to 
anticipate and mitigate risks arising from physical phenomena by siting structures 
farther inland from areas deemed more vulnerable. Pollution, however, is not 
necessarily a physical phenomenon. Instead, the Special Management Area Rules 
and Regulations-another mechanism for implementing Chapter 205A-serve as a 
mitigative permitting process that addresses development-related impacts, including 
those from hazards such as point and nonpoint source pollution and subsidence. 
Accordingly, for the purposes of this Article, it is appropriate to highlight hazards 
that result from physical processes rather than those stemming primarily from 
development-driven contamination. 

To further strengthen this definition and better align it with the broader objectives 
of Article 27, this term could explicitly incorporate recognition of risks to shoreline 
access and Native Hawaiian cultural resources, thereby ensuring a more 
comprehensive approach to assessing vulnerability in project review and permitting. 

4) "Minor structure," means[:
(1) a structure that costs less than $125,000 and provides temporary emergency

protective measures for a legally habitable structure that is imminently threatened
by coastal hazards provided that the protective measure has received approval in
accordance with the Special Management Area Rules of the Kaua'i Planning
Commission and/or the State Department of Land and Natural Resources (as may
be the case), relocation of the endangered structure has been considered and is not
reasonable given the nature of the emergency, the protective measure is removed
within 180 days of its installation, and given the significance of the emergency, the
protection is the best management alternative with respect to beach, shoreline,
and/or coastal resource conservation, or

(2)] a structure that: 
(A)costs less than $125,000; and
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(B) does not adversely affect beach processes, does not artificially fix the
shoreline, and does not interfere with public access or public views to and
along the shoreline; and

(C) does not impede the natural processes and/or movement of the shoreline and/or
sand dunes, and does not alter the grade of the shoreline setback area; and

(D) is consistent with the purposes of this Article and HRS Chapter 205A, as
amended; and

(E) includes, but is not limited to, lighting in conformance with HRS Chapter
205A, landscape features, barbeques, picnic tables, benches, chairs, borders,
wooden trellis, bird feeders, signs, safety improvements, lifesaving devices,
movable lifeguard stands, outdoor showers and water faucets, public utility
lines, utility poles and accessory structures along existing corridors, temporary
tents for special events not exceeding 14 consecutive days in duration during
any three-month period, walls and fences that are located more than 40 feet
from the shoreline, landscape planting and irrigation systems provided that
they are located more than 40 feet away from the shoreline and do not
artificially extend the shoreline or shoreline setback area seaward, public park
facilities (excluding restrooms, wastewater systems, and shoreline armoring
structures or improvements), portable or removable walkways for public
access, or, as determined by the director, a structure primarily benefitting the
public that will not impact or be impacted by coastal erosion processes; and

(F) excludes, but is not limited to, any in-ground swimming pools or spas, garages,
carports, concrete walkways that are reinforced, concrete walkways that are not
saw-cut at a minimum of three foot intervals, and concrete steps.

This amendment is necessary as it removes redundancy in the definition of a 'Minor 
Structure' related to the cost threshold of$125,000. Additionally, by eliminating 
subsection (1 ), the proposed amendment clarifies that temporary emergency 
protective measures, such as sandbags, for imminently threatened, legally habitable 
structures are no longer classified as 'Minor Structures.' While Article 27's current 
regulations permit these measures within the shoreline setback, the proposed bill 
would reclassify them as structures. As a result, they would now require a variance, 
including Planning Commission approval-thereby establishing a more rigorous 
permitting process that further supports the preservation of beaches and coastal 
resources. 

It is important to note that temporary shoreline emergency protective measures are 
also currently subject to Special Management Area (SMA) Rules and Regulations. 
However, such measures could qualify as an SMA Minor Permit, which does not 
require a public hearing or action by the Planning Commission. Therefore, this 
amendment would ensure a public hearing process as part of obtaining a variance. 

5) "Primary Coastal Dunc" means the first dune encountered mauka of the beach.

This new definition is being added because in the current Shoreline Setback and 
Coastal Protection policy, this term was inadvertently included at the end of the 
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definition of "Plan." The proposed bill corrects this by removing the definition from 
the term "Plan" and establishing "Primary Coastal Dune" as a distinct and clearly 
defined term. 

However, this definition can be further refined to specify that the primary coastal 
dune is positioned so that it may be reached by storm waves, seasonal high waves, 
and elevated water levels, enabling the release of sand to the beach or offshore 
waters. Including this in the definition recognizes the primary coastal dune as the 
dune closest to the ocean-typically the most exposed and, therefore, the most 
vulnerable to coastal hazards ( e.g., storm waves, seasonal high waves, elevated 
water levels). This distinction differentiates it from the broader coastal dune system, 
where secondary and tertiary dunes are generally located farther inland, often at 
higher elevations, and are less directly affected by storm waves and seasonal high 
waves. 

Based on this distinction, it could also be appropriate to revise the definition of 
"Coastal Dune," which could read: 

"Coastal dune" means one of possibly several continuous or nearly continuous 
mounds or ridges of unconsolidated sand on the landward side of a beach that is 
contiguous and approximately parallel to the beach, [ situated so that it may be 
accessible to storm waves and seasonal high waves for release to the beach or 
offshore waters] formed as wind and occasionally high waves deposit sand in a 
sheltered area that is typically stabilized with dune-adapted plant species, 
leading to accumulation and formation of a dune. 

This revised definition clarifies the location of the dune system without implying 
uniform vulnerability to storm waves or seasonal high waves, as accessibility and 
exposure vary among dunes. It also specifies dune formation and stabilization 
processes. 

6) "Repair" means the [ reconstruction or renewal] rehabilitation or renovation of any part
of a lawfully existing structure, but not the entire structure, solely for the purpose of its
maintenance and does not result in an addition to, or enlargement or expansion of, the
lawfully existing structure, such as alterations of floors, roofs, walls, or the supporting
structure of a building or the rearrangement of any of its component parts. A
"substantial improvement" as defined herein shall not be considered a repair. [Repair
shall be consistent with the definition of "repair" under Sec. 8-1.5, Kaua'i County Code
1987, as amended.]

This amendment is necessary because the terms 'reconstruction' and 'renewal' 
generally imply extensive work, often involving rebuilding or significant upgrades. 
Moreover, the definition of "Rebuilding" explicitly states that it "means 
reconstruction," further reinforcing the association with more substantial 
construction activity. In contrast, the terms 'rehabilitation' and 'renovation' more 
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accurately describe less intensive work focused on the maintenance and 
improvement of existing structures, rather than complete rebuilding. 

Additionally, the proposed bill removes the reference to consistency with the 
definition of"repair" under Sec. 8-1.5 to eliminate the need for agency staff, 
applicants, and the public to cross-reference definitions. Instead, the term will be 
explicitly defined within the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection Policy 
section for clarity and ease of use. 

7) "Revetment" shall mean a facing of stone, concrete, blocks, or other [similar]
materials built to protect a scarp, embankment, or shore structure against erosion by
wave action or currents.

This amendment is necessary because revetments can be constructed from a variety 
of materials beyond stone, concrete, or blocks, such as geotextile tubes or bags. To 
accurately encompass these structures, the definition should not limit materials to 
those explicitly listed or those of a similar nature. 

It is also important to distinguish revetments from seawalls: revetments are 
characterized by a sloped surface, whereas seawalls are vertical structures. The 
definition should be revised to clearly reflect this distinction. Additionally, Hawai'i 
Administrative Rules Title 13, Chapter 222 (Shoreline Certifications) defines 
"Revetment" as "a sloping face of stone, concrete, blocks or other similar material 
built to protect the enbankment or shore against erosion by wave action or current." 
The proposed definition should align with this existing definition by including the 
inclusion of the term "sloping." 

8) "Sea Level Rise Exposure Area (SLR-XA)" means the sea level rise exposure area
delineated in the Hawai'i Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation Commission's
Hawai 'i Sea Level Rise Vier, or its successors.

As this term does not appear in the existing language of Article 27 or in the 
proposed amendments, it may be appropriate to remove its definition from the 
proposed bill. 

9) "Seawall" means a shoreline hardening structure built of stone, concrete, blocks or
other materials to protect a scarp, embankment, or structure against erosion or damage
by wave action or currents and has a vertical face on its makai side.

This new definition is being added because the term "Seawall" is included within 
the definition of"Shoreline hardening" but is not explicitly defined, whereas the 
term "Revetment" is currently defined. Providing a definition for "Seawall" will 
clarify what constitutes a seawall and how it differs from a revetment. 

It should be noted that Hawai'i Administrative Rules Title 13, Chapter 222 
(Shoreline Certifications) defines "Seawall" as "a structure with a vertical face 
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separating land and water areas, primarily designed to prevent erosion and other 
damage due to wave action." Given the close coordination required between the 
County Planning Department's Special Management Area regulatory personnel and 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources Office of Conservation and Coastal 
Lands-who administer the Shoreline Certifications policy-maintaining 
consistency with the Hawai'i Administrative Rules is advantageous. 

While the Hawai'i Administrative Rules' definition is somewhat more general than 
the proposed one, there are no significant differences that would exclude structures 
identified as seawalls under the proposed amendment. Therefore, it is advisable to 
amend the definition of"Seawall" to align with the definition provided in Hawai'i 
Administrative Rules Title 13, Chapter 222 (Shoreline Certifications). 

10) "Substantial construction" means that 100% of the foundation has been laid[, or that
100% of the foundation of the active phase of a project has been laid where the project
is being done in phases].

This amendment is necessary to ensure completion within the substantial 
construction timeframe, which the bill proposes to shorten from three years to two. 
Further details on this change are provided later in the report. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-27.3 (Shoreline Setback Determination: Establishment of the 
Shoreline Setback Line) 

The shoreline setback line reflects the projected inland retreat of the shoreline over the 
expected lifespan of a building. Since the adoption of the Shoreline Setback and Coastal 
Protection Policy in 2008, setback calculations have been refined to incorporate the best 
available data, updated coastal management practices, and an improved understanding of 
development's impacts on coastal processes. 

When first adopted in 2008, an erosion rate-based calculation was applied only to lots with 
an average depth greater than 160 feet, with a minimum setback distance ranging from 40 
feet up to 100 feet for all other lot depths. However, this approach preceded the completion 
of coastal erosion hazard maps and was therefore implemented without the benefit of 
comprehensive data. In 2010, the University ofHawai'i Coastal Geology Group completed 
the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, which mapped historical shoreline positions and 
calculated shoreline change rates along most of the island's sandy coastlines. Incorporating 
this data, the policy was amended in 2014 to apply erosion rate-based setbacks to all lots 
included in the coastal erosion hazard study. The formula of the erosion-based shoreline 
setback calculation is: 40 feet + (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) + 20 feet. In breaking 
down the formula, the 40 feet represents the State's minimum setback, in accordance to the 
State's Coastal Zone Management Act, HRS §§ 205A. The 70-year multiplier reflects the 
minimum expected lifespan of a structure. The added 20 feet is an additional safety buffer 
for the variability in the erosion rate data, storm surge, high surf, and the risk of sea level 
rise. 
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The average lot depth setback calculation was included based on the rationale that larger 
lots should be subject to greater setback requirements. The average lot depth formula also 
includes the State's minimum setback ( 40 feet). Accordingly, the shoreline setback would 
be determined using the greater of the two calculations: the erosion-rate-based setback or 
the average lot depth-based setback. 

The proposed bill revises the methodology for determining the shoreline setback line by 
incorporating an additional 20-foot safety buffer into the average lot depth calculation, 
accounting for storm surge and sea level rise risks. It also adds a 20-foot buffer to the 
existing 100-foot setback requirement for lots with a depth greater than 220 feet. 
Furthermore, the bill establishes a maximum setback of 120 feet for lots not included in the 
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study. Table 1 provides a summary of the current setback 
provisions and the proposed amendments. 

Table 1: Summary of Original Shoreline Setback Determination Calculations and Proposed 
Amendments 

Lot Category 
Average Lot Original Setback 
Depth Calculations 

40 feet plus 70 times 
Less than 140 the annual coastal 
feet erosion rate, plus a 20-

foot buffer 

Greater of: 
• 40 feet plus 70

times the annual
coastal erosion rate,

140 to 220 feet plus a 20-foot
Lots included buffer
in the Kaua'i • (Average Lot Depth
Coastal - JOO feet)+ 2 + 40
Erosion feet
Study 

Greater of: 
• 40 feet plus 70

times the annual
Greater than coastal erosion rate,
220 feet plus a 20-foot

buffer
• 100 feet from the

certified shoreline

Lots not 
NIA 

(Average Lot Depth -
included in JOO)+ 2 + 40 feet 
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Proposed Amendments 

No changes proposed 

Greater of: 
• 40 feet plus 70 times the

annual coastal erosion
rate, plus a 20-foot
buffer

• (Average Lot Depth -
J 00 feet) ..,... 2 + 60 feet

Note: Increases the base 
from 40 feet to 60 feet ( adds 
20 feet) 
Greater of: 
• 40 feet plus 70 times the

annual coastal erosion
rate, plus a 20-foot
buffer

• 120 feet from the
certified shoreline

Note: Increases the setback 
from 100 feet to 120 feet 
(adds 20 feet) 
(Average Lot Depth - JOO) 

+ 2 + 60 feet
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the Kaua'i Note: Increases the base 
Coastal from 40 feet to 60 feet ( adds 
Erosion 20 feet) 
Study 

Maximum setback that 
Maximum setback that can 

can be required: 100 
be required: 120 feet 

Note: Increases maximum 
feet 

bv 20 feet 

Currently, erosion rate-based setbacks are the only shoreline setback calculations that 
account for climate change-related hazards, including sea level rise and storm surge 
variability. By incorporating a 20-foot safety buffer into the other setback methods-such 
as the average lot depth formula, the 100-foot setback for lots over 220 feet in depth, and 
the maximum setback for lots not included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study-the 
proposed bill ensures that all setback determinations address a broader range of coastal 
hazards, including high surf, coastal flooding, and erosion associated with climate change. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-2 7. 6 (Prohibited Activities in the Shoreline Setback Area) 

The proposed bill amends Section 8-27.6, Prohibited Activities in the Shoreline Setback 
Area, by revising the language of the third provision of Section 8-27.6(c), which specifies 
certain activities prohibited within the shoreline setback area: 

(3) [Shoreline hardening unless it is approved by the State ofHawai'i's Office of
Conservation and Coastal Lands] Private shoreline hardening structures, including
seawalls and revetments, at sites subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study and at
sites where shoreline hardening structures interfere with existing recreational and
waterline activities.

This amendment aligns with the language of the State's Coastal Zone Management Act, 
HRS§§ 205A, which establishes a policy to ''prohibit construction of private shoreline 
hardening structures, including seawalls and revetments, at sites having sand beaches and 
at sites where shoreline hardening structures interfere with existing recreational and 
waterline activities." Given that this is a State directive, and that the State ofHawai'i's 
Office of Conservation and Coastal Lands must comply with this policy, adopting the 
language from HRS§§ 205A simplifies and strengthens this provision. 

The primary distinction in the proposed amendment is the specific identification of sites 
subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, rather than generally referencing sites with 
sand beaches. This distinction is important for two reasons: (1) the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion 
Study encompasses all sandy beaches, thereby ensuring comprehensive coverage of sites 
having sand beaches; and (2) it accounts for the potential loss of sandy beaches over time 
due to climate change or significant storm surge events, thereby including sites where 
sandy beaches currently exist but may be diminished or lost in the future under changing 
environmental conditions. 
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While this amendment may ultimately extend beyond existing sandy beaches, it encourages 
the retreat of structures built on dune systems to facilitate beach restoration. Furthermore, 
because shoreline hardening accelerates erosion on adjacent properties-a phenomenon 
known as "flanking," where erosion accelerates on lands near hardened structures-it is 
prudent to prohibit private shoreline hardening structures outright to prevent further 
disruption of sand transport within the littoral system. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-2 7. 7 (Permitted structures within the shoreline setback area) 

Section 8-27.7 of the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection Policy specifies the types of 
structures permitted within the shoreline setback area. Any structures or landscaping not 
listed in this section are prohibited unless authorized through a variance. 

Repairs to lawfully existing structures, including nonconforming structures, are allowed 
provided that they: 

1. Do not enlarge or expand the structure;
2. Do not constitute a substantial improvement;
3. Comply with all applicable laws and regulations (e.g., Building Code, Floodplain

Management Regulations, Special Management Area requirements); and
4. Meet the definition of"repair" as set forth in Section 8-27.2 (Definitions).

Under the ordinance, a "repair" is distinct from a "substantial improvement." A substantial 
improvement is defined as a cumulative series of repairs, reconstructions, improvements, or 
additions to a structure within a 10-year period, where the total cost equals or exceeds 50% 
of the structure's market value prior to the first improvement in that period. The County 
currently determines whether a project constitutes a substantial improvement through a 
letter from the Department of Public Works (DPW) to the Planning Department, which 
includes a calculated ratio and percentage of proposed improvement costs relative to 
market value. If the percentage is 50% or more, the project is classified as a substantial 
improvement and requires a variance. 

However, accurately distinguishing between repairs and substantial improvements can be 
difficult in practice due to several factors, including: 

• Project costs are estimated prior to construction, yet these estimates are inherently
uncertain and often fluctuate due to inflation, supply chain disruptions, or unforeseen
conditions encountered during construction.

• Variability in market value arises from differing appraisal methodologies as well as
changes in property values between the appraisal date and the construction period.

• Incomplete or inaccurate cost reporting may occur, potentially resulting in
underreported expenditures.

• Unreported changes in project scope during construction may increase overall project
costs beyond the original estimate.
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• Tracking repair costs for projects completed in incremental phases can be difficult, as
the cumulative costs of multiple phases may exceed the threshold for classification as a
substantial improvement.

To address these challenges, the proposed bill aims to formalize and enhance provisions to 
ensure that projects classified as repairs do not, in fact, constitute substantial improvements 
by requiring the following: 

1. An appraisal of tlie structure;
2. A cost breakdown estimate for the proposed project using a "Non-Substantial

Improvement Job Cost Breakdown Worksheet" that includes all project costs;
3. A signed declaration from the applicant acknowledging understanding and agreement

with the estimated repair exemption cost figures;
4. Notification to the Planning Department of the project's completion date, along with

disclosure of any additional construction materials, labor, or associated costs incurred;
5. Within 60 days of notification of completion-or while the project is still ongoing-the

Director may require submission of receipts for each improvement listed in the "Non­
Substantial Improvement Job Cost Breakdown Worksheet"; and

6. If the receipts show that expenditures meet the definition of a substantial improvement
rather than a repair, the Director shall initiate enforcement actions in accordance with
applicable standards.

The proposed amendments are both appropriate and necessary to accurately verify repair 
projects, thereby preventing potential misuse ofrepair classifications, ensuring consistent 
and effective enforcement of the ordinance, and safeguarding coastal resources from 
inappropriate development. While the Planning Department currently employs a process­
including the use of an internal "Substantial Improvement Job Cost Breakdown" 
worksheet-to track and verify project costs, the proposed bill introduces additional 
requirements, such as mandating an appraisal of the structure, which would further 
strengthen the verification process. Moreover, it is important to note that the existing 
process is not codified within the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection Policy and is 
therefore considered an informal practice conducted as a matter of due diligence. Given 
that informal procedures may vary with changes in personnel, codifying this process is 
essential to ensure its consistent application over time. 

It should be noted that the Planning Department typically employs its internal "Substantial 
Improvement Job Cost Breakdown" worksheet to verify project costs only when the 
calculated ratio and percentage of proposed improvement costs provided by the Department 
of Public Works fall within the 30% to 49% range. While there may be concerns that 
applying these measures to all repair projects could be time-consuming, the complexities 
associated with tracking repair costs-particularly for projects completed in incremental 
phases or through multiple repairs-underscore the importance of implementing these 
measures universally for all repairs. 

Additionally, the proposed bill amends Sec. 8-27.7 by requiring that any repairs exceeding 
$125,000 will be required to include a certified state shoreline survey in their application 
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for a shoreline setback determination. The State-certified shoreline survey identifies the 
designated shoreline--defined as the highest wash of the waves during the highest annual 
tide-and is officially approved by the State ofHawai'i Board of Land and Natural 
Resources. Currently, a certified state shoreline survey is required for any new structures or 
uses proposed within the shoreline setback, with the survey remaining valid for one year. 
The certified shoreline is used to determine where the setback's development prohibition 
zone extends to. It also is used to identify what land is held in public trust versus what is 
private property. 

Uncertainty regarding the boundary between public beach areas and private property often 
leads to conflict, particularly as coastal development continues to intensify. In the absence 
of a valid State-certified shoreline, property owners typically benefit from greater 
flexibility in asserting boundary claims. However, a state-certified shoreline provides a 
definitive demarcation, clarifying which lands are held in the public trust and which are 
privately owned. 

Given the increasing value and vulnerability of coastal properties, requiring a certified 
shoreline survey for higher-value repair projects is considered a prudent measure to prevent 
disputes, protect public trust resources and lateral beach access, and ensure regulatory 
consistency. The proposed amendment represents a meaningful step toward addressing 
these long-standing challenges. 

The final amendment proposed in Section 8-27.7 introduces a new provision requiring that 
applicants for any new structure or substantial improvement within the shoreline setback 
area-where the lot is subject to sea level rise erosion or historic erosion-must agree to 
retreat, relocate, or remove both the proposed and any existing structures at their own 
expense when the shoreline reaches those structures. 

This amendment is necessary to address the escalating threat of structures collapsing into 
the ocean as coastal erosion intensifies with sea level rise. Several locations across the state 
have already experienced such incidents. Currently, the State's approach to private lands 
relies on a reactive retreat program, in which action is taken only after a structure has fallen 
onto the beach. Such a reactive approach poses serious risks to public safety, including 
injuries from falling debris and hazards created by debris accumulating on beaches or in the 
ocean, endangering swimmers and beach users. It also results in environmental degradation 
through the release of toxic substances, pollution from building materials, and physical 
damage to sensitive coastal and marine ecosystems. This issue is particularly urgent for 
Kaua 'i, where an ongoing study estimates that property acquisition and deconstruction of 
residential, hotel and resort, and commercial development could cost as much as $1.1 
billion. 6 Residential properties alone represent a substantial portion of this cost-estimated 
at roughly half a billion dollars. As sea level rise continues to accelerate erosion, the need 
for proactive removal of imminently threatened structures-and ensuring that property 
owners bear the associated costs-will become increasingly critical. Requiring applicants 

6 Tavares, K., Setter, R., Dreizin, T., Summers, A., Clinton, A., Coffman., M. (2025) [Report in preparation]. 
University of Hawai'i __ __ ____ _ __ _ _ _ 
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for new structures to commit to retreating, relocating, or removing proposed and existing 
structures at their own expense reduces reliance on emergency responses, enhances 
protection of public safety and coastal ecosystems, and ensures that the financial 
responsibility for retreat rests with the property owner. As specified in the CZO, this 
agreement shall run with the land and be recorded by the applicant with the Bureau of 
Conveyances or the Land Court, thereby ensuring that the obligations associated with the 
structure(s) remain enforceable regardless of any change in ownership. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-27.8 (Procedures for Obtaining Shoreline Setback Determinations) 

The proposed bill includes language in Section 8-27.8 establishing that all shoreline 
setback determination applications are subject to a 30-day public comment period. 
Currently, these applications are posted on the Planning Commission's agenda and made 
available for a 30-day comment period; however, this amendment formalizes and codifies 
that requirement, thereby improving transparency and helping to ensure the public is aware 
of and able to participate in the process. 

Additionally, the proposed bill reduces the timeframe for substantial construction to 
commence following shoreline setback approval from three years to two years and shortens 
the completion deadline from four years to three years. These changes promote timely 
project execution, minimize the likelihood of stalled projects within the shoreline setback 
area, and support more risk-informed development decisions. If construction is not 
completed within the three-year deadline, the Planning Commission will have the 
opportunity to reassess shoreline stability, enabling a review of evolving shoreline 
conditions and the continued appropriateness of the development. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-27.9 (Variance application) 

The proposed bill also removes the provision that permits the Planning Commission to 
waive a public hearing for a variance application that protects a legal structure costing 
more than $20,000, provided that the structure is at risk of immediate damage from 
shoreline erosion. 

This amendment is necessary to align with the State Coastal Zone Management Act, HRS § 
205A, which prohibits the construction of private shoreline hardening structures at sites 
with sand beaches or where such structures would interfere with existing recreational and 
waterline activities, while also enhancing public transparency and advancing the 
preservation of beaches and coastal resources. 

Amendment of Sec. 8-27.10 (Criteria for approval of a variance) 

The proposed bill seeks to amend Sec. 8-27.10 by reducing the minimum buildable 
footprint for rebuilding a dwelling unit that cannot be sited mauka of the setback from the 
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previous threshold of 1,000 square feet (or the existing house footprint) down to 500 square 
feet. 

This amendment helps limit the scale of rebuilding in hazardous areas, consistent with the 
intent of the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection Policy to reduce coastal hazard risk 
through best practices in hazard mitigation, which include restricting development in areas 
identified as highly vulnerable. 

Additionally, the proposed bill clarifies that hardship does not include economic difficulties 
arising from small lot sizes. This amendment prevents small lot size from being used as a 
justification for constructing developments exceeding 500 square feet in hazardous coastal 
areas. 

Amendment o/Sec. 8-27.11 (Enforcement) 

The proposed bill seeks to amend Section 8-27.11 to include language enabling the 
enforcement of removal of improvements to an existing structure. This amendment is 
necessary to ensure consistent implementation of related provisions, whereby enforcement 
actions are triggered if expenditures documented for a repair project indicate that the work 
constitutes a substantial improvement rather than a repair. 

Finally, the proposed bill removes language allowing the Director or the Commission to 
forgo ordering the removal of an unpermitted structure or improvements to an existing 
structure if it is determined that removal would cause greater harm to the ecosystem or 
public improvements than allowing the structure to remain. 

Eliminating this provision is appropriate because enforcement actions can include 
mitigation measures to address any potential impacts of removal on the ecosystem or public 
improvements. 

General Plan 

The proposed bill is in alignment with the following goals and policies of the General Plan, 
which emphasize resiliency, safety, and preparing for climate change: 

A. Section 1.3, entitled "Visions and Goals"

1) Goal #1: "A Sustainable Island"- Goal #1 of the County ofKaua'i General
Plan promotes sustainable growth that meets the needs of current and future
generations without depleting vital natural resources. It emphasizes that
sustainable development must not compromise the natural systems that
support life.

Development situated too close to eroding shorelines threatens critical
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coastal ecosystems-including beach, nearshore, and estuarine habitats­
that serve as essential areas for feeding, breeding, nursery functions, and 
migration for various species. The proposed bill supports the intent of this 
goal by strengthening the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection policy 
through several mechanisms that limit development in vulnerable coastal 
areas; thereby, minimizing further harm to these sensitive environments. 
These policy updates reflect a proactive approach to managing coastal 
development in a manner consistent with Kaua'i's long-term sustainability 
vision. 

Goal #2: "A Unique and Beautiful Place"- Goal #2 of the General Plan 
emphasizes the "stewardship and protection of the natural, cultural, social, 
and built environment assets that are of value to the community. " This goal 
also cites the Hawai'i State Constitutional mandate, which declares: "For 
the benefit of present and future generations, the State and its political 
subdivisions shall conserve and protect Hawai 'i's natural beauty and all 
natural resources." The proposed bill advances these guiding principles 
through targeted amendments that support the long-term preservation of 
Hawai'i's natural beach systems. For example, one amendment includes a 
requirement for applicants to enter into retreat agreements, which obligate 
property owners to relocate, retreat, or remove structures once they become 
threatened by coastal erosion. By incorporating a trigger-based adaptive 
approach, the bill establishes proactive safeguards to prevent reactive 
responses-such as the emergency removal of collapsed structures from the 
ocean-thereby not only reducing public safety risks, but also minimizing 
environmental degradation and supporting the long-term preservation of 
beach ecosystems for future generations. 

2) Goal #3: "A Healthy and Resilient People"-The General Plan's GOAL #3
aims to "increase the resilience and vitality of Kaua 'i's communities and
promote better health outcomes through improving the natural, built, and
social environment and responding to the impacts from climate change."
The proposed bill supports this goal by strengthening shoreline setback
regulatory measures to better mitigate the impacts of coastal hazards,
including coastal erosion associated with sea level rise, on Kaua'i's built
environment. In doing so, it enhances community resilience by reducing the
risks posed by structures situated too close to the eroding and vulnerable
shoreline.

B. Section 1 .4, entitled "Policies to Guide Growth"

1) Policy #12: "Protect Our Watersheds"- Policy #12 of the General Plan
acknowledges the interconnectedness of ecological systems and emphasizes
the importance of integrated resource protection by calling to "restore and
protect our watershed from mauka to makai." It further affirms that
safeguarding these systems is essential to sustaining a healthy community.
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The proposed bill supports this policy by reinforcing shoreline setback 
regulations aimed at preserving and protecting coastal and beach 
ecosystems-key components of the broader watershed system. It does so 
by implementing stricter controls to prevent inappropriate development that 
could further increase risks to these vulnerable coastal resources. 

2) Policy #14: "Prepare for Climate Change"-The General Plan's Policy
#14 acknowledges that "climate change and resulting sea level rise (SLR)
are evidenced and documented on global, national, as well as local levels"
and affirms the government's kiileana (responsibility) to ''provide direction
to prepare our island for increased coastal hazards and their impacts to
businesses, homes, roadways, drinking water, and ultimately health and
safety." While recognizing some uncertainty in forecast data, the policy
emphasizes the need to rely on "the best available science for our island."

In alignment with this guidance, the proposed bill takes a proactive
approach to climate change adaptation by strengthening Shoreline Setback
and Coastal Protection regulations. Key measures include: (1) revising and
expanding definitions to explicitly recognize climate change-related impacts
as coastal hazards; (2) incorporating sea level rise projections into the
shoreline setback calculations; and (3) requiring property owners to enter
retreat agreements when structures become threatened by erosion-an
adaptive strategy that reduces reliance on emergency responses and helps
protect public safety and coastal ecosystems.

Additionally, the General Plan specifies actions that are tied to the overarching goals 
and policies outlined above. Some of the key policies associated with "Permitting and 
Code Changes" are summarized in �he text below: 

A. Section 3.0, entitled "Actions by Sector"

1) Sector I. The Watershed: "Kahakai- Coastal Areas and Shorelines"
a. The General Plan calls for the action to "minimize coastal hazard risks

through planning and development standards that: a) ensure the safety
of individuals, families, and communities within coastal hazards areas .. .
b) discourage development or redevelopment within hazardous areas ... "
and "d) ensure property owners assume the risks associated with new
development in hazardous areas. " The proposed bill advances this
directive by reinforcing Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection
policies to more effectively reduce coastal hazard risks and enhance
public safety. For instance, the bill discourages development in
hazardous areas by updating the criteria for repair projects to prevent
substantial improvements from proceeding under the guise of minor
repairs, and it reduces the minimum buildable footprint for rebuilds on
parcels that cannot meet setback standards, thereby limiting the scale of
redevelopment in vulnerable coastal zones. Furthermore, by requiring
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applicants in high-risk areas to enter into a formal retreat agreement­
the bill directly supports the General Plan's policy directive that 
property owners bear the risks and responsibilities of development in 
hazardous areas. 

2) Sector IX. Public Safety & Hazards Resiliency: "Hazards Resiliency"
a. The General plan includes an action to "minimize coastal development in

areas of high risk of erosion, flooding, tsunami inundation, and sea level
rise." The proposed bill advances this objective through several key
provisions, including the implementation of assurance measures to
accurately distinguish between repair projects and substantial

improvements to better ensure inappropriate development does not occur
in vulnerable areas. Additionally, it reduces the minimum buildable
footprint for rebuilding dwellings that cannot be relocated mauka of the
coastal setback, thereby further limiting development in high-risk coastal
areas.

3) Sector IX. Public Safety & Hazards Resiliency: "Global Warming and
Climate Change Adaptation"
a. The General Plan states an action to ''periodicaly update the Shoreline

Setback and Coastal Protection article of the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance to allow for adjustments in the setback calculations based on
best-available sea level rise data." The proposed bill aligns with this
action by incorporating an additional 20-foot sea level rise buffer into
shoreline setback calculations that do not currently account for sea level
rise, including the setback calculations based on average lot depth.

b. The proposed bill is in direct alignment with the General Plan's identified
an action to "encourage strategic retreat and relocation to safer areas ... "
by requiring applicants to enter into a retreat agreement. Under this
agreement, property owners commit to relocating, retreating, or removing
structures once they are threatened by coastal erosion.

Community Development Plans 

The Community Development Plans, which further builds upon the direction set forth 
in the General Plan, also details region-specific policies, objectives, goals, and actions 
that support the provisions detailed in the proposed bill. For instance, the 2018 West 
Kaua'i Community Plan (WKCP), highlights climate change and resiliency: 

A. Section 2.0, entitled "Regional Policies"

1) Resiliency: "Value Statement"-The WKCP emphasizes that "West
Kaua 'i must prepare for climate change, such as higher temperatures,

ZA-2026-1 Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection, Director's Report 
County ofKaua'i, Planning Department 
August 13, 2025 

21 IP a g e



SLR, and changing precipitation patterns. These impacts threaten 
residents by affecting housing, infrastructure, jobs, and arable land. 
Through proactive measures and solutions grounded in resiliency, 
sustainability, and the Hawaiian concept of 'liina aloha (beloved 
homeland), West Kaua 'i's people can strengthen their ability to 
withstand and recover from hazards and the impacts of climate change." 
The proposed bill will provide proactive measures to help the West 
Kaua'i District prepare for erosion impacts that are exacerbated due to 
climate change through various measures, such as the changes in setback 
calculations and retreat agreements. 

2) Resiliency Policy# 1: "Adapt West Kaua'i's lowlying neighborhoods

for climate change impacts and lay the groundwork for managed
retreat."- In order to adapt West Kaua'i's low-lying neighborhoods for
climate change impacts, the WKCP states that "improved development
standards and managed retreat strategies should be employed. Identify
areas that are highly vulnerable to coastal hazards, including but not
limited to SLR, coastal erosion, high wave run-up, passive flooding, and
an increased frequency and intensity of storms. Ensure that if
development occurs within these areas, the development is constructed in
a manner that safely mitigates those impacts." The proposed bill supports
this policy by strengthening the Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection
policy to better ensure that development within vulnerable coastal areas
undergo comprehensive reviewal and are setback appropriately in
acknowledgement of the increased intensity and frequency of coastal
hazards associated with climate change.

The 2015 LThu'e Community Plan also contains policies and guidelines which support 
the amendments included in the proposed bill: 

A. Section 5.0, entitled "Policies and Guidelines"

1) Climate change Polices-The LThu'e Community Plan includes several
policies that align with the proposed bill, including: (1) minimizing
development within coastal hazard areas, and (2) incorporating climate
change impacts into land use, development, and planning decisions. The
proposed bill further strengthens Article 27 by reinforcing these
objectives, including measures such as integrating sea level rise
considerations into shoreline setback calculations and reducing the
minimum buildable footprint for rebuilding dwelling units that cannot be
sited mauka of the setback.

VIII.PRELIMINARY CONCLUSION
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Based on the foregoing findings and evaluation, it is concluded that the proposal is 
reasonable and appropriate. 

IX. PRELIMINARY RECOMMENDATION

Based on the foregoing evaluation and conclusion of the final proposed bill, it is 
recommended that the subject request to amend Chapter 8 (Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance) Article 27 (Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection) of the Kaua'i County 
Code (1987), as amended, be APPROVED subject to the following revisions: 

1. Expand the definition of "Beach processes" to include the following: 1) incorporate
additional key interactions, such as those involving wind and water levels; 2) clarify
that the interaction occurs with sediment mobility; and 3) specify that these
interactions shape beach formation and evolution through erosion, transportation,
and deposition of sediment.

2. Explicitly include the risks to shoreline access and Native Hawaiian cultural
resources in the definition for "Coastal hazard" to ensure a more comprehensive
approach to assessing vulnerability in project review and permitting.

3. Expand the definition of "Primary Coastal Dune" to specify that the primary coastal
dune is positioned so that it may be more readily reached by storm waves, seasonal
high waves, and elevated water levels, enabling the release of sand to the beach or
offshore waters. This distinction differentiates it from the broader coastal dune
system, where secondary and tertiary dunes are generally less directly affected by
storm waves and seasonal high waves compared to the primary coastal dune.

4. Include an amendment to the definition of"Coastal dune" to include the following:
1) clarify the location of the dune system without implying uniform vulnerability to
storm waves or seasonal high waves; and 2) specify dune formation and stabilization
processes.

5. Include in the definition of "Revetment" that revetments are characterized by a
sloped suface.

6. Remove the definition of the "Sea Level Rise Exposure Area (SLR-XA)" given that
this term does not appear in the existing language of Article 27 or in the proposed
amendments.

7. Revise the definition of"Seawall" to mirror the definition of "Seawall" in Hawai'i
Administrative Rules Title 13, Chapter 222 (Shoreline Certifications).

By 
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Planner 
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Approved & Recommended to Commission: 

'�64 �
By �\ 

KA'A S.IHJLL 

Date: 
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Director of Planning 
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Exhibit A: 
Original proposed bill 
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ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ BILL NO. (2969) 

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, ARTICLE 27, 
KAUA'I COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO 

SHORELINE SETBACK AND COASTAL PROTECTION 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'!, STATE OF 
HAWAI'I: 

SECTION 1. The Council finds that Kaua'i's coastline is subject to an 
increasing variety of natural hazards such as tsunamis, high surf, sea level rise, 
climate change, hurricanes, coastal flooding, and coastal erosion, all of which pose 
severe dangers to people and properties located near the shoreline. Therefore, proper 
siting of structures and regulation of improvements to structures along Kaua'i's 
shoreline areas are critical to protecting life and prop�rty, mitigating coastal hazards, 
and preserving coastal resources, which are culturally important to the people of 
Hawai'i. To accomplish this, the Council finds it necessary to strengthen Kaua'i's 
Shoreline Setback Ordinance adopted in 2008 by updating Chapter 8, Article 27, 
Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, to include added definitions for clarity and 
revised requirements for shoreline property owners seeking to repair existing 
structures. 

• The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Shoreline Setback Ordinance
articulated in Chapter 8, Article 27, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, by adding 
safeguards that protect life and property and ensure the longevity and integrity of 
Kaua'i's coastal and beach resources along the shoreline. 

SECTION 2. Section 8-27.2, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.2 Definitions. 

For purposes of this Article, unless it is plainly evident from the context that 
a different meaning is intended, certain words and phrases used herein shall be 
defined as follows: 

"Adversely affect beach processes" means to pose a potential immediate or 
future adverse effect on beach processes as a result of a structure and/or 
landscaping located within the coastal erosion hazard zone, or to create an 
immediate or future need to artificially fix the shoreline. 

"Annual coastal erosion rate" means the long-term average annual rate of 
coastal erosion calculated by following the methodology outlined in the 
National Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historical Shoreline Changes in the 
Hawaiian Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2012). Annual coastal erosion rates are 
available for all lots on Kaua'i fronted by a sandy beach from the Kaua'i 
Planning Department. These rates were calculated by the University of 
Hawai'i's Coastal Geology Group for the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, and it 



was last updated in 2018. The Planning Director may designate a qualified 
professional to review and, subject to the Planning Director's approval, update 
annual coastal erosion rates. 

"Average lot depth" means the measurement obtained by adding the lengths of 
the two sides of a lot which are at or near right angles with the shoreline, or 
the seaward boundary of the lot that runs roughly parallel to the shoreline if 
the property is not abutting tJ:ie shoreline, to the length of a line obtained by 
drawing a line from a point in the center of the makai side of the lot to a point 
in the center of the mauka side of the lot and dividing the resulting sum by 
three. For irregularly shaped lots including flag lots, triangular parcels, lots 
on peninsulas, and/or lots having ocean on two or more sides of the lot, the 
average lot depth will be determined by the Director. 

"Beach" means a coastal landform primarily composed of sand from eroded 
rock coral. or shell material. or anv combination thereof, that is established 
and shaped by wave action or tidal processes. Beach includes sand deposit in 
nearshore submerged areas, or coastal dunes or upland beach deposits 
landward of the shoreline that provide benefits for public use and recreation, 
for coastal ecosystems, and as a natural buffer against coastal hazards. 

"Beach processes" means the dynamic interactions between waves, currents, 
and sediment along coastal shorelines, influencing the formation and evolution 
of beaches. 

"Board" shall mean the Board of Land and Natural Resources, State ofHawai'i. 

"Building footprint" shall mean all parts of a main building (excluding roo� 
overhangs) that rest, directly or indirectly, on the ground, including those 
portions of the building that are supported by posts, piers, or columns. Building 
footprint also includes attached garages, covered carports, bay windows with 
floor space, lanais, decks, cantilevered decks, spas, and in ground swimming 
pools. 

"Certified shoreline" means the shoreline established by Board pursuant to 
HRS 205A-42, as amended. 

"Coastal dune" means one of possibly several continuous or nearly continuous 
mounds or ridges of unconsolidated sand contiguous and parallel to the beach, 
situated so that it may be accessible to storm waves and seasonal high waves 
for release to the beach or offshore waters. 

"Coastal erosion" means the natural loss of coastal lands, usually by wave 
attack, tidal or littoral currents, or wind. Coastal erosion is synonymous with 
shoreline retreat. 

"Coastal erosion hazard zone" shall include all of the land between the 
shoreline and the shoreline setback line. 
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"Coastal hazard" means [natural processes in the coastal zone that are 
generated by geologic, oceanographic, and/or meteorological processes that 
place people and/or improvements at risk for injury and/or damage] elevated 
risk to public health or safety, propertv. and the environment in coastal areas 
resulting from phvsical phenomena. including but not limited to high waves, 
storm surge. tsunami, sea level rise. coastal erosion, and other hazards. 

"Coastal hazard disclosure statement" means a statement prescribed by the 
department disclosing the potential for coastal hazards and the potential for 
further restrictions and limitations on development of the respective property 
in the future. This statement is an addendum to the shoreline setback 
determination application, and it must be signed by the property owner prior 
to acceptance of the determination application. 

"Commission" means the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i. 

"Department" means the Planning Department of the County of Kaua'i. 

"Director" means the Planning Director of the Planning Department of the 
County of Kaua'i. 

"Dwelling unit" means any building or any portion thereof which is designed 
or intended for occupancy by one family or persons living together or by � 
person living alone, and provides complete living facilities within the unit for 
sleeping, • recreation, eating and sanitary facilities, including installed 
equipment for only one kitchen. 

"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

"FIRM" means the Flood Insurance Rate Map. 

"Hazard assessment" means assessment for erosion, wave, flood, and inland 
zone following the standards in Section 4.3 of the Hawai'i Coastal Mitigation 
Guidebook, (January 2005), which was prepared for the State of Hawai'i, 
Department of Land and Natural Resources, Coastal Zone Management 
Program, University of Hawai'i Sea Grant College Program and the Pacific 
Services Center and Coastal Services Center of the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration. 

"Kaua'i coastal erosion study" means the quantitative study of Kaua'i and 
Ni'ihau's historical shoreline behavior utilizing orthorectified aerial 
photographs or other imagery to carry out high-resolution mapping of 
historical shoreline positions to obtain a statistically valid annual erosion rate 
of the Shoreline Change Reference Feature (SCRF). The study was conducted 
by the University ofHawai'i's Coastal Geology Group for the County ofKaua'i, 
and it was last updated in 2018. The shoreline change data and shoreline 
change posters produced by this study are on file with the Kaua'i Planning 
Department. The study followed procedures described in the National 
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Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historic Shoreline Changes in the Hawaiian 
Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2010) available from the Kaua'i Planning Department. 

"Landscaping" means the modification of landscape for an aesthetic or 
functional purpose that includes the planting of vegetation; the installation of 
irrigation, rock or water features; grading or grubbing. 

"Makai" means seaward or in a seaward direction. 

"Mauka" means landward or in a landward direction. 

"Minimum buildable footprint" means a building footprint of 1,500 square feet. 

"Minor structure" means[: 

(1) a structure that costs less than $125,000 and provides temporary
emergency protective measures for a legally habitable structure
that is imminently threatened by coastal hazards provided that
the protective measure has received approval in accordance with
the Special Management Area Rules of the Kaua'i Planning
Commission and/or the State Department of Land and Natural
Resources (as may be the case), relocation of the endangered
structure has been considered and is not reasonable given the
nature of the emergency, the protective measure is removed
within 180 days of its installation, and given the significance of
the emergency, the protection is the best management alternative
with respect to beach, shoreline, and/or coastal resource
conservation, or

(2)] a structure that: 

(A)costs less than $125,000; and

(B) does not adversely affect beach processes, does not artificially fix the
shoreline, and does not interfere with public access or public views to
and along the shoreline; and

(C)does not impede the natural processes and/or movement of the shoreline
and/or sand dunes, and does not alter the grade of the shoreline setback
area; and

(D)is consistent with the purposes of this Article and HRS Chapter 205A,
as amended; and

(E)includes, but is not limited to, lighting in conformance with HRS
Chapter 205A, landscape features, barbeques, picnic tables, benches,
chairs, borders, wooden trellis, bird feeders, signs, safety improvements,
lifesaving devices, movable lifeguard stands, outdoor showers and water
faucets, public utility lines, utility poles and accessory structures along
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existing corridors, temporary tents for special events not exceeding 
14 consecutive days in duration during any three-month period, walls 
and fences that are located more than 40 feet from the shoreline, 
landscape planting and irrigation systems provided that they are 
located more than 40 feet away from the shoreline and do not artificially 
extend the shoreline or shoreline setback area seaward, public park 
facilities (excluding restrooms, wastewater systems, and shoreline 
armoring structures or improvements), portable or removable walkways 
for public access, or, as determined by the director, a structure primarily 
benefitting the public that will not impact or be impacted by coastal 
erosion processes; and 

(F) excludes, but is not limited to, any in-ground swimming pools or spas,
garages, carports, concrete walkways that are reinforced, concrete
walkways that are not saw-cut at a minimum of three foot intervals, and
concrete steps.

"Natural catastrophe" is a natural disaster qualifying for a governor's 
declaration of emergency pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes Chapter 128, 
or a presidential declaration of emergency of a major disaster pursuant to 
42 USC 5170, including those caused by episodic coastal hazards such as 
tsunamis and hurricanes, and not the result of other coastal hazards or 
processes such as erosion or sea level rise. 

"Nonconforming structure or activity'' means a structure or activity which is 
lawfully existing within the shoreline setback area because it: 

(1) Was completely built, in its present form, prior to June 22, 1970;
or

(2) Received either a building permit, board approval, or shoreline
setback area variance prior to June 16, 1989; or

(3) Was outside the shoreline setback area when it received either a
building permit or board approval[; or] ...

"Plan" or "site plan" means a detailed construction plan drawn to scale of 
l" = 20' 0" that shows the design of a structure proposed to be built within the 
shoreline setback area. The plan shall be based on an accurate instrument by a 
surveyor licensed in the State of [Hawaii] Hawai'i and shall consist of data 
including but not limited to: 

(1) Property boundaries;

(2) Natural features such as large trees, rock outcroppings, and any
primary or secondary coastal dunes;

(3) Topography in and around the proposed construction;
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(4) Any and all shoreline hardening;

(5) Flood zones, where applicable;

(6) Existing and proposed structures and their proximity to the
shoreline and shoreline setback area;

(7) Fences, walls, and any other structures in the shoreline setback area
and any potential hindrances to lateral access along the shoreline;

(8) A geo-referenced survey of the site; and

(9) Any other information which identifies the existing condition of the
subject parcel of land. ["Primary Coastal Dune" means the first dune
encountered mauka of the beach.]

"Primarv Coastal Dune" means the first dune encountered mauka of the beach. 

"Prohibited activities" means those activities prohibited in the shoreline setback 
area as provided. in Section 8-27 .6 of this Article. All other activities shall be 
regulated by the Special Management Area Rules and Regulations of the County 
of Kaua'i and the requirements of HRS Chapter 343-5 regarding environmental 
assessments. for any proposed uses within a shoreline area as defined in 
Section 205A-41. 

"Public park facilities" means recreational facilities owned and operated by state 
or county park agencies for the benefit and use of the general public. 

"Qualified consultant" means a coastal scientist with a master of science degree 
or doctorate in geology, geography, or other appropriate physical science relating 
to coastal processes, or an engineer licensed in the State of Hawai'i that has 
experience in coastal processes. If a dune restoration project is proposed, the 
qualified consultant shall have experience and expertise with dune restoration. 

"Qualified demolition" means the demolition of a structure or structures where 
such demolition: 

(1) Will not adversely affect beach processes;

(2) Will not artificially fix the shoreline;

(3) Will not interfere with public access, except for public safety
reasons during demolition operations;

(4) Will not interfere with public views to and along the shoreline,
except during demolition operations;
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(5) Will be consistent with the intent of open space enhancement as
reflected in these rules and HRS 205A; and

(6) Will comply with applicable County Codes.

"Rebuilding'' means reconstruction of a lawfully existing dwelling unit when the 
reconstruction is valued by a licensed professional engineer, or architect at 50% 
or more of the current replacement cost of the structure. 

"Repair" means the [reconstruction or renewal] rehabilitation or renovation of any 
part of a lawfully existing structure, but not the entire structure, solely for the 
purpose of its maintenance and does not result in an addition to, or enlargement 
or expansion of, the lawfully existing structure, such as alterations of floors, roofs, 
walls, or the supporting structure of a building or the rearrangement of any of its 
component parts. A "substantial improvement" as defined herein shall not be 
considered a repair. [Repair shall be consistent with the definition of "repair" 
under Sec. 8-1.5, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended.]. 

"Revetment" shall mean a facing of stone, concrete, blocks, or other [similar] 
materials built to protect a scarp, embankment, or shore structure against erosion 
by wave action or currents. 

"Rocky shoreline" means a shoreline segment acting as the primary interface 
between marine dominated processes and terrestrial dominated processes that is 
composed of hard, non-dynamic, non-erodible material such as basalt, fossil 
limestone, beach rock, or other natural non-dynamic material, not to include 
cobble or gravel beaches that are dynamic in nature, or erodible cliffed shorelines 
composed dominantly of dirt or clay. 

"Sea Level Rise Exposure Area (SLR-XA)" means the sea level rise exposure area 
delineated in the Hawai'i Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation 
Commission's Hawai'i Sea Level Rise Viewer. or its successors. 

"Seawall" means a shoreline hardening structure built of stone, concrete, blocks 
or other materials to protect a scarp. embankment, or structure against erosion or 
damage by wave action or currents and has a vertical face on its makai side. 

"Shoreline" is as defined in Section 205A-l, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended, 
and as established pursuant to Section 205A-42, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Shoreline certification" means a signed statement by the chairperson of the Board 
of Land and Natural Resources that the shoreline is as located and shown on the 
map as of a certain date. 

"Shoreline change reference feature (SCRF)" means a morphologic feature 
commonly referred to as the "toe" of the beach, which represents the base of the 
foreshore or approximating the Mean Lower Low Water (MLLW). 
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"Shoreline hardening'' means the process of fortifying the shoreline or shoreline 
setback area with hard structures including, but not limited to, seawall and 
revetments. 

"Shoreline setback area" means "shoreline area" as defined in Section 205A-41, 
Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended.,_

"Shoreline setback line" means that inland line established by Section 8-27.3 that 
runs parallel to the shoreline. 

"Storm buffer zone" is the first 40 feet of the shoreline setback area as measured 
from the shoreline. 

"Structure" is as defined in Section 205A-41, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Substantial construction" means that 100% of the foundation has been laid[, or 
that 100% of the foundation of the active phase of a project has been laid where 
the project is being done in phases]. 

"Substantial improvement" means any cumulative series of repairs, 
reconstruction, improvements, or additions to a structure over a 10 year period, 
where the cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50% of the market value of the 
structure before the start of construction of the first improvement during that 10 
year period. For the purposes of this definition, substantial improvement is 
considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other 
structural part of the building commences, whether or not that alteration affects 
the external dimensions of the structure. The value of any substantial 
improvement shall be determined by the County Engineer or his/ her authorized 
representative. The term does not, however, include either: (1) any project for 
improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of a State or local health, 
sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 
enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 
conditions, or (2) any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the 
alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic 
structure." 

"Temporary structures" means structures that will exist for no longer than six 
months and will not irreversibly and adversely affect beach processes, public 
access, or public views nor artificially fix the shoreline in an irreversible way, and 
from which there will be a public benefit. 

"Use" means the purpose for which land or building is arranged, designed, or 
intended, or for which either land or building is or may be occupied or maintained." 

SECTION 3. Section 8-27.3, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i 
County Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
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"Sec. 8-27.3. Shoreline Setback Determination: Establishment of the 

Shoreline Setback Line. 

Shoreline setback determinations shall be issued based on the following procedures: 

(a) A shoreline setback determination shall be required for all structures
and subdivisions proposed on lands covered by this Article, except in the
following two cases:

(1) As permitted in Section 8-27. 7;

(2) Where the applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the
Planning Director that the applicant's proposed structure or
subdivision will not affect beach processes, impact public beach
access, or be affected by or contribute to coastal erosion or
hazards, excluding natural disasters. Factors to be considered
shall include, but not be limited to, proximity to the shoreline,
topography, properties between the shoreline and applicant's
property, elevation, and the history of coastal hazards in the area.

(b) Unless otherwise provided in subsection (a) above, no shoreline setback
line shall be established for any lot subject to this Article unless the application
for a shoreline setback line includes a certified shoreline issued within
12 months prior to submission of the application.

(c) Lots Included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study. For all structures on
lots subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, the setback shall be calculated
as follows:

(1) For lots with an average lot depth of less than 140 feet, the setback
line shall be 40 feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a mandatory 20 foot additional safety
buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic coastal events,
sea level rise and other hazards.

(2) For lots with an average lot depth of 140 feet to 220 feet, the greater
setback of the following shall apply:

(A) Forty feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a mandatory 20 foot additional
safety buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic
coastal events, sea level rise and other hazards; or

(B)A shoreline setback determined by taking the average lot depth, 
subtracting 100 feet, dividing by two and adding (40] 60 feet. 
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(3) For all lots with an average lot depth of over 220 feet, the greater
setback of the following shall apply:

(A) Forty feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a inandatory 20 foot additional
safety buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic
coastal events, sea level rise and other hazards; or

(B) A shoreline setback line of [100] 120 feet from the certified
shoreline.

Table 1 

(This table is included for illustrative purposes only.) Lots Included in the Kaua'i 
Coastal Erosion Study. The distance. in feet of the shoreline setback line as 
measured from the certified shoreline based on the average lot depth in feet. 

Average Lot Depth Setback Line 

Less than 140 feet 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) plus 20 feet 

140 feet to 220 feet Greater 'of:· 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) 
plus 20 feet -or- (Average Lot Depth minus 100 feet)+ by 
2 plus [40] 60 feet 

Greater than 220 feet Greater of: 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) 
plus 20 feet -or- [100] 120 feet from the certified shoreline 

(d) Lots Not . Included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study. For all
structures on lots that were not included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study,
the setback shall be calculated by the following formula,
(Average Lot Depth - 100)/2 +[40] fil!), subject to the following:

(1) For all lots, the shoreline setback line shall be no less than 60 feet.

(2) The maximum setback that can be required shall be [100] 120 feet.

(e) Non-abutting Lots. If an applicant is unable to secure permission from
the abutting owner to complete a certified shoreline for a non-abutting lot
within approximately 500 feet of the shoreline, the Planning Director may,
pursuant to Sec. 8-4.3, impose conditions to zoning permits to increase
setbacks where evidence exists that a proposed structure may be affected by
coastal hazards or erosion.

(f) No subdivision which involves a lot, or any portion of a lot that would be
subject to this Article, shall be approved without a coastal erosion study, a
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certified shoreline, and a shoreline setback line established in accordance with 
this Article, unless the subdivision is initiated by the County. 

(g) Any subdivision with lots abutting the shoreline approved pursuant to
Chapter 9 of the Kaua'i County Code, 1987, as amended, after the adoption of
this Ordinance shall have a shoreline setback line of 40 feet plus 70 times the
annual coastal erosion rate as measured from the certified shoreline. In
addition to the shoreline setback calculations above, a mandatory 20 foot
additional safety buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic coastal
events, sea level rise and other hazards.

(h) Each lot abutting the shoreline in a subdivision approved after. the
effective date of this ordinance shall be designed to achieve a building footprint
of 5,000 square feet of buildable area mauka of the shoreline setback line
established in accordance with subsections (f) and (g), above.

(i) Prior to commencement of grubbing, grading, or construction activities,
the shoreline and shoreline setback line shall be identified on the ground and
posted with markers, posts, or other appropriate reference marks by a surveyor
licensed in the State of Hawai'i.

(j) The application of Section 8-27.3 by itself shall not make a dwelling unit 
nonconforming." 

SECTION 4. Section 8-27.6, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.6 Prohibited Activities in the Shoreline Setback Area. 

(a) Pursuant to HRS 205A-44, as amended, the mining or taking of sand, dead
coral or coral rubble, rocks, soils, or other beach or marine deposits from the shoreline 
setback area is prohibited with the following exceptions: 

(1) The inadvertent taking from the shoreline setback area of the
materials, such as those inadvertently carried away on the body, and
on clothes, toys, recreational equipment, and bags;

(2) Where the mining or taking is authorized by a variance pursuant to
Section 205A-46 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes;

(3) The clearing of these materials from existing drainage pipes and
canals and from the mouths of streams, including clearing for the
purposes under HRS Section 46-11.5; provided that, the sand
removed shall be placed on adjacent areas unless such placement
would result in significant turbidity;

(4) The cleaning of the shoreline setback area for state or county
maintenance purposes, including the clearing of seaweed, limu, and
debris under HRS Section 46-12; provided that, the sand removed
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shall be placed on adjacent areas unless the placement would result 
in significant turbidity; 

(5) The taking of driftwood, shells, beach glass, glass floats, or seaweed;

(6) The exercise of traditional cultural practices as authorized by law
or as permitted by the department pursuant to Article XII, Section
7, of the Hawai'i State Constitution; or

(7) For the response to a public emergency or a state or local disaster.

(b) Any primary coastal dune, which lies wholly or partially in the shoreline 
setback area, shall not be altered, graded, or filled in any way except for the 
addition of sand of compatible quality and character unless the application 
of this section renders the build-out of allowable density unfeasible. In such 
case, modifications, alterations, grading, or filling may be allowed through 
a variance, but only for that portion of the primary dune located mauka 
Qandward) of the shoreline setback area, and only to the extent necessary 
to construct on a minimum building footprint. This exception shall apply 
only to lots in existence prior to December 2, 2009. 

(c) The following are prohibited in the shoreline setback area:

(1) Individual wastewater system or subsurface improvement unless the
applicant demonstrates to the· satisfaction of the Director that no
feasible alternative exists, including a redesign of the improvement
or structure to accommodate the system outside of the setback line,
and the system or improvement complies with all statutory and
Department of Health requirements.

(2) Landscaping that artificially fixes the shoreline.

(3) [Shoreline hardening unless it is approved by the State of Hawai'i's
Office of Conservation and Coastal Land.s] Private shoreline
hardening structures, including seawalls and revetments, at sites
subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study and at sites where
shoreline hardening structures interfere with existing recreational
and waterline activities.

(4) Expansion of the footprint of a non-conforming structure, unless
otherwise provided by law."

SECTION 5. Section 8-27.7, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27. 7 Permitted structures within the shoreline setback area. 

(a) The following structures are permitted in the shoreline setback area. All
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structures and/or landscaping not specifically permitted in this section are prohibited 
without a variance. 

(1) Existing conforming or legally nonconforming structures.

(2) Structure that ·received a shoreline variance or administrative
approval prior to February 26, 2008.

(3) A structure that is necessary for, or ancillary to, continuation of
agriculture or aquaculture existing in the shoreline setback area on
June 16, 1989.

(4) "Temporary structures" as defined in Section 8-27 .2. To ensure that
there will be no irreversible or long term adverse effects, the Director
shall require as a condition of a permit the restoration of the site to
its original condition or better, and the Director may require a bond
to ensure such restoration.

(5) A structure that consists of maintenance, repair, reconstruction, and
minor additions or alterations that results in no interference with
natural beach processes and is ancillary or associated with one of the
following sites:

(A) A Hawaiian fish pond;

(B) A publicly owned and legal boating, maritime, or water sports
recreational facility.

(6) Repairs to a lawfully existing structure, including nonconforming
structures, provided that:

(A) The repairs do not enlarge, add to or expand the structure;
increase the size or degree of nonconformity; or intensify the use
of the structure or its impact on coastal processes;

(B) The repairs do not constitute a substantial improvement of the 
structure; 

(C)The repairs are permitted by the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance, Development Plans, building code, floodplain
management regulations, special management area
requirements under HRS Chapter 205A and any other applicable
rule or law; and

(D) The Planning Director determines that the proposal complies
with the definition of"repair" under Sec. 8-27.2, Kaua'i County
Code 1987, as amended.

(E)To ensure that proposed repairs under Sec. 8-27.2, Kaua'i Countv
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Code 1987. as amended, • do not constitute a substantial 
improvement, the Director shall require the applicant to provide 
the following: 

(1) Appraisal of the structure.

(2) A cost breakdown estimate of the proposed repair project
through a "Non-Substantial Improvement Job Cost
Breakdown Worksheet." The worksheet is to be submitted to
and maintained by the Director and shall include all costs of
the subject repair project. including but not· limited to costs
associated with site work. masonry. plumbing, electrical work,
carpentry <framing and finish work), drvwall. glass and
glazing. painting, flooring, appliances, cabinetry, and all labor.

(3) The applicant shall submit a signed declaration
acknowledging understanding and agreeing the repair
exemption cost figures estimated in the "Non-Substantial
Improvement Job Cost Breakdown Worksheet" are subject to
review after the completion of the proposed repairs for
consistencv with the actual and proposed repairs.

(4) The applicant shall inform the Planning Department of the
date of completion of the repair project and any additional
construction materials. labor and associated costs incurred
during the repair. In the absence of any notification of
completion. the Department shall consider this repair project
still ongoing.

(5) Within 60 dm·s of the notification of completion or while the
repair project is still ongoing. the Director may require the
applicant to submit receipts for each of the improvements
listed on the "Non-Substantial Improvement Job Cost
Breakdown Worksheet" and anv other construction materials.
labor and associated costs necessitated by the repairs that
have been completed. If the applicant cannot provide receipts,
the Director may establish the fair market cost for each of the
improvements for which receipts cannot be provided.

(6) Should the expenditures on the receipts provided demonstrate
that the project is not a repair and is in fact considered a
substantial improvement pursuant to Section 8-27 .2. Kaua'i
County Code 1987, as amended, the Director shall follow the
enforcement standards in Section 8-27 .11. Kaua'i Countv Code
1987, as amended.

(F)A certified state shoreline survey is required for any repairs
exceeding $125,000 and must be included in the application for a 
shoreline setback determination. 
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(7) Beach nourishment or dune restoration projects approved by all
applicable governmental agencies.

(8) A structure approved by the Director as a minor structure.

(9) Qualified demolition of existing structures.

(10) Unmanned civil defense facilities installed for the primary
purposes of: (i) warning the public of emergencies and disasters; or
(ii) measuring and/or monitoring geological, meteorological and other
events.

(11) Scientific studies and surveys, including archaeological surveys.

(12) Structures built by a governmental agency to address an
emergency as declared by the Governor of the State of Hawai'i, the
Mayor of the County of Kaua'i or any other public official authorized
by law to declare an emergency.

(13) Structures relating to film productions that have received a
County Revocable Film Permit. Structures undertaken for film
productions must be removed within 30 days following the•
completion of the film production.

(14) Structures required for remedial and removal actions undertaken
pursuant to Chapter 128D of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes.

(15) Repair and/or rebuilding of existing public park facilities,
excluding shoreline armoring structures or improvements.

(b) The following conditions shall apply to any new structure or any substantial
improvement permitted in the shoreline setback area: 

(1) All new structures shall be constructed in accordance with the
standards for development in Chapter 15, Article 1, Flood Plain
Management, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, relating to
coastal high hazard districts and FEMA guidelines regarding
construction in areas mapped on Flood Insurance Rate Maps as flood
hazard areas.

(2) The applicant shall agree in writing that the applicant, its
successors, and permitted assigns shall defend, indemnify, and hold
the County of Kaua'i harmless from and against any and all loss,
liability, claim or demand arising out of damages to said structures
from any coastal natural hazard and coastal erosion.

(3) The applicant shall agree in writing for itself, its successors and
assigns that the construction of any erosion control or shoreline
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hardening structure and/or landscaping shall not be allowed to 
protect the permitted structure during its life, with the exception of 
approved beach or dune nourishment fill activities, and landscape 
planting and irrigation located more than 40 feet from the shoreline. 

(4) Unless otherwise provided, all new structures and/or landscaping
shall not (i) adversely affect beach processes, (ii) artificially fix the
shoreline, (iii) interfere with public access or public views to and
along the shoreline, (iv) impede the natural processes and/or
movement of the shoreline and/or sand dunes, (v) adversely impact
neighboring property, or (vi) alter the grade of the shpreline setback
area.

(5) All new structures shall be consistent with the purposes of this
Article and HRS Chapter 205A, as amended, and shall be designed
and located to minimize the alteration of natural landforms and
existing public views to and along the shoreline.

(6) The requirements of this Subsection (b) shall run with the land and
shall be set forth in a unilateral agreement recorded by the applicant
with the Bureau of Conveyances or the Land Court, whichever is
applicable, no later than 30 days after the date of final shoreline
approval of the structure under Section 8-27.8. A copy of the recorded
unilateral agreement shall be filed with the Director and the County
Engineer no later than 45 days after the date of the final shoreline
determination and approval of the structure and the filing of such
with the Director shall be a prerequisite to the issuance of any
related building permit.

(7) On lots threatened by sea level rise erosion or historic coastal
erosion. before approval of an additional structure, the applicant
must agree to retreat, relocate, or remove the proposed and existing
structure(s) before or when the shoreline reaches the structure(s) at
the respective propertv owner's expense."

SECTION 6. Section 8-27.8, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.8 Procedures 
Determinations. 

for Obtaining Shoreline Setback 

(a) Unless as otherwise provided in this Article, any structure proposed within
500 feet of the shoreline shall first obtain a shoreline setback determination
from the Director in accordance with this Article.

(b) A proposed structure in the shoreline setback area or within 500 feet of
the shoreline shall not be allowed by the Director unless it is consistent
with this Article and HRS Chapter 205A, as amended.
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(c) Procedure.

(1) A request for determination for a proposed structure within the
shoreline setback area or within 500 feet of the shoreline shall be
submitted to the Department on a form prescribed by the Director.

(2) For public structures whose valuation does not exceed $500,000 and
repairs to lawfully existing private structures as delineated in
Section 8-27.7(a), the request shall include construction and site plans,
and written text addressing compliance with the criteria set forth in this
Article. The Director may also require additional information, including,
but not limited to a current shoreline setback determination or a current
certified shoreline survey or shoreline survey stamped by a licensed
surveyor, registered in the State of Hawai'i and coastal erosion
information, a list of proposed plants and their growth, existing and
final contours, photographs, and an environmental assessment.

(3) For public structures whose valuation exceeds five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000.00) and private structures unless delineated in
Sec. 8-27.7(a), the request shall include relevant information, which
shall include, but is not limited to, a current shoreline setback
determination as set forth in Sec. 8-27.3 or a current certified shoreline
survey and coastal erosion information, construction and site plans,
existing and final contours, photographs, and a written text addressing
compliance with the criteria set forth in this Article. The Director may
also require a hazard assessment.

(4) Within 60 days from the day the application is deemed complete by the
Director, the Director shall make a decision in accordance with the
criteria set forth in this Article that the proposed structure is:

(A)Permitted under Section 8-27.7;

(B)Permitted under Section 8-27.7 and subject to conditions;

(C)Not permitted under Section 8-27.7;

(D)Outside of the shoreline setback area; or 

(E) Not subject to Section 8-27 .3.

(5) A list of applications for a shoreline setback determination or
determination of exemption deemed complete by the Director shall be
posted within 10 working days to a publicized website maintained by
the Department. All applications are subject to a 30-day comment
period.

(6) The Director shall notify the Commission at the Commission's next
regularly scheduled meeting of the following:
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(A) any shoreline setback determinations for approval of a 
structure proposed within the shoreline setback area or within 
500 feet of the shoreline; 

(B) any approvals or denials by the Director of structures and the 
reasons therefore, including, but not limited to, the name of 
the applicant, the location and purpose of the structure, and a 
discussion of the factors considered in making the decisions; 
and 

(C) any decision by the Director to not require a shoreline setback 
determination pursuant to Section 8-27.3. 

(7) All shoreline setback determinations made by the Director shall include,
but are not limited to, the name of the applicant, the average lot depth
calculations, the location of any proposed structures depicted on a plan
drawn to scale, the purpose of the proposed structures, the current
certified shoreline (if required), the setback calculations and setback line
drawn on the plan, and copies of a coastal erosion study, if applicable. If
the Director, pursuant to Section 8-27.3, make a determination of
exemption, the Director shall state the justification in writing.

(8) The Director's decisions pursuant to Section 8-27.8(c)(4) shall not be
final until posted on the Commission's agenda. Notwithstanding the
posting of the decision, if there is an appeal from the Director's decision,
the decision shall not be final until the Commission completes its
[decisionmaking] decision-making on the appeal.

(9) Minor structures shall be completed within one year from the final
shoreline approval or within one year from the date of approval of the
last discretionary permit, whichever comes later.

(10) For any non-minor structures allowed within the shoreline
setback area and any structures outside the shoreline setback area
based on the shoreline setback line, substantial construction of the
structure shall be achieved within [three] two years from the date of
final shoreline setback determination and approval, and construction
thereof shall be completed (as evidenced by a certificate of occupancy in
the case of buildings for habitation) within [four] three years from said
date.

(A)An extension of no more than one year may be granted by the
Director to the deadline for substantial construction only for
properties with a stable shoreline such as rocky or accreting
shorelines or shorelines exhibiting no coastal erosion per
shoreline change rates as provided in the Ka-qa'i Coastal
Erosion Study. In all other cases where substantial
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construction has not occurred by the deadline, a new certified 
shoreline and setback determination shall be required. 

(B) In case of failure to complete construction by the [four-year]
three-vear deadline, the Planning Commission shall
determine a remedy based on a review of the specific
circumstances, including but not limited to, the stability of the
shoreline, the extent of the completion and the reason for
delay.

(C) These requirements for substantial construction and
completion shall run with the land and shall be written in a
unilateral agreement that is recorded in the Bureau of
Conveyances or Land Court, as applicable, prior to application
for a building permit. A copy of the recorded unilateral
agreement shall be submitted to the Planning Department
prior to application for a building permit.

(11) All applications for Shoreline Setback Determinations shall
include a Coastal Hazard Disclosure Statement signed by the
property owner.

(d) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to amend, modify or supersede any
provision of the Special Management Area Rules and Regulations of the
County ofKaua'i, HRS Chapter 205A, as amended, or HRS Chapter 343-5,
as amended.

(e) Fees. A nonrefundable processing fee of $100 shall accompany a request for
determination."

SECTION 7. Section 8-27.9, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.9 Variance application. 

(a) A written application for variance shall be made in a form prescribed by the
Director and shall be filed with the Director. The application shall include
plans, site plans, photographs, and any other plans, drawings, maps, or
data determined by the Director to be necessary to evaluate the application.
The application shall also include:

(1) A non-refundable administrative application fee of $300[.t

(2) Certification from the owner or lessee of the lot which authorizes the
application for variance;

(3) An environmental assessment prepared in accordance with
HRS Chapter 343, and the environmental impact statement rules and
applicable guidelines of the State ofHawai'i;
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(4) The names, addresses, and the tax map key identification of owners of
real property situated adjacent to and abutting the boundaries of the
land on which the proposed structure and/or landscaping is to be located;

(5) A site plan of the shoreline setback area, drawn to scale, showing:

(A)Existing natural and man-made features and conditions
within;

(B)Existing natural and man-made features and conditions along
properties immediately adjacent to the shoreline setback area
and proposed improvements;

(C) The certified shoreline and the shoreline setback line;

(D)Contours at a minimum interval of two feet unless waived by
the director; and

(E) Proposed development and improvements showing new
conditions with a typical section (if a structure), and the
proposed development's impacts to neighboring properties.

(6) A copy of the-certified shoreline survey map of the property;

(7) Detailed justification of the proposed project, which addresses the
purpose and intent of these rules and the criteria for approval of a
variance;

(8) Analysis and report of coastal erosion rates and coastal processes; and

(9) Any other information required by the Director.

(b) Upon a determination by the Director that the application is complete and
in compliance with HRS Chapter 205A, part II and this Article, the Director
shall submit the application to the Commission. If the application is
determined to be incomplete by the Director, the Director shall return the
application to the applicant with a written -description identifying the
portions of the application determined to be incomplete. The Director shall
submit a written report, a copy of the application, and all other documents
submitted on the application to the Commission prior to the matter
appearing on an agenda of the Commission.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this section, all applications for variances
shall be heard, noticed, and processed as public hearing matters. Not less
than 30 calendar days before the public hearing date, the applicant for a
variance shall mail notices of public hearing by certified or registered mail,
postage prepaid, to all owners of real property within 300 feet of the parcel
that is the subject of the application. Not less than 30 days prior to the
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public hearing date, the Director shall publish a notice of hearing once in a 
newspaper that is printed and issued at least twice weekly in the County 
and which is generally circulated throughout the County. The notice shall 
state the nature of the proposed development, the date, time, and place of 
the hearing, and all other matters required by law. 

(d) Exceptions. Prior to action on a variance application, the Commission may
waive a public hearing on the application for:

(1) Stabilization of shoreline erosion by the moving of sand entirely on
public lands;

[(2) Protection of a legal structure costing more than $20,000; provided 
that, the structure is at risk of immediate damage from shoreline erosion;] 

[(3)](2) Other structures or activities; provided that, no person or agency 
has requested a public hearing within 25 calendar days after public notice 
of the application. For the purposes of this section "public notice of the 
application" shall be publication of a notice of the application in a 
newspaper which is printed and issued at least twice weekly in the County 
ofKaua'i, which informs the public of the subject matter of the application 
and which identifies the date and time by which a written request for a 
public hearing must be received by the Commission; or 

[(4)](3) Maintenance, repair, reconstruction, and minor additions or 
alterations of legal boating, maritime or water sports recreational 
facilities, which result in little or no interference with natural shoreline 
processes." 

SECTION 8. Section 8-27.10, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i 
County Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.10 Criteria for approval of a variance. 

(a) A shoreline setback variance may be considered for a structure otherwise
prohibited by this Article, if the Commission finds in writing, based on the record 
presented, that the proposed structure meets those standards established under 
Section 8-3.3 and is necessary for or ancillary to: 

(1) Cultivation of crops;

(2) Aquaculture;

(3) Landscaping; provided that, the Commission finds that the proposed
structure will not adversely affect beach processes, public access or
public views and will not artificially fix the shoreline and is in
compliance with HRS Sect�on 115-5;

(4) Drainage;
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(5) Boating, maritime, or water sports recreational facilities;

(6) Structures by public agencies or public utilities regulated under
HRS Chapter 269;

(7) Private and public structures that are clearly in the public interest;

(8) Private and public structures that will neither adversely affect beach
processes nor artificially fix the shoreline; provided that, the
Commission also finds that hardship will result to th� applicant if
the facilities or improvements are not allowed within the shoreline
setback area;

(9) Private and public structures that may artificially fix the shoreline
but not adversely affect beach processes; provided that, the
Commission also finds that shoreline erosion is likely to cause severe
hardship to the applicant if the facilities or improvements are not
allowed within the shoreline setback area and all alternative erosion
control measures, including retreat, have been considered;

(10) The Commission may consider granting a variance for the
protection of a dwelling unit or public infrastructure; provided that,
the structure is at imminent risk of damage from coastal erosion,
such damage poses a danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the
public, and the proposed protection is the best shoreline management
option in accordance with relevant state policy on shoreline
hardening.

(11) Construction of a new dwelling unit. In the case where the
minimum buildable footprint does not allow for a setback in
accordance with this Article, the Commission may consider granting
a variance under the following guidelines:

(A)The front yard setback may be reduced where feasible to allow
for the minimum buildable footprint;

(B)The side yard setback may be reduced where feasible to allow
for the minimum buildable footprint;

(C) If the foregoing approaches are done to the maximum extent
practicable and a dwelling cannot be sited mauka of the
shoreline setback, the minimum buildable footprint shall be
reduced to no less than [1,000] 500 square feet.

(D)If the foregoing approaches in subsections (A), (B) and (C) are
done to the maximum extent practicable, the calculated
shoreline setback may be reduced to the minimum extent
required to permit the construction of a house within the
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reduced footprint, provided that a qualified consultant must 
certify that the property is not subject to undue risk from 
erosion, high wave action, or flooding. Under no circumstance 
shall the shoreline setback line be less than 40 feet. 

(12) Rebuilding of an existing dwelling unit.

(A) Rebuilding of a lawfully existing dwelling unit under this
section shall only be allowed if the rebuilding is not prohibited
by Article 13, Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as
amended and does not:

(i) enlarge the structure beyond its previous building
footprint, and

(ii) intensify the use of the structure or its impacts on
coastal processes.

(B) In the case where the minimum buildable footprint does not
allow for a setback of 60 feet, the Commission may consider
granting a variance under the following guidelines only:

(i) The front yard setback may be reduced where feasible
to allow for the minimum buildable footprint;

(ii) The side yard setback may be reduced where feasible
to allow for the minimum buildable footprint;

(iii) If the foregoing approaches are done to the maximum
extent practicable and a dwelling cannot be sited
mauka of the shoreline setback, the minimum buildable
footprint may be reduced to the lesser of [1,000] 500
square feet or the actual footprint of the house.

(b) A s�ructure may be considered for a variance upon grounds of hardship if: 

(1) The applicant would be deprived of all reasonable use of the land if
required to fully comply with the provisions of the provisions of this
Article;

(2) The applicant's proposal is due to unique circumstances and does not
draw into question the reasonableness of the provisions of this
Article; and

(3) The proposal is the best practicable alternative which best conforms
to the purpose of the provisions of this Article.

(c) Before granting a hardship variance, the Commission shall find that the
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applicant's proposal is a reasonable use of the land. Because of the dynamic 
nature of the shoreline environment, inappropriate development may easily 
pose a risk to individuals or to the public health and safety or to the coastal 
zone management and resources. The Commission shall consider factors 
such as coastal hazards, shoreline conditions, erosion, surf inundation, 
flood conditions and the geography of the lot in determining whether the 
proposal is a reasonable use of the applicant's land. The Commission shall 
give due consideration to the long-term average annu�l rate of coastal 
erosion calculated by following the methodology outlined in the National 
Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historical Shoreline Changes in the 
Hawaiian Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2012) and any amendments thereto, or 
Section 4.1 of the Hawai'i Coastal Hazard Mitigation Guidebook (Hwang, 
2005), and any subsequent amendments thereto. 

(d) For purposes of this section, hardship shall not include economic hardship
to the applicant resulting from: (1) county zoning or setback changes,
planned development permits, cluster permits, or subdivision approvals
after June 16; 1989; (2) any other permit or approval which may have been
issued by the commission, [or] (3) actions by the applicant, or (4) small lot
size.

(e) No variance shall be granted unless appropriate conditions are imposed:

(1) To maintain and require safe lateral access to and along the
shoreline for public use or adequately compensate for its loss;

(2) To minimize and mitigate risk of adverse impacts on beach processes
and neighboring properties;

(3) To minimize and mitigate risk of structures failing and becoming
loose rocks or rubble on public property;

(4) To minimize adverse impacts on public views to, from, and along the
shoreline; and

(5) To comply with County Code provisions relating to flood plain
management, Chapter 15, Article 1, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as
amended, and Drainage, Chapter 22, Article 16, Kaua'i County Code
1987, as amended, respectively.

(f) Any structure approved within the shoreline setback area by variance shall
not be eligible for protection by shoreline hardening during the life of the
structure, and this limitation and the fact that the structure does not meet
setback requirements under Section 8-27.3 and could be subject to coastal
erosion and high wave action shall be written into a unilateral agreement
that is recorded by the Bureau of Conveyances of Land Court, as the case
may be. A copy of the unilateral agreement shall be submitted to the
Planning Department prior to the issuance of the required zoning and/or
shoreline setback variance. Failure of the grantor to record these deed
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restrictions shall constitute a violation of this section and the grantor shall 
be subject to the penalties set forth in this Article. 

(g) For any structure approved within the shoreline setback area by variance,
the applicant shall agree in writing that the applicant, its successors, and
permitted assigns shall defend, indemnify and hold the County of Kaua'i
harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, claim, or demand
arising out of damages to said structure and this indemnification shall be
included in the unilateral agreement required above.

(h) The applicant may apply to the department for an amendment to the
variance in a manner consistent with the procedures of the special
management area rules of the Kaua'i Planning Commission.

(i) No variance shall be granted for· structures within the shoreline setback
area that are unpermitted, unless the Commission determines that a
structure is necessary to protect public health and safety, and/or that
removal of the structure would cause a greater public harm.

(j) In no case shall the Commission grant a shoreline setback variance for 
structures constructed without valid permits." 

SECTION 9. Section 8-27.11, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County 
Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as.follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.11 Enforcement. 

(a) The Director shall enforce this Article in accordance with Article 24 of the
County of Kaua'i Comprehensive [zoning] Zoning Ordinance[.] ... HRS Chapter 205A, 
and the rules of Practice and Procedure of the County of Kaua'i Planning 
Commission. 

(b) Removal of an unpermitted structure or improvement(s) to an existing
structure. 

(1) In determining the disposition of [a] fill unpermitted structure or
improvement(s) to an existing structure, the Director shall follow the
procedures outlined in Chapter 12 of the Rules of Practice and
Procedure of the County of Kaua'i Planning Commission based on
the nature of the unpermitted structure. If the structure would have
required Class I, II, or III permits as well as shoreline setback
determination and approval or variance, the procedure shall be that
required under Section 1-12-4 of said rules. If a Class IV permit
would have been required, the procedure would be that outlined in
Sections 1-12-5 through 1-12-8 of said rules.

(2) Following the relevant procedures described in Sec. 8-27.ll(b)(l), the
Director or the Commission, as the case may be, shall order the
removal of an unpermitted structure or improvement(s) to an

25 



existing structure [ unless it is determined that removal shall cause 
a greater harm to the ecosystem and/or public improvements than 
allowing the structure to remain]. 

(3) If the Director or Commission determines that removal would be
inappropriate, the property owner or perpetrator shall obtain a
variance under Sec. 8-27.10 and shall pay penalties as specified in
Section 8-27.12.

(c) Judicial Enforcement of Order. The Director may institute a civil action in
any court of competent jurisdiction for the enforcement of any order issued pursuant 
to this section. 

Where the civil action has been instituted to enforce the civil fine imposed by 
such order, the Director need only show that a notice of violation and order was 
served, a hearing was held or the time allowed for requesting a hearing had expired 
without such a request, that a civil fine was imposed and that the fine imposed has 
not been paid. 

The Director may institute a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction 
for injunctive relief to prevent violation of any provision of this Chapter, any rule 
adopted there under, any permit issued pursuant thereto or any condition of any 
shoreline setback approval in addition to any other remedy provided for under this 
Chapter. 

(d) Nonexclusiveness of Remedies. The remedies provided in this chapter for
enforcement of the provisions of this chapter, or any rule adopted
thereunder, shall be in addition to any other remedy as may be provided by
law.

(e) Appeal in Accordance with Statute. If any person is aggrieved by the order
issued by the director pursuant to this section, the person may appeal the
order in the manner provided in HRS Chapter 91, provided that no
provision of such order shall be stayed on appeal unless specifically ordered
by a court of competent jurisdiction ..

(f) The Director shall enforce this Article in accordance with Article 24 of the
County of Kaua'i Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and HRS Chapter
205A."

SECTION 10. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof 
to any perso·n or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other 
provisions or application of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 
severable. 

SECTION 11. Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed. New 
ordinance material is underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this 

26 



ordinance for inclusion in the Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, the brackets, 
bracketed material, and underscoring shall not be included. 

SECTION 12. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval. These 
amendments shall be applied to any pending application, determination, or permits. 

Introduced by: 

MEL RAPOZO 

BERNARD P. CARVALHO, JR. 

DATE OF INTRODUCTION: 

Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
V:'\BILLS\2024-2026 TERM\2025-292.1 Shoreline Setback Coastal Protection bill 
MR_BC_RM_mn.docx 
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ORDINANCE NO. ___ _ BILL NO. ___ _ 

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, ARTICLE 27, 
KAUA'I COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO 

SHORELINE SETBACK AND COASTAL PROTECTION 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I, STATE OF 
HAWAI'I: 

SECTION 1. The Council finds that Kaua'i's coastline is subject to an 
increasing variety of natural hazards such as tsunamis, high surf, sea level rise, 
climate change, hurricanes, coastal flooding, and coastal erosion, all of which pose 
severe dangers to people and properties located near the shoreline. Therefore, proper 
siting of structures and regulation of improvements to structures along Kaua'i's 
shoreline areas are critical to protecting life and property, mitigating coastal hazards, 
and preserving coastal resources, which are culturally important to the people of 
Hawai'i. To accomplish this, the Council finds it necessary to strengthen Kaua'i's 
Shoreline Setback Ordinance adopted in 2008 by updating Chapter 8, Article 27, 
Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, to include added definitions for clarity and 
revised requirements for shoreline property owners seeking to repair existing 
structures. 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Shoreline Setback Ordinance 
articulated in Chapter 8, Article 27, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, by adding 
safeguards that protect life and property and ensure the longevity and integrity of 
Kaua'i's coastal and beach resources along the shoreline. 

SECTION 2. Section 8-27.2, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.2 Definitions. 

For purposes of this Article, unless it is plainly evident from the context that 
a different meaning is intended, certain words and phrases used herein shall be 
defined as follows: 

"Adversely affect beach processes" means to pose a potential immediate or 
future adverse effect on beach processes as a result of a structure and/or 
landscaping located within the coastal erosion hazard zone, or to create an 
immediate or future need to artificially fix the shoreline. 

"Annual coastal erosion rate" means the long-term average annual rate of 
coastal erosion calculated by following the methodology outlined in the 
National Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historical Shoreline Changes in the 
Hawaiian Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2012). Annual coastal erosion rates are 
available for all lots on Kaua'i fronted by a sandy beach from the Kaua'i 
Planning Department. These rates were calculated by the University of 
Hawai'i's Coastal Geology Group for the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, and it 



was last updated in 2018. The Planning Director may designate a qualified 
professional to review and, subject to the Planning Director's approval, update 
annual coastal erosion rates. 

"Average lot depth" means the measurement obtained by adding the lengths of 
the two sides of a lot which are at or near right angles with the shoreline, or 
the seaward boundary of the lot that runs roughly parallel to the shoreline if 
the property is not abutting the shoreline, to the length of a line obtained by 
drawing a line from a point in the center of the makai side of the lot to a point 
in the center of the mauka side of the lot and dividing the resulting sum by 
three. For irregularly shaped lots including flag lots, triangular parcels, lots 
on peninsulas, and/or lots having ocean on two or more sides of the lot, the 
average lot depth will be determined by the Director. 

"Beach" means a coastal landform primarily composed of sand from eroded 
rock, coral, or shell material, or any combination thereof, that is established 
and shaped by wave action or tidal processes. Beach includes sand deposit in 
nearshore submerged areas, or coastal dunes or upland beach deposits 

• landward of the shoreline that provide benefits for public use and recreation,
for coastal ecosystems, and as a natural buffer against coastal hazards.

"Beach processes" means the dynamic interactions between waves, currents,
water levels, winds, and sediment nobility along coastal shorelines,
influencing the formation and evolution of beaches through eros10n,
transportation, and deposition of sediment.

"Board" shall mean the Board of Land and Natural Resources, State ofHawai'i.

"Building footprint" shall mean all parts of a main building (excluding roof
overhangs) that rest, directly or indirectly, on the ground, including those
portions of the building that are supported by posts, piers, or columns. Building
footprint also includes attached garages, covered carports, bay windows with
floor space, lanais, decks, cantilevered decks, spas, and in ground swimming
pools.

"Certified shoreline" means the shoreline established by Board pursuant to
HRS 205A-42, as amended.

"Coastal dune" means one of possibly several continuous or nearly continuous
mounds or ridges of unconsolidated sand on the landward side of a beach that
is contiguous and approximately parallel to the beach, [situated so that it may
be accessible to storm waves and seasonal high waves for release to the beach
or offshore waters]formed as wind and occasionally high waves deposit sand in
a sheltered area that is typically stabilized with dune-adapted plant species,
leading to accumulation and formation of a dune.

"Coastal erosion" means the natural loss of coastal lands, usually by wave
attack, tidal or littoral currents, or wind. Coastal erosion is synonymous with
shoreline retreat.
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"Coastal erosion hazard zone" shall include all of the land between the 
shoreline and the shoreline setback line. 

"Coastal hazard" means [natural processes in the coastal zone that are 
generated by geologic, oceanographic, and/or meteorological processes that 
place people and/or improvements at risk for injury and/or damage] elevated 
risk to public health or safety, property, access to and along the shoreline, 
Native Hawaiian cultural resources, and the environment in coastal areas 
resulting from physical phenomena, including but not limited to high waves, 
storm surge, tsunami, sea level rise, coastal erosion, and other hazards. 

"Coastal hazard disclosure statement" means a statement prescribed by the 
department disclosing the potential for coastal hazards and the potential for 
further restrictions and limitations on development of the respective property 
in the future. This statement is an addendum to the shoreline setback 
determination application, and it must be signed by the property owner prior 
to acceptance of the determination application. 

"Commission" means the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i. 

"Department" means the Planning Department of the County of Kaua'i. 

"Director" means the Planning Director of the Planning Department of the 
County of Kaua'i. 

"Dwelling unit" means any building or any portion thereof which is designed 
or intended for occupancy by one family or persons living together or by a 
person living alone, and provides complete living facilities within the unit for 
sleeping, recreation, eating and sanitary facilities, including installed 
equipment for only one kitchen. 

"FEMA" means the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

"FIRM" means the Flood Insurance Rate Map. 

"Hazard assessment" means assessment for erosion, wave, flood, and inland 
zone following the standards in Section 4.3 of the Hawai'i Coastal Mitigation 
Guidebook, (January 2005), which was prepared for the State of Hawai'i, 
Department of Land and Natural Resources, Coastal Zone Management 
Program, University of Hawai'i Sea Grant College Program and the Pacific 
Services Center and Coastal Services Center of the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration. 

"Kaua'i coastal erosion study" means the quantitative study of Kaua'i and 
Ni'ihau's historical shoreline behavior utilizing orthorectified aerial 
photographs or other imagery to carry out high-resolution mapping of 
historical shoreline positions to obtain a statistically valid annual erosion rate 
of the Shoreline Change Reference Feature (SCRF). The study was conducted 

3 



by the University of Hawai'i's Coastal Geology Group for the County of Kaua'i, 
and it was last updated in 2018. The shoreline change data and shoreline 
change posters produced by this study are on file with the Kaua'i Planning 
Department. The study followed procedures described in the National 
Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historic Shoreline Changes in the Hawaiian 
Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2010) available from the Kaua'i Planning Department. 

"Landscaping" means the modification of landscape for an aesthetic or 
functional purpose that includes the planting of vegetation; the installation of 
irrigation, rock or water features; grading or grubbing. 

"Makai" means seaward or in a seaward direction. 

"Mauka" means landward or in a landward direction. 

"Minimum buildable footprint" means a building footprint of 1,500 square feet. 

"Minor structure" means[: 

(1) a structure that costs less than $125,000 and provides temporary
emergency protective measures for a legally habitable structure
that is imminently threatened by coastal hazards provided that
the protective measure has received approval in accordance with
the Special Management Area Rules of the Kaua'i Planning
Commission and/or the State Department of Land and Natural
Resources (as may be the case), relocation of the endangered
structure has been considered and is not reasonable given the
nature of the emergency, the protective measure is removed
within 180 days of its installation, and given the significance of
the emergency, the protection is the best management alternative
with respect to beach, shoreline, and/or coastal resource
conservation, or

(2)] a structure that: 

(A)costs less than $125,000; and

(B) does not adversely affect beach processes, does not artificially fix the
shoreline, and does not interfere with public access or public views to
and along the shoreline; and

(C) does not impede the natural processes and/or movement of the shoreline
and/or sand dunes, and does not alter the grade of the shoreline setback
area; and

(D)is consistent with the purposes of this Article and HRS Chapter 205A,
as amended; and
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(E)includes, but is not limited to, lighting in conformance with HRS
Chapter 205A, landscape features, barbeques, picnic tables, benches,
chairs, borders, wooden trellis, bird feeders, signs, safety improvements,
lifesaving devices, movable lifeguard stands, outdoor showers and water
faucets, public utility lines, utility poles and accessory structures along
existing corridors, temporary tents for special events not exceeding
14 consecutive days in duration during any three-month period, walls
and fences that are located more than 40 feet from the shoreline,
landscape planting and irrigation systems provided that they are
located more than 40 feet away from the shoreline and do not artificially
extend the shoreline or shoreline setback area seaward, public park
facilities (excluding restrooms, wastewater systems, and shoreline
armoring structures or improvements), portable or removable walkways
for public access, or, as determined by the director, a structure primarily
benefitting the public that will not impact or be impacted by coastal
erosion processes; and

(F) excludes, but is not limited to, any in-ground swimming pools or spas,
garages, carports, concrete walkways that are reinforced, concrete
walkways that are not saw-cut at a minimum of three foot intervals, and
concrete steps.

"Natural catastrophe" is a natural disaster qualifying for a governor's 
declaration of emergency pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statutes Chapter 128, 
or a presidential declaration of emergency of a major disaster pursuant to 
42 USC 5170, including those caused by episodic coastal hazards such as 
tsunamis and hurricanes, and not the result of other coastal hazards or 
processes such as erosion or sea level rise. 

"Nonconforming structure or activity" means a structure or activity which is 
lawfully existing within the shoreline setback area because it: 

(1) Was completely built, in its present form, prior to June 22, 1970;
or

(2) Received either a building permit, board approval, or shoreline
setback area variance prior to June 16, 1989; or

(3) Was outside the shoreline setback area when it received either a
building permit or board approval[; or].,_ 

"Plan" or "site plan" means a detailed construction plan drawn to scale of 
l" = 20' 0" that shows the design of a structure proposed to be built within the 
shoreline setback area. The plan shall be based on an accurate instrument by a 
surveyor licensed in the State of [Hawaii] Hawai'i and shall consist of data 
including but not limited to: 

(1) Property boundaries;
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(2) Natural features such as large trees, rock outcroppings, and any
primary or secondary coastal dunes;

(3) Topography in and around the proposed construction;

( 4) Any and all shoreline hardening;

(5) Flood zones, where applicable;

(6) Existing and proposed structures and their proximity to the
shoreline and shoreline setback area;

(7) Fences, walls, and any other structures in the shoreline setback area
and any potential hindrances to lateral access along the shoreline;

(8) A geo-referenced survey of the site; and

(9) Any other information which identifies the existing condition of the
subject parcel of land. ["Primary Coastal Dune" means the first dune
encountered mauka of the beach.]

"Primary Coastal Dune" means the first coastal dune encountered mauka of the 
beach, situated so that it may be accessible to storm waves, seasonal high waves, 
and high water levels to release sand to the beach or offshore waters. 

"Prohibited activities" means those activities prohibited in the shoreline setback 
area as provided in Section 8-27.6 of this Article. All other activities shall be 
regulated by the Special Management Area Rules and Regulations of the County 
of Kaua'i and the requirements of HRS Chapter 343-5 regarding environmental 
assessments for any proposed uses within a shoreline area as defined in 
Section 205A-41. 

"Public park facilities" means recreational facilities owned and operated by state 
or county park agencies for the benefit and use of the general public. 

"Qualified consultant" means a coastal scientist with a master of science degree 
or doctorate in geology, geography, or other appropriate physical science relating 
to coastal processes, or an engineer licensed in the State of Hawai'i that has 
experience in coastal processes. If a dune restoration project is proposed, the 
qualified consultant shall have experience and expertise with dune restoration. 

"Qualified demolition" means the demolition of a structure or structures where 
such demolition: 

,, 

(1) Will not adversely affect beach processes;

(2) Will not artificially fix the shoreline;
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(3) Will not interfere with public access, except for public safety
reasons during demolition operations;

(4) Will not interfere with public views to and along the shoreline,
except during demolition operations;

(5) Will be consistent with the intent of open space enhancement as
reflected in these rules and HRS 205A; and

(6) Will comply with applicable County Codes.

"Rebuilding" means reconstruction of a lawfully existing dwelling unit when the 
reconstruction is valued by a licensed professional engineer, or architect at 50% 
or more of the current replacement cost of the structure. 

"Repair" means the [reconstruction or renewal] rehabilitation or renovation of any 
part of a lawfully existing structure, but not the entire structure, solely for the 
purpose of its maintenance and does not result in an addition to, or enlargement 
or expansion of, the lawfully existing structure, such as alterations of floors, roofs, 
walls, or the supporting structure of a building or the rearrangement of any of its 
component parts. A "substantial improvement" as defined herein shall not be 
considered a repair. [Repair shall be consistent with the definition of "repair" 
under Sec. 8-1.5, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended.] 

"Revetment" shall mean a sloping facing of stone, concrete, blocks, or other 
[similar] materials built to protect a scarp, embankment, or shore structure 
against erosion by wave action or currents. 

"Rocky shoreline" means a shoreline segment acting as the primary interface 
between marine dominated processes and terrestrial dominated processes that is 
composed of hard, non-dynamic, non-erodible material such as basalt, fossil 
limestone, beach rock, or other natural non-dynamic material, not to include 
cobble or gravel beaches that are dynamic in nature, or erodible cliffed shorelines 
composed dominantly of dirt or clay. 

"Sea Level Rise EJmosure Area (SLR Xl\)" means the sea level rise exposure area 
delineated in the Hawai'i Climate Change Mitigation and i\daptation 
Commission's Hav,rai'i Sea Level Rise Viewer, or its successors. 

"Seawall" means a structure with a vertical face separating land and water areas, 
primarily designed to prevent erosion and other damage due to wave 
action.shoreline hardening structure built of stone, concrete, blocks or other 
materials to protect a scarp, embankment, or structure against erosion or damage 
by wave action or currents and has a vertical face on its makai side. 

"Shoreline" is as defined in Section 205A-1, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended, 
and as established pursuant to Section 205A-42, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as 
amended. 
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"Shoreline certification" means a signed statement by the chairperson of the Board 
of Land and Natural Resources that the shoreline is as located and shown on the 
map as of a certain date. 

"Shoreline change reference feature (SCRF)" means a morphologic feature 
commonly referred to as the "toe" of the beach, which represents the base of the 
foreshore or approximating the Mean Lower Low Water (MLLW). 

"Shoreline hardening'' means the process of fortifying the shoreline or shoreline 
setback area with hard structures including, but not limited to, seawall and 
revetments. 

"Shoreline setback area" means "shoreline area" as defined in Section 205A-41, 
Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as amended

.,_

"Shoreline setback line" means that inland line established by Section 8-27.3 that 
runs parallel to the shoreline. 

"Storm buffer zone" is the first 40 feet of the shoreline setback area as measured 
from the shoreline. 

"Structure" is as defined 1n Section 205A-41, Hawai'i Revised Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Substantial construction" means that 100% of the foundation has been laid[, or 
that 100% of the foundation of the active phase of a project has been laid where 
the project is being done in phases]. 

"Substantial improvement" means any cumulative series of repairs, 
reconstruction, improvements, or additions to a structure over a 10 year period, 
where the cumulative cost equals or exceeds 50% of the market value of the 
structure before the start of construction of the first improvement during that 10 
year period. For the purposes of this definition, substantial improvement is 
considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other 
structural part of the building commences, whether or not that alteration affects 
the external dimensions of the structure. The value of any substantial 
improvement shall be determined by the County Engineer or his/ her authorized 
representative. The term does not, however, include either: (1) any project for 
improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of a State or local health, 
sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 
enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 
conditions, or (2) any alteration of a "historic structure," provided that the 
alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic 
structure." 

"Temporary structures" means structures that will exist for no longer than six 
months and will not irreversibly and adversely affect beach processes, public 
access, or public views nor artificially fix the shoreline in an irreversible way, and 
from which there will be a public benefit. 
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"Use" means the purpose for which land or building is arranged, designed, or 
intended, or for which either land or building is or may be occupied or maintained." 

SECTION 3. Section 8-27.3, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i 
County Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.3. Shoreline Setback Determination: Establishment of the 

Shoreline Setback Line. 

Shoreline setback determinations shall be issued based on the following procedures: 

(a) A shoreline setback determination shall be required for all structures
and subdivisions proposed on lands covered by this Article, except in the
following two cases:

(1) As permitted in Section 8-27. 7;

(2) Where the applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the
Planning Director that the applicant's proposed structure or
subdivision will not affect beach processes, impact public beach
access, or be affected by or contribute to coastal erosion or
hazards, excluding natural disasters. Factors to be considered
shall include, but not be limited to, proximity to the shoreline,
topography, properties between the shoreline and applicant's
property, elevation, and the history of coastal hazards in the area.

(b) Unless otherwise provided in subsection (a) above, no shoreline setback
line shall be established for any lot subject to this Article unless the application
for a shoreline setback line includes a certified shoreline issued within
12 months prior to submission of the application.

(c) Lots Included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study. For all structures on
lots subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study, the setback shall be calculated
as follows:

(1) For lots with an average lot depth of less than 140 feet, the setback
line shall be 40 feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a mandatory 20 foot additional safety
buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic coastal events,
sea level rise and other hazards.

(2) For lots with an average lot depth of 140 feet to 220 feet, the greater
setback of the following shall apply:

(A) Forty feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
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setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the 
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a mandatory 20 foot additional 
safety buff er shall be added to the setback area for episodic 
coastal events, sea level rise and other hazards; or 

(B) A shoreline setback determined by taking the average lot depth,
subtracting 100 feet, dividing by two and adding [40] 60 feet.

(3) For all lots with an average lot depth of over 220 feet, the greater
setback of the following shall apply:

(A) Forty feet plus 70 times the annual coastal erosion rate as
measured from the certified shoreline. In addition to the shoreline
setback calculations above, for all applicable lots subject to the
Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study a mandatory 20 foot additional
safety buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic
coastal events, sea level rise and other hazards; or

(B) A shoreline setback line of [100] 120 feet from the certified
shoreline.

Table 1 

(This table is included for illustrative purposes only.) Lots Included in the Kaua'i 
Coastal Erosion Study. The distance in feet of the shoreline setback line as 
measured from the certified shoreline based on the average lot depth in feet. 

Average Lot Depth Setback Line 

Less than 140 feet·· . 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) plus 20 feet 

140 feet to 220 feet Greater of: 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate) 
plus 20 feet -or- (Average Lot Depth minus 100 feet)-;- by 
2 p_I:t1s [ 49] 60 feet . 

-Greater than 220 feet Greater of: 40 feet plus (70 X annual coastal erosion rate)
• plus 20 feet -or- [100] 120 feet from the certified shoreline

(d) Lots Not Included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study. For all
structures on lots that were not included in the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study,
the setback shall be calculated by the following formula,
(Average Lot Depth - 100)/2 +[40] 60), subject to the following:

(1) For all lots, the shoreline setback line shall be no less than 60 feet.

(2) The maximum setback that can be required shall be [100] 120 feet.

(e) Non-abutting Lots. If an applicant is unable to secure permission from
the abutting owner to complete a certified shoreline for a non-abutting lot
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within approximately 500 feet of the shoreline, the Planning Director may, 
pursuant to Sec. 8-4.3, impose conditions to zoning permits to increase 
setbacks where evidence exists that a proposed structure may be affected by 
coastal hazards or erosion. 

(f) No subdivision which involves a lot, or any portion of a lot that would be
subject to this Article, shall be approved without a coastal erosion study, a
certified shoreline, and a shoreline setback line established in accordance with
this Article, unless the subdivision is initiated by the County.

(g) Any subdivision with lots abutting the shoreline approved pursuant to
Chapter 9 of the Kaua'i County Code, 1987, as amended, after the adoption of
this Ordinance shall have a shoreline setback line of 40 feet plus 70 times the
annual coastal erosion rate as measured from the certified shoreline. In
addition to the shoreline setback calculations above, a mandatory 20 foot
additional safety buffer shall be added to the setback area for episodic coastal
events, sea level rise and other hazards.

(h) Each lot abutting the shoreline in a subdivision approved after the
effective date of this ordinance shall be designed to achieve a building footprint
of 5,000 square feet of buildable area mauka of the shoreline setback line
established in accordance with subsections (f) and (g), above.

(i) Prior to commencement of grubbing, grading, or construction activities,
the shoreline and shoreline setback line shall be identified on the ground and
posted with markers, posts, or other appropriate reference marks by a surveyor
licensed in the State of Hawai'i.

(j) The application of Section 8-27.3 by itself shall not make a dwelling unit
nonconforming."

SECTION 4. Section 8-27.6, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.6 Prohibited Activities in the Shoreline Setback Area. 

(a) Pursuant to HRS 205A-44, as amended, the mining or taking of sand, dead
coral or coral rubble, rocks, soils, or other beach or marine deposits from the shoreline 
setback area is prohibited with the following exceptions: 

(1) The inadvertent taking from the shoreline setback area of the
materials, such as those inadvertently carried away on the body, and
on clothes, toys, recreational equipment, and bags;

(2) Where the mining or taking is authorized by a variance pursuant to
Section 205A-46 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes;

(3) The clearing of these materials from existing drainage pipes and
canals and from the mouths of streams, including clearing for the
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purposes under HRS Section 46-11.5; provided that, the sand 
removed shall be placed on adjacent areas unless such placement 
would result in significant turbidity; 

(4) The cleaning of the shoreline setback area for state or county
maintenance purposes, including the clearing of seaweed, limu, and
debris under HRS Section 46-12; provided that, the sand removed
shall be placed on adjacent areas unless the placement would result
in significant turbidity;

(5) The taking of driftwood, shells, beach glass, glass floats, or seaweed;

(6) The exercise of traditional cultural practices as authorized by law
or as permitted by the department pursuant to Article XII, Section
7, of the Hawai'i State Constitution; or

(7) For the response to a public emergency or a state or local disaster.

(b) Any primary coastal dune, which lies wholly or partially in the shoreline
setback area, shall not be altered, graded, or filled in any way except for the
addition of sand of compatible quality and character unless the application
of this section renders the build-out of allowable density unfeasible. In such
case, modifications, alterations, grading, or filling may be allowed through
a variance, but only for that portion of the primary dune located mauka
(landward) of the shoreline setback area, and only to the extent necessary
to construct on a minimum building footprint. This exception shall apply
only to lots in existence prior to December 2, 2009.

(c) The following are prohibited in the shoreline setback area:

(1) Individual wastewater system or subsurface improvement unless the
applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Director that no
feasible alternative exists, including a redesign of the improvement
or structure to accommodate the system outside of the setback line,
and the system or improvement complies with all statutory and
Department of Health requirements.

(2) Landscaping that artificially fixes the shoreline.

(3) [Shoreline hardening unless it is approved by the State of Hawai'i's
Office of Conservation and Coastal Lands] Private shoreline
hardening structures. including seawalls and revetments. at sites
subject to the Kaua'i Coastal Erosion Study and at sites where
shoreline hardening structures interfere with existing recreational
and waterline activities.

(4) Expansion of the footprint of a non-conforming structure, unless
otherwise provided by law."
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SECTION 5. Section 8-27. 7, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.7 Permitted structures within the shoreline setback area. 

(a) The following structures are permitted in the shoreline setback area. All
structures and/or landscaping not specifically permitted in this section are prohibited 
without a variance. 

(1) Existing conforming or legally nonconforming structures.

(2) Structure that received a shoreline variance or administrative
approval prior to February 26, 2008.

(3) A structure that is necessary for, or ancillary to, continuation of
agriculture or aquaculture existing in the shoreline setback area on
June 16, 1989.

(4) "Temporary structures" as defined in Section 8-27.2. To ensure that
there will be no irreversible or long term adverse effects, the Director
shall require as a condition of a permit the restoration of the site to
its original condition or better, and the Director may require a bond
to ensure such restoration.

(5) A structure that consists of maintenance, repair, reconstruction, and
minor additions or alterations that results in no interference with
natural beach processes and is ancillary or associated with one of the
following sites:

(A) A Hawaiian fish pond;

(B) A publicly owned and legal boating, maritime, or water sports
recreational facility.

(6) Repairs to a lawfully existing structure, including nonconforming
structures, provided that:

(A) The repairs do not enlarge, add to or expand the structure;
increase the size or degree of nonconformity; or intensify the use
of the structure or its impact on coastal processes;

(B) The repairs do not constitute a substantial improvement of the
structure;

(C) The repairs are permitted by the Comprehensive Zoning
Ordinance, Development Plans, building code, floodplain
management regulations, special management area
requirements under HRS Chapter 205A and any other applicable
rule or law; and
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(D) The Planning Director determines that the proposal complies
with the definition of "repair" under Sec. 8-27.2, Kaua'i County
Code 1987, as amended.

(E)To ensure that proposed repairs under Sec. 8-27.2. Kaua'i County
Code 1987. as amended. do not constitute a substantial 
improvement. the Director shall require the applicant to provide 
the following: 

(1) Appraisal of the structure.

(2) A cost breakdown estimate of the proposed repair project
through a "Non-Substantial Improvement Job Cost
Breakdown Worksheet." The worksheet is to be submitted to
and maintained by the Director and shall include all costs of
the subject repair project, including but not limited to costs
associated with site work, masonry, plumbing, electrical work,
carpentry (framing and finish work). drywall, glass and
glazing. painting, flooring, appliances, cabinetry, and all labor.

(3) The applicant shall submit a signed declaration
acknowledging understanding and agreemg the repair
exemption cost figures estimated in the "Non-Substantial
Improvement Job Cost Breakdown Worksheet" are subject to
review after the completion of the proposed repairs for
consistency with the actual and proposed repairs.

(4) The applicant shall inform the Planning Department of the
date of completion of the repair project and any additional
construction materials, labor and associated costs incurred
during the repair. In the absence of any notification of
completion, the Department shall consider this repair project
still ongoing.

(5) Within 60 days of the notification of completion or while the
repair project is still ongoing. the Director may require the
applicant to submit receipts for each of the improvements
listed on the "Non-Substantial Improvement Job Cost
Breakdown Worksheet" and any other construction materials.
labor and associated costs necessitated by the repairs that
have been completed. If the applicant cannot provide receipts,
the Director may establish the fair market cost for each of the
improvements for which receipts cannot be provided.

(6) Should the expenditures on the receipts provided demonstrate
that the project is not a repair and is in fact considered a
substantial improvement pursuant to Section 8-27.2. Kaua'i
County Code 1987, as amended, the Director shall follow the
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enforcement standards in Section 8-27.11. Kaua'i County Code 
1987. as amended. 

(F) A certified state shoreline survey is required for any repairs
exceeding $125.000 and must be included in the application for a
shoreline setback determination.

(7) Beach nourishment or dune restoration projects approved by all
applicable governmental agencies.

(8) A structure approved by the Director as a minor structure.

(9) Qualified demolition of existing structures.

(10) Unmanned civil defense facilities installed for the primary
purposes of: (i) warning the public of emergencies and disasters; or
(ii) measuring and/or monitoring geological, meteorological and other
events.

(11) Scientific studies and surveys, including archaeological surveys.

(12) Structures built by a governmental agency to address an
emergency as declared by the Governor of the State of Hawai'i, the
Mayor of the County of Kaua'i or any other public official authorized
by law to declare an emergency.

(13) Structures relating to film productions that have received a
County Revocable Film Permit. Structures undertaken for film
productions must be removed within 30 days following the
completion of the film production.

(14) Structures required for remedial and removal actions undertaken
pursuant to Chapter 128D of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes.

(15) Repair and/or rebuilding of existing public park facilities,
excluding shoreline armoring structures or improvements.

(b) The following conditions shall apply to any new structure or any substantial
improvement permitted in the shoreline setback area: 

(1) All new structures shall be constructed in accordance with the
standards for development in Chapter 15, Article 1, Flood Plain
Management, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, relating to
coastal high hazard districts and FEMA guidelines regarding
construction in areas mapped on Flood Insurance Rate Maps as flood
hazard areas.

(2) The applicant shall agree in writing that the applicant, .its
successors, and permitted assigns shall defend, indemnify, and hold
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the County of Kaua'i harmless from and against any and all loss, 
liability, claim or demand arising out of damages to said structures 
from any coastal natural hazard and coastal erosion. 

(3) The applicant shall agree in writing for itself, its successors and
assigns that the construction of any erosion control or shoreline
hardening structure and/or landscaping shall not be allowed to
protect the permitted structure during its life, with the exception of
approved beach or dune nourishment fill activities, and landscape
planting and irrigation located more than 40 feet from the shoreline.

(4) Unless otherwise provided, all new structures and/or landscaping
shall not (i) adversely affect beach processes, (ii) artificially fix the
shoreline, (iii) interfere with public access or public views to and
along the shoreline, (iv) impede the natural processes and/or
movement of the shoreline and/or sand dunes, (v) adversely impact
neighboring property, or (vi) alter the grade of the shoreline setback
area.

(5) All new structures shall be consistent with the purposes of this
Article and HRS Chapter 205A, as amended, and shall be designed
and located to minimize the alteration of natural landforms and
existing public views to and along the shoreline .

.(fil On lots threatened by sea level rise erosion or historic coastal erosion, 
before approval of an additional structure, the applicant must agree 
to retreat, relocate, or remove the proposed and existing structure(s) 
before or when the shoreline reaches the structure(s) at the 
respective property owner's expense. 

[(6)].(1l_The requirements of this Subsection (b) shall run with the land 
and shall be set forth in a unilateral agreement recorded by the 
applicant with the Bureau of Conveyances or the Land Court, 
whichever is applicable, no later than 30 days after the date of final 
shoreline approval of the structure under Section 8-27.8. A copy of 
the recorded unilateral agreement shall be filed with the Director 
and the County Engineer no later than 45 days after the date of the 
final shoreline determination and approval of the structure and the 
filing of such with the Director shall be a prerequisite to the issuance 
of any related building permit. 

(6) On lots threatened bv sea level rise erosion or historic coastal
erosion, before approval of an additional structure, the applicant 
must agree to retreat, relocate, or remoYe the proposed and mccisting 
structure(s) before or v1hen the shoreline reaches the structure(s) at 
the respective property owner's expense. 

SECTION 6. Section 8-27.8, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
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"Sec. 8-27.8 Procedures 
Determinations. 

for Obtaining Shoreline Setback 

(a) Unless as otherwise provided in this Article, any structure proposed within
500 feet of the shoreline shall first obtain a shoreline setback determination
from the Director in accordance with this Article.

(b) A proposed structure in the shoreline setback area or within 500 feet of
the shoreline shall not be allowed by the Director unless it is consistent
with this Article and HRS Chapter 205A, as amended.

(c) Procedure.

(1) A request for determination for a proposed structure within the
shoreline setback area or within 500 feet of the shoreline shall be
submitted to the Department on a form prescribed by the Director.

(2) For public structures whose valuation does not exceed $500,000 and
repairs to lawfully existing private structures as delineated in
Section 8-27. 7(a), the request shall include construction and site plans,
and written text addressing compliance with the criteria set forth in this
Article. The Director may also require additional information, including,
but not limited to a current shoreline setback determination or a current
certified shoreline survey or shoreline survey stamped by a licensed
surveyor, registered in the State of Hawai'i and coastal erosion
information, a list of proposed plants and their growth, existing and
final contours, photographs, and an environmental assessment.

(3) For public structures whose valuation exceeds five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000.00) and private structures unless delineated in
Sec. 8-27.7(a), the request shall include relevant information, which
shall include, but is not limited to, a current shoreline setback
determination as set forth in Sec. 8-27.3 or a current certified shoreline
survey and coastal erosion information, construction and site plans,
existing and final contours, photographs, and a written text addressing
compliance with the criteria set forth in this Article. The Director may
also require a hazard assessment.

(4) Within 60 days from the day the application is deemed complete by the
Director, the Director shall make a decision in accordance with the
criteria set forth in this Article that the proposed structure is:

(A) Permitted under Section 8-27. 7; 

(B)Permitted under Section 8-27.7 and subject to conditions;

(C)Not permitted under Section 8-27.7;
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(D)Outside of the shoreline setback area; or

(E)Not subject to Section 8-27.3.

(5) A list of applications for a shoreline setback determination or
determination of exemption deemed complete by the Director shall be
posted within 10 working days to a publicized website maintained by
the Department. All applications are subject to a 30-day comment
period.

(6) The Director shall notify the Commission at the Commission's next
regularly scheduled meeting of the following:

(A) any shoreline setback determinations for approval of a
structure proposed within the shoreline setback area or within
500 feet of the shoreline;

(B) any approvals or denials by the Director of structures and the
reasons therefore, including, but not limited to, the name of
the applicant, the location and purpose of the structure, and a
discussion of the factors considered in making the decisions;
and

(C) any decision by the Director to not require a shoreline setback
determination pursuant to Section 8-27.3.

(7) All shoreline setback determinations made by the Director shall include,
but are not limited to, the name of the applicant, the average lot depth
calculations, the location of any proposed structures depicted on a plan
drawn to scale, the purpose of the proposed structures, the current
certified shoreline (if required), the setback calculations and setback line
drawn on the plan, and copies of a coastal erosion study, if applicable. If
the Director, pursuant to Section 8-27.3, make a determination of
exemption, the Director shall state the justification in writing.

(8) The Director's decisions pursuant to Section 8-27.8(c)(4) shall not be
final until posted on the Commission's agenda. Notwithstanding the
posting of the decision, if there is an appeal from the Director's decision,
the decision shall not be final until the Commission completes its
[decisionmaking] decision-making on the appeal.

(9) Minor structures shall be completed within one year from the final
shoreline approval or within one year from the date of approval of the
last discretionary permit, whichever comes later.

(10) For any non-minor structures allowed within the shoreline
setback area and any structures outside the shoreline setback area
based on the shoreline setback line, substantial construction of the
structure shall be achieved within [three] two years from the date of
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final shoreline setback determination and approval, and construction 
thereof shall be completed (as evidenced by a certificate of occupancy in 
the case of buildings for habitation) within [four] three years from said 
date. 

(A)An extension of no more than one year may be granted by the
Director to the deadline for substantial construction only for
properties with a stable shoreline such as rocky or accreting
shorelines or shorelines exhibiting no coastal erosion per
shoreline change rates as provided in the Kaua'i Coastal
Erosion Study. In all other cases where substantial
construction has not occurred by the deadline, a new certified
shoreline and setback determination shall be required.

(B) In case of failure to complete construction by the [four-year]
three-year deadline, the Planning Commission shall
determine a remedy based on a review of the specific
circumstances, including but not limited to, the stability of the
shoreline, the extent of the completion and the reason for
delay.

(C) These requirements for substantial construction and
completion shall run with the land and shall be written in a
unilateral agreement that is recorded in the Bureau of
Conveyances or Land Court, as applicable, prior to application
for a building permit. A copy of the recorded unilateral
agreement shall be submitted to the Planning Department
prior to application for a building permit.

(11) All applications for Shoreline Setback Determinations shall
include a Coastal Hazard Disclosure Statement signed by the
property owner.

(d) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to amend, modify or supersede any
provision of the Special Management Area Rules and Regulations of the
County of Kaua'i, HRS Chapter 205A, as amended, or HRS Chapter 343-5,
as amended.

(e) Fees. A nonrefundable processing fee of $100 shall accompany a request for
determination."

SECTION 7. Section 8-27.9, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27 .9 Variance application. 

(a) A written application for variance shall be made in a form prescribed by the
Director and shall be filed with the Director. The application shall include
plans, site plans, photographs, and any other plans, drawings, . maps, or
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data determined by the Director to be necessary to evaluate the application. 
The application shall also include: 

(1) A non-refundable administrative application fee of $300[.];

(2) Certification from the owner or lessee of the lot which authorizes the
application for variance;

(3) An environmental assessment prepared in accordance with
HRS Chapter 343, and the environmental impact statement rules and
applicable guidelines of the State of Hawai'i;

(4) The names, addresses, and the tax map key identification of owners of
real property situated adjacent to and abutting the boundaries of the
land on which the proposed structure and/or landscaping is to be located;

(5) A site plan of the shoreline setback area, drawn to scale, showing:

(A) Existing natural and man-made features and conditions
within;

(B) Existing natural and man-made features and conditions along
properties immediately adjacent to the shoreline setback area
and proposed improvements;

(C) The certified shoreline and the shoreline setback line;

(D) Contours at a minimum interval of two feet unless waived by
the director; and

(E) Proposed development and improvements showing new
conditions with a typical section (if a structure), and the
proposed development's impacts to neighboring properties.

(6) A copy of the certified shoreline survey map of the property;

(7) Detailed justification of the proposed project, which addresses the
purpose and intent of these rules and the criteria for approval of a
variance;

(8) Analysis and report of coastal erosion rates and coastal processes; and

(9) Any other information required by the Director.

(b) Upon a determination by the Director that the application is complete and
in compliance with HRS Chapter 205A, part II and this Article, the Director
shall submit the application to the Commission. If the application is
determined to be incomplete by the Director, the Director shall return the
application to the applicant with a written description identifying the
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portions of the application determined to be incomplete. The Director shall 
submit a written report, a copy of the application, and all other documents 
submitted on the application to the Commission prior to the matter 
appearing on an agenda of the Commission. 

(c) Except as otherwise provided in this section, all applications for variances
shall be heard, noticed, and processed as public hearing matters. Not less
than 30 calendar days before the public hearing date, the applicant for a
variance shall mail notices of public hearing by certified or registered mail,
postage prepaid, to all owners of real property within 300 feet of the parcel
that is the subject of the application. Not less than 30 days prior to the
public hearing date, the Director shall publish a notice of hearing once in a
newspaper that is printed and issued at least twice weekly in the County
and which is generally circulated throughout the County. The notice shall
state the nature of the proposed development, the date, time, and place of
the hearing, and all other matters required by law.

(d) Exceptions. Prior to action on a variance application, the Commission may
waive a public hearing on the application for:

(1) Stabilization of shoreline erosion by the moving of sand entirely on
public lands;

[(2) Protection of a legal structure costing more than $20,000; provided 
that, the structure is at risk of immediate damage from shoreline erosion;] 

[(3)](2) Other structures or activities; provided that, no person or agency 
has requested a public hearing within 25 calendar days after public notice 
of the application. For the purposes of this section "public notice of the 
application" shall be publication of a notice of the application in a 
newspaper which is printed and issued at least twice weekly in the County 
of Kaua'i, which informs the public of the subject matter of the application 
and which identifies the date and time by which a written request for a 
public hearing must be received by the Commission; or 

[(4)](3) Maintenance, repair, reconstruction, and minor additions or 
alterations of legal boating, maritime or water sports recreational 
facilities, which result in little or no interference with natural shoreline 
processes." 

SECTION 8. Section 8-27.10, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i 
County Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.10 Criteria for approval of a variance. 

(a) A shoreline setback variance may be considered for a structure otherwise
prohibited by this Article, if the Commission finds in writing, based on the record 
presented, that the proposed structure meets those standards established under 
Section 8-3.3 and is necessary for or ancillary to: 
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(1) Cultivation of crops;

(2) Aquaculture;

(3) Landscaping; provided that, the Commission finds that the proposed
structure will not adversely affect beach processes, public access or
public views and will • not artificially fix the shoreline and is in
compliance with HRS Section 115-5;

( 4) Drainage;

(5) Boating, maritime, or water sports recreational facilities;

(6) Structures by public agencies or public utilities regulated under
HRS Chapter 269;

(7) Private and public structures that are clearly in the public interest;

(8) Private and public structures that will neither adversely affect beach
processes nor artificially fix the shoreline; provided that, the
Commission also finds that hardship will result to the applicant if
the facilities or improvements are not allowed within the shoreline
setback area;

(9) Private and public structures that may artificially fix the shoreline
but not adversely affect beach processes; provided that, the
Commission also finds that shoreline erosion is likely to cause severe
hardship to the applicant if the facilities or improvements are not
allowed within the shoreline setback area and all alternative erosion
control mea�ures, including retreat, have been considered;

(10) The Commission may consider granting a variance for the
protection of a dwelling unit or public infrastructure; provided that,
the structure is at imminent risk of damage from coastal erosion,
such damage poses a danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the
public, and the proposed protection is the best shoreline management
option in accordance with relevant state policy on shoreline
hardening.

(11) Construction of a new dwelling unit. In the case where the
minimum buildable footprint does not allow for a setback in
accordance with this Article, the Commission may consider granting
a variance under the following guidelines:

(A) The front yard setback may be reduced where feasible to allow
for the minimum buildable footprint;
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(B) The side yard setback may be reduced where feasible to allow
for the minimum buildable footprint;

(C) If the foregoing approaches are done to the maximum extent
practicable and a dwelling cannot be sited mauka of the
shoreline setback, the minimum buildable footprint shall be
reduced to no less than [1,000] 500 square feet.

(D)If the foregoing approaches in subsections (A), (B) and (C) are
done to the maximum extent practicable, the calculated
shoreline setback may be reduced to the minimum_ extent
required to permit the construction of a house within the
reduced footprint, provided that a qualified consultant must
certify that the property is not subject to undue risk from
erosion, high wave action, or flooding. Under no circumstance
shall the shoreline setback line be less than 40 feet.

(12) Rebuilding of an existing dwelling unit.

(A) Rebuilding of a lawfully existing dwelling unit under this
section shall only be allowed if the rebuilding is not prohibited
by Article 13, Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as
amended and does not:

(i) enlarge the structure beyond its previous building
footprint, and

(ii) intensify the use of the structure or its impacts on
coastal processes.

(B) In the case where the minimum buildable footprint does not
allow for a setback of 60 feet, the Commission may consider
granting a variance under the following guidelines only:

(i) The front yard setback may be reduced where feasible
to allow for the minimum buildable footprint;

(ii) The side yard setback may be reduced where feasible
to allow for the minimum buildable footprint;

(iii) If the foregoing approaches are done to the maximum
extent practicable and a dwelling cannot be sited
mauka of the shoreline setback, the minimum buildable
footprint may be reduced to the lesser of [1,000] 500
square feet or the actual footprint of the house.

(b) A structure may be considered for a variance upon grounds of hardship if:

(1) The applicant would be deprived of all reasonable use of the land if
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required to fully comply with the provisions of the provisions of this 
Article; 

(2) The applicant's proposal is due to unique circumstances and does not
draw into question the reasonableness of the provisions of this
Article; and

(3) The proposal is the best practicable alternative which best conforms
to the purpose of the provisions of this Article.

(c) Before granting a hardship variance, the Commission shall find that the
applicant's proposal is a reasonable use of the land. Because of the dynamic
nature of the shoreline environment, inappropriate development may easily
pose a risk to individuals or to the public health and safety or to the coastal
zone management and resources. The Commission shall consider factors
such as coastal hazards, shoreline conditions, erosion, surf inundation,
flood conditions and the geography of the lot in determining whether the
proposal is a reasonable use of the applicant's land. The Commission shall
give due consideration to the long-term average annual rate of coastal
erosion calculated by following the methodology outlined in the National
Assessment of Shoreline Change: Historical Shoreline Changes in the
Hawaiian Islands (Fletcher, et al., 2012) and any amendments thereto, or
Section 4.1 of the Hawai'i Coastal Hazard Mitigation Guidebook (Hwang,
2005), and any subsequent amendments thereto.

(d) For purposes of this section, hardship shall not include economic hardship
to the applicant resulting from: (1) county zoning or setback changes,
planned development permits, cluster permits, or subdivision approvals
after June 16, 1989; (2) any other permit or approval which may have been
issued by the commission, [or] (3) actions by the applicant. or (4) small lot
size.

(e) No variance shall be granted unless appropriate conditions are imposed:

(1) To maintain and require safe lateral access to and along the
shoreline for public use or adequately compensate for its loss;

(2) To minimize and mitigate risk of adverse impacts on beach processes
and neighboring properties;

(3) To minimize and mitigate risk of structures failing and becoming
loose rocks or rubble on public property;

(4) To minimize adverse impacts on public views to, from, and along the
shoreline; and

(5) To comply with County Code provisions relating to flood plain
management, Chapter 15, Article 1, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as
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amended, and Drainage, Chapter 22, Article 16, Kaua'i County Code 
1987, as amended, respectively. 

(f) Any structure approved within the shoreline setback area by variance shall
not be eligible for protection by shoreline hardening during the life of the
structure, and this limitation and the fact that the structure does not meet
setback requirements under Section 8-27.3 and could be subject to coastal
erosion and high wave action shall be written into a unilateral agreement
that is recorded by the Bureau of Conveyances of Land Court, as the case
may be. A copy of the unilateral agreement shall be submitted to the
Planning Department prior to the issuance of the required zoning and/or
shoreline setback variance. Failure of the grantor to record these deed
restrictions shall constitute a violation of this section and the grantor shall
be subject to the penalties set forth in this Article.

(g) For any structure approved within the shoreline setback area by variance,
the applicant shall agree in writing that the applicant, its successors, and
permitted assigns shall defend, indemnify and hold the County of Kaua'i
harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, claim, or demand
arising out of damages to said structure and this indemnification shall be
included in the unilateral agreement required above.

(h) The applicant may apply to the department for an amendment to the
variance in a manner consistent with the procedures of the special
management area rules of the Kaua'i Planning Commission.

(i) No variance shall be granted for structures within the shoreline setback
area that are unpermitted, unless the Commission determines that a
structure is necessary to protect public health and safety, and/or that
removal of the structure would cause a greater public harm.

G) In no case shall the Commission grant a shoreline setback variance for
structures constructed without valid permits."

SECTION 9. Section 8-27.11, Article 27 of Chapter 8, Kaua'i County 
Code 1987, as amended, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

"Sec. 8-27.11 Enforcement. 

(a) The Director shall enforce this Article in accordance with Article 24 of the
County of Kaua'i Comprehensive [zoning] Zoning Ordinance[.]

._ 
HRS Chapter 205A, 

and the rules of Practice and Procedure of the County of Kaua'i Planning 
Commission. 

(b) Removal of an unpermitted structure or improvement(s) to an existing
structure. 

(1) In determining the disposition of [a] an unpermitted structure or
improvement(s) to an existing structure, the Director shall follow the
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procedures outlined in Chapter 12 of the Rules of Practice and 
Procedure of the County of Kaua'i Planning Commission based on 
the nature of the unpermitted structure. If the structure would have 
required Class I, II, or III permits as well as shoreline setback 
determination and approval or variance, the procedure shall be that 
required under Section 1-12-4 of said rules. If a Class IV permit 
would have been required, the procedure would be that outlined in 
Sections 1-12-5 through 1-12-8 of said rules. 

(2) Following the relevant procedures described in Sec. 8-27.ll(b)(l), the
Director or the Commission, as the case may be, shall order the
removal of an unpermitted structure or improvement(s) to an
existing structure [unless it is determined that removal shall cause
a greater harm to the ecosystem and/or public improvements than
allowing the structure to remain].

(3) If the Director or Commission determines that removal would be
inappropriate, the property owner or perpetrator shall obtain a
variance under Sec. 8-27.10 and shall pay penalties as specified in
Section 8-27.12.

(c) Judicial Enforcement of Order. The Director may institute a civil action in
any court of competent jurisdiction for the enforcement of any order issued pursuant 
to this section. 

Where the civil action has been instituted to enforce the civil fine imposed by 
such order, the Director need only show that a notice of violation and order was 
served, a hearing was held or the time allowed for requesting a hearing had expired 
without such a request, that a civil fine was imposed and that the fine imposed has 
not been paid. 

The Director may institute a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction 
for injunctive relief to prevent violation of any provision of this Chapter, any rule 
adopted there under, any permit issued pursuant thereto or any condition of any 
shoreline setback approval in addition to any other remedy provided for under this 
Chapter. 

(d) Nonexclusiveness of Remedies. The remedies provided in this chapter for
enforcement of the provisions of this chapter, or any rule adopted
thereunder, shall be in addition to any other remedy as may be provided by
law.

(e) Appeal in Accordance with Statute. If any person is aggrieved by the order
issued by the director pursuant to this section, the person may appeal the
order in the manner provided in HRS Chapter 91, provided that no
provision of such order shall be stayed on appeal unless specifically ordered
by a court of competent jurisdiction

,. 
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(f) The Director shall enforce this Article in accordance with Article 24 of the
County of Kaua'i Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and HRS Chapter
205A."

SECTION 10. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other 
provisions or application of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 
severable. 

SECTION 11. Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed. New 
ordinance material is underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this 
ordinance for inclusion in the Kaua'i County Code 1987, as amended, the brackets, 
bracketed material, and underscoring shall not be included. 

SECTION 12. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval. These 
amendments shall be applied to any pending application, determination, or permits. 

Introduced by: 

MEL RAPOZO 

BERNARD P. CARVALHO, JR. 

DATE OF INTRODUCTION: 

Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
V:\BILLS\2024-2026 TERM\2025-292.1 Shoreline Setback Coastal Protection bill 
MR_BC_RM_mn.docx 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR 

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA. DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

October 6, 2025 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

Michael J. Belles, Esq. 

Belles Graham, LLP 

3135 Akahi Street, Suite A 

Lihu'e, HI 96766-1191 

Attorney for Robinson Family Partners 

DAVID M. LOUIE, ESQ. 

JOSEPH A. STEWART, ESQ. 

Kobayashi Sugita & Goda, LLP 

999 Bishop Street, Suite 2600 

Honolulu, HI 96813 

Attorneys for Kerzner International Managements Services Hawai'i, Inc 

CHRIS DONAHOE, ESQ. 

Deputy County Attorney, County of Kaua'i 

4444 Rice Street, Suite 220 

LThu'e, Hawal'i 96766 

DEREK S.IC. KAWAKAMI. MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA. MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Subject: In the Matter of the Petition to Amend Ordinance No. PM-2001-356 as amended in part by 

Ordinance No. PM-2006-385 for Real Property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of 

Kaua'i, State of Hawal'i, Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001, Zoning Amendment ZA-2026-2 

In the Matter of the Petition to Amend Ordinance No. PM-2001-356 as amended in part by Ordinance No. 

PM-2006-385, affecting approximately 171.72 acres of real property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, 

Zoning Amendment ZA-2026-2, has been scheduled on the November 10, 2025, County Kaua'i, Planning 
Commission Agenda: 

Purpose of the 

Proposed 

Amendment: 

Subject Property: 

This Petition seeks to amend Ordinance No. PM-2001-356, as amended in part 

by Ordinance No. PM-2006-385, to rezone approximately 171.72 acres of real 
property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i, 

identified by Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005:001 to the designations that 

existed prior to Ordinance No. PM-2001-356, as amended. 

The proposed action would redesignate the zoning of the property from Resort 
(RR-10) to the Agriculture (A) and Open (O} Districts, as it previously existed 
prior to the adoption of Ordinance No. PM-2001-356, as amended. 

Waimea, Kaua'i. Approximately 171.72 acres of real property situated at 

Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i, identified by Kaua'i Tax 

Map Key (4) 1-7-005:001 

4444 Rice Street. Suite A473 • LThu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

NO\J 10 2025 

F.4.a.



Meeting Location: Lihu'e Civic Center, Moikeha Building, Meeting Room 2A-28, 

4444 Rice Street, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

�: 

Time: 

• The Planning Commission Agenda for November 10, 2025 will specify the final

determination of location.

November 10, 2025, Monday 

9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter 

The Petition and the Draft Bill for an Ordinance amending Chapter 8, Kaua'i County Code 1987, as 

amended, relating to zoning designations in Makaweli, Kaua'i, which includes a map showing the 

proposed amendment regions, was sent via certified mail on August 14, 2025. Please contact the Planning 
Department with any questions at planningdepartment@kauai.gov or (808) 241-4050. 

� ✓1Ka'aina S. Hull 

Director of Planning 



ORDINANCE NO. BILL NO. ____ _ 
-----

A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 8, 
KAUA'I COUNTY CODE 1987, AS AMENDED, RELATING TO 

ZONING DESIGNATION IN MAKA WELi, KAUA 'I 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I� STATE OF HAWAI'I: 

• SECTION 1. Ordinance No. PM 2001-356, as amended in part by Ordinance No. PM-
2006-385, is hereby amended by amending the zoning designation for that certain area in 
Makaweli, Kaua'i, identified as TMK No.: 1-7-05:1, and as shown on Zoning Map ZM-200 and 
on the map attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit ZA-2000-2 (Exhibit A) from the 
"Resort District (RR-1)," "Resort District/Special Treatment - Cultural District (RR-1/ST-C),'' 
"Open District/Special Treatment - Resource District (O/STR)," "Open District/Special 
Treatment - Public District (O/ST-C)," "Open District/Special Treatment- Cultural District 
(O/ST-C),'' and the establishment of view corridor and Transition Areas 1, 2, and 3 to the 
"Agriculture District (A)" and "Open District (O)." Ordinance No. PM 2001-356, as amended in 
part by Ordinance No. PM-2006-385, is amended as follows: 

[1. ZONING DESIGNATIONS: 

As shown on the attached E,chibit "A," the following are zoning designations 
and acreage the project: 

(a) Resort District (RR 1) 127.93 acres.
(b) Resort/Special Treatment Cultural District (RR I/ST C) 18.02 acres. 
(c) Open/Special Treatment Cultural District (0/ST C) 11.43 acres.
(cl) Open/Special Treatment Resource District (0/ST R) 11.46 acres.
(e) Open/Special Treatment Public District (O'ST P) 2.88 acres.

2. SPECIAL RESTRICTIONS:

As shov,n on the attached Exhibit "A," the following are design and project 
development controls to supplement the zoning designations: 

(a) Transition Area 1 . Shall be along the shoreline and be 200 feet
deep, measured from the edge of the Conser¥ation District and/or the 0/ST R 
zone, and be subject to the following restrictions: 

(i) Single story buildings only.

(ii) A maximum allov,rable land coverage of 20%.

(iii) A maximum building height of twenty (20) feet for the
resort units measured from all points of the building.

(b) Transition Area .2 Shall be a 200 feet deep area around the 
fishpond. This zone shall be subject to the following restrictions: 
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(a) The applicant shall comply •Nith conditions of the State Land Use
Commission Decision and Order dated April 6, 2001. 

(b) In keeping v,rith prior commitments and representations made by 
the applicant, the applicant shall, in the forthcoming SMA and Zoning Pennit 
process, pro¥ide appropriate documentation pertaining to historic preservation 
philosophy and methodology of the proposed de•;elopment including the 
presen•ation of the carriage houses and green house. 

The applicant shall also pro¥ide appropriate historic preservation 
documentation and infonnation as recommended by the Kauai Historic 
PreseFYation Re¥iew (KHPRC) Commission in its July 3, 2000 memorandum (on 
file) in conjunction v,r.ith the fortheoming permit proeess. Also, the Department 
of Land and Natural Resources State Historic Preservation Division (DLNR 
SHPD) and the KHPR� shall be gh•en the opportunity to pro•lide further 
comments as more detailed historic preservation infonnation and plans become 
available. 

(c) As recommended by the State Historic Preservation Di•1ision ofthe
Department ofLand and Natural Resources (DLNR): 

(i) Five historic sites are to be presen•ed, as documented in the
inventory survey report. A detailed presen•ation plan for these
sites must be submitted to the State Historic Presen•ation
Division (SHPD) for appro¥al. This plan must include buffer
zones, interim protection measures (if needed), and long
range preservation measures. Before land alteration can occur,
minimal buffer zones and interim protection measures need to
be appro¥ed and the SHPD must ¥erify in writing that this
plan has been successfully executed.

(ii) One historic site may undergo some data reco·lery (site 761,
the Robinson plantation house complex) as not all buildings
may be preserved. A data reco¥ery plan must be submit�ed to
the SHPD for oppro¥al for any building to be demolished.

(iii) The proposal to preserve the burial 1Nithin site 792 must be
submitted to the Kauai Island Burial Council for approval. A
burial treatment plan (co:..,ering preser¥ation coneems) must
be re¥iewed and approv·ed by the Burial Council.

(i•;) Archaeological monitoring shall occur for all altering 
construction in the shoreline sand areas outside of site 792, to 
eo·ler the possibility of inad1,•ertent burial finds or finds of 
small remnants of subsurface habitation deposits. Pill 
archaeological monitoring plan (Scope ofV/ork) must be 
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submitted to the SHPD for approval. The SHPD must verify 
in vlriting when the plan has been suooessfully exeouted. 

(d) The applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Fire
Department as specified in their December 2, 1999 letter to the Planning 
Department (see attached). 

(e) The applicant shall meet all applicable requirements of the County
Department ofVlater and the County Department of Public Vlorks at the time of 
permi� 

(f) The applicant shall oornply with the comments of the State
· Highways DiYision dated Maroh 8, 2000 to the Planning Department (see
attached).

(g) The applioant shall comply v,rith all applicable requirements of the
State Department of Health at the time ofpennitting. 

(h) The Resort Distriot (RR 1) zoning shall:

(i) Haye a maximum density of tv,ro hundred fifty (250) resort
units. This zone has the capacity to also allm•,r for three (3)
additional single family residential units. This additional
density shall apply to,vards coyering three (3) of the eight (8)
existing plantation homes.

(ii) Allow those uses that arc permitted 1
,

1,rithin the resort zoning
seotion of the Comprehensh•e Zoning Ordinance, inoluding
administration functions, maintenance funotions, and small
conference facilities. The support facilities such as the sewage
treatment plant, pump stations and other accessory uses that
are necessary to operate the infrastructure shall also be
permitted. The amount of amenities allov,red as permitted uses
shall howe1t•er be limited to those uses specified in the zoning
amendment application (two restaurants, a snack.bar, luau
grounds, publio/passiYe recreation area, museum, bar/lounge,
three swimming pools, fitness eenter/beaoh club, sports
courts, amphitheater, and public parking/access.

(iii) Be required to prm•ide one paved parking stall per hotel unit.

(iv) Be restricted to a maximum building height of thirty five(35)
feet for non resort unit buildings.

(v) Be restricted to only duplexes for attaohed units; i.e. no mere
than two units shall be attaehed under one roof. The floor area
for eaoh unit in a duplex shall not exceed 800 square feet.
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Deeks and lanais shall not coun·t, however shall not exceed 
one third the floor area or 200 square feet, whichever is less. 

(vi) All units shall not exceed 800 square feet of floor area. Deeks
and lanais shall not eount, howev·er shall not exceed one third
the floor area or 200 square feet, •Nhiehever is less.

(vii) Not allow the resort units to be higher than thirty (30) feet
•.vhich shall be measured from all points of the building.

(i) The Planning Department shall be granted authority to determine
the course of action needed to address any changes to the project; i.e. whether 
legislative action inYoh•ing an amendment to the ordinance or an administratiYe 
process im•olving the Planning Department and/or Commission. Inoreases in 
density, changes in uses, or other major changes that could alter the complexion 
ef-the project shall require County Council action. Slight t,•ariations and minor 
modifications to the project would qualify for administrath•e action. 

(j) In addition to the State Land Use Commission's Decision and 
Order conditions pertaining to public access and amenities, the following 
improvements shall be constructed and/or pro¥ided prior to occupancy of the 
resort units: 

(i) A comfort station for public use.

(ii) An outdoor shov1er facility for public use:-

(iii) A passi¥e public recreation-orea to allow for picnicking and
passi¥e day uses not less than two and one half (2.5) acres in
�

(h0 A public parking lot consisting of thirty (30) paved parking 
stalls with an m•erflow parking area of twenty (20) stalls. 

(v) In the e¥ent that the applicant's proposed driveway
connection to the beach parking lot cannot be implemented
due to DOT concerns, an access onto Kaumualii Highway for
use on an emergency only basis to be resoh•ed with the Fire
Department.

(vi) A fifty (50) foot "Nide lateral beach access easement be 
prm•ided along the shoreline portion of the project site. This 
fifty (50) foot easement shall run along the entire shoreline 
frontage of the property and be granted in favor of the 
County of Kauai. This lateral beach access shall be open .;M
hours a day for unrestricted pedestrian use to enable the 
public to traverse (non motorized) along the beach area. The 
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long term goal of such lateral access easements is to keep 
connecting the easements to enable the public to e,.Centually 
tra¥erse to and through beaches for recreational purposes 
throughout the island. 

::rhe exaet amount ofland area along with its alignment and configuration 
for public use (parking, comfort station, showers, passh•e recreation area, and 
walking trail) shall be reso1¥ed with the Planning Department during the 
permitting process. This public use area shall be designated as a publie-easement 
_in fat,•or of the State of Hawaii (to be consistent with the Land Use Commission's 
decision and order). 

Further, provision of these improvements •Nill enable the project to qualify 
for a 50% Park Dedication fee credit. 

(k) There shall be no encroachment of commercial buildings or any
resort units within any of the Open/Special Treatment districts. 

(l) The eKisting foliage along the highway frontage •Nithin the
Open/Special Treatment Resource District (Q1S::r R) shall not be remcwed. 
Maintenance trimming and planting of additional landscaping are allo•ued. The 
intent of this condition is to ensure that the buildings Vlithin the project are not 
seen from the highway and to ensure that the existing vegetation along the 
highv1ay remains in its current state. 

(m) Signage along the highv1ay shall be ret,•ievt'ed and appro¥ed by the
Planning Department and-shall follov1 the County's sign ordinance. Direct 
lighting shall not be permitted. Indirect lighting is allovlable. 

(n) ::rhe applicant shall be made aware of condition 12 of the Land Use 
Commission Decision and Order that requires the applicant to participate in-the 
pro rate funding and construction of local and regional transportation 
impro•1ements and programs necessitated by the proposed de¥elopment in 
designs and schedules accepted and determined by the State Department of 
Transportation (DOT). Agreement between the applicant and the DOT as to the 
le•,•el of funding and participation shall be obtained prior to the applicant 
acquiring County zoning or prior to building permits if County zoning is not 

·required.

(o) A landscape plan which includes an in¥entory of all major
landscape elements co•1ering major plants (within the Speoial Treatment and 
Transition Areas) that are eKisting, proposed to be remo.,•ed, remain, and new 
landscaping shall be approYed by the Planning Commission as part of or prior to 
issuance of the applicable land use permits (SMA, Zoning, andlor Use Permits) 
for the proj eat. 

(p) The Open District (0) zoning with the Special Treatment o¥erlays 
quali�• for one single family residential unit per aero. This Open zone density 
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shall be transferred to the RR 1 portion and be used only to co•,rer part of the 
density for the eight (8) existing plantation homes (the additional RR 1 density 
will be used to cover part of the 8 homes) and for affordable and/or employee 
housing. The additional remaining density shall only be allowed if used for 
affordable and/or employee housing. If not used for these purposes, the 
remaining Open zoning should not yield any residential densities. 

(q) The Applicant shall provide fifteen (15) employee housing units, on
site, that shall be single family detached dwellings, including both two bedroom 
and three bedroom models, with all units being affordable to and benefiting 
Kauai households earning no more than eighty percent (80%) of the Kauai 
l\4edian Household Income, pursuant to housing income standards maintained by 
the Kauai County Housing Agency. The affordable units shall remain affordable 
to and benefit households earning no more than eighty percent (80%) of the 
Kauai :Median Household Income for a period of at least tv,1enty (20) years and 
compliance to the incom·e restriction shall be monitored by the Kauai County 
Housing Agency. 

(r) The Planning Department shall be allowed to refine the alignment 
of the zoning for this project based on the evaluation of more detailed 
information. Such administrative refinements shall not include changes to density 
and major changes to the alignment of the zoning district lines. 

(s) Sufficient employee parking above aad beyond the requirement for
the hotel units shall be required during the permitting stage. 

(t) Substantial construction of the hotel, defined as completion of at 
least fifty percent (50%) of building foundations, shall be completed within 
eighteen (18) months from the date that the appeal of the project's shoreline 
certification currently pending before the Chair of the Board of Land and Natural 
Resources has been resolved. If substantial construction is not completed ·Jlithin 
this time, the Planning Commission shall initiate proceedings to rezone the 
property to the designations existing prior to the date of this ordinance. 

(u) The applicant is ad,.•ised that prior to and/or during construction and 
use, additional go,.•ernment ageney eonditions may be imposed. It shall be the 
applicant's responsibility to resol¥e those conditions with the respeotiYe 
agenoy(ies). 

1. ZONING DESIGNATIONS:

As shown on the attached Exhibit "A," the following are zoning designations for 
that certain area in Makaweli, Kaua'i, identified as TMK No.: 1-7-05: 1: 

(a) 
(b) 

Agricultural District. 
Open District. 
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SECTION 2. The Planning Commission is directed to note the change on the 
official Zoning Map on file with the Commission. All applicable provisions of the Comprehensive 
Zoning Ordinance shall apply to the area rezoned herein. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect the other provisions or 
applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable. 

SECTION 4. Ordinance material to be repealed is bracketed. New Ordinance material is 
underscored. When revising, compiling, or printing this Ordinance for inclusion in the Kaua'i 
County Code 1987, as amended, the brackets, bracketed material, and underscoring shall not be 
included. 

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its approval. 

Introduced by: 

DATE OF INTRODUCTION: 

Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

TRANSMITTAL OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY TO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: October 23, 2025 

PERMIT NUMBER(S): ZA-2026-2 

APPLICANT(S): COUNTY OF KAUAI, PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA. MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Attached for the Planning Commission's reference is Public Testimony pertaining to the permit 

application referenced above. 

F-.. 1.1:a. I· 
NOV i0 2025 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-40S0 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 



To: Kaua'i County Planning Commission 

From: Nancy Somers Shaw 

Date: October 8, 2025 

Subject: Opposition to Proposed Zoning Amendment ZA'."2026-2 (Kapalawai, Makaweli, 

Kaua'i) 

Aloha Chair and Commissioners, 

I am writing in opposition to the proposed zoning amendment (ZA-2026-2) that seeks to 

rezone approximately 171. 72 acres at Kapalawal, Makawell from Resort (RR-1 O) back to 

Agriculture (A) and Open (0). 

1. Resort Zoning Enables Economic Opportunity and Local Investment

The existing Resort zoning supports the potential for responsible, diversified, place-based 

economic growth on the West Side. For generations, families from this area have faced 

limited opportunities and long commutes to work. Maintaining Resort zoning would help 

create local jobs and investment while keeping benefits within the community, rather than 

continuing the pattern of economic decline and outward migration. 

2. Reverting to Agriculture Zoning Would Remove a Vital Financial Resource

Changing the zoning back to Agriculture and Open would strip our family company and the 

community of a key financial asset. The existing Resort zoning represents a principal 

means of generating the capital necessary to fund local priorities, including the 

development of workforce and agricultural housing for westside Kaua'i. 

Without that potential, the ability to reinvest in housing, infrastructure, and community­

serving uses would be severely constrained. The amendment would unintentionally 

undercut the very goals of economic balance and housing affordability that Kaua'i's 

General Plan promotes. 

3. Resort Zoning Can Support a Balanced, Sustainable Vision

Retaining the Resort designation does not imply large-scale or insensitive development. 

Rather, it allows for a modern, sustainable resort framework that integrates cultural 

interpretation, open space preservation, and small-scale visitor experiences consistent 

with West Kaua'i's character. The Resort zone provides the flexibility and financial tools 

needed to pursue these outcomes responsibly. 

4. The Original Ordinance Reflected Long-Term Planning Commitments

The 2001 zoning under Ordinance PM-2001-356 was based on a comprehensive plan to 

diversify the local economy and strengthen community resilience. Reversing that zoning 



now disregards that long-term planning vision and the Investments made In reliance upon 

it. A series of uncontrollable events delayed the project: 

• 2008 economic downturn caused Lew Geyser to leave Hawaii and the Kapalawai

development.
• 2015 death of Derek Trethewey resulted In his estate forgoing the development In

2018.

• 2020 global pandemic shut down all prospective developers, Including

Hyatt, McWhinney, Collective Resorts, and Six Senses.

In 2022 Kerzer signed a development agreement and lease with our family and has made 
steady progress on planning and permitting investing nearly $7million to date. 

5. Recommendation

For these reasons, I respectfully urge the Planning Commission to deny the proposed 

amendment (ZA-2026-2) and retain the Resort (RR-1 0) zoning designation for Kapalawai, 

Makaweli. Maintaining the existing zoning will preserve the family's ability to generate 
economic activity that directly supports workforce housing, agricultural initiatives, and 
infrastructure improvements that benefit West Kaua'i. 

Maha lo for your time and consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 

��1MV 
Robinson Family Partner and Gay & Robinson Board M�mber 
NancySomersShaw@gmail.com 



DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR 

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

RE: 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

PLANNING DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Annual Status Report 2025 

Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U}-2007-13 

Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2007-29 

Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25 

Tax Map Keys: (4) (4) 2-8-015:043, 044 & 082; 2-8-016:003, 004 
Po'ipu, Kaua'i 

APPLICANT: KAUA'I BLUE, INC. 

(formerly SVO Pacific, Inc. & VSE Pacific, Inc.} 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The subject permits were approved by the Planning Commission on October 9, 2007 to 
authorize the renovation and redevelopment of the Sheraton Kaua'i Resort consisting of 413 

hotel units. The development involves both the Garden and Ocean wings as well as a new 
access road with public sidewalk and bikeway, and infrastructure improvements. 

Condition No. 4 of the permits requires the Applicant to submit an annual report to the 

Planning Commission to report the progress of the project until it's completed and it reads: 

"4. Applicant shall provide annual status reports to the Planning Commission 

beginning from one year from the date of this approval. The reports shall 

be submitted to the Department no later than 30 days prior to the annual 

anniversary date of approval of this project. The report shall provide 

project status and progress towards project completion and compliance 

with conditions of approval. Annual reports shall be provided until 

completion of the project, and compliance with all conditions of 

approval." 

APPLICANT'S REQUEST 
In accordance with Condition No. 4, the Applicant is providing the attached status and progress 
report (dated September 8, 2025} on behalf of Kaua'i Blue, Inc., refer to Exhibit 'A'. All 

conditions of the original permit are addressed by the Applicant in the attached report. The 
matrix provided also identify the progress with the compliance of the specific requirement. 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the Commission receives the Applicant's Annual Status Report dated 

6. ,_(A.\.
NOV 10 2025 



September 8, 2025. Additionally, the Applicant is advised that all applicable conditions of 
approval, including the provision of annual status report as required by Condition No. 4, shall 
remain in effect. 

SMA(U)-2007-13, Z-IV-2007-29, PDU-2007-25; 20254 Annual Status Rpt 
Kauai Blue, Inc. 

l 0.13.2025 

By�
Dale A. Cua 
Planner 

Approved and recommended to Commission: 

By 1.:::;; ± �

Director of Planning 

Date: i 
O / 1 L-( f 1--v t. -l --7----1-
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EXHIBIT '' A'' 
(2025 Annual Status Report) 



MAX W.J. GRAHAM, JR 
JONATHAN J. Cl IUN 

IAN K. JLJNG 

Federal 1.D. No 99-03 I 7663 

Mr. Ka'aina S. Hull 
Director of Planning 
Planning Department 
County of Kauai 

BELLES GRAHAM LLP 
A'ITORNEYS AT LAW 

DYNASTY PROFESSIONAL BUILDJNG 

3135 AKAHI STREET, SUITE A 

LIHUE, KAUAI, HAWAII 96766-1191 

TELEPHONE NO: (808) 245-4705 
FACSIMILE NO: (808) 245-3277 

E-MAIL: mail@kauai-law.com

September 8, 2025 

-

.... .

OF COUNSEL 

MICI IAEL J. BELLES 
DAVID W. PROUDFOOT 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

4444 Rice Street, Suite 473 
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766 

Re: 

Dear Mr. Hull: 

2025 Eighteenth Annual Status Report of Compliance With Permit 
Conditions For Special Management Area Use Permit SMA (U)-2007-13; 
Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25, And Class IV Zoning 
Permit Z-IV-2007-29, For Poipu Sheraton Kauai Resort, 
(Kauai Blue, Inc., fka SVO Pacific, Inc. and VSE Pacific, Inc.) 

Pursuant to Condition No. 4 of the above-referenced permits, the Applicant, 
Kauai Blue, Inc. (formerly known as SVO Pacific, Inc. and VSE Pacific, Inc.), hereby submits 
this 2025 Annual Status Report providing the status and progress towards project completion 
and compliance with conditions of approval. This Annual Status Report is intended to report on 
the status of conditions imposed by the Planning Commission of the County of Kauai, as 
required by the subject permits, as approved by the Planning Commission on October 9, 2007, 
and as memorialized in the corresponding permits dated October 10, 2007, attached hereto as 
Exhibit "A". 

Thus, listed below, in the same order as they appear in the approval letter, are 
each of the stated 22 conditions of the subject permits (in bold italics), followed by a statement 
of the corresponding status of each of the respective conditions. 

1. In order to minimize adverse impacts on Federally Listed Threatened
Species, such as Newell's Shearwater and other seabirds, if external lighting is to be 
used in connection with the proposed project, all external lighting shall be only of the 

following types: shielded lights, cut-off luminaries, or indirect lighting. Spotlights aimed 
upward or spotlighting of structures, landscaping, signage or hotel features within the 
project site shall be prohibited. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The architects and lighting 
consultants have specifically been made aware of this requirement and will 
incorporate appropriate lighting. 
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2. In accordance with Section 9-2.8 of the Kauai County Code, 1987,
the requirement of the Park Dedication In-Lieu Fee is applicable to this project relating to
"Parks and Playgrounds" are applicable to the project and shall be resolved at the time 
of building permit approval. Also, in accordance with Section 11A-2.2 of the KCC, the 
Applicant shall submit to the Planning Department an Environmental Impact Assessment 
Fees (EIA) for the project. The EIA fees are based on $1,000 per new multi-family unit, 
and $100 per the minimum number of parking stalls serving the commercial development 
components as required by County Code Section 11A-2.2. Both of these fees are due at 
time of first building permit approval. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The fees will be paid, accordingly. 

3. Applicant shall record all of the conditions imposed under the
subject permits with the deed(s) to the properties of the resort project. A copy of this 
recordation shall be provided to the Planning Department at time of building permit 
application. 

Status: The Applicant has met this condition. In compliance with Condition 3, a 
Memorandum of Special Management Area Use Permit SMA (U)-2007-13, 
Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25, and Class IV Zoning Permit 
Z-IV-2007-29 (a true and correct copy of which is attached to this letter as
Exhibit "B") was recorded on June 2, 2008. A copy of the recorded Memorandum
was forwarded to the Planning Department on June 6, 2008.

4. Applicant shall provide annual status reports to the Planning
Commission beginning from one year from the date of this approval. The reports shall 
be submitted to the Department no later than 30 days prior to the annual anniversary 
date of approval of this project. The report shall provide project status and progress 
towards project completion and compliance with conditions of approval. Annual reports 
shall be provided until completion of the project, and compliance with all conditions of

approval. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. This letter provides the current status 
and Applicant's manner of addressing all conditions of approval. 

5. Applicant shall substantially commence construction of the project
development within one (1) year from the date of full approval, and shall complete 
construction of the project development within 5 years from the date of approval of the 
subject permits. 
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Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. A copy of the letter confirming the 
Department's definition of "full approval" is attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and 
made a part hereof by reference. 

The Applicant's building permit applications were submitted on June 2, 2008. 
Included within these permits were four hotel renovation permits which include 
the Point Restaurant (now open and operating as "Rum Fire") (#08-1205); the 
Oasis Pool Bar (now open and operating as "Lava's") (#08-1206); the Swimming 
Pool (#08-1207) continue to be operational; and the Breezeway & Existing 
Kitchen (now operating as the "Main Kitchen") (#08-1208). All four hotel 
renovation building permit applications were approved and issued in early 2010. 

The pool construction was completed in August of 2011 and a Certificate of 
Inspection for the pool was subsequently issued. The County issued a Certificate 
of Occupancy for the Oasis Pool Bar in mid-August 2011 and Certificates of 
Occupancy for both the Point Restaurant and Breezeway & Existing Kitchen in 
the second quarter of 2012. 

Three additional building permits for modified work to the Point Restaurant, Oasis 
Pool Bar, and Breezeway and Existing Kitchen (#11-460, #11-461 and #11-462) 
were applied for on March 28, 2011. All of the work was completed by the first 
quarter of 2012 and Certificates of Occupancy were issued. 

An additional permit for the Coffee Shop/Link Cafe (#11-463) was applied for on 
June 27, 2011. The work was completed by the first quarter of 2012 and a 
Certificate of Occupancy was issued. 

Building permits for work in the Dining Room (#11-2167) and for Roofing Work 
(#11-2323) were applied for in November of 2011. The permits were approved, 
work was completed in 2012 and the Certificates of Occupancy were issued. 

A total of nine new building permit applications - one application for a new 
employee break room (#12-673) and eight applications for ADA improvements at 
the Hotel (#12-684 through #12-691) were submitted on April 13 and 16, 2012, 
respectively. The employee break room has been modified and the ADA work is 
partially complete. 

The value of the work covered by the above-referenced hotel renovation permits 
is approximately $16 million. 
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In addition, three new building permits were submitted in 2013. A wall 
replacemenUawning at the Oasis Pool Bar (#13-1516, value of $153,000.00) and 
fitness center relocation (#13-1515, value of $135,000.00) building permits were 
submitted on July 12, 2013. The Oasis Pool Bar work has been completed and 
the fitness center relocation permit was removed from the County system. 
A re-roofing building permit was submitted on August 15, 2013 (#13-2138-2145, 
value of $2,300,000.00). A separate re-roofing building permit (#15-1040, value 
of $36,225.00) was submitted on April 16, 2015. All re-roofing building permits 
have been approved, work started on August 1, 2014, and the re-roofing project 
is complete. The Applicant also applied for and received Shoreline Setback 
Determination ("SSD") approval on the above 3 projects including a tennis court 
demolition project. A separate demo permit was applied for and demo work 
complete. 

Four new building permits were submitted in 2014. A permit for a Welcome 
Center, mockup unit, and roof safety platform (#13-2666, value of $80,000.00, 
#014-931, value of $80,000.00, #014-392, value of $50,000.00, and #14,1139, 
value of $30,000.00) have been issued and the work completed. An SSD for the 
above projects has been approved. 

Eight new building permits were submitted in November 2015 for renovation of 
8 units in the Garden Wing. The permit numbers were #15-3089 - #15-3096 with 
a total value of $248,000.00. The work was completed, and Certificates of 
Occupancy were issued in June and July, 2016. 

Furthermore, since submittal of the 2016 SMA Annual Report, the 
Sheraton Kauai Resort has completed or is in the process of completing 
approximately $13,350,000.00 in resort improvements/repair/upgrades and 
maintenance projects. 

The demolition permits for the existing Garden Wing were submitted and 
approved. Revisions and amendments to the demolition plan will, however, in all 
likelihood be filed by the Applicant with the County to reflect proposed changes in 
the design and the re-development of the Garden Wing as explained more fully 
below. However, since the Applicant was not yet ready to commence demolition, 
the Building Department requested that the Applicant pick up the plans and the 
19 permit applications, which was done. 

The Applicant submitted plans for the existing Garden Wing buildings for the first 
phase of its future timeshare project. The Applicant has built a mockup of 
timeshare units and reviewed them on-site with the Planning Department. In 
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addition, the Applicant plans to upgrade the existing mockup units and a building 
permit was submitted in December 2016. This building permit (#16-2486 with a 
value of $210,000.00) was issued on March 22, 2017. The work was completed 
and a Certificate of Occupancy was issued on March 1, 2018. 

With respect to the new timeshare building permits, the Applicant submitted 
plans in December 2016 and all building permits (#16-2502, #16-2503, 
#16-2505, #16-2507, #16-2508, #16-2510, #16-2512, #16-2513, #16-2514, and 
#16-2515 for a total value of $24,922,119.00) have been approved. This work 
started in October 2017 and construction was completed in October 2019. A 
TCO was also received for #16-2514 on January 23, 2018. Work is complete 
and a Certificate of Occupancy for building permits #16-2507, #16-2508, 
#16-2510, #16-2512, #16-2513, and #16-2514, were issued on November 2, 
2018, November 9, 2018, January 7, 2019, January 16, 2019, November 2, 
2018, and December 6, 2018, respectively. Work is almost completed for 
building permits #16-2502 and #16-2503, and work for building permit #16-2505 
has been completed when the 2019 SMA report was filed. Since then, 
construction and furniture installation has been completed and a Certificate of 
Occupancy was issued on September 4 and 23, 2019. 

ADA building permits for the Ocean and Beach Wings were submitted in 
May 2017 (#17-1094 and #17-1095 with a total value of $450,000.00) and 
Ocean Wing Certificate of Occupancy issued on December 1, 2017, and 
Beach Wing Certificate of Occupancy issued on April 20, 2018. 

Three (3) new building permits were submitted in 2019. A permit for the hotel 
units renovation located in Buildings 6 and 7 (#19-378 with a value of 
$650,000.00, and #19-379 with a value of $765,000.00) and a permit for the 
executive offices refresh (#19-622 with a value of $100,160.00) are pending 
approval. A SSD for the above projects has also been submitted and approved. 
Construction work for all three building permits were completed. A Certificate of 
Occupancy was issued for building permit #19-622 on February 20, 2020. 
A Temporary Certificate of Occupancy was issued on March 30, 2020 for 
building permits #19-378 and #19-379. Additional work requested by the 
Department of Water was completed in late 2020. Therefore, the Certificate Of 
Occupancy was issued on January 12, 2021. 
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In summary, the Applicant has spent over $16 million to complete the 
Ocean Wing improvements as represented in the SMA. The Applicant has 
completed the $2,336,225.00 Garden Wing re-roofing project, $240,000.00 of 
building permit work in 2014 and 2015, $248,000.00 of building permit work in 
2016, $450,000.00 in ADA work in 2017 and 2018, and spent approximately 
$13,414,000.00 on various upgrades and maintenance type improvements since 
the 2016 annual report. Lastly, the Applicant has completed the construction for 
the conversion of the Garden Wing buildings. It is estimated that the Applicant 
has spent approximately $25 million to complete the Garden Wing conversion. 

The corona virus pandemic of 2020 had a devastating effect on the visitor and 
hotel industry in Hawaii. The Sheraton Kauai Resort was forced to shut down 
normal operations on March 28, 2020. The Sheraton Kauai Resort temporarily 
re-opened the Garden Wing in Q4 of 2020, but closed again due to travel 
restrictions. The Sheraton Kauai Resort has since re-opened the Garden Wing 
on April 9, 2021, and the Ocean Wing on May 5, 2021. Since re-opening, the 
Sheraton Kauai Resort has done approximately $500,000.00 in repairs, 
renovations and upgrades. 

Since the 2022 Annual Report filing, the Sheraton Kauai Resort has been in 
continuous operation and is planning on an AC replacement in 2024 on the 
Ocean Wing side of the Resort. No other significant improvements were recently 
completed. 

Since the 2023 Annual Report filing, the Sheraton Kauai Resort has completed 
the AC replacement with a value of approximately $1,100,000.00 and roofing 
repairs with a value of approximately $100,000.00 on the Ocean Wing side of the 
Resort. 

Since the 2024 Annual Report filing, the Sheraton Kauai Resort has completed 
an AC controls project, roofing repair, and utility repair work with a value of 
approximately $530,000.00, with an additional $630,000.00 of mechanical and 
additional roof repair work being scheduled for 2026. 

6. Subject permits approved herein cannot be sold and are not
transferable to other than Applicant, its subsidiaries and affiliated corporations and legal 
entities prior to the completion of the project and issuance of the occupancy permit. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this restriction on the sale and transferability of the 
permits prior to completion of the project and issuance of the occupancy permit. 
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7. In accordance with Section 8-5.5 of the Kauai County Code, 1987,
the Applicant shall provide a grant of easement for all public areas, such as beach 
parking, multi-use access paths, shower & bench area, cultural/historical preserves and 
sites, and lateral coastal multi-use beach walk. Said easement document shall also be 
recorded, with a recorded copy provided to the Planning Department at time of building 
permit review. All such public areas shall be adequately signed. The 42 public parking 
stalls shall also be signed, with such signage managed and maintained by the Applicant 
to ensure that employees and/or guests shall not be utilizing such parking areas. 

Language and signage design shall be subject to Planning Department 
review and approval. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. In compliance with Condition 7, a 
Declaration of Public Facilities Easements (a true and correct copy of which is 
attached to this letter as Exhibit "D") was recorded on June 2, 2008. A copy of 

the recorded Declaration was forwarded to the Planning Department on June 6, 
2008. 

8. As represented, the Applicant shall:

a. design the Lobby building within the Mauka Parcel to also
function as a hurricane emergency shelter for the project's residents, guests and key 
employees. Said design shall be as reviewed and approved by the County Civil Defense 
agency. The Applicant shall also maintain its current bus evacuation plan to 
accommodate guests who may prefer to evacuate the site during impending hurricane 
situations. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The concepts have been reviewed 
with the Kauai Civil Defense Agency. The Kauai Civil Defense Agency's letter 
regarding the hurricane emergency shelter is attached hereto as Exhibit "E" and 
made a part hereof by reference. 

b. implement alternate transport system recommendations of
the Koloa-Poipu-Kukuiula Area Circulation Plan (KPACP}, including a Koloa-Poipu 
shuttle circulator system targeted to residents, visitors and employees. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant will implement the 
applicable KPACP recommendations once the Plan is approved by the County. 

4927-6746-6849, V. 1 (28219-1) 



Mr. Ka'aina S. Hull 
Director of Planning 
Planning Department 
September 8, 2025 
Page 8 

c. implement transportation demand management (TDM)
measures for employees which could potentially include ridesharing, transit services, 
and a transportation allowance. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant is currently reviewing 
and assessing the various TOM measures available. 

d. seek County authorization to refurbish and maintain the
existing comfort station located at the southeastern end of the Hoonani Road cul-de-sac. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. A copy of the Applicant's letter 
requesting the County's authorization is attached hereto as Exhibit "F" and made 
a part hereof by reference. 

e. develop and implement a demolition and new construction
materials recycling program, as reviewed and approved by the Department of Public 
Works, Solid Waste Division, and DOH. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant will submit a recycling 
program to the County for review and approval when it is completed. 

f. prepare a drainage report to address the increase in storm
runoff as a result of the development. A copy of the drainage report and grading plan 
approved by the Department of Public Works shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department. 

Filling of the property with material obtained from off­
premises shall not be permitted, except as may be necessary to comply with the site 
drainage and grading requirements as resolved with the Department of Public Works and 
Planning Department. This prohibition of exported fill material shall not apply to top soil 
used for landscaping purposes in accordance with the approved landscaped plans. 
Mass pad filling to increase the heights of the proposed structures shall not be permi

t

ted 
except as resolved with the Department of Public Works and Planning Department. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Grading Plans and Drainage 
Report for the property mauka of the railroad berm have been submitted to the 
County of Kauai, Public Works Department, Engineering Division for review. 

Grading plans have also been submitted for the Applicant's first phase of the 
timeshare conversion project and plans were approved. 
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g. provide building and architectural design, vehicular access,

view corridors, public access, color scheme, and landscaping as represented in the 
project application or as was amended during the course of the public hearings. Plans 
for each phase of the project shall be submitted for the review and approval of the 
Planning Director at time of building permit review. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant met with the Planning 
Director on May 8, 2008. A copy of the letter transmitted to the Planning Director 
is attached hereto as Exhibit "G" and made a part hereof by reference. Although 
the letter in Exhibit "G" references Condition 9, it also covers the requirements of 
this condition as well. 

h. work with the County Transportation Agency as to the
possible relocation of existing bus stops adjacent to the property and for the provision of 
roof improvements for said bus stops. 

Status: 

underground. 

Status: 

The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant has met with the 
County Transportation Agency and commenced discussions on this issue. 

i. place the Hoonani Road utilities serving the project

The Applicant acknowledges this condition. All work is complete. Plans were 
submitted in May 2018 and approved in July 2019. Construction is complete and 
the Kauai Island Utility Cooperative started the underground cabling work in 
June, 2021 and was completed in February, 2025. Charter Cable started their 
work in July, 2023 and work is complete. Hawaiian Telcom has completed their 
portion of underground work along Ho'onani Road. The last overhead lines along 
Ho'onani Road fronting Sheraton Kauai were moved earlier this year. The timing 
for undergrounding the utilities along Ho'onani Road is described in the attached 
letter to the County of Kauai, County Engineer and is attached hereto as 
Exhibit "H" and made a part hereof by reference. 

j. continue to use its best efforts to work with the County
Housing Agency in an effort to develop an agreement for participating in the provision of 
affordable housing for its employees as may be required by law. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant met with the County 
Housing Agency on August 9, 2007, April 10, 2008, and February 24, 2011, and 
continues to use its best efforts to work with the County Housing Agency to 
address this condition. 
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k. obtain information on the cultural resources of the area once
the project's Cultural Focus Group completes its report. Said report shall be provided, 
and as updated, to the Planning Department. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Cultural Report was updated 

and submitted to the Planning Department on May 29, 2008, as shown in the 
transmittal attached hereto as Exhibit "I" and made a part hereof by reference. 

I. develop a blasting plan for review and approval by the Public
Works and Planning Departments. Said blasting plan shall include public notice via 
newspaper, radio and hand delivered flyers to residents within 100 feet of the property, 
where notice is given at least 1 week in advance of the activity. Such notice shall include 
the date and time of the blasting, and a contact name and phone number. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant will submit a blasting 
plan to the County for review and approval when it is completed. 

m. follow the dust mitigation protocol established by the Dust
Hui during construction of the project. A current copy of said protocol shall be provided 
to the Department. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. A copy of the letter containing the 
current dust protocol was transmitted to the Planning Department, and is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "J" and made a part hereof by reference. 

n. the number of units remaining authorized by SMA (U)-96-9
and Z-IV-96-25 shall be reduced from 18 to 15. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The design and footprint of the 

subject building have been reduced from 18 to 15 units. 

Evidence of the implementation of these programs or the manner of 
addressing these issues shall be provided to the Department prior to building permit 
review. 

Status: The Applicant has met this condition. See the response to Item 5, above, for 
more detail on the status of the building permit applications. 
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9. In order to help screen the structure from public views as seen from
public areas, and to blend the structures with its surroundings, external colors shall be 
of earth tones, complementary to the existing Sheraton Kauai Resort buildings within the 
Makai Parcel and compatible with the surrounding natural background. In addition, the 
Applicant shall prepare a landscape plan to further soften the existing building mass.

The landscape plan shall reflect the use of native plants that are common to the area, 
endemic, indigenous, or Polynesian-introduced. The proposed color scheme and 

landscape plan shall be submitted to the Planning Department for review and approval 
prior to building permit review. 

In addition, the Applicant shall continue the landscape theme already 
established on the makai side of Poipu Road, and which the commission has required of 
the properties located along Poipu Road, while honoring the commitment to preserve the 
view corridors over this property and down Kapili Road as represented by the Applicant. 
Applicant shall consult with the Poipu Beach Resort Association regarding foliage along 

Poipu Road prior to Department review of the landscape design. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The color scheme will be "earth 
tone" colors as required by this condition. The specific colors will be provided at a 
later date. The landscape plan has been provided to the Planning Department, 

and a copy of the transmittal is attached hereto as Exhibit "K" and made a part 
hereof by reference. In addition, the Applicant met with the Poipu Beach Resort 

Association Board of Directors on May 8, 2008 to discuss landscaping along 
Poipu Road. 

10. If historic/cultural remains such as archaeological artifacts, charcoal
deposits or human burials are found during construction, the Applicant shall stop work 

in the immediate area, and shall contact the State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) 
at 742-7033, and the Planning Department, to determine appropriate action. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. A full-time archaeological monitor 

has been onsite during all grading activities. On March 29, 2018, an inadvertent 
discovery was found in sand that was excavated from an existing utility trench 
within the Garden Wing Building 7 corridor. Work was immediately halted, the 

area was fenced off, notification to the SHPD Burial Sites Specialist for Kauai 
was made, Kauai Police Department was notified and dispatched. On March 30, 
2018, the Burial Sites Specialist for SHPD and the Kauai Niihau Islands Burial 

Council member for the Koloa District conducted a site visit and recommended 
the inadvertent skeletal discovery be moved and the sand pile screened. During 
excavation along Ho'onani Road, inadvertent burials were discovered on 
November 21, 2019 and December 10, 2019. All burial remains were stored in a 
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locked and secured location on the property. On March 11, 2020, the burial 
remains were reinterred in an existing crypt located on the Sheraton Kauai 
Garden Wing. The archaeologist submitted the required data recovering and 

monitoring reports to SHPD on March 25, 2021. SHPD provided comments to 
the Monitoring Report in February 2022 and a revised Archaeological Monitoring 
Report was submitted in March 2022 and accepted and approved by SHPD on 
March 31, 2022. 

11. To the extent possible within the confines of union requirements
and applicable legal prohibitions against discrimination in employment, the Applicant 
shall seek to hire Kauai contractors as long as they are reasonably competitive with 
other contractors, and shall seek to employ residents of Kauai in temporary construction 
and permanent resort-related jobs. It is recognized that the Applicant may have to 
employ non-Kauai residents for particular skilled jobs where no qualified Kauai resident 

possesses such skills. For the purposes of this condition, the Commission shall relieve 
the Applicant of this requirement if the Applicant is subjected to anti-competitive 
restraints on trade or other monopolistic practices. 

accordingly. 
Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition, and will hire and contract 

12. The Applicant shall consider the application of Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) standards and strategies wherever feasible for 
sustainable site, utilities and building development. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition, and is assessing the feasibility of 
various sustainable elements. The Applicant has already contracted for irrigation 
of the mauka wing using R-1 treated effluent, and the service lateral has been 
installed. 

13. Approval of the subject permits is based on the revised conceptual
site plan dated 9/11/2007 developed by WCIT Architecture, which reflects: a view 
corridor from Poipu Road through the open motor court of the lobby building, the 
location of three 4-story parking structures, the location of the 3 and 4-story step-down 
structures along the perimeter, and reduction in units from 382 to 365 units. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition, and is proceeding with project 
design, accordingly. 
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required to: 

14. As recommended by the Water Department, applicant shall be

a. Submit a formal request for water service to the DOW for our
review and approval. Include detailed water demand (both domestic and irrigation) 
calculations along with the proposed water meter size. Identify whether water demands 
will be from new or existing water meter(s). Water demand calculations submitted by 
your engineer or architect should also include fixture count and water meter sizing 
worksheets. This shall be done for both the new development and the renovation 
developments. The Department's comments may change depending on the approved 

water demand calculations. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Applicant submitted its formal 
request for water meters on May 7, 2008, and its formal request for all other 
water services on May 21, 2008. The Applicant received conditional approvals 
from DOW on July 29, 2008. The Applicant continues to work with the DOW to 
ensure their SMA conditions are met and to expedite their review of the 

Building Permits. 

b. Prepare and receive DOW's approval of construction

drawings for the necessary water system facilities and construct said facilities. These 
facilities shall include but not be limited to: 

1. Additional source and storage facilities.

2. The domestic service connections.

3. The fire service connections, if applicable.

4. The interior plumbing plans with the appropriate
backflow prevention device. 

5. A 12 inch main extension, approximately 1,200 ft. in
length along Kapili Road connecting to the 12 inch main along Poipu and Ho'onani 
Roads. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. With reference to item 14.b.5 above, 
construction of the 12 inch main extension is complete and has been dedicated 
to the County. With reference to Item 14.b.2 above, utility laterals for water have 
been installed under Kapili Road for future service to the project site. 
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c. Pay the applicable charges in effect at the time of payment to
the Department. At the present time these charges shall include but not be limited to the 
Facilities Reserve Charge (FRC) $4,600 per unit of the FRC amount as determined by the 
approved water meter size; whichever amount is greater. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition, and will pay the applicable charges, 
accordingly. 

The Applicant is made aware that applicable FRC liability shall be 
offset by up to 33% each where water source or water storage improvements are 
constructed and up to 50% where transmission mains are constructed; provided that the 
total amount of all offsets shall not exceed 100% of the applicant's FRC liability, and 
provided further that the offset for any source or storage improvements or transmission 
main shall not exceed the actual cost of the source or storage improvement or 
transmission main. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 

d. Receive a "Certification of Completion" for the construction
of the necessary water system facilities from the DOW. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 

15. The Applicant shall comply with the requirements and
recommendations of applicable County, State and Federal Agencies, including the 
County Fire, Engineering and Building Divisions of the Department of Public Works, and 
the State Department of Health, State Department of Transportation-Highways Division. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. With respect to the issue of sewer 
improvements, the Applicant has contributed approximately $265,000.00 for the 
purpose of upgrading the existing private sewer system to fully service the 
project. 

16. As recommended by the State Department of Land and Natural
Resources, Historic Preservation Division: 

a. An approved preservation plan for site 947 (railroad berm)
which includes interpretation (short and long term measures) and breaching and 
restoration plans must be submitted to the State Historic Preservation Division for review 
and approval. 
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Status: The Applicant has complied with this condition. The Applicant submitted the 
required Data Recovery Plan to the State Historic Preservation Division 
("SHPD"), and such plan was accepted and approved by SHPD on June 19, 
2007 as evidenced by the communication attached hereto as Exhibit "L" and 
made a part hereof by reference. 

b. Data recovery of Site 362 shall be completed as agreed to in
the approved data recovery plan and an approved report on this work be submitted to the 
State Historic Preservation Division prior to the start of construction, and 

Status: The Applicant has complied with this condition. The Applicant submitted the 
required Preservation Plan to SHPD, and such plan was accepted and approved 
by SHPD on July 9, 2007 as evidenced by the communication attached hereto as 
Exhibit "M" and made a part hereof by reference. 

c. A qualified archaeologist shall be on the project area for all
ground disturbing activities and perform work as outlined in the approved archaeological 
monitoring plan. An approved report on this work shall be submitted to the State 
Historic Preservation Division once the monitoring work is completed. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. The Cultural Surveys Hawaii ("CSH") 
monitoring plan was approved by SHPD on January 2, 2018 and CSH has 
provided the necessary monitoring. 

17. The Applicant shall conform to the anticipated Koloa-Poipu Area
Circulation Plan process and will pay, immediately prior to issuance of the first building 
permit for the project, the voluntary fair share contributions (VFSC), unless the impact 
fee has been identified in an Ordinance by that time, in which case it shall pay the impact 
fee. In the event the VFSC is paid, the final fee amount shall be in lieu of the impact fee 
in the anticipated ordinance. The Applicant shall work out the engineering details of the 
project access onto Poipu Road, Kapili Road and Ho 'onani Road, and the mauka-makai 
connection road between Poipu Road and Ho 'onani Road with the Department of Public 
Works. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition, and will pay the voluntary fair share 
contribution or impact fee, accordinglY.. 
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18. The Planning Commission reserves the authority to impose
additional conditions, modify or delete conditions stated herein, or revoke the subject 
permits through proper procedures should the Applicant fail to comply with the 
conditions of approval, or should unforeseen circumstances occur or result. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 

19. Should the Applicant be unable to comply with the development

time line in condition #5 above and request an extension of time, applicant is advised 
that any new laws, ordinances, or regulations that have been implemented within this 
time frame may become applicable to the project. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 

20. In view of the various conditions and recommendations imposed by

the various government agencies as referenced to herein, building permit application or 
preconstruction work for any phase of the project or portion of the property shall not be 
accepted until the Applicant submits a status report of all permit conditions that are 
either required to be complied with prior to or at time of building permit application. 

Status: The Applicant has complied with this condition. Seventeen Annual Status 
Reports were filed with the Planning Department on June 2, 2008, September 4, 
2009, September 10, 2010, September 8, 2011, September 7, 2012, 
September 9, 2013, September 9, 2014, September 9, 2015, September 9, 2016, 
September 8, 2017, September 7, 2018, September 6, 2019, September 4, 2020, 
September 2, 2021, September 8, 2022, September 7, 2023, and September 6, 
2024, respectively. The Applicant submitted building permit applications for the 
project beginning on June 2, 2008, and thereafter as explained more fully in the 
response to Item 5, above. 

21. The Applicant is advised that prior to and/or during construction and
use, additional government agency conditions may be imposed. It shall be the 
Applicant's responsibility to resolve those conditions with the respective agency(ies). 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 
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22. As an accessory use, the establishment of a rock crusher operation
on site shall be subject to review and approval of the Planning Director. Such use shall 
not be permitted unless it can be assured that the resultant dust and noise can be 

properly and adequately addressed. If such cannot be assured, such activity shall occur 
at an alternate site where such impacts to abutting residential uses will not occur. 

Status: The Applicant acknowledges this condition. 

I believe that the foregoing 2025 Eighteenth Annual Status Report adequately 
responds to Condition 4 of the Planning Commission approval of the aforementioned 
development permits for this Project. In the event you are in need of any additional information 

or clarification regarding the documents, please feel free to contact me at any time. 

Thank you very much for your cooperation and assistance in this matter. 

Sincerely yours, 

BELLES GRAHAM LLP 

�-,.,-----.. 

Michael J. Belles 

MJB:jgm 
Enclo.sures 
cc: Mr. Scott McFarlane, w/encls. (via email only) 

Mr. Aaron Geer, w/encls. (via email only) 
Mr. Carlos Rivera, w/encls. (via email only) 
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Exhibit "A" 

Exhibit "B" 

Exhibit "C" 

Exhibit "D" 

Exhibit "E" 

Exhibit "F" 

Exhibit "G" 

Exhibit "H" 

Exhibit "I" 

Exhibit "J" 

Exhibit "K" 

Exhibit "L" 

Exhibit "M" 

LISTING OF EXHIBITS 

Copy of permit approval letter from the County of Kauai, dated 
October 10, 2007 

Copy of the Memorandum of Special Management Area Use Permit SMA 
(U)-2007-13, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25, and Class 
IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2007-29, dated May 5, 2008 

Copy of letter confirming the Planning Department's definition of 
"Full Approval", signed and approved by Ian Costa June 27, 2008 

Copy of the Declaration of Public Facilities Easements, dated May 23, 
2008 

Copy of Kauai Civil Defense Agency's letter regarding the hurricane 
emergency shelter 

Copy of letter requesting the County's authorization to refurbish and 
maintain the existing comfort station located at the southeastern end of 
the Hoonani Road cul-de-sac 

Copy of letter to the Planning Director regarding landscaping and color 
schemes for structures in accordance with Condition 9 of the SMA Permit 

Copy of letter addressed to the County Engineer, County of Kauai, 
describing the timing for undergrounding the utilities along Ho'onani Road 

Copy of transmittal of Cultural Focus Group Report dated 5-29-08 from 
Greg Kamm Planning & Management to Planning Department 

Copy of Dust Mitigation Protocol transmitted to the Planning Department 

Copy of transmittal letter providing the landscape plan to the Planning 
Department 

Copy of a letter dated June 19, 2007 from the State Historic Preservation 
Division ("SHPD") accepting the required preservation plan for Site 947 

Copy of a letter dated July 9, 2007 from the State Historic Preservation 
Division ("SHPD") approving the data recovery plan submitted for 
Site 362 
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BRYAN J, BAPTISTE 
MAYOR 

, GARY I<. HEU 
AOMJNISTRATIVEAS61STANr 

Octob�r 1 O, 2007 

Michael J. Belles 

COUNTY OF KAUA'! 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
◄1-4-4 Rice STREET'

KAPULE BUii.DiNG, SUITE M73 
UHU'E, t<AUA'I, H.\WAl'I 96766-1326 

TEL (GOB) 2◄ Hi677 FAX (DOB) 2, l-6699 

Bolles Graham.l'roudfoot & Wilson,_LLP 
4334 Rico Street, Suite202 
L'ibu.'c, Hawai'i 96766. 

Subject Special Management Arca Use Permit SMA(U)-2007-13 
Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25 
Class N furing Permit Z-IV-2007-29 
SVO Pacific, Inc., applicant 
Tax Map Key 2-8-15: 43

1
44 & 82

1 
and 2-8-16: 3 &4 

Dear Michaol: 

IANK,COSTA 
DJ RECTOR OF PLJ.NfllliG 

IMAIKALANI P, Alu 
DEPUn' DJREC'JOR OF �IIICl 

B8.1.ES. GR.Al-{/1.M 
P-R'JL'DFOOT & WILSON, LLP 

The Planning Commission, 11t its meeting held on October 10
1 
2007.·, amended and approved the 

subjectpcani!s•to develop a tiine share tesortproject within the existing Sheraton Kaua'i Resort 
• in Koloa. • Of the existing 413 hotel rooms with.in the hpte� 227 hotel rooms and all other 

existing improvcmca.1s within tl:10 Garden Wrog parcel will be demolished and the parcel will bD 
consolidated with the adjac.cnt3 parcels. A time share di:velopmcnt con.sisting'of382 one, two
�d-thrce bedroom condo Ulllls lllld assqciated EillCDities, 948 patlong stellJJ, and typical resort
access uses will' bo provided.· The n;mainlng l 86 hotel units within the Ocean Wing parcel will
remain: a:s hote-1-rooms. Improvements and renovations will occur also. A previously approved
18 unit wing was volun!arilyreduced to 15 Ulllfs, Tho proposed development will also include a

.. • new 110ocss road with a public sidewalk and bilccway, and the undergrounding of 6Xisting 
• overhead ;utility lines along.the mauka sido ofHoODani Road will occur. Approval is subject to 

the following ��ditions: •

1. In order to .minimize.adverse impaclll on Federally Listed Threatened Species, such as 
Newell's SJ:iearwatcr and other seabirds, if axtemal lighting is to bo used in
conne1:tion with.the proposed projoo� all elCUlillal lighting sbaU be only of the
following types: shielded lights, cut-off luminaries, or indirect lighting, Spotlights

. aimed upwtird·or spotlighting of structures, landscaping, slgnage or hotel features
within tho projeot Bib) shall be prohibit:ed. 



2. In accordance with Section 9-2,8 of the Kauai County Codo, 1987, tho:req_uircincnt
of tho Park Dedication ln-Lieu Feo is applicable to this project, relating to ''Parlo; and
Playgrounds" arc ,applicable to-tho project anrl'shall be resolved at the time of
building pennit approval. Also, in accordanco with Section 1 IA-2.2 of the KCC, tlie
Applicant shall submit to the Plwning Departmtmt an Environmental Impact
Assessment Fees (BIA) for tho project. Tho BIA foes are based on $1,000 per new
multi-family unit, and. $100 per the minimum nmnber of paclclng sialls serving the
commercial development components as required by County Codo Section 1 lA-2.2:
Both of theso fees are duo at time of first building pemrit approval.

3. Applicant shall record all of the conditions imposed under the subject permits with 
the dccd(s) to the properl;ies of the resort project A coPY of this recordation shall be 
provided to the Planning Department at ti.mo of building P.CIJPit applioaticm.-

4. Applicant &hall .]!IOvido lllllI1lltl struus reports to the Ple:nning Coi;nmission beginning
from one year from the date of this approval, The reporla shall be submitted to tho
Department no later than 30 days prior to tho annual annivc::raary dato of approval pf
this project. The report shall provide projectstatns amfprogn::ss towards projeci: • • 
completion and compliance with conditiolll! of eppro-val. Annu.al reports. shall be . ,
pro-vided m:rtil completion. of the project, and compliance with all condiliona of
approval.

S. Applicant shall subsl:m:rtially comm.en co construction of tho project dcvclCJpJD.e.nt
within one (1) year from tho dato of full approval, and shall complete i;onstruction of
the project devolopmcmtwithin. 5 years from tho date of approval of the subject
permits.

6. Subject permits approved herein cBDI1ot be sold and are not transferable to other th.an .
Applicimt, its subsidiaries and affiliated coxpotatioos and legal entities prior to tho
completion of tho project and issuance of the occupancy permit

7. In accordance with Section 8-5,5 of the Kauai Connty Code, 1987, tho Applicant .
shall provide a grant of casc:ment fur all non-leasehold public areas, such ;µi. b.each
parking, mnlti-use access ps.thS, shower e.nd bench area, cultural/historical p_reserves
Blld sites, and lamral coastal multi-\lsc beach. walk. Said easement do�ont shill
also bo xecorded, with a recorded copypro-vided to the Plamrlng Department at time
nfbuildiog permit r�cw. All 8\ICh public areas shall bl) adoquatoly aigned. Tho 42
publio parking stalls shall also be signed, with roch signage managed and maiDtmned
by th� Applicant to ensure that �ployees md/or guests shall not bo utilizing =b.
parlcing areas. For any leasehold property owned by the applicant such properly shall
be co1IVeyed to the County only for the dn:mtion of tho leasohol� interest as may bo
approved by tho :Planning D cpam:nent
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Language and signa.go desigu shall be subject to Planning Dcpartrnent review and 
approval. 

8. As represented, tho Applicant shall:

a. design the Lobby building within tho Manka Parcel to also function as a
hurricane emergency shelter for the project's rcsidcmlll, guests nnd key
employees. Said design shill be as reviewed and approved. by th(? County Civil
Defense agency. The Applicant shall also maintain its current bus evacuation
plan to accommodate guests who may prefer to evacuate the site during
impending hurrioane situations.

b, implement altmnaio transport system recommendations oftbe Koloa-Poipu­
. KDkuiula Arca Circulatitin Plan (KPACP), including a Ko]oa-Poipu shuttle 
circulator system targcu:d to residents, visitors and employees. 

c. • im_plemcnt transportation dc!IlBDcl management (TDM)'mcasutes for c;mployecs
.which. could potentially include rideshHiing, tran&it sm:ioes, m1d a transpor!Htian

• allowance.

d. • seek County authorization to n:furbish l!lld maintain the existing comfort station
located at the southeastern end of the Hoonani Road cul-de-sac

• e; davelop and implement a dc:molition andru,w cOIJsl:I'ucl:ion 1'Ultm:ials recycling
program, ns-teviewcd and approved by the Deprotmcut of Publfo Works, Solid 
Wasto Division, BlldDOH. 

f. prepare a drain.ago report to address the increase in &torm runoff as a result of the
development. A copy of the drainage report md grading plan approved by the 
Dcpartr,nent of Public Works shall be submitted to the Planning Department.

. Filling or the property with material obtained from off-premisen shall not be
pc:nnitted, except as may I» necessary to cmnply with the site d:ramage and

' grading require:menl:s as resolved with tho Depamnent of Public Works and
Planning Dopartmenl This prohibition of cxported:fill material shall uot apply to 
top soil used for landscaping pmposcs in accordmco with the app4roved 
landscaped plaDs. Mass pad filling to inorcasc the bcigh!E of tho proposed 
structures shall not be permitted e:,;:copt es resolved with tho Deparlrnent of Public 
W orhl and Planning Depar1ment. 

g. provide building and architectural design, vehioular access, view ocm:idors, public
access, color scheme, and landscaping as represeotod in. the project application or 
as was amended during the course of tho public hearings. Plans for eaoh phase of 
th.e project shall be subntltted for th.c roviCW" md approval of the Planning
Director at funo of building permit umew.
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h. work. with. the County Tra.osportntion Agency as to the possible relocation of
ex.isling bus stops adjacent to the property and for the provision of roof
improvermmts for said bus stops.

i. place the Boonani Road utilities sarving the project undcrgwund,

j. centinue to use its best efforts to work with the County Holl5ing Agency in llil
effort to develop an agreement for participating in the provision of. afford.ab lo
housing for its employees as may ho required by law,

k. o bta.in information on tho culblml rei;ources of the area once the project's Cultural
Focus Group completes its report. Said report shall be provide� and as updated,
to the Planning Departmcnl

L develop a blasting plan forrc-vic:w and approval by tho Public Works.and 
Planning Departments. Said blasting-plan shall includo public notice via 
newspaper, radio and hand delivered flyers to residents within 1000 'feet offue • 
property, wh.cre notice is givcu at least 1 week in advance of the of the activity. 
Such notico sh.all inoludo tho date and ti.ml) of the b!RSlmg, and a contact name 
and phone-number. 

m. follow tho dust mitigation protocol established by tho DU6t Hui during
construction of tbo project. A current copy of said protocol shall be pravidcd to
tho Department.

n. tho number of uni.ti remaining authorized by SMA(U)-96-9 an.d Z-IV-96-25 shall
be reduced.from 18 lo 15.

Evidence of tho implementation ofthtlic programs c:,r the manner of addressing these 
issues shall be provided to the Dcpa:rtmc:o.t prior to building petmit rcviiiw. 

9. In order to· help screen the stroctllres :from public viowa as seen from public areas,
l!Ild to·blend the stnrctures with its SUirOundings, cxtc.mal colors shall be of earth.
tones, compltmentacy to tho existing Sheraton Kauai Resort buildings ·within tho
Makai Par,;:ol and compatible with the surrcrunding natural background. In addition,
tho Applicl!Ilt shall preparc a landscape plan to further soften tho existing building
mass. The JandsC8Jlo plan shell reflect the uso ofnatiVfl plants that arc common to
the area, .endcmio, indigenous, or Polynesian-introduced. Tho proposed oolor
scheme and landscape plan shall bo submitted to the Planning Department for rcviow •
end approval prior lo building permit r6View,

In addition, the Applicant shall continue tho landso!!pe th.em6 already establisherl:on
the makai side of Poipu Road, and which the Commission has required of other
properties locaicd along I'oipu Road, whilo honoring the commitment to preserve tho
'VleW corridors ayer this prop� !llld down Kaplli Road as represented by the·
Applicant Applicant shall consult with the Pofpu Bcaoh Resort A.ssooiation
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regarding foliage along Poi'pii Road, prior to Department review of the lendsonping 
plan. 

10. Ifhistoric/cnltnral remains lilleh as archaeological artifacts, charcoal deposits or,
humm burials l!Ie-fonnd during construction, tho Applicant shaU stop work in the

• lmmediat.e area, and shall contact the State Iristoric Preservation Division (SHPD) at
742�7033, .and the Planning Dcpartmcot, to dctennine appropriate action.

11. To the extent possible within tho confines of union req_uirumexrts and applicable legal
prohibitions against discnminaiion in employment, the .Applioant shall seek to hire
IC.au;µ contractors as long as they aro qualified and reasonably competitive with other
c9otractors, and sball seek to employ residents ofK/l.uai m temporary construction
and permi!Ilcni resort-related jobs, It is recognized. that the Applicant may have to 
employ non- Kauai residents for particular skilled jobs where no qualified Kauai 
resident possesses -such skills. For the purposes of this condition., the Commission
shall relievo the Applicant of this requirement if the Applicant is subjccfud to anti­
competitive restraints on trade or other monopolistic practices.

12. ThcAppli<;ant shall considi::r the application ofLeadership in Energy and
Enviromru:nbtl Design (LEED) and green bnllding council principles, &tand.ards- and
strategies wherever feasible for sl!S'!ainable site, utilities and building dc:veJopment

• 13. Approval of the subjectpemuts is based on 1ho revised conceptual site plllll dated
9/11/2007 d.ovcloped by WCIT Architecture, which roflec1s: a view corridor from 
Poipu Road ibrongh the open motor court of the lobby building, the location oftlrrce 
4-story parking siructures, the location of tlw 3 and 4-sl:ory step-down �1ructures
along tho pt:rllllLter, and reduction in units from 382 to 365 units. 

14. All recommended by the Water Department, upplicant shall be required tn: 
a. Submit a fonnal request fonvater servioo to the DOW for ourn:view and

approval. Jncludo detailed water denumd (both domestic and irrigation)
calculations along with tho proposed watermeter size. Identify whether water
demands will be from new or existing water meter(s). Water demand
calculations submitted by your engineer or atehltcct should also include fixturo
count and water meter sizing worksheets. This shall be dono for both the mm
development and tho renovation developme;nts. The Department's comments
may cbango depending on the approved water demand calculations.

b. Prepare and receive DOW's apprcrval of construction drawmga for tho necessary
water S')'stcm facilities and construct said facilities. Those facilities shall
include but not bo limited to:
1. Adclitionl!l source and stongo f.aoilities
2. The domestic sorvice connections.
3. Tho fire service conneotions, if applicable.
4. The interior plumping plans with the appropriate back:flow prevention

dovice.
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.5, A 12 inch main 'tlxlcnsion, approximately 1,200 ft in fongth along Kapili 
Road connecting to the 12 inch main along Poipu and Boonani Roads. 

c. Pay the applicable charges in effect .at the time of payment to the Department.
At the present time these charges ruuill include but not be limited to the
Fwilities Reserve Charge (FRC) $4-,600 per unit or.the FRC amount as

• determined by the approved water meter sizo; which�cr amount is greater_

The applicant is made aware that applicable FRC liability shall bo offset by up
to 33% each where water source or water storage improvements ate conslru.cted
and up to 50% where transmission mains are conslructcd; provided_tbat fue total
amount of all offuels sh.all not exceed 100% of the applicant's FRC liability, Md

. • . provided finiher that the offset for any sourco or storage improvements or 
. •• •• 1ransmission ma.in shall not exceed· the actual cost of the source or storage 

improvement or tran61Illssion main. 

d. Reccivo a: "Cortification of Completion'' for tho construction of the necessary
water system fuoilities from the DOW.

• 15. The·Applicant shall comply with fuo requiremeota andrecommendations of
• applicable County1 Stato anc! Federal Agc:ncies, including the County Fire,

'Engm.eering,lllld·Buildiog Divisions of the Department ofPublic W orb, a:nd the
State 'Department of Health, State Department of'I'nmsportation-Highways
Dm!iion.

f 6. As I"OOOlI!IIlCllded by the State Department of Land and Natural Resources, Historic 
Preservation Division: 

a. An approved preser;ration plan for site 947 (railroad berm) which includes
.intcrpretition (short and long term mea�-un:s) and breaching and restoration

. • plans must bo submitted to the State Historic Preservation Division for roview 
and approval 

b. • -llita:rccovory ofSiw 362 shall be completed as agreed to in the approved data
reco-v-e:ry plan and an approved report on tlili: work. bo snbmittcd·to the State

'Historic Pres!lITalion Division prior to the start of constructiqn, md
·c. ' A qualificd·archacologist 6hall be on the project area for aU ground disturbing

activities and perform work as outlined in the IIPPtOVed archaeological 
monitoring plan. An approved report on this won: shall be submitted to the 
State B.istorlc Jlccservation Division once the monitoring work is completed. 

17. 'The Applicant shall conform to the anticipated Koloa-Poipu .AJ:ea Circulation Plan
pro_cess end will pay, immediately prior to issuance of tho � building pc.rmit for
tho project, the vohmtmy fair sbare contributions (VFSC), unloss the impactfeo has
"been identified iu an Ordhumco by:that time, in which case it shall pay the impact
fee. In 'the oven.t tho Y.FSC is paid, tho final fee amount shall be in lieu of the impact
feo in tho imticipated ordine:nce, The applicant shall work out the engineering
details of .!ho projei,t access onto Poipu Road, Kapili Road and Hoonani Road, and 
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the mauka-makai connection road between Poipu Road and Hoonani Road with the 
Department of Public Worxs. 

18. The Planning Commission reserves the authority to impo&e additional conditions,
modify or delete conditions stated bC[llln, or i:cvoke tho subject pemtlts through

. propet procedures should Ibo Applicant fail to comply with the conditions of
approva� or should unfureseen circumstances occur or result.

19, Should .tho applicant be unable to comply with the de:velopmc:nt time line in 
condition #5 above and request an extension of time, applicant is advised that any 

. new, laws, ordinnnces, or rogulatiow: that have been implemented within this time 
frame may become applicable \o the project. 

20. In viaw oftbo various conditions and recommendations iinposcd by the various
government agencies as referenced to heroin, lruilding permit application or
precoo.struction work for aJ:JY phaso of tho project or portion of the �erty shall not
be accepted until tho Applicant submits a status report of !tll permit conditions that

• are ei�cr required to be complied with prior to or at timo of building pe[7:nit
applicatlon.

21. Tu Applicant:is ady.ised that prior to ancl/or during construction and use, additional
ga;temment agenoy conditions may be imposed. rt ah all bo the Applicant's
responsibility to resolve those con�tions with thcrespcctiva egc:nay(ic:s),

22. ·ru an accessory use, the establishment of a rock crosher operation on site sha.11 be
subject ta review and approval of the Planning-Din:ctor. Such use shall not be
.permittod unless it can bo assured that the resultant dust and noise can be properly
a:nd adcqnatcly addrcSS<::d. If such cannQt be assured, such activity shall occur at
an alb:mate site where such impacts to abutting residential uses will not occur.

Should there be anJ questions regarding th� above, please contact planner MichMl Lauri:ta at 
808- 1-6690. 

� 

COST� 
Plem:tlng Director 

cc: . DPW Bnginec;rlng Div, 
Water Dept. 
State HcalthDept. 
DLNR--llistoric Presem.tion Div. 
Fire Dept. 
Fl.nmco Dept.,..Real Property Div. 
POTHwys 

End of Exhibi.t "A" 
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EXHIBIT ''B '' 



:20 1/1 Z11 

L-63 STATE OF HA.WAIi 
OFFICJ:: Of ASSISTANT REGISTRAR 

JU:CORDED 
JUN 02, 2008 08:01 Af., 

boc No{s) 3754224 
on �SJ As LISTED HEREIN 

Is/ CARL T. WA'l'ANABE 
ASSISTANT REGISTRAR 

Land Courts· 
.Af\:a Rccordation. R.etum By Mail D Or Picknp 

INO Pacific, Inc. 
8803 V-JStana.CenfreDtivo, Suite 360 
Orlando, FL 32821 
Attn! Bo (.Rouselle) Sutton. Esq. 

Title of DoC1.lIIlCilr. 

Pm:ties To Do� 

(I'otal.Pages; a) 
:MEMORANDUM OF SPECIALM.ANAG£MENT AREA USE 
:e.ERMIT SMA. (0)·2007-13, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT USE 
PERMIT PDU-2001-25, AND CLASS IV ZONING :PER.MIT '.lr 
IV-l007-29

KAUAI BLUE, INC., a.Dclawaro ccnporation 
SVO PACIFIC, JNC., aFJ.orida corporation 

Tax.Map KeyNos.: (4)'2-8-015:043, 044, an.d 082 
(4) 2-8-016:004

TCTNos.: 687,179i 797.,563; 797,564 

TBIS MEMORANDUM.OF SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE );'ER.MIT 'SMA 
(U)-2007-13, PROJECT DEVELOPMENT USE PERMIT PDU-2007� AND �S IV 
W�G PERMIT Z-IV-2007-29 ("Memorandum'� is mado as of � , 
ZOO by KAUAI BLUE, ll{C., a. Delaware ccnporati.on (''Klrnai BJne½: SVO PACIFIC,· 
IN ., a Florida corponrlion (''SVOP';. 

181960.1 
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WBEREAS, Xinutl Blut> jg tho feo oWiim: of the land descn'bed jn Xtem 1 of Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto Hlld incorporatod. herein; 

WHEREAS, �OP is 'the fee owner of the lands d.escooed in licms 2 and 3 of said 
Bxhioit "A" {ltetns 1, 2 and 3 ofExhibit "A" arerefen:ed to collectively as ibe ''Real Pto-perty"); 

'WEBRBAS, on Ootobet 10, 2007, the K.anai.PJ.mming Commission (the "Cotntnission") 
approved Special Management Atea Use Permit SMA (U)-2007-13, Project Development Use 
:Permit PDU-2007-25, and-Class W Zoning Peanit Z-IV-2007-29 (cell.ectively, tho ''Petnn1B'�, 
which Permrlll relate to and authorize the development of a resort, timeiliinv project on the :Recd 
Property; 

WBERBAS, the Conmrission's approval oftb.e Permits is memorialized in th.at certain. 
letter daled 9ctober 10, W07, from Kauai Planning Dhector I.en Costa to Michael :r. Belles, Esq., 
a tme copy of which is atta.cbed hcm:o as Exhibit ''B'' (the "Permit Approval Letter'); 

WHEREAs, condition: no. 3 of the l>c:r.mit Approval Letter provides· that "[ ajpplican.t 
shall record all of. the conditions imposc:d. under the subject pcnnits with tho c:Ieed(s) tn the 
prQperti.es ofthorosortproject''; and 

WHEREAS, Kauai Blue and SVOP desire to record this Mflln.orandntn against the Real· 
Property to give notice of ilw approval of the Permits and the conditions tlteroto as memorializod 
in the J>ennitApproval Letter and as reqnired by condition.no. 3 thc.reof, 

NOW, TIIBREFORE, in consideration ofiho foregoing Recitals, Kanai Blue and SVOP 
hereby give notice of th6 approval of the Permit� and the conditiOllS thereto a11 mcmorlali.zed in 
the Pemri.t Approyal Letter, 

lN WJTNESS WBERBOF� Kanai Blue and SVOP ba:ve 0acb.'C<U1Sed this M8lllOl:aD.dntn 
to bo executed and delivered. by a duly a:ulhorl.zed. officer or represCD.tnti.vo, 
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STATE OF 'FlcwM ) 
) ss. 

COUNrY OF Ql/li:{,E- ) 

.
J On � 5-IA day of d(l. v > 2oaL before me appeared 

Yr 'li dl1'A- ¢/, (!� to nie :pe.mamtlly known. to bo tho person d.escnoed in. 
and who e-1:ecutod the :foregoing instrument and acknowledged that;ho �ecuted the same in tho 
capacity staled herein as.hlf; fie<> act and deed. 

h!t-

111960.l 

Nsme: MM-1111 J�� 
Notary Puhlio, State 'of Ji /Ht 

My colllillissi.on expires: • s)r./;o 



COUNTY OF GU1/J(pf:_ 

) 
) ss.
) 

On. 1fl\e 51-J.. thy of n&--y , 200:t, before mo appeared 
'Oc-M l' t1 ,;,/, 'f!iiit.,1!!_ , to mo pcrsonslly known to be the persOD. described In 

and who executed tho foregoing :instrument and acknowled�(i fuat�o executed the samo in tho 
capacity stated.herein as-lrlil free act and deed, 

/\l,t... 

�JM.tL-1d� 
Name: ./{olt..folA • :J,'c.ht. 
NotaryPublic, Stllteof /¼,.u!ilf: 

My commission otpires: o)r,/ta. 



Item 1:

EXBlBlT "A"

lIBAL'.PROPER.TY

All of thnt certain parcel of land si• at Xoloa, Diam.ct ofXoloa, Toll\D.d and CoUIIty ofKaulcl,
�ta.to ofHawaii,. descn'bed as follows: 

LOT '267, area 10,730 acres, moro or less, as shown on Map 67, filed in the Office of the
Assistani Regigtrnr of the Land Court of tho State of Hiiwaii wifu Land Court Application No.
956 of:Sishap Trust Company, Limited, Trustee fur Eric A. andAngostus F. Knudsen;

Being the lruid(s) desco'bed in Tnmsfer Certificate of'ritlc No. 687,Y}9 issued to :KAUAI BLUE,
lNC,, a Dehwl!l:e corporation. / 

• Item2:

A11 of that certain parcel of land situate at Koloa, Jsllmd. and County of Kauai, State of Hawaii.
desm:ibed as fullows: .. 

LOT 2l'T..C, area 9,718 acres, more or'les!¼ as shown on MIIP 71, filed in tho Offi� of fhe
Assi&taot Registrar of the Lmid Court of the Sta:te ofHaw.tli with Land Court .Application No.
956 of Bishop Troat Company, Llmited, Trostei, fur Eric A. and.Augustus F, Knudsen;

:Being laod(a) d.esoribed m Tnmsfor C(.tlificatc of Title No. 797 :3/5°3 issued 1o SVO PACIFIC,
lNC., a Florida corporaticn. 

/

Itcm.3:

-FIRS't;-

All of that certain parcel of land silnato at Koloa, Island and County of K1lllai, State of Hawaii,
descn'bed as fullows: 

WT 89, area 20,000 �qu.aro feet,' more or less, as shown on ¥ap 1 &, :filed in tho Office of the
Assistant Registrar of the Lsnd Court of the State of Hawaii with Land Court Appllcation No.
956 ofBishOp Trost Company, Limited, Trustee for Brio A. and Augustus F. Xm:tds�

Together wilh a means of ingress end egress to and from a public highw!I)' av� ll:Ud across Lots
162 and. 163 as shown on Map 18, elld Lot 202 as shown. on Map 27, of said Land Court
Appl.ication No, 956, (Roadmya) as set forth by Land Court Ordor No. 984-0, filed September
22, 1950, and Land Court Order No. 20122, filed Jmo 1, 1962. 
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--sECOND;-

All of that cQUUD. parcel of land situate at K.oloa, Tulsnd and County of Kauai, State of Hawaii,
described ag follows: 

LOT 881 area. 20,000 square fee� more or les� as shown on Map 18, filed in thci Office of the
.Assistrurt Registrat of the Land Court of thei Stat.e offfitwaii with. Lan.d Court Application No.
956 of Bishop Tl'llflt Company, Limited, 'I'rusteo for Eric A. and .An,gustus F. Knudsen.

Together with a means of ingress and egress to and from a public highway over nnd ·acro.s_s Lots
!62 and i63 as shown. on Map 18, i!Ild Lot 202 !IS shown on M.np 27, of said Land Court
.Application No, 956, (Roadways) as set fucth by Land Court Order No. 984-0, filed Septmnber
22, 1950, and Land Court Order No. 20122, :lileid Jui:i.e 1, 1962. 

-Being lands described in Transfer Certificate of.Title No. 797,5, issued to SVO PAC1FIC.
INC

., 
a Flarida corporation. . 7 ' 

En.d. ofE:xlu'bil "K
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BRYAN J, B°APTIS'ffi 
ldAYOR 

GAAYK.Hru 
AOMQIJSllW1\12ASS161'A'il"

October 10, 2007 

Michael J. Belles 

COUNTY OF KAUA'! 
Pl.ANNING DSJARTMENT

44# RJCE SlREl:l' l(APUl.EllUIUllNG. SUITE � 
UHIJ'E. t<A\JA1, Hi6-WAl1 0lJTM-1326

Ta (80'.l) 24-1-<mT FAX (BOS_) 241-0599 

Belles (haham. Proudfoot & Wilson, LLP 
4334 Ri� Street. Suire 202 
Lihu1e,.He:wal.'l 967{j6 

TAflK.COSTA
DIRECTORO; f'Wlll!llG

IMAIKAI.Al4t F. AIU 
O!:l'l!TYDll!3m)ROl'l'IA)mJNG 

68..U:S GRAHAM 
PROUDr-oora WILSON, U.P 

• • • • • I • • t • l"' .. •- • • 

The Planning Cotnmission, at ilS meeting he1d Oil Octobt:r 10, 2007� amattdco. and apptoY'?(i the 
subj� permits to devdop a time shs.rc rdSortproject withbt tho existing Sheraton x.aua•t Rl.'lort 
in I<.oloa. Of the eocisting 413 bQte1 r0c,ros withln tho ho�l, 12,7 hoj:el rooms and all other 
o;,;isting itnpro-veJnents within fue Garden Wmg parcel will bo <lemo)lshed end the pnr¢el will bo 
cansoll� wlth the adjl!Cett 3 parcels. A QlI10 sbaro clm:1opmQ!lt con.mtingof382 on.o, two 
md threobed.(omn ¢ondo UIXits and nssociated amOJ)it:ies, 9.48 parking BtalJs, 11I1d fypfca1.xe�ort 
aocess uses will be provided. The rernaicing J.86.botel units wl.tltln tho Ocean. Wwgparcel will 
romaines hotel ).'Ooms. Imp.to�enla imd roo.cmilioll!l will occur .als?, A pte\llously appIQVed 
18 unit wistg was vohmtarily n,dncod ro 15 lJJli:m. Tho proposed devr;lopnimt will also include a 
new access road wi1:b. a pnbllc eidownlk and bllremy, lllld the im.dergcounding of cxist!ng 
ovot'hi:ad utility lines tlong the tI1Zro10t sjdo ofHoonani Road will oCC"IIL Approval is l:llbject to 
tho following.conditions: 

• L. In ;rrler to�-adv�� imp aw,; o� Federally Lisled � Species, such as.
Newell's Shearwan:rtmd other seabird!) if ettema1 Ughtlng is to be med.J:Q. 
connection with� proposed projeot, ell extc,;nal lighting �hall be oi:µy of tho 
f9llo�types: �elded lights, cnt-<Jfflm;wnari�.orindiroct lighting. Spotlights 
��or spotlighting o£ structm'es, llllluec.iipmg; i;ignage or hotel fetttlres 
� tho project alto sholl be prohioited. 
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2, In accordance.with Seot!on 9-2.8 ofth.o Kauai COU!lty Code, 1987, the reqnirem¢11t 
ofth.e ParkDedlcation!o.--Lieu.J!eo i&appllC!lhlo to fbisproject. relatlngto "ParkB and 
Playgroµnds" � applioable to the project l!Ild.ah.a.ll be :reso1vedattbotime of 
bl!ilcling permit appravat .¼o, in accordance wilh Sectlllll 11 A-22 of the X.CC, the 
Applicant &ball submitw tho :Planning Department an Envitoomerrtal Impact 
Assessinetrl: Foes (B):A) for the project 'The RrA fees� based on $1,000 per new 
mu1 ti-�y uni� E!ll.d $100 per the minimuni. number of pil!king stalls sr::rving 111.e 
� devc1o_pme-Jlt cornponenra M l'!lquittd by C.Oun.ty Codo Section 1 IA-2.2. 
Both of :these fi»s ar1> due at time of first b\lil.ding peonit �val. 

3. Applicant shall recoro all of the contlitio03 imposed under the subject pemtlta with
tbo. deed(s} to the properties ofthexesortproject. A copy of this n:cordation i;bitll be
p£ovided to thf! l'UlllDlll8 Dcpartm.cmt at timo of building pe�application.

4. Applic.ant shall provide amnial status reports to tho Planning CommiGsion begin:n.l.og
from oni, year from tho dati, of this approval. Tho reports shall be submitted to tho
Dopintmc:nt no later th.m 30 days prior to tho IU)!lual annlvetamy date of approval of
this projoct. The report Ghall provide project� irod progress towaIOl3 project
catnpletioo. md CO!llpliance with. conditions of approval, Annual reports shall bo
pto'1/idod lilltll completion of tho project, e.nd CODlplianC6 mth I\Il condili.ODS of
appro'Vl!l

5, Appli¢ant Bhail subslatitially commenCQ co.nstrovtlon of tho project �lop:tnent 
within one (1) year from tb.e date of full approva.l, md shall comp!* constmi;tion ot 
tho project davelopmc:nl:1¥ithln 5 � from tho dato of approval of the subject 
pennil&. 

6. �jeclpermils IIPP.wved herein cannot be sold IU!d are not tnmsretable to other !ban
.Appllcanti its suh&idlarics and affiliated ooxpomtiOllS and legal entities prior to tho
�O'lllpletion of the projeot and is6\ll1D.Co of �o o�ancy �flllIIU:

7. ln � with Section 8-5.§ Qffue Kauai'Couiily Code, 1:987, the, AppliCiWl
sball provide a: grant of oasctnent fur -81l non-lcasahold puhllo areas, such. aa beach
patking, multi-uso llClleSll paths, shower and b1:J1cb 11tea, �httal/histotlcal pt!!$erves
and.alt.es, alldlatttal coastal mnlti-nso bcaclt walk. Stlid CMememdocwru:.nt ahnll
also bo xccor4ed, with areco,:d.ed ropy provided to the Plilnning Deparhnt';ll_t at timo
ofbuU<ilngpconlt re'li�. All such pnblic areal1 s1rall be adequately mgtJ.cd, The 4i
_public Pffrlcing stalls aheil also b� s'lgn.c;d, mtlpl'lloh slgnage managed.and Jll!Ulltl!ined
by the Applioanttn � thatemployWt imd/o,: guests sballnotbo utillzing 81µ)n
paiking llXClas, For any leasehold propc:rty o-wn� by th� applicant such property shall
be conveyed to the County only for 1he dmation of tiie J.easohold in tr.test as m.o' be
approved. by the Plarutlng Dcplll1m�t.
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Language md sigo!!:gc design shall be subject to Plwning De.{>actment review md 
approval, 

8. As represented, tho Applicant: shall;

11. design� Lobby 'building within the Maulat P�ol to also function as a
lumfoan.e oroorgenoy ab.elterforthe projeol'stesiden!S, gU¢StS Eild koy
employees, Sl!ld de$lgi,. swill be as te!Viewea imd approved by the Co� Civil
Dcfelllle ageocy. Tho Applicant shall also lllllintain its current bw ev�e.tion
plan to accommodate gQeSts:who may prefer to evacua!e tho sire during
i.mpondlng hum.cane situation&.

b. lrnplmnont a1trmat6 u:ansport system reco��tiona 01the Koloa-I'oipu­
.. , K.nhdula Ar� Cirtulatioll. P� CK:P ACP), mohl,dµig aK.oloa-Polptt shuttle

clroulmxlr syswm targ� to reaid.ontB,, visitors and Qlll:ploy�s. 

c. impl.eroent tran.sporn1tion dcl!lalld :oian.agctnent CIDM) :measutes for employees .
which' could potenti�y inoludo ridesba:rlng, transit &erviee$, B.{1d a transportat:f 011 

ailowaru:e.

d. seek Coiuity aufhori:altion lo refurbish !!Ild maintain !he e:rlsting cQil'.lfortlitaPon
located at lhe Gou1he!1$t.t::nt end of the Hoonani Roaa. cul-do-sac

c. dovelop and impleJJ10nt & &ml;ilition and m:w COOS!tllCtion.i;nateti1,ls �cling'
prognun, as reviewed and 11ppl'QV0d 'bytho De;parbnerrt ofPubllo WCJrks, Solid
Waste Division, and DOH.

f. prepllre a dralnago report to address the inCI."OOSo fu.stnnn nmoff as a �lt of the
dcvd.oj)xnent. A copy of the drain� report md,gtadl:ng plan apptav� by tho
Department oLPublio Worlcs shall bo GUbmitted to tho Phuming Dop{!ttln�t.

Filliog of the propc:dy with material obtained fromofl'-prennses snall not bo
pf:i'blitred, ot�t 115.ma.y bo nOCCSSl!IY to comply. with the ·aito drainage aud
gmdjhg mquircmenlii ns terohted with the Depllitinetrt-ofPoblio WQdm and.
Planning-Deparllnr;tµ. This prohibition of c:xpo.rtcd fill matedal she.11 not awl-y to
top soil used tor l!lll.dscaplng p'lttposes in accordance with the app4roffli
lMdscaped plam;. Mnss. pad :fillillg. to inorcaso iho hoighta of tho pro_posea
stru.otnros shall nQt bo vennil:!ed llX.Cept as resolve4 with tho D(;_pl\Mlenf of Public·
Worl:s andl'limcingDeparlllleo.t.

g. proyjdc, bnilding and archjtecblral design, vehicular accel311, -vv;w corridors, publio
acct:S9, color soholllet and lalld$caping as represented in the pto.jeet appUcation or
a� waa imwnoed dnrln_g tho course of tho pub Uc ht:aringe, Flans for eiu:ll. phase of
tho pi;ojoot � bo �.for ttw revicm all� approvlll qf thc Planning
Dixtclor lit tiJno ofbu:ildlng peonit review.
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h. work with the ColliltyTraruiportation Agl:ncy as (:(! 1hopoSp1'ble1 te1ocat!on of
existing bQS stops adjacent to tho propetty and fot the provision. ofro'of
improvements for said bus st!>ps.

L place thr, lioonani lwad '1tll.ilies serving the projoct underground. 

j. continue to ,wa Im best elfotis to work with tho Cotmty H.ousing Agency m an
effurt to �vclo_p M agn:.¢ment for participating in the provision of affonl!lblo
ho\1$lng foi: its �mployees as may be-; re�d by law,

k ol;,tam in:fo:tmation on the cclluad resources of lbe area onol} the proj¢ct's Cultural 
Fot:11B Group CQmpletts its report. Said report shall bo pravicloo, lllld as�. 
to iho PlnmrlngDepamoent . • • 

L dovelop a blasting plan·forreviev; RO.cl approval by the Public Works and 
l'1.annlng Depertmenbl. Said blai;tlng pum-shall include public nonce -via 
nowspJ!l?er, 'Qllllo and.band deliveted fiyew io IOSidonl!I withitt 1000 feet offue 
proporly, whore notice ls gi'ven at least 1 week in advance oi'the offuo 8¢tivity. 
Sucli notico sb.all incl tide tho date and tbno of tho blasting, and a contact lllllile 
llll.d phone nmnher. 

m. foliav( the dust mitigation protocol established by Um :Du:¢ Hui during
constrnt;tion oftrui projec;;t. A cu:o.-ent copy ofsrud protocol sh� he provwed tn
tho Depariinf:nt.

n. the nlllnber of units remaining mrthorit.od by SMA(U}96--9 and Z..IV-96--25 shllll
be DXluced frmn 18' fQ 15.

Eviclenco of 1ho .unpkrnentiition of theso progrmmi or the manner of 11ddtessing iheso 
issues shall be provided to tlie Pepattmem prior to buildingprmnit micw. 

9. l:n otdor to netp sore¢ll tho stmcturos from public views as seen. fiOII1 public areas.
and tn blend the s!:nlotures with .its 3UII'O'Undlngs1 c:'.Ctetllal colon sbi\ll bi:J of earth

• tnnt:s, compl¢mentary to tho Cl;06f;irlg Sheraton �ai Rotort �dfngi:;withln the
Mak.al Pl!l'COl uod compaµ'bl6 with tha �ding� bac};gronnd. m addition,'
tho .Applicant shall pl'llparo & landscapo plan to i\u:thor soi\¢ tha t:dsting building
mass, T'ae laAdsc:apc plan. slwll re£1eot tho � of 11B'tiva pls:nts that ate commrut to
the� e.ndonrlo, !ndigeno'OB, or POlYJlOSiab,�oduoed. The-; pt0posed color
scb.emo and landscape pljiD. shall bo submitted to tho Pll!Illling Department for review
and !IPPIQ'm prior to building pemtlttc1'{i�.

In.11dditlon1 the Applicant sba11 ooxmnuo tho landscape themo alrogdy establlshed oil
1ho lI!BXlli side ofPoipu Road, and which the Commissiop, has required. of other
properlios located along PoipuR.oadi whllo honoring fuo commitment to pre;etVo tho
'Yiow corddors r:rver this property and down KR_pili Roiic! a:s represented by the
AppllCillit. Applicant shall consult with the Ppi'pU }!each Resort AssQcistlon

pg.4 



reg!U'ding foliagt, along Poi'pii Road, prior to Department review of the landsCllpi.ng 
pl.an. 

10. Ifhistm::ie/C\lltuatl reroains mch ea ruchaeol.t>glcal artifucts, c� depositB or
human borlals ere round dodug consttncti� the Applioa?Jt shall atop wmk in tlw

• in1Illediat¢ 1!re8, and ohall contact tho State Historic Preservation Division (SRPD) et
742-7033, :and the '.P!tuiniug Depiu:tment, tl'.l dotennino 11pproprlmo action.

1-1. To the ext.ontpossibkwitbin tlw confJAe& of'llnionrequiremcnts and appilcable legal
piohi'l>itiona aga1nat discrimination in emplo�ent, tho .Applioant shall seek: to blro
lCaµai contractors as long llll they ate qoalifiod and reaoonahly cott1Pe1itive Wifu other 
c� and shall eeek to employ residen!s o� in temporary construction 
and peon.atJcnt resott-re1ated. jobi:, rt is recognized tbiit tho Applicant may ha.veto 
emp1oynon-I<:m.tai retr.idents for f?�cu1ar e1dlkd Jobs whet� no qualified Km:uu­
res:ldent po�sessos stich skills, F1:>rthc pmposes Ofthia coruilti<m, fho Comm1ssion . 
shall rcli� tlic .Applicant .of this requirc:mi::nt lftho Appllcan� is subjected tQ anti.­
competilivo restraints on trade or othrs monopoli8tlo practices. 

12. The Applicant shell consider tho appllce.tion ofLeadCO!hi.P In Energy and
Bnvironmotital Design {LRED).a:ni;l gn:o:n. build!Dg cmmcil prinoipl� standards anci
s�(egifl3. whmver feasible for sustainablo sltc, utilities and tmild:ing devell')pmtJlt.

13. Approval of the &Ubject pex:tnita is basod. on the revised conccptaal site pl.an�
9/11/2001 duveloped by WCIT Aichitecl:nre, whiQh ieflects: 1t view corridor frotn
Poipu !load through th.e open tn¢tor comt of the lobby building, 11w lQCl'!tiOll of three
4-st.ory parlcing stro�, the location. of tho 3 and 4-swry step-down eb:o.ctures
lllongthc perimerer, ana reduction in. UtlllB m>m. 382 to 365 uni:tll,

14. 111, recomm0llded by the Water Department, aw
licant shall be reqnirod to: 

a. Submit a ful'mal reqitc$tfor wateue:tvice to the DOW for our ltlView and
approv!ll Include dctailod water deman.d (both domestio and ia:igation)
calculations along with the proposed waler meter sizt,. Id�IJtifywhclherwater
demands will ho :fro111 now or crl$tlng water meler(s), Wr.v;r <W)lUll)d
calcufations subriilik4 by your e:ugineet"ot !rlObitect slumld �o mchuit: tixmra
oount !Uld water meter Bi.zing wocla;heeb, Thls. shall be dono tor both tho nr:w
d.ovclopme.llJ: and tho rmovation developments. 'Ihe DOpartment' s commen)S
lilll.Y change depending on. the approved. water <k:n:mud Clllculation.<t.

b, Prepato and receiv-¢ POW'4 approval of coJJStrootion dt'nwing& !m'tiui neoessary 
water system fucilities and coni;tru.ct said fiwi1lties, 'fheso f.acilitics shall 
in.elude wt not ho }jmi(ed to: 
I. .Adi;lii.ional so'®O aod storago :fuciliti.os •
2.. The dopu:soQ sen'ice carm.eetlong,
3. T'n�� s� connections, if applicable,
4. 1$ mtorlot plumph:tg plans witii. th� apptoprla.te �w pre:vc.ntion

• device.
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5. A lZ inch main extension, nppro:ximxtely 1,200 fl in lcng(h Q!ong Kapi1i
Road cann.eeting to tlie 121.ncb. ma1n along Poqm arui:S:oonani Roam.

c, Pay 1ho appllcable ohargeB 1n offect at tho timo of p!l}'lllrot to the Depru:unent. 
At the pres-,"'lll: tlm6 these cllmges shall inoll!QC but not be, limited to tho 

----------4:Fa�c�iJifi�·ea�Roo�enre��Chm'��ge�(FR.C) $4,600per llDit or ihe FRC amount as
deierinfu.ed by tho-approved. V/!It.C�;-wltlchever-mnountJs.greater ________ _

Tho applioant i� made aware that applioablo FRO linWiiy shall be offset by UJ? 
to 33% �ach wh� water sOtlrC¢ or wafer aro.rngo improvemems atfJ consttu�ed 
pnd up to 50% whero transmission mains aro oo:nslructed;. provided that the tclal 
amo�t of all offset.� sball not o:iccccd 100¾ of the applic®t'& Fl.lC liabUlty, and 
provided further lb.tit the of!'4et for any source ()r storage i:tnpJ:OV6lllOJ.1s or 

_.,... transmission main ,;hall not-1SXCeod fuo llCtua1 oost oftht, S<mtCe" orsfor-.tg¢ 
imprt>"venieni or traruimiasiQtl main. 

d. Rec\We a "Certific.ction ofCoo;ipletion'' fur tb.o consttu.ctlon ofth1;1 necessary
water system faoiliti�s from 1he DOW.

15. Tho AppllCMt �nil corop1y with the -reqtlU'(l!)10!If:s and recommendations of
appliosbl� County, St� l!Ild Fedond .Aganoies, inoludlng tho Co"llftf:y F!ro,
Bngineerlng ll1ld BuildlJlg Diviaiotul of the bC{l11$1ent of Public Works, nnd the,
Stnto �atlmont ofHealth., Sqito Department. oti'mnsportatloo.�Eigh.weya
Dlv:ision.

16. An. x:ecomtn.cnded by the Stah, Depattment ofland and Natm:1\1 ResollIOe:l, Bistarlcr
PJ:e.lJe;rva.non Divial.Oil!

a.. Ar,, approved presetvntion plan fur site 947 (raili:Qad bonn) which includes 
interp�lion (6hort and Jong lmn mea.suros) .and b.roaching and reslorntion 
plans must bo mibmitt¢d to tho State HJstoric �ervution Division for review 
and appIVVal. 

b. Data recovery of Site 362 sfutll. be complet.ed � agreed 10 in tho appro,roddahi
recove,ry-pltW, and mi IIP,PCOved report on this -work be 11ubntlttM to tho Slate
:Historic �tion Division prior to tho start of conatnwtiQJJ; l!lld

Q, A q_ualifi.ed. arohlleologist shall be on ib.c project IIItil for all ground distm:bing
actiyifieg and pmonn worlc.aa outlliu:din the approved atchaeol.ogi.cal
lllOllitodog plan. An approved rr;port on thiG wotk.shall be submitted (x) tba
Sta� Historic l>reserntion Division onco 1he mon.itx,ring -wol'.k.is completed.

17. Tho Applicant Ghall confunn to tb.o anticipated Koloa-Poipu..Arf;a Circula.tioa.Plan
process and. will pay, Jmmooi�y pdor to 1&sua,n.ce of tho first btillding pctroitfor
the projoe� tho voluntezy . .fitlr sbau; contnoutiODB (VFSC), unless tho bnpact fu\:; mis
been !dentified In an Ordinanco by 1hat time, in which. caso it sh4ll pey the h:npact
fee, In the ewmt the VFSC is paid, tho nJl81 foe alJ)Q\mi shall be in lieu of too impaot
� io. the anticip� ordina:nco, Tho applicant ah11ll wotlc out the englneca::mg

• delllils of th� project access onto foipu Road, Kapill Rood mid Hoon.am Roao, and
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Ibo 1Jlallka-roahi oO!Jllcction road betwecl1.l'oipu Road «nd Bo01lall1 Road with tho 
Departm.cni of Public W oiiK. 

t8. 'Iho Planning Commissit>n.teserves fue nulh.ority to imposo additicmal conditions, 
modify or delete conditions Btllted herein, cir revoke th¢ subject peo:nits through 
proper procedntes ahould the Applicant :fltil tr, comply with tb.e corulitlona of 
approva1, or should unforeiieen oiti;umstances occur or re:rolt 

19, Should tho applicant be 'llnable- to comply 'Viith tho develop!he!It time �e m 
C()tJdltirut #5 ·abcwe and request an �on of time, applicant is ad� fuat tmy 
new laws, ord.innnces, or r:eg:dlinions that have been mipletneot:ed. with.in flris tltne 
name may bci!amo IIIJplloabl� to the project. 

?.O. In vi� of-the various conditions and recQlDillei:ulafions ·iiuposeci by tlurvnrlous 
govornment agencies at; refereti.cod to herelli, bllll.ding poonit appUC!rlion or 
�tiOJ1 work for aoy pbnso of the project or portion of the proparty shall not 
bei 11ccepted until the Appllcmrl: submits a status report of all permit oandltloru; that 
are eithe.r requirod to bo romplled with priQr to or at time ofowldlng pennit 
application. 

21. Th11 Appucant ii; advised that prior to and/or during C(Jlll;ijlJCUOll and US(; ;ulditiOlll!l
gov<:mmen:t agency COI1cli1iMS may bo imposed.. It shall br;; tho Applicant's
�illty to resolvo thoso conclifiODS with. the-respccti-ve agoiwy(ies).

22. All nn aCCe$$QtY use, the clmlbl.!&lmumt of a rock crush et opetation. on site shiul be­
su,bject to review ntW appro'Vttl offue PlaruiJng Di.recto,:. Sllch. use ahaI1 not be
peonitted \lllless it can bo 11-68\IIed. that the rcsul(Hnt du.st arul :noise can be propecly
and ndeqU®:ly addre.93i::d, If such c!!llilot.be �d, 1mGb n¢tivi.ty $hall occur at
an iuternate Biro where-such im}?aow to abutting relrldentlal llSCS will not occ:ur.

Should ilicto bo any questions rogtlrdillg the aho'l'e, JJ� contact pktntu:r Mkh.ael Laurol!I � 

�:
90

•AJ.b 
�� 
l'lanning Dm:ctor 

¢0: DPWEngineer.illgDiv, 
Waterl)ept 
State Health Dept. 
DLNR--tlls!mi¢ !?tcsor:vation Div. 
Fire Dept. 
Financo Dept., Reul Ptoperty Div, 
DOTHwys 
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EXHIBIT "C" 



GREG KAMM PLANNING & MANAGEMENT 
P.O. BOX 1200 

KOLOA, KAllAI, HAWAII 96756 

June.16, 2008 

Mr, Jan Costa, Director 
�ual County Planning Departnlent 
4444 Rlce Street Suite 473 
Llhue HI 96766 

RE: Shera.ton Kauai Resort l!Xpanlion Project (the "Project�) 
Spacial M:i.na.gement Arca Use l'erm!t SMA-(U)-2007-13 
Project Development Use Permit l'DU-2007-25 
Clan IV Zon1ni Pei:mlt'Z·IV-2007�2'9. '(the •sit.hfoct 
PennJts") TMK�: 2-B-16:3 &: 4 and 2-8-1S: 8Z, 43 &: 44, 

Dear Mr. Costa: 

Thank you. for taking the time to meet with Erle Crispin, Vice President of 
Stuw,ood .Hotel.& _:ind Resorts, Jean.Camp and mysel� along With your Senior 
-Pluner, Mlle l..rum:n to dl&cuss the Project and Its Subject Pcnnlt:s.

Per yqur request, this letter, once fully executed, Will document the Planning
Deparo:nent's definition of "full approv<11•, as such phrase is used and conblncd
In Condltlon #5 of the Special Management Area Use Permit SMA-(U)-2007-13 for 
the.Proji:ct As :YOU confirmed, it was the Planning Department's origlruil Intent fur 
"full appro�t• to mean the Applfc.ant's acquirement of all pcnnlts and approvals,
frorn all governmental agencies and depa.rtments, necessary to allow for all
construalon approved by the Subject Permti:s.

. In closb)g. please provide your taunter-signature and date below, and rctu:rn one.
origlnal to my attention. Mahalo for your on-golrtg hclp md suppoft. 

Very truly yours, 

EXHIBIT "C" 
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RECORDER'S ,v1EMD 

Document Text NOT Legible For Dlgital Imaging 

0r ., L-4� STATE OF HAWAI( • OFFJCEOFASSISTAITTREOJSTRAR 

.. 

RECORDED 
JUN 03, ZOOU OB;Oi AM 

Doc No(s) 3754GSa 

on Cert{s) AS LISTED HEREIN 

ls/ CARL T, WATANABE 
ASSISTANT REGISTRAR 

20 1/f Z13 

LAND COURT SYSTEM REGULAR SYSTEM 
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This document contains 8 pages 

DECLARATION OF PUBIJC FACILITIES EASEMENTS 

l'ARTIES TO DOCUMENT: 
DECLARANTS: SVO PACIFIC, IN'C. a Florida corpotation 

8801 VJ.stana Centre Drlvo 
Orlando, Florida 32821 

. KAUAI BLUE, INC., a Delaware corporation 
1111 Wcstch.es�r Avrmue 
White Plans, New Y o.tk 10604 

TAXMAP KEY FOR PROPERTY: 

(4) 2-8-015-043, (4) 2,.8-015-044, (4) 2-8-015-082 am!. (4) 2,.8-016-004

{W:\POCS\163B8\21WOimmDOC} 

EXHIBIT "DH 



DECLARATION OF PUBLIC FA�S EASEMENTS 

This Declaration. of Public Faoililfos :&l;y!!]ents is ms.do effecllve th.ls· 23Irl day of 
May , 2008, by SVO PACIFIC, INC., aFlorldacoi:poration, whcise mailing address

is 8801 Vistana Centre Drivo, Orlando, Florida.32821 ("SVO''• nn.d K.AUAIBLDEt JNC., aDol.awarc 
corporation. whoso mailing ad.dress is 1111 W cstcheslmAvi::nuo, WhiteP!ans, Ne� Yodc.10604 (''Kanai 
Blue''), hcroinafter GOliootivoly called the "D�laraol:s." 

•l RECITALS 

A. SVO Is tbe owner of certain _propc;rty loC!Ited: in. District ofKoloa, Island and
Co1111ty ofl<anal; Stutu of Hawaii desccihed 8JI (a) Lot 89, us shown on Map 18, filed in the Office of the 
AssistantRcglstrar of tho Land Olurt of the State ofHawail (''Land Court'') withLunq Court Application 
No. 956, iden±ifled by:KiiuaiTaxMapK.eyNo. (4) 2-&--015-043, beingaportionofthepropcrtydescn'bed. 
In Transfer �oate ofT'rt!e No. 797,564, (b) Lot 88, as &hown on.Mop 18, fi!tld in. theLanrl Court.with. 
Land Co!lrlApplicati.oo No. 956, idcnlified by Kauai Tax:MapKey No. (4) .2,.&-015-044, being a portion 
of tho properly described 1n Transfer Certificiito of Title No. 797,564, and (c) Lot 217-C, as shown ou 
Map 71, filed.in fucLnocf.Olurtwith Laad ComtApplicatiooNo. 956, identified byKnnai Tax.Map Key 
No. ( 4) 2�8-015-0&2, b�ing the prpporty described in Transf� Ccrlificaie of Title No. 797,563. 

B. Kauai Blue is the owner of certain :propimy located .in District ofKoloa; Toland
and County ofI<auaI, State pfB:awail desco'bed as lot 267, as shown on.Map 67, filed. in 1ho Land Court 
with Land C-Ourt Applicatioo No. 956, identified by Kauai T� Map Key No. (4) 2-8-016-004, being fb.e 
properly described in. Transfer Certificate ofTitle No. 687 >l 79. 

C. Toe properties descdbed herein aro collectively referred t.o hercln as ·the
"Declarants' Proporly." 

' D. ThoDec!arants' Property is a portion of tho property that is-the subject of Special 
Management Area Use Peanit SMA(U)-2007-13, Project Dovclopmcut Use PollD.itPDU-2007-25, irnd 
Class N Zoning Permit Z-N-2007-29 (collectively the "Pexmits"), a

l
l approved by tho Planning 

C.Ommission offuo County ofK.au� Sia!rl of Hawaii (said County being here!naftet referred 1o Ill! the 
"County") by that ccrnun unrccoxded letter dated Octo� 10, 2007 (the "PennitApproval Letter"). 

E. Purso.aot to the rights granted under the-Pcmtlt Approval Lett.er, the Declarants
intend to construct a. resort vacation project (tho "Declaraois' Ptoject"). 

E, h owof1h.e oonditioos to tho granting ofapproval oftbe Pean.its, 1h.e Declanmls 
ate required to establish certain casemer;ils for all non-leasehold public areas as more particularly 
desco'bcd. in fuo Permit Approval. Letrer. 

II. DECLARATION OF EASEMENT

1'l.lISUllllt to the foregoing Recitals, in considoration of tho aum of TE;N DOLLARS 
($10.00) mid other good aod valuable consideration, and sobject lo a.U offu� tmn!l, conditions and 
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llmitat!oo.s contained herein, the Declaranti; do horebydeclateiho following an::as tn be public casements 
for tho following purposes: 

(A) E.asement A-1, being 11. perpetual, no:p.-exclusivo easement for public pedestrian
nccess purposes aroID1d tho entire pedmd:ct of the Decla.mnls' Property. 

{B) EasementA-2, being a perpetunl, non-e.x:cfusivo easomentfur poblii;, vehicular and 
pedestri(!ll llCCCSS purposes. 

(C) EaiietlmltA-3, being a perpetual, non-exclusive, easement fur public pedestrian
ncccss pruposes to-the burial sit.e locat.ed within this Easement. .Afea.

(D) Ensement A-4, being a perpetual, non-ex<.Iusrve easem.cm±for public p�
occess purpoSQs, 

(E) Easement P-1, being a _p,.,--rpetual, non-exclusive easement for public -vchfoulB.l'
parldng pUiposes in compliaucc with the tcrrru; WJd conditions of the Permits. 

(F) Easement H-1. being a pci:pctol!1, 11011;-exclusive easet11ent for historic preserve 
and public pedestrian access purposos. 

The foregoing essemco.m shall be referrod to herein as the "Easemoot'' or the 
''Easements," depending on fuo contmct.. 

Tho Eascrocnls are located approximately as shown on the map attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. by reference 11S Exluoit ''A;' Tho portion of tho Deolarants' Property subject 1n the 
Eascwenls shall be.referred 1n herein.after as the ''Easement Arens" otthe ''Ea.se!:nootArea,'' depending on 
the oonb::xt. 

EXCEPTING AND RESER.VINO HOWEVER, from thls Declaration 1he rlgbi of1:ho 
Dccl.arnn.ls to make uso of the land with.in the Easement Ate as in any ros.nner which is not incon.sistcnt 
with tho E.ilsementpmposes descnoed herein and tho right to guurt:other casements within the Easement 
Areas for such purposes as aro not inconsistent wi1h and will not unreasonably in1etfore with tho :publio 
righis hereunder. 

This Declaration is made on fue following tellllS �d eonditions: 

1. Intent The Declarants' intention is to est&blish the Easements 1o be used by the 
County and tho general public for the pm-poses stated heroin, subject to tho tenns IIIld conditions 
contnl.ned In thls Declaration. 

2. froprovcrncnlB Wjthln Easetneot Area. The Declanmts shall construct, m.stal1,
maintain, reconstruct, replaco and repair such. specific improvementl3 within iho Easomimt lucas in 
furthcmnco of tho putposes dosCI1oed. herein as sbiul be appropriate and. if necessary, as approved In 
ad-vance by the appropriate govecrunental agency. Tho Declara:ob. shall have tho tigbtto construct, Install, 

. maioraio, r,,constmct, replace and.n:pair additional iroprovemenls or utilities within the EasementArcas, 
and to lnstitll. and mninfaln vegciation within the Easement .Areas; provided sucll veg6t!ltion or 
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improvcmenlll do not um:easonably lnterforo with public's rights hereunder or tho public's use of the 
Easement Areas. 

3. Condellltlation. If et BIJ.Y time tho Easement Areas, or an.y part 1hcreof, shall bo
condemned or taken for any publio projectpY l!IJY govetnnl.£0.1al aufuorlty, tb.o County sballlurvt: the right 
to claim or recover from the condemning l!;lltharity, but not from fue Declatauts or either of them, such. 
co.mpc::nsation as is payable for the Easement and the rights granted herein. 

4, )lel.ocation ofEasorncnt Artas, TheDeclarants resfil"Vfl the right from time l:o timo 
to rel0Cll10 nnyportion or all of the Easement.Are&s tn a now location( i,) within the Deolanm1s' Properly, 

5. Designation ofLand Court Easerm::nh!: CJr@l:ofEnscmentForPublio Fam1itics. It
is 'Ulldcrstood 1hat aftet consb:uction of the improvements mrthm:ized under the Pennit.ApprovalLc:ttcror 
as may bo fucthc:r authorized by tho County Pla.on!ng Commission pursuant ta a final consoliclnfion 
approval fqr the Declararcts' Property, mid ailer designation of the Easement.Areas onan appropriate Map 
B_l?proved. by tho Land Court of the Staie ofRaWllil {tho "Land Court''), 1he..Dcclm:nnts a.od..lhe Colllltywill 
eh tee into one or more _foanal "Grant(s) ofEascm.cntFor Public :Facilities" on suhsl:alltially tbe same terms
nnd conditions conbunedlu:reln and descdbing the Easement Areas in dc:Wl, consistent with the approved 
Lnnd Court Map designating the Easement Areas. The Decl.wmts agree to sabmittbe appropciatt: Map 
and Petition to tho Land Court to designa:tcthll EllScxncntAmt(s) 1ocntedin eachPhn&e of tho Declarants' 
Projectpriorto tho issusnce by the County of a Ccrl:ific.ato of Occupancy for fuat Phase of tlm Dechirllnts' 
Project. Not l!!l;er fuan forty-five ( 45) da:ys after Land Court approval of the said Map and.Petitlon for 
such Phase of the Declarants' Project, tho Dcciarattts shall dclivctt in recordablo form 1o tho Comity 
Planning Depnxtmentu GrantofEasementFor PubUQ Facilities fur such-Phruie of tho Decl.anm!s' Project. 

6. Exercise ofltig1¢;, Too Deol.arants and alhnembt:rs of tho general publio shall
exercisethoit x:espective rights hereunder in. suchinann.er asio occasion as little interfQJ:aoce as reasonably 
necessqrywith tho use of the E(ISemrmt .Area3 by the other party. 

7. County'sJndelt)nrucafion. ThlsDeclnrafionismado on tho cxprcsg condition that
1hc Couoty and the County's agents, servants, employees, invitees end guests, end tho general public, -will 
use: fue Basements nt thoit so IQ risk, and 'that the County will indemnify, defend 811.d hold bannless Ibo 
Dcclanmts and their respective successors and <1ssigos age.in.st IIIlY nnd 11-ll claims and demands for any 
liability, oosts, oxponsc;s, attorneys' foes, loss, clmiage or injnty t.o persons or proporty, including tho 
claims of its agents, servao.1s, employees, invitcos and guests that shall. or may atlse by reason of1he use 
of the Easl)lnmrl: by tho County imd the County's agents, servants, employees, invitees, or guests, r::x:coptto 
the extent such claims or demands arise by reason of fuo Dealaranm' own gross negligence or w

i
llful 

misconduct. 

8. Condition of Easement.Area, Tho Declaranls have notmade and donotlllllke arty
represootat!on or wauanty with respect to 1he condition of1iw Eanement.Areus, and tho BasanentAreas 
shall be used and enjoyed by the public in fucir "as isn condition. 

9. Limitafian ofUse.

a. The County's md the general public's rights hereunder shall be strictly lintl1ed to
those necessary to allow the County or the general public 1o util.iz;o tho Easomont � for the purposos 

(W:IDOCs\263S8\l\W009i!372DOC} -4,. 



Intended. and d.csCDW above. Such righfs horeunder !>hall be lirnitxxi to those uses legally permitted on 
the Easement Amis and for no other purposes. The Decl1U'l!Illl!, for themselves and their respective 
saccessora and assigbs, reserve ihe dgbt to poaceably remove uoy person: (a) who h!IS caused or is 
causing a puhlio llUisuncewithin or in tho immediate vicinity offue EasemcntAteas or (b) whoso actions 
are illegal or in violation of tho teIIDS of this .insb:ument. 

b. In addition In lhe gcne:ral te:rm.s stated ht tb.c prcccdingpe:ragt11ph 9 .a, 'USO of the
entire Eascmc.nt Areas by the County and tho gell£l'al. public shall be restricted 118 follows: 

(1) Houri: of oso of the Easement Areas under thls Declaration shall be,
limired to daylight hours (i.e., sunriso to sunset); and 

(2) Nornwl community standards of dress and behavior sh.all be:requlred by
all persons using the Easement Areas pursuant to this Docliu-iction. 

c. The Declaraots reserve the .right to tcmo;ro any veh.ict.e that ls pa.deed or
abandoned within 1bc Easement Ateas for !'.U1 unreasonable mnoont of time, 

10. • Main!en8l1co, Too Deolaranis shall bo solely rtzpollJ!ible for maintaining and
repairing the- improvements in 1be Eaaexnent Arca in good and safb rcpiur an.cl condition. The Declatant 
shall place lllld mninuun adequate signage, and with regard to the-vehicular pnrl<lng area suc'b. si.gnage 
shall clearly indicate that 1ho pnrking arCII- is for publio packing and not for 1he Declnraofs' employees 
ijlld/or gucsts. 

I I. Service of Notice. /ucy written noti.co or roquest required or aufhori7.ed. 1D be 
servedb.creundi;r shall be deemed delivered e.nd :received. eithe,: upon tho uctual pexronal Fecejpt thereof 
by the receiviogpmty or within five (5) b-usin� days afterthenotico hM been posted with the U.S. Mm1, 
return receipt requested, nddcessed to the xeceivingp!Irty at its l\lidrcss as stated herein, or at such. other 
address as tho rccoiving _party J]Jl!)' have previously dcslgnared in 1he sending pttrty il1 writing. 

12. Severnbil.ity. Jf anytenn or _provision of-this Dcclamtionis detetmined by a court
or competent jurisdiction to be illegal, mvalid or Ull.en.fbrceablefur anyreasoa whatsoever, such illegality, 
in.validity or unenfocceabllity shall not llffi:ct the legality, validity or enforceability of the remainder of th.is 
Declaration. 

13. Headings For Reference Only. The headings of the sections and subsections
herein an, iruectcd only for convcnlence and reference and shall in no wu.y dcfio.°' J.imit or dcscrlbe tho 
scope or tntc.nt of lllly provision of this Declamtlon. 

[text continued on. next page] 
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14. Countt:rparts, Thls. Dccfotation may be executed simuluincous!y in two or I 
more counterpar1B, each of which shall. bo deemed on original, but 1111 of which t.ogcthet shall ! 
consiliuti, one and tho same iru,irurncnt.. S-ignntnre pages .from sepatate slgucd copies may b¢ nttaahed l 
to e. &ing]a copy for purposes ofrecordin�. 

j 
15. lntcrpretatlon, This Dci;Iaration slwl[ be intcqm:fl:d in acconlance with the

laws of the State oflfuwiill.. 

16, Terms. 'fhe tenn ijD�iu-ants" as IIIld when 't!Scd hctein, or !III)' _pronouns llSed. 
in place thereof, .ahall moan lllld lnduacih.c l!l8Sculinc or feminine, the singuU!l' or plural mmiber. 
indMduals or COlpotatlon, no.d ilie Declatall!s nnd each. oftheit respective devisces,·successors in 
trust, SUCCC3S0t31 heirs, porsonal repri:sen1Rtlvc:i and assigns, accot-diog to 1he con�l thereof. 

17. HRS Chapter 520, It is intenclcd thiit this Dr;c\lli<\tion will promo!?: the
pUiposes of Hawaii Revised Sllliutes Chapter 520 by lllllking.]1U10 ood wate):.l\rC!IS.available.to the 
public for tccrcatiomil pmpoSC$, and as 11 result that tho Dcclata:nts will be eligible fur tho li.mmitioos 
in liability sol forth in said Chapt� 520, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1hc Dcclarants hnve executed this D�on ofPublio
Facilities Easemeois effective as of the date written abovo, 

• • 

DECLARANTS: SVO PACIFIC, lNC., a°J!l.oridaoorpomtion 

KAUAI BLUE, INC., a Dclawar� co,:pomtion 

[W:\OOCS\l63U\l\W009&372,DOC} -6-

!
! 



STATE OF r'-(1.=!,='�b.4-'-------...J} 
)SS: 

COUNTY OF {k4,Jt, If )

On this a '3-� day of iY) R-Y , 200_1L befure me appeared
'pta"r<JtS l<r B� 1 U... , to ine personally known, who, befng by me daly uwom or

affirmed, did S!rj th!i!'SUclt person(s) executetl tlte fui:cgoing Instrument as the :free act and deed of
such person(s), ,md if !!pplicsble, in the Cl!Pavities shown,. having been duly Bllthorized to execu1e
S1Jch instroment fo such capacities.

.p<Jl'."-�. C!lRISTI'-EWJ.OOc'"Y 
• r. ll'iCOllWSSlHIPD� * * 

,., EXP!RE5:�rnber1,21;W 
-� 'r l•ol,fllri t.l½ll Jib:)' eom, 

STATEOP fw,t-'rl>A­

COUNTY op O,e n-Jilfl e

Q!� 4to=m�day
Notary Public, In l!lld For Said Stale and Comty .

My commission expixcs: O If f o I / o 1r ' 

) 
) ss: 
) 

On thfa � dsy of ({) ft'/ , 200_g__, before me appeared
_________ _, to me personally known. who, blling by me duly sworn or
affirm.ed, did say that such pc::rson(s) executed the foregolng instrument as the frea act and deed of

, such person($), a:ndif 11pplicable, in the C8pncitics shown, having been dttly nQ.thoci:z:cd to t:iee<:ute
such irurtnunont In such capacities. 

(W:\DOCS\26)11.\:l.\W00:,07.UlOC) 

Nllill.e ofNotary: ew �rsr, rl &;" fl1A<..Dlll5Y
Notii:ry Public, fu EID-d For Said Stateltlld Couruy.

My cnmmkslon c:xpiies: D 7 / o I / o 1
T I 
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EXHIBIT ''E '' 



01130101 !J! {J FAX 804 241 !HO KAUAI crYIL 08Jll!N� 

KAUAI CIVIL DEFENSE A.GENCY 
COUNTY OF KAUAI 

BRY /\N -nA P'l'ISTK, M�toi< 
MARI< n. L. M,lRS.IIA!,L, Mmlnulrotof 

• 3�90 Ke1U1a Streo� Suitt: I DO 
Lihua, III 967 65 

Augn�Jl,2007 

The Honomblo Theo cl ore Dal!gdig m, Chll.irm1111, nnd Mwibcrs 
K.auni County Plnnnlng Comrnieslon 
4444 ll.lct Sh-eel 

.. Ll1!ue, Kauai,)�1 __ �67!i� . . . . _ . . _ _ _ . . 

Attn.: Mlk� Lllllreb, Planner 

l.tE: S11eroon �ual lttp1mdon .l'rojcct Pennlt Appl!Cl!tlont 

.. • DtorChaiDJI;mDallgdig andMombcrs oftha Conunls5ial1! 

e 
llu1: (KOH) '241-(EOO 

PA)C: (808)241-(B(>O 
�mail: amop.@kcd�sl�tc.hLui 

lam W'!illnll to commcalon tho subject npplications as it d�s with hurriaano �lto tho 
mbjr.ct property. 

Mr. Jhh Neely o!Swrwood and Mr. Grog :r<.smm, planning con6Uitill'l� 1t1el with ma 11> 
seek my adv.ico and comment ceMivl) fo tho do.lgn ofthc proj�cl and opc:rnl!tmal 
response !o'bun:icano advfaarics, wntchcs,wprnmglf, llild achrnl eyc;nts, They Indicated 
the PlMlll!lg Commission had rniscd this quedio11 cl.wing n rccc:n{ hcnrlng, so thoy wnntcd 
inpvt from (he Civll Defense Agvncy. 

I havo already met with Mr. 'Nick Arruda, Director of Sccurl.ly for the Bhtratott KB.uai, 
1Utd.his.etaffr0Yaral times and have apprised him of our Agency's profcrt:llCes and 
conoeni6. Thoir CllJrCDt pla!l is towe 1lbnrtered blls68 (a.lroady under cont.act lo Spll(rJon) 
-lo <MIC\l�tc to o. l'ublio ShQll:cr, 'Tbi� new inili31ive b11ild9 On lhat previous approach end. 
provid�s an opportunity to oxpand nnd "build in" solutions lo thk re6orl CKpllllsion
proJc:ct. 

• Ni you m, 11.wnro, tbC{e Is a g\gn!fioant s)l11mgc of c:mcrgcnoy shelter 5P�ce on the lslnnd. 
Ahho,1gh bolh Kauai Community Collogo l!lld Ibo Kiutw War Mtmoril'll Convention Hn.11 
ate public Ehcl.lllrs, availab)e lo all, i,n liBht of tho ovorall shortagb, wewpuld )ilco to 1ee 
additiouRI �ttematives booomc available, AccordiDgly, wh= possiblo nnd approprl111e, 
Civil .D�fcnso !a rc�ol]1?ncnding "Shelter In 1']11co oo Site.'' ln this lnslanoo, p;uticularly 
for hurrlcaoes, it nppom !hat-portion, ofShct11loo's nc:w l'JlllUx:Q lobbybul!dfng will be 
ablo to aocommod:i(e most or all ofthci npProidroatt;ly 1,500 vicllo111 a!1d employ<:e51 
h,cluding the by sliufmembor, famili e.s, whom vro have loamed froln expcdcnco, occd 
to be �heltr;rcd 011 propccty to keep tho key slatfott the property. 

EXHIBIT 1'E 11 



MUA T CIVIL DlrPl!HSR 

Tue 1:Tono111ble Thcodoro Dallgdig ID, Chaitmllll, md Members 
August 31, WO? 
l'ngo2 

·The sub-gnidc parking g:t01go oan be mado suit11blc to bn!ll4 lheto visitan; a?ld staff
during l!!ld-po�ibly llftcr a hOIJioanc event. Aftor thi:i event, lhe lower level of the
building (ooo love) .abow, Lhc garago) wiO tulow c,cpnnclt111 ofnvp.ilable sp11cc: md a
grenli:r degree of comfort.

. .

Shorn tan· nppcw-,: ready lo undcrtllki, Ibo ncc:dod facilities progrrun modifications (o mako
tho building h.ivn s. gronter wllld-railitanco factor, as well� lhc needed utilities to sctYo
the 0CCUpllll\6. 

@ooz 

-- -----·· ·--·- .... --- - --- ·-- ·-· ·-·- ,_, .. ,,. 

At tho umc: tin1c; some &\ll).Sts IDll}" prafcr to cvact.utto, to reach a sheller clotet to thD 
aiipnrt lo facllnale departure from 1h11 island. Given the ndv�. In prcdicliOII of 
hurrl=cs out to a. window of llt least &CVC!lll da,Yll, thesci two &tratcgi�, whmrpaired, 
tt:pxcscnt an:aso1111blc n:spo�� lo 11�0 threat. 

• On lhli biisis, the County Civil Di,fcntc Agorn:y reoommends the Comm lesion's appm�I
of the 11Xpmsion, �ubjeat to !he condition that bolh progrmns o!bardooin_g and upgxn.di!1!!
lho lobby building 111!.d maintalaing the bu.s ovaountion o_pU<m ho condirions oftbat
;ipprovnl.

U i� .� thn\ 11. resort tnlces r;uch .furward-thlnkl:rtg tn=utcS, so 1 pm pleased to be oclo lo
YfOte this lotter.

Rospci:tfully, 

��& 
·Kauai Civil Dcfexiso Agency

c: Mr. Iim Neely, SIIIN{ood, 808-665-0495 fax 
Mr. Erio Crlspin, Ste:cwood. 80B-924-S039 fax-
Mr. Greg �1 GfCP &M 808-74:l.-l?Sl fitx 

Efili ci.E Bihihit 11E11 
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GREG KAMM PLANNING & MANAGEMENT 
P.O. BOX 1200 

K.OLOA, KAUAI, HAWAII 96756 

voice: B08-742-1144 cell: 808-639-1144 fax 808-742-1751 

May 20, 2008 

Mr. Donald Fujimoto, County Engineer 
Kauai County Department of Public Works 
4444 Rke Street Suite 27S 
Llhue ID 99766 

• RE:-· -Slforafo.ti. ICauiu lfes6rt Expansion Project
Special Management Axea Use Permit SMA-{U)-2007-13
Project Development Use Permit PDU-2007-25
Class N Zoning Permit Z-N·t.007-29
TMK!;: Z-8-16:3 & 4 and 2-8-15: 82, 43 & 44.

Dear Donald:

Condition 8.ci of the subjed:permits req_u1res the Applk.ant 1D "seek
County author!zation to refurbish and maintain the existing comfort
st:atioulocated at the southeastern end of the Hoonani Road cul-de-sac."

Thls let�er is our request for authorization to undertake steam-cleaning of
all surfaces, repainting of the structure in a color similar ID the existing,
and replacement of any flxtur'es or fittings which are required.

T_hereafter, S}J.eraton Kauai/Starwood will malmain the comfort station to
a standard apprqprlate to the quality destination which Poipu has become.

Please authorize us to proceed and contact me with any qµestioru;,

Very truly yours,

)]_� 
Greg Kamm for Starwood Hotels & Resorts 

cc: Sheraton Kauai/Starwood Compliance Te.am. 
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GREG KAMM PLANNING & MANAGEMENT 
P.O, BOX 12.00

K0L0A; KAUAI, HAWAII 96756 

May 20, 2008 

Mr. ran Costa, Director 
Kalial County Planning Department 
4444 Rice Street 
Sulte 473 
LI hue m 96766 

RE: Sheraton. Kauai Reso-rt. Expansion Pro Jed 
Spedal Management Area Use Permit SMA-{U)-2007-13 
Project Development Use l.'ermlt PDU-2007-25 
Cfass IV Zoning Petmit Z-N-2007-29 
TMKs: 2-8-16:3 & 4 and 2.•8-15; 82, 43 & 44. 

•' 

attn.: Mr. Mlke Laure.ta, Senior Staff Planner 

Dear Mr. I.aureta: 

Condition ·9 of the S\lbject permits reads as follows: 

. , 9. In. order to help screen the strt.1ctu.re from public 
views as, seen. from public areas� and to blend the 
·structu:res with lts surroundings, external colors shfllJ be of
earth tones, complementary to the existiD.g Sheraton Kauai
R'esort buildf.ngs within the Makal Parcel and compatlble
wit,4 the surrounding natural backgrou.n.d. • In addition, the
Applicant sh.all prepare a landscape plan to further soften.
the exJ.stin.g b ulldin.g mass. The landscape plan sh.all
reflect the use· of native pmn.ts that a.re common ta the
area, end.em.Jc, indigenous, or Polynesian-i.JJ.trodt1c(;d. The
proposed color scheme and Jancfscape plan shall be·
.. submitted to the Pla.n:.ai.n.g Departmenr for review EUld
approval prl9r to building perl11it .review.

I,.n addition, the Applicant shall con.ti.nae the 
landscape theme already established on. the makai side of 



Poipu; Road, and which the Com.mission bas required of 
other properties located a.long Polpu Road, while honoring 
the commitment to preserve the view corridors over thls 
prope.r:tJ' and down Kapilt Road as represented.by the 
Applicant. Applicant shall consult with the Poipu Beach 
Resort Association. regarding foliage along Poiptt Road 
prior to Department review of the lan.dsca.ping plan.. 

Starwood Rotili/Sheraton Kauai met with the PERA Board on the morrilng 
of May 8, 2008. Our landscape architects, Walters, Kimura, Motoda, Inc. 
presented the conceptual landscape plan to Board. There was a healthy 
exchange of Ideas, and ultimately the Board expressed support that 
She�ton was going to .upgrade Polpu Road.

As you r�call, l;!rlc Crispin and I met with you and Donald PuJimoto on the 
afternoon of May 8, 2008 and dcllvered the landscape plan we had 
presented to PERA that morning, This constituted submission of the plans 
called for in the above condition. We understood from the meeting that 
both the landscape plans and the rural roadway and sidewallc sections for . 

. Polpu and KapiU Roads and the "landscape bulb" section for Ho'onani 
Road were acceptable to both key departments, so we are moving forward 
on the construction: documents on that basis, 

The only Item re.roam.Ing to fully comply wlth this condition is submittal of 
·a color schellle for the structures. We will be submitting that shortly, but
you may rest assured the scheme will follow the condition's directive of
utilizing "earth tones.''

For your convenience, attached ls a copy of the same landscape brochu,e
we presenteci to PBRA and to you.

Please contact me With any questions.

Slnce�ely,

Greg Ka.mm 
for Sheratun Kauai 

end 

cc w/o encl.: Sheraton Kauai/Starwood 

End of Exhibit "G" 
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STARWOOD 

May 29
1 
2n08 

Donald M. Fuj£moto, P .E. 
County Engineer, Director, l)ept of Public-Works 
County ofiuruai 
Mo'il:eba Building 
4444 Rice Strccl Salte 275 
Llhu'e, Kaua'i, HI 96766 

RE: Sheraton Knuul Resort Expllll.Slon Project 
Special Manag_cmcnt A..re11 U1111 Pe.tmlt SMA-(0)-2007-13 
Project Development Use l?e:nnltPDU-2007-25 
ClBSs IV Zon[ng :Poruili: Z-lV'-2007-29 
TMKs: 7,.S-16:3 & 4 lllld Z-8-15: 82, 43 & 44. 
And 
Consolidation ofLnnd Corot Application 956, Lot 7.67 (Map 67)

1 
Lot 217-C 

(Map 71) and Lots 88 and 89 (Mllp 18) Into Lot A, at Koloa, Knun•� Hnwai'i. 
(S-2007-38, SVO P11cUic, Inc.,f.Iumal Blues, Inc.). 

Dear Mr, Fujimoto: 

1'.b.ia lettet Is to fonnally· transmit our Draft drawings dated B May 2008 for the Sh.eramn 
Kaua! Resort expansion, as reviewed and discussed at our mcetin� on May 9, 2008 at our 
Starwood office in Honolulu, which was in follow-up to our earliel' discussion on April 
11, 2008 with Greg Krunm, Wully KodQ and Deputy Ed Renaud at your office, 

In the letter to Ron Wagnc::r det:i:d Nov, .28, 2007 granting Tenhdivo Approval of the 
Consolidation, Condition 1,b,(2) r� as fullows: 

(2) [Applicant shalij Widen and improve Po'Ipu Road, Kapl/l
Road, and Ho'onanl RoacJ wlth curbs,
gutters, anci sfdewalks In accortfance
with the Department of Public Works
roadway standards;

11!\S �,1.1�011% /Ivon"&, Suhe :JOO, Honoluh,. �•w•II 96815 Tcr: aoa e21 4000 f•�. eoa UZJ oas, 
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Mr. Domtld flnjimoto 
Page2 

By way of Slmlml!t)' of our discussions on thls topic, tho fu1lowin.g llI"D highlights as 
agreed Upon: 

• Genernlly:
o Rather than impl6IllQllUilg an "urban section" of curbs, gutters, and

sideWllfu; as called for above, we will provide a "rural section" moro
-typical of and In keeping with the l.'oipu Resort area. The rural section
will roffocttbc drawing4 prepared byWi!ltoni KinmraMotod6, Too. d�t<;d
May 8, 2008 (attuched): e.g-. roadway bordered by grogs sWlllo, small
httufocapod berm, aloewalk, and largo, undulating lHnd.scapcd berm.
Ft.nth.er, "widen" is intended lo mean a widening of tho ROW, but not
necessarily widcining Iha pavemeot.

� PulpuRoad:• 
o Will follow "rural seotionn with grass swalo, low landscapl:ng, menndodng
• '6harca use path (b(kelpedestrian wallcway), uodril.ating berm (berm

nndule.tes both vertloally and horizontally).

• Iupill Road:
,. o Will fullow "rural sootion" with grass 1/Wllle, low landscaping, meandering 

shared uso path (bike/palestrlan walk.wily), landscaped bcmL 

• Beach Ac:ce$s Road:
o This private driveway will havo a publio a�s C11Semenl Tho design will

-follow the samo ".rural scqlon'' with landscaping bordering Kiahuna
. Plantation, ibllowed by roadway, gil!BS swalo, low landscaping-,
mo11Ddcring shared uso path (bike/pedestrian walkway), and an undulating
bcon. O.n this driveway, once we get to final engineering, wo may
acco[(ltDodal:e the blcycles in a bike lane instead of a shared use path, but
they will be accommodated.

• Ho' ominl Road:
o Wlll hilve ourbs, .gutters, sidewalk, Note as disC!ll!sed, the existing street

parkiiig will remain, and we plmi to or* landscaping ''b-ulb-outs" to
protect the parking, enhanoo tho landscaping, l!lld to provide the
perception of a slightly nartower roarl. As disOlIBScd, the oxis!ing wido
pnvem.ent causc:s drlvm to accclc:rnto o.n. this dead-end ro!!d and Cl'.Cllte:i a
danger to pedestrians going lo the beach; the landsca.ped bulb-outs will
create defined "pookets11 for street plll'lcing whllo givo the perception of a
narrower, oBlnler, quieter, lllld hopefully safer road. We anticipate
minimal, if any, loss of slreet parl:ing sbills by doing this significant
improvement. At tho samo timo it will enhane\:I the road's app�lltm�.



Mr. Donald Pojimoto 
Pagc3 

Co'llll:ruclion Sequcnclng 

We plan to begin construction of the resort expansion at the tmITootly'Uodevoloped land 
in tho comer ofl'oipu Road and KapiI! Road. 

• InH:inl Construction
W o pll!Il on beginning coostruotlon in the vaCWlt piacel located in tho comer ofl'oipu 
Road and Kiipili Road, making tho sidewalk and landscaping improvements, providing 
continuity to our neighboring propanes (Koloa. Lnnding to fho West and Kiahlllla 
Pllll!b!tiou to the East), We will also pw.n on providing landec:eping and &ldcwnlk 
improvements along K.apili Road, connocti.ng tho new development to onr existing 
RcsotL 

• Further Construction
After completion oflnitial Constractlon, we plBn to mbseqmmtly build the r,;mah:ring
o1cmcnts of the Res.orl-ru: indicgted in our site plan, implementing the new Beach Access
Road llDll the undcrgromiding of utilities /landscaping on Ho'olll!lll. Road, to coincide 
with tho futµre phases of development, which call for demolition of tho c.tlsling Giit'dcn.
Wing hotel rooms and :fiicililies. 

. l'leaso JJOf.6 that we havo 1net with Planning Director Ian Cosbl about this appniacb. and 
bis reaction lownrd this design was fuvarablo, 

We understand, based on our meetings with yo11 11I1d your s!aff1 thattha approach 
outlined above and shown in 1he 11tlached drawings meet with yoor 11PProvuI.. and we 
will procoed accordingly. 

Please contai;t me if this is not youruuderstanding, We Invite yon to call me to 
.roordinatu uny questions you nu1y havo, 

Sincerely, 

�iJ) ,r;y CRIC c�1"r1N

Enc Crispin 
Vice President, Devclopmeat-Hawaii 
Starwood Hotels & Resorts Worldwido, Inc 

encl. 
by email w/o encl,: Mike Fajib!, W-OC 

Lmy Cunha, wcrr 
·0regKamm GKP&M
JC!!Il Camp CC LLC 
Mike Willfams Starwood 
Ji.mNecly Staxwood 
T. Slll!llB!borg Starwood

Bud of Exhibit 111!11 
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GREG KAMM PLANNING & MANAGEMENT 
P.O. BOX 1200 

K.OLOA, KAUAI, F!AWATl 96756 

voice: 808-742-1144 ce.11: 808-639-1144 fax 808-742-1751 

May 29, 2008 

Mr. Jan Costa, D!rectnr 
Kauai County Planning Department 
4444 Rice Street 
Suite 473 
Ub:\le HI 96766 via hand delivery 

RE: Sheraton Kauai Resort Expansion l.1roject 
Speclal Management Area Use 'Penn.it SMA.:(U)-2007-1.3 
Project Development Use Penn.it PPU-2007-25 
Class rv Zoning Permit Z-IV-2007-29 
TMKs: 2-8-16:3 & 4 and 2-8-15: 82, 43 & 44. 

attn.: Mr, Mike Laureta, Senior Staff Planner 

Dear Mr. Laurew.: 

.In compliance with condition 8.k. of the. above-referenced permits, lam 
pleased to·enclose one copy of the Hawaiian Cultural Plan for the 
Sheraton-Polpu Beach Villas, prepared by the Peter Apo Company ln 
cooperation with the Cultural Focus Group assembled for this effort. 

Please con�ct m� with any qµe.stlons. 

Very truly yours, 

t.�
Greg Kamm 

encl. 

cc w/o encl via email: Sheraton Kauai 
Starwood Compliance Team 
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Aprfl 23, 2008 

STARWOOD 
, '1 f .•f ' • , I 1\'J ; 1 •I ,I 

Mr. Ian Costa, Director 
Kauai County Planning DepL 
4444 Rice SI. 
Building A Suite 473 
Uhue, Kauai, HI 96766 

Subject Sher11ton Kauai Resort 
Special Management Area Use Pelllllt SMA (U)-2007-13 
Clas$ rv Zoning Permit Z-IV•2007 ·29 
SVO ?ac:lf!c, Inc. Applicant
.Tax Map Kay 2-8-15:43, 44, BZ, and 2-8�16:3 & 4 Potpu, Klil}al 

t:le: Condllfon No. 13.rn • l:)usl: Mllfgntion Protocol 

Dear Mr. Costa; 

This letter Is to document Starwood's cornpnanoe with SMA Condition No. B.m for the 
subject property, which slates: 

·m. follow the dust mltlgaUon protocol established by the Dust Huf during
construction of the project. A cutrenl copy of said protocol shall be provided to
Lhe Department.'

Statwood has been.a founding member of Iha Dust Hui which ·wa11 fanned lry conjuncHon 
with Kukui'ula, Goodfellow Brothers, Ko!oa Landing, and. KMP. Toe Dusi Hui protocol 
was create� In 1he Spring of 2007, and has been managed and Implemented on various 
·job sites by M's. Patt! Melzlener In accordance wlth tha following Protocol:

1. Best Management Practices are put Into place: Oust fence, sprinklers Installed to
keep do,wn dust, earthwork con\Taclors hose down site work during earth moving
operations,

2. Hot line number ls set up (ldeal!y same number as the existing number).
3. Phone calls received by lhal number are logged as to c:aller, addres:i, date, time;

nature of complaint
4, A' personal site Visit Is then conduoted by Iha "Dust M"rllgatlon Officer' lo assess 

Iha damage, verify complaint 
5. Individual who flies the complaint obtains one or more oosl esUm;;:ites for

mlllgatlon - f.e. car wash, power wash/cleaning of Individual home, other
measures as deemed necessary.

• I� F�\NOOf.l
....... 

w 

r I •••.,1 'I•' 01 j 
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6. Dust MIUgatlon officer revlows and authorizes the work to be done.
7. Individual pays for the won< and work Is perfollTled
8, Developer reimburses Iha Jndlv.ldual for the authorized wori<

This lelier Is lo Inform you that SVO Pacific, Inc. wm adhere with the above Dust 
Mitigation Protocol or as may be subsequently amended. 

Should you have any questions, please feel frl:38 lo contact me at (808) 669-3691. 

Yours very truly, 
SVO PACIFIC, INC. 

I !IA, /f /1· 

(} ��� 

Ji eely 
y�rosldont Hawa· perations 

End of Exhibit "J" 
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EXHIBIT "K" 



GREG KAMM PLANNIN'G & MANAGEMENT 
P.O. BOX 1200 

KOLOA, KAUAI 1 HAWAII 96756 

May 20, 2.008 

Mr. Ian Costa, Director 
Kau.al County Planning Department 
4444 Rice Street 
Suite 473 

Llhue ID-96766 

RE: Sheraton Kauai ·Resort Expansion Project 
Special Management A.rea Use Permit SMA-(U)-2007-13 
Project Development Use Perm.it PDU-2007-25 
Class N Zoning Pe.rmlt Z-IV-2007-29 
TMK.s: 2-8-16:3 &: 4 and 2-8-15: 82, 43 & 44. 

attn.: Mr. Mike- Laureta., Senior Staff Planner 

Dear-Mr. Laureta.: 

. CondiUon 9 of the sub,ect perm.Its reads as follows: 

. 9. In order to help screen the structure from public 
views as seen• from pt1blic areas, and to blend the 
structures with. its surroundings, external colors shall be o:f 
earth tones, complemen-ta.ry to the existing Sheraton Kaua( 
Resort bufldlngs within the Ma.kai Parcel a.nd compatible 
with the surrounding natural background. In addition, the 
Applicw.t sha.11 prepare a. Jaa.dsca.pe plan to further soften 
the existl.ng building .o:zass. The landscape plan $hall 
reflect th.e use of native plan ts tha.t are comm.on to the 
area, endemic, indigenous, or Polynasian.-Jntroduced. The 
proposed color scheme and la.n.dscape plan sha.11 be 
submitted to• the Pian.ni.ng Department for review and 
approval prior to buildlng per111it review. . 

, ln addition, the Applica11t shall co11.tinue the
landscape theme already established on the malca.i side of 



.Polpu Road, and which the Commission has required of 
of:i?.er properties located along Poipu Road, while horwri.n.g 
the commitment to preserve the view corridors over this 
property and down Ka.pill Road gs represented by the 
Applicant. Applicant shall cons.ult With the Poipu Beach 
Resort Association regarciing foliage along Poipu Road 
·prior to Department review of the landsca.ping plan.

Starwood Hotels/Sheraton Kauai met with the PERA Board on the rooming
of May 8, 2008. Our landscape architects, Walters, Kimura, Motoda, fnc,
present�d the conceptual landscape plan to Board. There was a healthy
-exchange of ideas, and ultimately the Board expressed support tllat
Sheraton was going to upgrade Poipu Road.

As you recaU, Erk Crispin and I tnet with you and Donald Fujimotn on the
afternoon of May 8, 2008 and dellvered the landscape plan we had
presented to PBRA that morning. This constituted subntlsslon of the plans
called for in the above condition. We understood from the meeting that

. both the landscape plans and the rural roadway and sidewalk sections for
?olpu and.Kap Ill Roads and the 11land.scape bulb" section for Ho'onanl
.Road were acceptabie to both key departments, so we are moving forward
on the construction documents on that basis.

TQ�. only item remaining to fully comply with this condition Is submittal of
a c;olor scheme for tbe structures, We will be submitting that shortly, but 
yoµ may rest a-ssured the scheme will follow the condition's ctirecdve of 
utilizing "earth tnnes. • 

For your.convenience, attached is a copy of the same landscape brochure 
we presented to PERA and to you. 

Please contact n:ie with any q_ue.stl.ons. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Kamm 
for Sheraton Kauai 

encl. 

cc w/o encl,i Sheraton KauaVStarwood 

Bnd of Exhibit "K11 



EXHIBIT ''L '' 



STATE OF HAW.All 
DEP.All.'J.1MCT O"R LAfflJ .AND NA.'rmtAL IrESOUli.CBS 

June 19, 2007 

Hallctt:H:unm&tt, Ph.D. 
Cultural. Survcys:Hawai'i 
Post Offico Dox lll4 
Kailua, Hawnl'i 96734 

Dear Dr. Hammatt 

Bl'A'l1! IDBTORIO l'Rl!B}!.11.VJ,.TTO!f P!VJBIDN 
641 )W.{OJ(JLA )lOUUIV IJUJ

.i_
!-(>OM $$5 

X.Al'OLE� 'HAW An mu7 

,ltUJI�� 
-

=.uoc:,u=-�Ctrr1ll l:s;;;.;w,-
�OII-.U�� 

nmr.-rowa 
tvcm"x:ocrca•LA,l,CIJ 

LOG; 2007 .1965 
DOC: 0706NM35 
Archaeology 

SUlJJECT: Chapter 6.E-42-Histarlc Prcscrv11tion Review- Prc.,ervation Plllll and 
llccotlltrocticm l'lan for Sltt 50-30-10-0947 • RRilroad Benn in Ko loll 
(CSR. H.tnun11tt md Shideler M,.y 2007) 
Kaloa.Ahnpuu, I<iins Pirlrlct, K1u.u1I 
TMK; [4] 2-1!-015i D8l 

Thank yo11.1iir submitting thc .nfurert1e11tion.cd pres�ation and reconstruction plan for 1hu railrail-d berm 
!It tho Sheraton KnnalBotol QY. CSH, Himunatt and Shideler (2007), Thc plan oaJI., for four brcaohes in 
the: borm, throe st.ahill1,:dion arc:AS

1 
and 1wo r<:construct:ion Iocati.011$ along tho b00tt.. Billy Fioltb is tho 

ovei:secr of the, stabil.iiation and rcconstrnction worlc on tho bemt. Tho X:ui:tl Historio Preservation 
Roviow Conuni!sion la. their T�c 2001 lllce�ng approved of this plan.. The plan includes � and 
long-term meairurt3 whl.ch arc accop!ablo. Tho plan is qccq,table, 

If you havo any questions, please eall Nancy McMahon 011r Kaui illld Molokai. Arohacologim who 
rcyfowi:d th.is pl:tn at (808) 742-7033.

Sincerely, 

m A. CHINEN", Administrator 
ffistorio Preservation Division 

c; Grog Kamm, Gn:g Kamm Planniag and Managomont 
KHPRC 

EXHIBIT 11L11 



EXHIBIT ''M'' 



STAT.'E OF HAW .All 
DEF AR'rM&l'ft OB LAND .AND .NATORAL lIBSOURCltB 

Hallett Hammatt, Ph,D, 
Cull.ilral Survoy,Hawlli'i 
Post OfficoBoid 114 
ICnil� H'.11w1tl1 I 96734 

Doat Dr. Ha!nmatt 

S'l' Ail! H!SlOJUC l'JU13!!1!.VA'flDN DTYISION 
601 XAMOKlLA. ilOllLB'V ARD, ROOM 5S5 

JCAl.>D� HAW All 96707 

juJy9,2007 

• �,,t,.,�
��� 

mt,t r. T0!7AO 
r,-,vn°""""' 

ICil(C.l!A.WIJJU.\ ..,.,...___ f-' 
,'>I� 

W,.,.,.O�ln'Yl"Jpc,.t 

--=·==-='""1

-,m;,Kl"',_P....,,,.,,11' 
�-

=� 
'-"D:O .. .,_.,....._ 

111."IJJ.Q.t:I 

LOG! 2007,1971 
DOC: 0707NMD2 
Atohaoology 

Chapter 6E-42 -Illitorlc :Pl'l:llervailon Rmew-A.rcltnooloelcnl l>1dn Recovery fot• 
·SI:BFNo, 51).$.010-036:i at tliel'ropo&cd Siurwood V11C11tion. Ownership
D1;11eiopment l'rojoct,Koloa Alntpunn, Konn Dutrlc� Ltland of Kimel (CSR,
Tnlchln attd I!ammatt Mny'.2007)
TMK: {4J 2-8--015: 43,44, 82

Thank you for submililngthc abovo citod IO'clulc0logioiµ data rccovocy report by Cultural SurvOJ3 
Huwai'i ('liilohln and Hammatt)'whiah wo recoivod on. June 7, 2007, Si!IJ -0362 Is a tmnporaty hahitmiCJ!J. 
site when:, furthot arcbaeolog!cal work was dono to gathor information aboutoonsl:ruction llI!ll stone t6o1 
exchange palferns and ago. Your r�earch concludes that !ho method of conmuotion was a. baso oourso on 
basalt bOQrtlak, You hitVo also inoludcd tbat romtrac!ion of tho h.carlh 0ooumd aftor tho coimroclfon of 
tho enclosqro. Furth.ortnoro, this report couolndcs thnttho tools orlgln.11tod from 11. local sourcll from 
Koloa. Tho radiocarbandatos 3Uggosttho alto da!Ds from 1410 AD to modttJL 

Th'? roportis n.cceptnble and is 11ceoptcd as final In thB future, we recommend thirt:when dnting wood 
snmples you !USO lnoludeadiscnsaion idontifying tho wood typo. If you ha.vc BIJ.Y quoatfons, plea.so tall' 
Nancy McMBbon our Kanai and Molok.aiArohaeo!ogist who reviewed thLs plan at 80&-742--7033, 

SlnoerQfy, 

le.a.lo A. Chil16!1; Adnrlnistrator 
State Rlstorlc P�ervatianDivfslon 

NM: 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL DIRECTOR 

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

October 6, 2025 

CERTIFIED MAIL 

Michael J. Belles, Esq. 
Belles Graham, LLP 
3135 Akahi Street, Suite A 
Lihu'e, HI 96766-1191 
Attorney for Robinson Family Partners 

DAVID M. LOUIE, ESQ. 
JOSEPH A. STEWART, ESQ. 
Kobayashi Sugita & Goda, LLP 
999 Bishop Street, Suite 2600 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
Attorneys for Kerzner International Managements Services Hawai'i, Inc 

CHRIS DONAHOE, ESQ. 
Deputy County Attorney, County of Kaua'i 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 220 
Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 

DEREK S.IC. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Subject: In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2002· 
6, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2002-15, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2002-20 
pertaining to Kaua'iTax Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001, Kapalawai, Makaweli, Island of Kaua'i, State 
of Hawai'i 

In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2002-6, Project 
Development Use Permit PDU-2002-15, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2002-20 pertaining to Kaua'i Tax 
Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001, affecting approximately 171.72 acres of real property situated at Kapalawai, 
Makaweli, has been scheduled on the November 10, 2025 County Kaua'i, Planning Commission Agenda: 

Description of 
Petition: 

This Petition seeks Petition to Revoke Special Management Area Use Permit 
SMA(U)-2002-6, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2002·15, and Class IV 
Zoning Permit Z-IV-2002-20 pertaining to Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7-005: 001 
approximately 171.72 ac·res of real property situated at Kapalawai, Makaweli, 
Island of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i, identified by Kaua'i Tax Map Key (4) 1-7• 
005:001. 

Subject Property: Waimea, Kaua'i. Approximately 171.72 acres of real property situated at 
Kapalawai, Makaweli, lslan� of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'i, identified by Kaua'i Tax 
Map Key (4) 1-7-005:001 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • LThu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 
An Equal Opportunity Employer I-¼. I. 

NOV 10 2025 



Meeting Location: Lihu'e Civic Center, Moikeha Building, Meeting Room 2A-28, 

4444 Rice Street, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

* The Planning Commission Agenda for November 10, 2025 will specify the final
determination of location.

November 10, 2025, Monday 

9:00 a
_.
m. or shortly thereafter

The Petition was sent via certified mail on August 14, 2025. Please contact the Planning Department with 
any questions at planningdepartment@kauai.gov or (808) 241-4050. 

�A 
Ka'aina s. H� 
Director of Planning 

..�:
--

�··� 
- .j,li � 



KAAINA S. HULL 
Director of Planning 
County of Kaua'i 
4444 Rice Street Suite A473 
LThu'e, Hawai'i 96766 
khull@kauai.gov 
808-241-4050

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I 

STATE OF HAWAl'I 

In the matter of: 

Non-Conforming Use Certificate 
TVNCU #5032 (Kauai Cove), 2672 
Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key (4) 
2-6-007: 7(1 ), Koloa, Kauai.

Jens Olsson, permittee 

. 

Tax Map Key (TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 
007(1) 

PLANNING DIRECTOR KAAINA S. 
HULL'S PETITION TO REVOKE 
APPLICANT JENS OLSSON NON­
CONFORMING USE CERTIFICATE 
TVNCU #5032 AND ISSUE AN 
ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND SET 
HEARING; MEMORANDUM IN 
SUPPORT OF PETITION; 
DECLARATION OF KAAINA S. HULL; 
NOTICE OF MEETING; CERTIFICATE 
OF SERVICE 

MEETING: 
Monday, November 10, 2025 at 9:00 
a.m.

PLANNING DIRECTOR KAAINA S. HULL'S PETITION TO REVOKE APPLICANT 
JENS OLSSON NON-CONFORMING USE CERTIFICATE TVNCU #5032 

AND ISSUE AN ORDER 
TO SHOW CAUSE AND SET HEARING 

Comes now Kaaina S. Hull, duly appointed Director of Planning of the County of 

Kaua'i (hereinafter referred to as "Director"), and hereby petitions this Honorable 

Commission to revoke the existing non-conforming short term vacation rental certificate 

fl-�­
NOV 10 2025 



to Jens Olsson: non-conforming Use Certificate TVNCU #5032, approved on 8/4/08 to 

Eydun and Diane Olsson. The Director requests the Commission issue an Order to 

Show Cause to Jens Olsson and set a hearing with the Commission on Monday, 

November 10, 2025 at 9:00 a.m at the Lihu'e Civic Center, Pi'ikoi Meeting Room, 4444 

Rice Street, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. This petition is filed pursuant to Chapter 12 of the 

Rules of Practice and Procedures of this Commission. 

DATED: Uhu'e, Hawai'i, September 22, 2025. 

Director of Planning 
County of Kaua'i 
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BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I 

STATE OF HAWAl'I 

In the matter of: 

Non-Conforming Use Certificate 
TVNCU #5032 (Kauai Cove), 2672 
Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key 
(TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 007(1 ), 
Koloa, Kauai 

Jens Olsson, permittee 

Tax Map Key (TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 
7 (1) 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF 
PETITION 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF PETITION 

WHEREAS, the short term vacation rental use was registered with the Planning 

Department of the County of Kaua'i's "TVR Registration and NCU Form" on 8/4/08. 

Applicant has renewed timely since then. 

WHEREAS, a meeting was held in 2014 with the applicant and his attorney 

regarding an appeal the Department was referring to an Hearings Officer. This appeal 

was relative to the inconsistencies in the vacation rental certificate request that was 

submitted for the applicant's property. Website advertising for the property was for 3 

individual TVR units with food preparation opportunities in each bedroom, rather than 

for the rental of the single family residence. 

WHEREAS, the Department and the applicant agreed to the following in order to 

resolve the appeal: 

3 



1. "Website advertising was to be changed immediately to reflect only 1 TVR

unit;"

2. "Utility improvements (i.e. 220 electrical outlets, propane gas lines, interior

locking doors, exterior door locts, etc.) were to be changed by October 31,

2014. They are to take before and after pictures of these changes and submit

them to the Department at their earliest convenience, but by no later than

October 31, 2014."

3. Conditions 3 and 4 were relative to the renewal fees outstanding, and fine.

WHEREAS, based on a complaint received by the Department on May 21, 2025 

that the applicant was again advertising and operating 3 short term vacation rentals 

under his tvr certificate. 

WHEREAS, the Department has confirmed the website advertising, future 

commitments for the property based on the applicant's calendar, and previous use of 

the property based on comments from users of the property, all contrary to the 2014 

agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Director, based on the foregoing, believes there is reasonable 

cause to determine a failure to perform according to the 2014 agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Director prays upon this Honorable Commission that it 

take the following actions: 

1. Pursuant to the Planning Commission Rules of Practice and Procedure Section

1-12-5 confirm the finding of the Director there is reasonable cause to believe

that the Applicant has not met its obligation to satisfy conditions of approval 

agreed upon for the certificate in 2014. 

4 



2. Pursuant to Section 1-12-6 of the Rules of Practice and Procedures of this

commission, order the issuance of an Order to Show Cause in a form compliant

with Section 1-12-6(b).

3. Order the Clerk of the Commission to issue the Order to Show Cause to Jens

Olsson.

4. Set the hearing with the Commission on Tuesday, November 10, 2025 at 9:00

a.m at the Lihue Civic Center, Pi'ikoi Meeting Room, 4444 Rice Street, LThu'e,

Kaua'i, Hawai'i. 

Dated: LThu'e, Hawai'i, September 22, 2025. 

Director of Planning 
County of Kaua'i 

5 



BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF KAUA'I 

STATE OF HAWAl'I 

In the matter of: Tax Map Key (TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 
7 (1) 

Non-Conforming Use Certificate 
TVNCU #5032 (Kauai Cove), 2672 DECLARATION OF KAAINA S. HULL 
Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key 
(TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 007(1 ), 
Koloa, Kauai 

Jens Olsson, permittee 

DECLARATION OF KAAINA S. HULL 

I, KAAI NA S. HULL, under the penalty of perjury, hereby state the following is 

true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

1. I am the duly appointed Director of Planning for the County of Kaua'i.

2. Attached as Exhibit "A", is a true and correct copy of the Planning

Department of the County of Kauai memo dated October 7, 2014.

3. Attached as Exhibit "B'' is a true and correct copy of the Planning

Department of the County of Kauai investigative report dated September

16, 2025.

Declarant further sayeth naught. 

DATED: LThu'e, Hawai'i, September 22, 2025. 
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BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI 

STATE OF HAWAl'I 

In the matter of: Tax Map Key (TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 
7 (1) 

Non-Conforming Use Certificate 

TVNCU #5032 (Kauai Cove), 2672 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key 
(TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 007(1 ), 
Koloa, Kauai 

Jens Olsson, permittee 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

TO: Jens Olsson 
5980 Lokelani Rd #A 
Kapaa,HI 96746 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a meeting on PLANNING DIRECTOR KAAINA 

S. HULL'S PETITION TO REVOKE APPLICANT JENS OLSSON NON-CONFORMING

USE CERTICATE TVNCU #5032 FOR SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL USE, 

ISSUE ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, APPOINT HEARINGS OFFICER, AND SET 

HEARING will come before the Planning Commission on Tuesday, November 10, 

2025 at 9:00 a.m. Lihu'e Civic Center, Planning Commission Meeting Room, 4444 Rice 

Street, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. 

DATED: Lihu'e, Hawai'i, September 22, 2025. 

7 
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KAAINA S. HULL f � 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI 

STATE OF HAWAl'I 

In the matter of: 
Non-Conforming Use Certificate 
TVNCU #5032 (Kauai Cove), 2672 
Pu'uholo Road, Tax Map Key 
(TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 007(1 ), 
Koloa, Kauai 

Jens Olsson, permittee 

Tax Map Key (TMK): (4) 2-6-007: 
7 (1) 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing document was duly served on 

the following party by placing the same in the Certified United States mail with return 

receipt, postage prepaid, on the date specified below: 

Jens Olsson 
5980 Lokelani Rd #A 
Kapaa,HI 96746 

DATED: LThu'e, Hawai'i, September 22, 2025. 

�� AfNIT.Auu 
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BERNARD P. CARVALHO,JR. 
;\IA\"OR 

NADINE NAKAMURA 
M."-'IAGl',;G O1R£C"T0R 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

October 7, 2014 
File 

COUNTY OF KAUA'! PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
4444 RICE STREET 

KAPULE BUILDING, SUITE A-t73 
LIHU'E, KAUA'!. HAWAJ'I 96766-1326 

TEL (808) 241-4050 FAX (808) 241-6699 

MEMORANDUM 

Michael Laureta, Plann� 
Reconsideration of TV�2J�o32 Eydun & Diane Olsson '-.......__.J TMK 2-6-7: 7 (1) 

Inconsistencies in this file necessitated a meeting with the Olsson's. 

MICHAEL A. DAIIILIG 
DIRECTOR OF PLAllo':\'l:\.G 

DEE M. CROWELL 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF PLAN!'/ING 

• The application packet for a TVR was submitted on August 4, 2008. Said packet was
complete with all documentation required by Ordinance.• 26 months later, a cease & desist letter dated October 12, 2010 was issued by theDepartment. In this letter, reference is made to a denial of the TVR application on March30, 2009.• This March 30, 2009 denial was not by letter, as no copy exists in the file. Further, theOlsson's say they never received such a letter of determination.• By letter dated October 27, 2010 the Olsson's attorney Charles Foster requested a copy ofthe March 30, 2009 determination letter. The Department never responded or
acknowledged this request.• On November 16, 2010 the Department received an "Appeal of Denial of Use PermitApplication" from Foster. The Department never responded or acknowledged this
request.• On December 2, 2010 Foster again requests information regarding the denial of the TVRapplication. The Department never responded or acknowledged this request.• 3 years later, on December 16, 2013 the Planning Commission approved the referral ofthe Olsson appeal to a Hearings Officer. The Olsson's new attorney Jonathan Chun wasnotified of this action. / J 



I 

On October 6, 2014 inspectors Bambi Emayo, Vil Balisacan, and I met with the Olsson's 
regarding their application packet. They confirmed the following: 

• Internet advertising to this date was still for 3 TVR "units" (although 2 of them did not
have "kitchens";

• Two kitchens had been removed as a result of the 10/12/10 Department letter. They did
not contact the Department to notify them of such removal;

• The Olsson's purchased the property "as is" and made no improvements or alterations.
They continued the use as it existed when purchased in 1997.

To resolve this appeal, based on the above, reconsideration was determined appropriate. The 
following was agreed to: 

I. Website advertising was to be changed immediately to reflect only I TVR unit;
2. Utility improvements (i.e. 220 electrical outlets, propane gas lines, interior

locking doors, exterior door locks, etc.) were to be changed by October 3 l .  They
are to take before and after pictures of these changes and submit them to the
Department at their earliest convenience, but by no later than October 31.

3. Since the TVR use continued, and no renewals were submitted - A 2015 renewal
packet with all documents was to be submitted at their c::arliest convenience, but
no later than by October 31. The renewal fee's owed: 2009-$150, 2010-$150,
2011-$150, 2012-$150, 2013-$500, 2014 -$500; 2015 -$750, total $2,350.

4. A fine of$500/illegal TVR unit was assessed, total $1,000. The fine was not
levied higher since the kitchen improvements were removed.

Page 2 of2 



DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

DATE/TIME: 9/16/2025 11 :21 AM 

Tax Map Key: 260070070001 

Property Address: 2672 A PUUHOLO RD 
District: Koloa 

Zoning: Residential (R-4) 

PROPERTY OWNER 
NAME: OLSSON,JENS E TRUST 

ADDRESS: C/O OLSSON, JENS E TTEE 
2672 PUUHOLO RD #A 
KOLOA, HI 96756 

NATURE OF COMPLAINT/VIOLATION: 

TYPE: CZO Complaint Case 

Land Area: 3036 

KOLOA, HI 96756 

MANAGER/LESSEE 
NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

DESCRIPTION OF INVESTIGATION 

l. COMPLAINT

On May 21, 2025, the planning department received an email complaint, "Poipu Kauai Vacation 
Cottage", a single-family Transient Vacation Rental was advertising a 3-unit Transient Vacation Rental 
on the subject property. The email contained a hyperlink to the website and photos of the subject 
property. 

(EXHIBITA) 

2. RESEARCH WEBSITE ADVERTISEMENTS
On May 29, 2025, research of online website Poipu Kauai vacation cottages - Hibiscus Cottage - Kauai 

Cove. 
Found an advertisement for "The Hibiscus Cottage" & "The Plumeria Cottage" 2 (two) Transient 
Vacation Rental units advertised in single Dwelling Unit. 

\Vebsite advertisement describing the 2 (hvo) unit's 

a. Description
b. Rates & Reservations
c. Cleaning Fee
d. Address of the property
e. TVNC # 5032



3. On September 11, 2025, clipped website advertisement Poipu Kauai vacation cottages - Hibiscus

Cottage - Kauai Cove. Specifically the calendar for '·PJumeria Cottage" & •· Hibiscus Cottage"

(EXHIBIT B) 

4. On September 11, 2025, research of online website www.airbnb.com found an advertisement for:

Kauai Cove Cottage in Poipu Beach - Guest suites for Rent in Koloa, Hawaii. United States - Airbnb 
Kauai Cove Cottage in Poipu Beach 

Website advertisement describing the 2 (two) unit's 

a. Description
b. Rates
c. Calander
d. Tax Map Key Number
e. TVNCU #5032
f. TA&GE#
g. Reviews left by guest

(EXHIBIT C) 

5. On September 11, 2025, research of online website www.airbnb.com found ,m advertisement for:
Hawaiian-art themed Cottage 300 ft from the Ocean - Cottages for Rent in Koloa, Hawaii, United States -

Airbnb 

Hawaiian-art themed cottage 330 n from the Ocean 
a. Description
b. Rates
c. Calander
d. Tax Map Key Number
e. TVNCU#5032
f. TA & GE#
g. Reviews left by guest

Reviews left by guest describes 3 units in the single 

(EXHIBIT D) 

6. Research TVNCU File:
5032 Renewal 2008

a. TVR Registration and NCU Form
b. Transient Vacation Rental Affidavit
c. Floor Plan
d. Exterior Elevation

Research 5032 Renewal 2014
a. Memorandum dated October 7, 2014
b. Fine Payment dated October 30, 2014



FINDINGS 

Research Findings 
l. The subject single family dwelling unit holds a Nonconforming Use Certificate TVNC 1502 and was

converted into a Motel.

2. The advertisements found on website's, "Poipu Kauai Vacation Cottages" & "airbnb.com"
confirms the operating of the motel use.

3. Reviews left by guest who stayed at the TVR confirms 3 units being rented at the same time
4. Memorandum dated October 7, 2014, in the 2014 renev,ral packet confirms this is a re-established

violation.

VIOLATIONS 

Article 17 General Administrative Regulations 

Section 8-17.10 Nonconforming Use Certificates for Single-Family Vacation Rentals. 

(c) No Nonconfonning Use Certificate shall be issued by the Planning Director unless the

use as a single family rental is a legal use under the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, and

the applicant provides a sworn affidavit. ..

Article 1. General Provisions 
Sec. 8-1.5 Definitions. 
"Motel" means a group of attached or detached buildings containing rooms. designed for or 
used temporarily by automobile tourists or transients, with garages attached or parking space 
conveniently located to each unit, including auto 



(EXHIBIT A) 

Complaint Received 

5/21/2025 
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(EXHIBIT B) 

Online Research 

05/11/2025 

Kauai Cove 

Poipu Kauai vacation cottages - Rental rates and reservations - Kauai Cove. 
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m p Type here lo search 

Plumerta at Kauai Cove t,as a very Hawaiian fHllng 

.

.. wilh a 
Queen Bamboo Canopy Bed, high vaulted i:ailings. nice 
bathroom, lots of woodwor11. and prwate patio area waU, gas 
BBQ grill 

Located on• nice qu5et lane In Polpu Buch ... within a short 
walklng distance IO ti.aches, rwstaurants and shops. 

Kolo.a Landing Cove l5 rtght at the end or the lane .. • great 
place to Snor\fl Ot Swim WTlh Su Turtles. Baby Beach is a 
nice little sandy Buch just 2 blocks away, Lawal Beach nut to 
the Beach House Restaurant Is just 1:, mHe, and Just a 1!2 mlle 
the other d,rectJon Is the best sandy swimming beach in 
Poipu! Just about a mil• to the main Po1pu Beach Park and 
Bre-nnecka's S.ach. 

The new Kukulula Shopping VUL,ige ;s Ju5t a short walk, 
ottering good rttt.1urants. music and shops ,1nd a great 
gourmet farmers martat on Wednesday afternoons 

.,- .-- -----· .... ....-. � -� ·- -
I Reservalion_lnqui"}',, ! 

"ll'� Lu-e •t.Site..;f f,ut idm�t C>H ("(ti.4-lu<"ai, 

Hu..aliNt _..AA.w,i t.-r.uR,,I rut l,a. ::ts ti,,. <:f-,f,!:t 

Oa i rrlt,,r u V-tS ,,,. ,,,.'t,1:-d _fr"", aa a'/ f¼•-

1r�e 9't.utu,7 us e�ul e1'r11ut:J u �,i alf,I!: 

rrrtf"tl!: a,u( l'J:/"l,.A. lru.rR,_,; ft"U f Y't l�•/' • 

•Bool<.ed dattts in ,.., I 

Rates 
Plumer1a Cottage ... S179 • S299 per night 
Pool Cottage ... S179. S299 per night 
H1b1s.cus Cottage ... S179 • S299 per night 

Onlln• Reservation Instructions: 
FIii out the form below .as completely as possible 
You wlll be contacted by emall or phone ror conrrrmatjon or this. 
reservabon reques.t. 

Your E M.ar,I· 
""°"'. 

Address 
c,t.,. 
s, .. , •. 

'roor Comment$. 

Fu• 

#of.Adult$ 

Plum.rla R.atas: S179. S299 
Out-Clean fee· S150 

Cotu-,e .with Kllctwn,n, 
QUffn �mboo CMQPY 8e4 
,1i11 Sc, .. n TV. OVO & St•••0 
,,_, Wl.,I -KCH• & ,-,11l11ng 
4C & Cetfc,,9 F111 
Clock lltJdoo, 11011 I H.11t 0')'et 
■,.xl'I lo-I• cl'I�,,. & cooler 

The Kau.JI Cove Plumeri-1 Cottage Is located at· 
267.Z Puuholo Rd, Kolo.a, HI 967S6 
TVNC f 5032 
Cont.let: (808/ 651-0.Z79 

Poipu 

... .-�t .,·,�:"•'•O I' • .,..,,.,., 

.,_,:":·,. r.�•r ... r:<• +

Ganeral Rent.al Polley 

B.1l•nc.- du, 45 d•.,., proor to amv•t 
All R .. 1"" "'h1,r,cl lo 1111$••• s,,.,,. Turt, 

R,1les a"d avaol,1t,,h1.,. sub1•cl lo ch,11� wtlhout nol1ce 
All •o:commocJ,11lon11 •re Nort-Smok,ng O11ly! 

Payment ■nd Cancellation Policy 

W,. •ccrpl prrson•I chrcks, VISA, M .. -sf•rCud, and O,acovrr 
Mutoc• of c .. ncf'll•lt0n mu,1 � ,.c,,v..t al l,r,,1111O day-s P"°' to 
.,,...,., to receive• full refund C•ncell.tionl fll"C .. Ved Mth-,n IO 
d,.y• of auivat d•lf rwc,1 !ht: lolal 1et1,"'at1on amounl 
W• A:11tcomm•nd TA:AVELIEA:$ INSURANCE lo PfOlect .,.our V•ca1to11 
lnve11trn•nl. P1eue Check out CSA Travtl l'rotecbon II t,866·199· 
4011 or www oc,uloorroutlmur,aocr mm 

K_, Cove Colt.lg•• l'1.11s c reated th1t1 prn,acy 1t.ttement lf1 cwder lo 
d,mo11t1!ral• our firm comm,lm.nl lo privacy � follow,ng di-sci,,.•• 
our 1nforma1,on gathff,ng and d••-•n.itlloo pracbcet1 ro, th•• -�•ff 

K,MUII Cove Cottagrs r•apech tt,e ptlvacy of our cu,to,ners and ,.,.,1. 
"1•1 you, emMI addr"• •nd efl Pft•on•I ,nfOffllabon ar• coof,denl,•I 
FM rhl• reason Kauai Co"We Cotug.s w,M 1'1011•11. rent� lrade any of 
our cut1lomfl ,nformatlon 1Mll'I any lnd1vidu.al or ar,y other comp.anl,• 
Your ir,formallon 111 •afe ar,d cor,fi<Mnbal 

K•u•• Coye Cott.111•• WIii only u•• .a cut1tom•r'• emad 1ddrnt1 lo 
con1•c:t t�m wilh 111-sue,11, reg.archn11 lhetr reservaUon, re,ponct lo 
cu•lomer quetl1ont1, or lo ■dY1t1e a� our •pec,;11111 
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! i
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t 

E:) Oth�rfa, 

0 •· 
t:)Oth�rt. 

L, ..... ,. ____ , __ , ... :_·,,_·.,:,. 



Poipu Kauai vacation cottages - Plumeria Cottage - Kauai Cove. 

PLUMERIA COTTAGE 

0 � https//kau,11cove.com/accommccat:cns/p!uMe-•1a :::o�age ;,hp 

0 l-law.a,1.ar-i A1rt,n,.,;, C f"" '."""�%�§f : ,t�,�

f. :<:>;t....

I' .. • 

[ .,.-: ! 

f 
t 

E ,1,rnnb City PO"l.1r 

I P Type here Iv search 

The Plumeria �pttaqe 

Front patio 

Plumerla at Kauai Cove has a very Hawaiian feeling ... wlth a 
Queen Bamboo Canopy Bed, high vaulted celllngs, nice 
bathroom, lots of woodwork and private patio area with gas 

. ·--7--:, 

\': 

Plumerla Rates: $179 - $299 
Out-Clean fee: S150 

1:,., 

• • • t'

t\.:r-,, tJ""' 

:::§Ji:/ 
:�_),:�.\ I '•



., 

Check i\vailabil" .• 

Back patio with BBQ grill 

The Plumeria Cotta 

Plumerla at Kauai Cove has a very Hawaiian leeling ... With a 

Queen Bamboo Canopy Bed. high vaulted ceilings. nice 

bathroom lots of woodwork and crlvate oatio area with aas 

Plumerla Rates: S 179. $299 

Out-Clean lee: $150 

Queen bamboo canopy bed 

The Plumeria C,Ottaqe 
. .-:. - _.t:,..._· __ _ 

' . 

�\, 
-,� . .



Poipu Kauai vacation cottages - Hibiscus Cottage - Kauai Cove. 

HIBISCUS COTT AGE 

Queen bamboo canopy bed 

Kitchenette 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

): I 



Home Accommodations Rates & Reservations Locatron See & Do About Us Contact Us Blog f 

Patio with BBQ grill 

Type here to se3rch 

The Hibiscus Cottaqe 
,.,.,_u,..,.T•�••� ----• 

'"' 

,, 

Rates & R�rvations 

Call (808) 651-0279 
or Fill out our On-Unc RCS<TV8fion form &low. 

Plumeria Collaqe 

� "'. i Sep1ember, 2025 : >,. 

SUN MON TUE WCO THUR fRI SAT 

fi:JEi.J!mLii:: 

11:at-. 

Plumert.a Cottao• , .. S17i. 1299 per nlgtil 

Pool Cott.age .. S 179 • 1299 per night 

H1b,1,cus Cottage. $179. 1299 pu night 

Onllne lteMrv■tlon Instructions: 

P.xil Collaqe 

« Seprember.2025 ••

IUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI UT 

K:: :Cl i.:: i::J Li i.:i 
l'i."Jl:TIJ.::lillCDi:!5.Dm 
m m m ar:: ?iI:i m to
El El El �.J El K1 Jfl 
l§f.lw.:!� 

llibiscus Collaqe 

« September. 2025 .:-� ·' 

SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI IAT 

K.U:J El E E3 .-..::
l!JJ l:l :, -,;1rn RGJ m E 
}• ; mm: m:nr:i mac 
m m m JD ffl D!i!:l m 
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Al 111•1"''"' 1,1hfM:t In 17 Ill•� Sl•t• Tu•s 

fill out the form IMloW H comP,et•ly H poHlble. 
it.I.-. •nd•n•l.1bolty •vbt"'-tluch.l"QO"withmrt r'Klfk.'1' 

Al .c:c:ommodaf,Olttl au, Non-SfflQok,ng 0Ny1 

.. 
. ' . 

+•II➔ >: 
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'·f'/,;'._:'-:.::.•;; ·'·. \ :'. .. "(:'; 
Call (808) 651-0279

• or fill out our 00-:.Line Reservation form Below·.

·•l••s•; 

Plumeria Cottaqe 

·Booked dates in 

Rates 
Plumeri.a Cott�g• ... S 179 • S299 pgr n1ghl 

Pool Cott.ige .. S 179 - $299 per night 

Hibi<iCU'5 Cottage ... $179 - $2'9 per n�ht 

I P Type here to search ... 
. ' 

8 t1ttps·//kaua1cove.com/r;:1tes rese.,,,i:1t1ons.php 

l•c-sl Compl Jncc D 

PoolCollaqe 

October. 2025 

General Rental Polley 

··1tateS & lteserVafions·

Call (808) 651-0279 

Hibiscus Cottaqe 

·,�� '. October. 2025 

• • V • '• 

or fill out our On-Line Reservation form Below· 

Plumeria Collage 

I_ _ ; _;,:J November. 2025 • » 

SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT 

lr7' 
� iIHlliJ lril i�: i. ,a 

riJ r@l ffi.J fitHi!.:.l lfil'l Et; 
m:J 51:3 Hi] [iJ iii] 2i -. :22. 
t2(:���if:J�J� 
r30··; 

'Booked dates in cc 

Rates 

Plumeria Cottage ... $179 • $299 per night 

Pool Cottage ... $179. $299 per night 

Hibiscus Cottage ... $179 • $299 per night 

Pool Cottage 

• November, 2025 ,.

SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT 

[!Il 
ii.::J [L Eii i;J i!J l!1J EJ 
1!3 lfiJ tiEHfi:J lfi3 fEl m1J
iir1 6D tiTI m:J m lffiHii1 
� g] fzs]�J � � � 
� 

Hibiscus Collage 

SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT 

·., ... 
LEJ !i'.21 [':'.J :s': re .. :> a .. •

�-:c: �!��-: [�}:�� fj�� '. (j3: .. � ;,�� �,s 
'.ie:�; i:ir: r,s-; t,9�: r.20·_, :2, ·: 22.; 
@llliJP.TI§]WJ�[,JV] 
� 

General Rental Polley 

50•;. Deposit required to eonr,rm a Rtnrvat1on 

Balance due .C5 d.ays prior to arrival 

eJ Cth•l,1. 

C 



� L) httpsJ/kJt.accove.com/rJtl's. re�crv:1t1t,;nr, php 

/::;·{:'/:!.:�,-:·;t??f .··�.� -:
'"/;

CaJI (808) 651-0279 

.' • ,,:. , 

11··•.•' 

or fm out oti� On:,;Line R�on form Below·. 

Plumeria Cottage 

<< December� 2025 ,: ;_, . 

'Booked dates in 

Rates 

Plumena Cottage ... $179 • S299 per night 
Pool Cottag• ... $179. $299 per night 
H1btSCU'S Cottage ... $179 • $299 per night 

General Rental Policy 

Hibiscus Collage 

« • December, 2025 

so•.,_ Deposit required to confirm • Reservation 

B.1lance due! .t5 days prior to arrival 

ltates �d{eservations • 
., .. ___ ..__,,.._ _____ ..,... ___________________ _

Cali (808) 651-0279. 
or Fill out our On-Line Reservation form Below' 

Plumeria Cottage 

« . January. 2026 

'Booked dates in • .• , 

Rates 

Plumeria Cottage ... $179 - $299 per night 
Pool Cottage ... $179 - $299 per night 
Hibiscus Cottage ... $179. $299 per night 

Pool Cottage 

January, 2026 (_ » 

General Rental Policy 

Hibiscus Cottage 

January, 2026 • » 

SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT 

[Iii:7�1 

so•A1 Deposit fe!qulr•d to confirm a Renr"fatton 

BalJ.nc• due 45 day5 prior to arrival 



� hnps://kaua'cove.com/rates reservation, php 

I
'"'·"''--"'�·, 
:i;�����,.� 

•''•\.''.t.,,. ' 
• ,, .. \,¾: "'

L .,. 
f .:��l·<t?:• 
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or Fili out our On:..Ltne Reservation form Below 

Plumeria Cottage 

February. 2026 ·, >; 

"Booked dates ,n 

Rates 

Plumeria Cottage ... S179 - S299 per nighl 

Pool Cott3ge ... S179 • S299 per night 

Hibiscus Cottage ... $179. $299 per night 

Pool Cottage 

February. 2026 
SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT 

K31¥.:l OCi:J H:J tEHi::J C[J 
fiZl IEJ rnJ m ti[] nrc fHJ 
mJ MJ m:J mJ m ii:1 � 
fif]����tiJ:j!'ffl 

General Rental Policy 

Hibiscus Cottage 

« 1 February. 2026 

so•.'. Deposit required lo confirm a Re!:t�rv.Jlion 

Bal.Jnce due 45 days prior lo .arrival 

G 



(EXHIBIT C) 

Online Research 

05/11/2025 

Airbnb 



£airbnb r:,J: Homes1nm,1pare.1 Anyweek lguest G

507 home\ w,thm map ite.1 

Guest suite in l<oloa * 4 91 {116) Cottage in Koloa Home in Poipu • "h�\,. 

I � , , 1 i,. , 1 • 

• 

·-�..::. .... -::{j 
Cii P lypc here to sc,1•ch • •, , 

X 

About this space 

$1,182 

$1,HJ � ... $1,101', 

0 p ! .. 

Be-come ,1 host • = • 

$2,848 t90 

$1,629 

+ 

$1,442 
St,746 

$1,5l3 : -
$Ul14 

Tropical Cottage in Poipu Beach with kitchenette, AC and WI-Fl! Only 300 feet from the Ocean! 
Quiet perfect location,just steps from beaches, snorkeling, restaurants and shops. 
TVNCU #5032 - GE#W01238856-02 & TA#W01238856-01 
This Property is located within Kauai Tsunami Evacuation Zone 

The space 
The cottage has a very Tropical Hawaiian feel with lots of woodwork and high vaulted ceilings. 

Other things to note 
We provide beach towels, chairs and a cooler TVNCU Registration #5032/ GE#W01238856-02 & 
TA#W01238856-01 

Registration Details 
260070070001 



Photos Amenities Reviews Location 

3 nights in Koloa 

October 2025 

3 nights in Koloa 

December 2025 

10 " 12 

,. 

November 2025 

" 

January 2026 

13 

21 22 

Cle-ardates 

� Rare find' This place is usually booked 

.$.1,Qg for 3 nights 

10/27/2025 

GU!m 

1 guest 

CHECICOUT 

10/30/2025 

You won't be charged ,et 

(J 

� Rare tind! Th,s pl.-lCe is usuc1!1y booked 

C'HfC••W 

10/77/7015 

C'Hl'CICC">UT 

,0;30110,s 

.. t!.:.;�J 
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Photos Amenities Reviews Location 

3 nights in Koloa 

May2026 

10 11 12 13 14 15 

17 18 19 20 21 22 

24 25 26 27 28 29 

31 

3 nights in Koloa 

March 2026 

16 

23 

30 

12 13 

19 20 

']I_, II 

June 2026 

April2026 

10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 

21 ,, 23 24 

JO 

,:" Rare t,nd! This place is usually booked 

$1,� for 3 nights 

CH[CX , .. 

10/27/2025 

CUl'ifS 
lguest 

CM[CIOUT 

10/30/2025 

Yov wont be chc1rged yet 

lfAl ±,::�-J 

� Rare find! Thi,; plACP.1� u .. uitlly b<lok�d 

_$J,� for 3 o,ghts 

CHIIC("4 

10/2712025 

C"41CKOUT 

10/30/202S 

-
Ycu won't be chdrgej yet 

... a,;.�,-; 

0 t'= 



Photos Arnlft1,ti111� RtrYi.,.,v'I Locat.nJn 

3 nights in Koloa 

January 2026 

Entire guest suite in Koloa, Hawaii 
] 'JU("ih 1 t-.:-droom I bed 1 t.:ith 

(J Guest � 
� favorite p' 

�fo'lted by E.J. 

□ Setfchcck In 

One of the most loved homes on 
Airbnb, according to guests 

Comfy txid fOf ootte, ilcep 

February 2026 

ClearQJtei 

4.91 116 

Trop caI Cottage !fl Po1pu Beact-i wrth 'crtchenette. AC ard WI-ft! On 1y 300 feet from tr,e 
Occ.1n! O .. tet perfect location.Just steo,; tram !:lc.1ct,cs. sriorkel,ng. rc�tJ:...r.1nts Jnd 

-� R.\retindl n,,�pl,\e�l'l!JSUllllybooked 

Cl"ltC•IN 

10/17/2015 

�srs 

1 gue�t 

Ci--tCII.OUT 

1C/l0/202S 

Add dates for prices 

or, .. f, .. , 
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Guest favorite 
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West� 
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e: � Clc.Jrlmcss 

··••< 0 Accvra,c-, 

Cozyll1 

.nrvve: 

tight,( 
(::), Chcci< in 
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3 P Type here lo seJr<.h 

Photo� Amen,ties Re\liews LOC.thon 

Neighborhood highlights 

Meet your host 

419 

4.91• 
..... 

E.J. 11 

., • 

.. 
i 

., 

109 reviews Moslr�,1nt v 

Ap,111014 

Fo, :t,� o,�;e :r-�: .,e l)J •J. w,ee .. ;,e,ted .t dt>.�·1er b,gqer a,xi ,ette· fvn'11.Jr'1•CJ 
0..:1,·.- T!'-1'i -.u,h• ,<; �.irt '>f .1 iar )"' ou,kl,01.J th,lt wc·lvc1-'•<, ,1noth�•r <,._i-f,� ·en�1H1 �y 
.JI�! �..IP� The bdlhl .>c;m h.,.d d :J1')! fl\.li�" <;,n•�:1, dlld ti',� oii1,t:11\ <1111J :t·� 'r1d,,1e 
w-er_,, 1/f>rt IOI.Jd v,.·� ".I@ f,> .... r'1 too m.tny <;,fr;and'!; of �<'II' in rr,� b.t�rtoo<"l"'t, too mv<I-I 
u,.. .. t Of' !ht> IJ••;u,·tJ ,ll'(l l•)l)ft",;\'•Y '!>I.Un'!,� lh ... bt>(!d,ry ,lf1(1 th .. ttJwt'+i 10 :JL•I 
J.I,. ,,� tt � .... ,, '"f";\\l'I) '  r,,.r,n� C.o,T't'tll"i""t.'"<; :i...,,�9 cur,,�, b ,t CVlJ'Cn � S•t Cllt<,,H1t" r 
�h,p �,t,.:i., ,�,d "thdl ,t·e.t .,...,-; rot CO\�• ed pr-:,pP.ily. nor Nl'I'!, !h• lrO"'l 1il•:::t 
111h<'1 cm n,• turk,.,� nn1• tJ,...!._ l",rn"'• ,n tr-1• rn,i, "'1 r.1,n ind tr·r�.t,>t'f'tf'f •r.,• 
O,cnit" ,,,'.,..\..:•J! y':!l:1r"M";_, dre11::t'1!:J Tt-e J��r,t,�,;, """'� n.cl! .t<•d :t e 
':0,-,n"•�T"tC,'\fOOW,1",Qt,;. 

SJ.Q.ie 
fnrJn,gt·t<; 
• 491 

E.J. is a Super host 

<3 

Superhosts are ellperienced. highly rat;ed host; "'""o are committed to prov,d1ng great 
stays for g\.ests 

Host details 

Respon'ie rate· 1QQ·'(, 
Respor'ld; wi�h1n an hour 

Message host 
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Hawaiian-art themed Cottage 300 ft from the Ocean - Cottages for Rent in Koloa, Hawaii, United States -

Airbnb 

➔ (j C) t-,nps//W\V\"-clirbnb.COl'T'li'CC,,,s.'S0996623's,;urce irnpress,:::·1 rd-::p3 17576�10)2 F3c0'.'<w'C�N-1:!'.,PVz1 

£airbnb (i; Anywhere Anywt!-ek Addguests G Become A ho1ot • 

Hawaiian-art themed Cottage 300 ft from the Ocean .:!i Shart Q Save 

Entire cottage in Koloa, Hawaii 
2 guc�ts Studio -1 bed 1 bath Add dates for prices 

fl . Gue�t � One of the most loved homes on 4.94 68 

I P Type hcrt! to !"ICdrch 

1' •..--., •' �•-•• ... -• ...... �. h, • ,•-,•�, 

Photos AmifnlttH lteYIIWI Location 

the-beaten path In an Ideal �auon 1n .. o,pu tseach. I ne t.:otta� has a krtc�nette, AJf.;. 
high speed wit!, & conven' • • • • .,. • • • • 

• Shopping center, nearbi" x 
nearby. .j 
TVNCU 15032 • GE#WD 
This Property Is located: • ' 

Showmore ., 

;1 

•• What this place J
. . . . I

Q Shared beach ecce •• 
'I 

� Free porting on P'j
_ 

Ait conditioning 

Hairdryer 

About this space 

CutP. Hawai1:1n .1rt themed or.P. o;tory o;ttJd•o ;ust 300 feet from the OCC',1n in .1 Q\Jll�t off-the bl"!atf'n 

path 1n an idc�1l loc<1t1on rn Fo1pu Bc.,ch The CottJgc has a k.1tchcncttc, A/C higl"I speed v,ifl, & 
convenient pdt10 park,ng uyht 1r1 front You Cdll walk to Kuku1uld Shopµ1r1y center. nedrby beaches., 
sea turtles, lf.ayak:1ng, & an assortment of restaur�nts nearby. 

"TVNCU NS032 - GEti!W01238856-02 & TA=\o',JQ12J88S6-01 
This Property is located within Kauai Tsuriami Evac1,,;ation Zone 

Registration Details 
260070070001, TA-140 371 7632 01 

El Refri<;jerator 

CHrcaour 
:, d ,., 1' 



Entire cottage in Koloa, Hawaii 
2 guests• Studio• 1 bed 1 bath 

I} Guest � 
� favorite tf,' 

Hosted by E.J 

il Self check 1n 
l r--. , :

One of the most ioved homes on 
Airbnb, according to guests 

� ComfybedlOfbetterSleep 
I .,•· 

4.94 68 
••••• 

Cvtc Howaii.:in art thcrrcd onc•stcry stud o JU�t JOO feet from ttic cccJn 1n a quiet off 

Photos Amenities Reviews Location 

5 nights in Koloa 

September 2025 

1.1 15 

11 12 

October 2025 

13 

27 2') )<) 

� 

it 

Add dates for prices 

0,.10(-IN 
.l..}r:I !•! 

GUUTS 
19..,est 

• : . ·, 'Che�k ��ail;bolit; l . ,. , .>•, , 

a:• 

': Rare find! This place is usually booked 

$1,707 for 5 n;ghts 

CHECK IN 
12/9/202S 

GUUTS 

1 guest 

CHECKOUT 
12/14/2025 

You won't be charged yet 

.. B..:,�q 



0 (') hnp�J/WW'_._..airbnb.ccm/rooms/29434-tC/reviews .. ad'u'ts= 1 &search_ rrcde=-regt.tar _search&.501..-ce_impres�ion_:d .;.pJ _ 175 76i06 l 1 _P3fspct... :.:: 

. -i 
·­

. - , ...... � 

....... 

Thilcd 
detans: 
ICCOrTI 

� 
l 

. . . 
. .:-......,..,._ ;,.,.._..__.__ ; ... �•--- ",.,_ _ _...,. :.:.·,, ;,_:_�,,,;..·_,,��---' 

X 

t4.91) 
Guest favorite 

Ovi?rall rating 

3• 

l,'; 

0 

Cleanliness 

Accurdcy 

Check 1n 

,o 

•• 
,o 

116 reviews 

Our stJy w,1s wonderf1.,l1 We 1,·cre cclcbra!ing our J:2 )C.:irs ll:cd,j1ng Anr1vcrs.1r:, 
.-ina , .. e could no� have p•cked a better plar.e Th� :::ott.age ..,.,.c; beA•Jt!h,I and very 
coi:1! I w ii t"l1gh y recorirrend th!i cute ,:ottag e to my family aind fr•ena�. 

•••• * July'°'" 
Tht� cotf,ll)•� ..,.,,; thr. per fr.ct ">Ill'.' hr ffiJ" hi;sb.lrd ,1nd 11 he,i lho, .... gh ,,au -m" n(!xt I 
rec;tJurarts and beact-.es ""'"kt- 11\as ver I co,"�en1ent ,.vovld st.1·1 dga1r! 

• \ ., Q Commurico1t1on 
W,��ffia. 

tu otri1"r'> e"�rytti111g ft"ll p11vc1te and qu,el. Tl� OCdl,on !'> nttclf ,t k,t of 

j 
e !I:.�.=, .......... ,. • 

=��:.;,.-:·�-� ,:����-,,�---�7""' .,,__,.� "'"'•�·T'---� .·' .. 

[] ,..,m,hCryF'tttol 

Pliotos Amenit-es R�vicw� Location 

Cara 
B•!thlehem. r><;,>r-trs•p-,,n13 

M.i:,2025 ,I,,. 

Cute pl-1ce, very cle,tn and hd<; everything you nt>t-!d Hn,t w.-,,;, 
grP.,1t ;mrt responsive FP.lt right ,1� home Ea<,y w,1!k to 
beaches. resta urJ1,t:t, g reat break.fa st Felt hke a true locJI. 

••••• January2025 �, , .. J .. , 
This cottage is so charrning and thoughtful1;· designed ,n 
every detail We loved ti-ie 1slaf'ld decor and the fully equ,pped 
k1�:hen (,t even has a rice cooker), and a ppreciated the .. 

Show all 116 reviews � �, , 

0 Allyson 
J yec1rs on A1rbnb 

••••• Febru.iry 2025 ;· , 

$J,ZQ1 
fer 5 r,,qht·; 
•o191 

w� stayed here for a ....,,..ek. on our honeymoon Trie pl,:1ce i,; 
co,y ;,nd h,1d everything we nf'E-d1?d and more The bed was 
very comfortJble and the place w.H very cle,ui. HJ._-irg .in A. .. 

� 

I_;,� Cassandra 
� S:i<l Jose, Ca1oforn,,1 

••••• September 2024 �\.,, 
This cottage in Poipu was •ddorable·11l had the c utest 
Hawaiian charm, and the location was perfect Just a short 
wa!k awJy, we found .1 secret littie cove where turtles were .. 

0 t': 



0 wv.w airtwb c.cm 

, -, , ............. �- ,,..._...,, .. ...-- ..,,-...~·. -� ,. -.� �"'•··"'·· .,,._"S,.·,.-q,· .;,.-v < -�-�. - . _.,.,.,,� "'''" 
'' • . . � . ·'.. : . ' 

Photos -------- ______ ,.__._...,;... __ ·.-- � ---�.:...�-------· . .  ,.··---- j .. 

-· 
--•I 

everytl 
� 

1 

e: 
···••'

_westa! 
cozy1i 
'fflycci 

X 

�4.91) 
Guest favorite 

,. 

. _ ••• � • j 0 Acc1..ncy 
_ Cozy� 

aMI� � Check-in 
tight. C 

.. 

., 

109 reviews Mo�t rolcv.:mt v 

Q 

••••• J.,ly ?016 
He.Vil ht!IJM'<1 pl,l'l ....,t 'il,1)' lll1l ;t.1yt�: ifi r.G'l(,ICt will) 'Tlf' ;.•�P,.11 .... � .... � 1n 
Jd.ancc MJCe svrc ,..,c hJo c·�cr,t"'ll'ICJ '"'c needed AI\.\J,·S :cspcncs ,n.:, t,m,;•1:, 

m-1.,..,e�,,,"l:::I o; ,:.,..,,y'i t-rlpf,..,I Con,)<Jf" •'i '>*'� up 1"' ,1 l'-on1._•1 moor \Lite ,inc 1t t<, 
.-,.,!I d..,•,1ynt!d .ind purpo-;� t:u,� fer� bt'.trh •,tti;-t:10n Su1lt1 ,i p.trt of ,1 '>IJ!J,o In• 
p •?� Tf'\e 1tten1,on !:> •jl?t,1,1 l(>J,1 met:, �•�ve �hr nost "IJd done t'\e ,.,.c,i, 
t- ,�.S(•/f, Ah("h 11,il•�r co,,firmt·r1 .,,,,.thh,m tn tw tr·" fl(; �lr<'ll WOf��-, p,;t', th,11 
m.,ch car� ,nto tht!ir JCbS. �1 ... t1h,I o:�I harCNOCd anc o..1mtoo tn'T\. Feels 11L.t! 
"Ome ,r S()(T'lt' olOc",ls.Wt drea,-.., One of 1t-� nicest Df!J.;ri comr-"'11..1n,!,e'i en ,..,e 
isJ Jilli Al•lJ�,ny U"1d� ... .JPI.!� i,1 th\! "Wlw .. u l.!.J Vc1 '/ clo� �;) W..Kht;:,. 11.Jlill JI'\! 
V'lcpp -,g Lc:;s tt-,m 1,'� ,...,1c ,¥.tlk, ()l"j �,11 re>1d!.!nl JI �tr<.?ct�, tc B.Jt:iy 9,:,1ct­
P·1c:c ......... "'-"' f CCr'pt!tlth·tt Tr-c orly '.o..>rn f1..11 impo�..:rPt."1"lt 'l4..•rtJ W,JU!cJ be,) 
-,.J':J'ltt• • 11.J jryer, ott"II:,,,.,� lcJ1) t 111Jy11'tt ... riot ,,.01.1kJ Ot! i.,.,1-)ttnur t,.;, tr• i. pl..JC1:t 
f..>r d coupl� l:J ildf OI'' k.ll.JI OflUXf 

0 

I, 

. 
-

� ... -:,,; .. O COfTlfT\unlc.1t1on 
---.-.------·----- .. _..,-,.,.�-��'"';-'-�---"'" 

P Type here to seJrch 

wwwa1rbnb.com .• ,.. • •,. 1 

Q H.sw,1,1.tri A,rl,ne\ C.. [:";! •1tbnb C,t'/ Port.JI 

Kauai's reviews 

••••••1wttkag;, 

greot � ,WO<Adstayagain 1; 
-. 

ShowmoreNvlews i 

Ho\t Co'llphanc� 0 

ti Mikaela 

Great location, walking distance to a cozy beach and restaurants. We appreciated the edra like 
the DVDs (we watched all three Jurassic parks) and the beach gear. We were not provided any 
instructions for check in other than that the door would be unlocli:ed but we didn·t know what 
room we were staying in or where to p,1rk. I called the contacts provided and they were quick to 
respond They even called later to check in on us. Overall a great stay 

Michelle 
C'.�-- ,,•·,1 ... ;;. 

,1 
I · i Perfect location and very comfortable. 

Kauai's listings 

P Type here to search 

-1 
l 
-� "'-� Jan Christoph 

0 

Become a host 

:. 

'> 



(EXHIBIT D) 

Records Research 

1) TVR Registration and NCU Form

2) Transient Vacation Retnal Affidavit

3) Floor Plan

4) Evxerior Floor Plan
5) Plot Plan



COUNTY OF JCAUAI 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

I 

TVR REGJ:STRATION AND NCO FORM 

REAL PROPERTY DIVISION 808-241-6222 
PLANNING DEPARTMXNT 808-241-6677 Registration ff _.J,,.--,t.'....,,-..L=..',,��­

Date Received,_1,4=..u,:u, __ 
Date Approved. _____ _ APPLICANT E/'.,4v,,v'. rt: 1;>1A,A/E .??,,t,5�oA..I 

ADDRESS,:;;,?? P{',,? ;CJ,t..,� .#�.u::, ..-,1:?..J:, #A 
kp.t.P,4 , ,#_-r 947S4? 

Plans By ____________ _ 
Fee $ _________ Date ___ _ 

APPLICANT IS: (check one) 
� Owner o! Property 

NOTE: •Lessee must have an unexpired 
and recorded lease of five (SJ years 
or more from date of filing this 
application. 

Lessee of Property - Number of Years 
-- Leased From. ____ to Sign: ______________ _ 

Authorized Agent • Attach L __ e_t_t_e_r_o_f_ 
--Authorization. 

Print: ______________ _ 

__ Proprietor of TVR operation 
property Info 

Tax Map K�.Y),,?-,6-&07-o?i_&".�1 ___ ff of Building" on CPR or Lot I 
Zoning - SLUO �-General Plan _________ County _________ _ 

Establishment Info 

Establishment name and Address k"Au4/ t:!,P//¢ 

9 6 7 5" t:; c£.C: %,;> ,l?aU'h'o.u:, ./?i;> , u:--01-0/l, H..Z-

Description of Operation (no. of rooms, no. of units etc.) ,2n,e/'t"v/�/L-J'.,,(/f:; 
� ,ne,,-P -/r-fi t2_ .. ,d ,u! V✓.c✓.:.,.?,. ;,.-., � h-, ,!__ 

,z{ g��LJ 
. 

8 �M 
G.E. License #/'.-v-¼?'Z'P",:,::::9z"� •,:;,/ TAT License # /v",z'Oz'.e-5"9�-c:>./ 
24 Hour Contact Info .E. ;;r ,t, .l!_/A,v..,r o��.so,,..I ("" 9"'<=>8"J 7�.,,,-,.,7.SC::,�
Date TVR Use Started 

,/copy of For the 

Attachments provided 

/<?q:r-

Safety and Comfort of You and Your Neighbors 

(G.E.License, TAT License, Units in TVR Use etc.) 

aE /_ /=,.?Jc. .t=- -:7/l 7"" ..t./ '°= -�e- / 
----:,?.., ,z.r' c�J/�....s ""/1 �-J:- --:r?Jr p.:,,, s=,,,c:.s /'f9� -,:; &'� �� �¢:z:;,9-r 

�� ��
_, e CA-PCE�c---P �J en-, 

k�s ;/:u?Sr!- />:: d /...CZ Co/1h/;>'1 /f17';.0l"I.S .,�ftl'oe::..t?✓'./-

-/-r�n�. h,1j/;�r.... /Y"7,.-,,,..,,/1.q,./! -.l:: ��;,,k. 

COUNTY OF llUAI PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Inspections 

To be initialed by Planning Dept. Staff 

-

.s-r n-, ✓ <

The subject property has no violations 
� l 

i The subject property was inspected on J{( :0 
The property has the following violations_...:__ __ __,_ _____________ _ 

To be initialed by Planning Dept. Staff 

The subject property does not qualify for single family vacation rental uses. 

5/7 /08 

7.: 

�, 

� 



County of Kaua'i 
Planning Department 

NCU# TV-/, 
Operation Name /{AuA:L co VE 

TRANSIENT VACATION RENTAL AFFIDAVIT OF 

if�s OU&fr2&11 Z>, :B. "9-. ,l::;,t;nA-/ c Dll'"t

STATE OF _ _.Q. ... 'A-""'".ICJW....,A;c:a...-/J..,.'{_ 

COUNTY OF /<A-u,1:/ 

) 
) ss.
) 

I; 3"GN$ 01-:S.SoAI , being first sworn upon oath, deposes and says: 

1. My name is, :r,vJs 01-SSoN and I make this affidavit 

based on my personal knowledge. 

2. I am the owner of the property identified as TMK: (�) 2 - I, - 0 7: o 7 #:-A-

with a mailing address of 2-3&,7 Hoot{u Rl>, kakot!t, HI 9t-7s-�

3. I have operated a transient vacation rental(s) on the property since. __ _ 
II /e,1/97 . ' under the business name of. ___ k�'/l-.Z""« ... 0-.�1-... e-""o>::..>V".'-iE�------

4. My State of Hawai'i General Excise Tax license number is W ¥p9 � 6"'/'lt.- o /

_____ and I have paid General Excise and Transient Accommodation Taxes in 

accordance with State Law during the period{s) the Transient Vacation Rental was in 

operation. 

5. Building permit number(s) ____ t:/.......,¥_--"'3'-5"'---q�3�------

were approved on -:z. / 15 / 95"
, I 

for all structures on the property and 

there were no expansions, alterations, improvements, or uses contrary to State and 

County land use and planning laws. 

6. There __ were � were not any legal expansions or improvements

made on the property after March 7th 2008. Improvements and expansions took place 

under the following permits. __ .:.N"-'/L..:A-"'-----------------



' 
NCU# __ _ County of Kaua'i 

Planning Department Operation Name ______ _ 

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAU

�.......-, 

N 

;lG,A/$ 0� /officia I sea I 

s ( U, (?t\.:� 
Date 

My commission expires: 

D D t 3 ( ( _r.., he<.' 'I # p 2-
oc. a e: ______ ;___ ages __ _ 

Notary Name:� ·1 A �'"' '''> J_ rd. "'""'-f< S �ircuit 

Doc. Description: • / {2-t,v J IL"'-', ( I {+(.17 ;v;,./ /2[,-..J¼-( 

l]if-/J")lh,,'"t I cf" 77v-.J 1 t' c. l: �( ,-...,
(!' ,C;_ /I hb I.,_, ( C L1-)

-2-

·-
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(EXHIBIT D) 

Records Research 

1) Memorandum dated Oct 7, 2014

2) Payment of Fine



BERNARD P. CARVALIIO, JR. 
�IAYOR 

NADINE NAKAI\IURA 
�1A.'I.\Cr..G OtRCC'T0R 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

October 7, 2014 

File 

COUNTY OF KAUA'I 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

44-1-1 RICE STREET 
KAPULE DUlLDJNO, SUITE A47J 

LIIJU'E. KAUA'I, HAWAJ'J 96766-1326 

TEI. (808) 241-1050 FAX (808) 24 I �699 

MEMORANDUM 

Michael Laurcta, Plann� 

Reconsideration ofTV�2/5032 
Eydun & Diane Olsson 
TMK 2-6-7: 7 (I) 

Inconsistencies in this file necessitated a meeting with the Olsson's. 

MtCIIAEL A. DAIIILIG 
DIRECTOR Of PUSSl:\G 

DEEM. CROWELL 
DEPl!TY DIRECTOR OF rLANNINO 

• The application packet for a TVR was submitted on August 4, 2008. Said packet was
complete with all documentation required by Ordinance.

• 26 months later, a cease & desist letter dated October 12, 2010 was issued by the
Department. In this letter, reference is made to a denial of the TVR application on March 
30, 2009. 

• This March 30, 2009 denial was not by letter, as no copy exists in the file. Further, the
Olsson's say they never received such a letter of determination.

• By letter dated October 27,2010 the Olsson's attorney Charles Foster requested a copy of
the March 30, 2009 determination letter. The Department nei•er responded or
acknowledged this request.

• On November 16, 2010 the Department received an "Appeal of Denial of Use Permit
Application" from Foster. The Department nei·er responded or acknowledged this
request.

• On December 2, 20 IO Foster again requests information regarding the denial of the TVR 
application. The Department never responded or acknowledged this request.

• 3 years later, on December 16, 2013 the Planning Commission approved the referral of
the Olsson appeal to a Hearings Officer. The Olsson's new attorney Jonathan Chun was 
notified of this action.

I 



I 

On October 6, 2014 inspectors Bambi Emayo, Vil Balisacan, and I met with the Olsson's 
regarding their application packet. They confirmed the following: 

• Internet advertising to this date was still for 3 TVR "units" (although 2 of them did not
have "kitchens";

• Two kitchens had been removed as a result of the I 0/12/10 Department letter. They did
not contact the Department to notify them of such removal;

• The Olsson's purchased the property "as is" and made no improvements or alterations.
They continued the use as it existed when purchased in 1997.

To resolve this appeal, based on the above, reconsideration was determined appropriate. The 
following was agreed to: 

1. Website advertising was to be changed immediately to reflect only I TVR unit;
2. Utility improvements (i.e. 220 electrical outlets, propane gas lines, interior

locking doors, exterior door locks, etc.) were to be changed by October 31. They
are to take before and after pictures of these changes and submit them to the
Department at their earliest convenience, but by no later than October 31.

3. Since the TVR use continued, and no renewals were submitted - A 2015 renewal
packet with all documents was to be submitted at their earliest convenience, but
no later than by October 31. The renewal fee's owed: 2009-$150, 2010-$150,
2011-$150, 2012-$150, 2013-$500, 2014 -$500; 2015 -$750, total $2,350.

4. A fine of$500/illegal TVR unit was assessed, total $1,000. The fine was not
levied higher since the kitchen improvements were removed.

Page2 of2 
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COUNTY OF KAUAI 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

No. 54481 

iQ_ 
($ \�O l DOLLARS 

I 



October 13, 2025 

Jens E. Olsson 

5980 A Lokelani St 

Kapaa,Hl 96746 

Kaaina S. Hull 

Director of Planning 

County of Kauai 

4444 Rice Street Suite A473 

Lihu'e, Hawaii 96766 

NOTICE OF APPEAL OF REVOCATION OF TVNCU PERMIT #5032 

To the Honorable Commission, Planning Director, and Members of the Planning Department: 

I respectfully submit this appeal regarding the proposed revocation of my Transient Vacation 

Rental Non-Conforming Use Permit, TVNCU #5032. I have operated this business openly and 
continuously for 28 years and ask that you grant my appeal, allowing me to continue operating 
with a clear commitment to immediate and full compliance with County fegulations. 

My appeal is based on the following: my actions taken since receiving the notice of intended 

revocation, my long history of good-faith effort, and the severe personal hardship I face. 

I. Commitment to Immediate and Full Compliance

In response to the certified letter I received on October 8, 2025, I immediately began taking 
action to conform to the single-unit requirement and eliminate any basis for future complaints: 

1. Cessation of Duplicity: I have ceased all advertising and the acceptance of any future

reservations for more than the single legally permitted unit on all platforms, including my

website, www.kauaicove.com.

2. Reservation Cancellation: I have cancelled and fully refunded all future reservations that
exceeded the use of a single unit. My reservation calendar is now in conformity with the
intended single-unit use of the permit.

3. Physical Compliance: I am ensuring that the internal structure is now in physical
compliance with County vacation rental laws, confirming the property is utilized only as a
single rental unit.

4. I removed all signage and obvious indications of my rental.

.\-1 .. "J-_ IA. 
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II. A Good-Faith Operational Misunderstanding

I mistakenly believed that my operational method was acceptable, primarily because the County 

repeatedly approved my annual permit renewals while my method of operation was openly 

apparent. My mistaken belief was reinforced by the following: 

• Annual County Renewal: I timely applied for and was granted a TVR permit by the

County year after year, providing documentation and adhering to all safety requirements.
• Fiscal Accountability: I have consistently and accurately paid all required taxes, including

the significantly increased property taxes levied by the County for vacation rental use

and the timely collection and remittance of the KVAT.

• Reduced Impact: I was operating under the sincere, though mistaken, belief that renting

out two smaller units was quieter and resulted in less overall impact (fewer people, less

socializing) than renting the entire property to one large group.

Regarding the specific points of the complaint: 

• Advertising Clarification: The third advertised "Cottage" was for a friend's legally

permitted property near Brenneke's inside the VOA, not on my property. 

• Parking Clarification: The vehicle shown in the complaint photograph was my own

vehicle, parked at the property, which the complainant mistakenly identified as a renter's

car, possibly because it resembled a rental.

I have never received a noise complaint from any neighbor over my 28 years of operation. 

Ill. Request for Consideration and Hardship 

This permit represents more than just a business; it is my only means of providing for my family. 

• I am a long-time resident and member of the Kaua'i community.

• I am approaching 65 and have a considerable financial hardship that would result from

an immediate and complete shutdown.

• This rental income is my sole source of income (aside from sporadic handyman work)

and is currently supporting the college education of my son; born and raised on Kauai.

I am not asking to continue the duplicative use. I am humbly asking for the opportunity to 

operate my business as a single unit, given my 28-year operational history, my clean record, 

and my immediate steps to achieve complete compliance. 

I trust the Commission and the Department will consider my full commitment to operating 

lawfully going forward. Thank you for your time and consideration of my appeal. 

Respectfully, 

Jens E. Olsson 



►, 

Appeal Considerations ... Kauai Cove #5032 

1. I will now operating completely compliant with the planning department's

requirements, removing all items that could construe more than one cooking area or any

living arrangement other than that of a single-family residence.

2. I have cancelled and refunded all my redundant reservations for all future time periods,

and now only have one reservation for the entire property for all future remaining

bookings.

3. I have removed all signage and obvious indications of rental use.

4. I openly and honestly never tried to conceal the way I was operating, and all

applications for renewal were reviewed and approved by the County over many years.

I honestly thought the County wouldn't mind that way of operation, since I could have

otherwise rented to 2 couples as one group anyway.

5. House has no stove anywhere. No gas anywhere. No 220V power inside anywhere, so

there are no built-in cooking appliances, just small moveable ones. There is no

dishwasher anywhere either. There are no lockouts to either bedroom, only privacy locks

on the inside doors.

6. Since there is no real kitchen at all on the property, I was under the impression the

County wouldn't mind if I rented to 2 couples separately, as opposed to two couples as

one group. I hope this is seen as a smaller infraction, since I've worked so hard to be

compliant in every other way.

7. Community Impact -Two independent couples, in each bedroom area, are much less

impactful on my neighbors than for example 2 couples or a group socializing together.

Therefore, I have never gotten any noise complaint in my 28 years of operating.

8. Unique Structure -The property is an "Odd Duck" in that it was never purposed as a

single-family residence. I bought it as a triplex in 1997 when it was used to house

timeshare salespeople working at Lawai Beach Resort.



9. Hardship -This is my only source of income except for a little handyman work I do for

neighbors in the area. I will be 65 years old soon, and I have a son in college that was

born and raised here. I need the income from this, so I hope I can continue given these

changes now.

10. Misunderstanding -I believe the complaint was a misunderstanding from a neighbor's

associate that I am friendly with, and would like to address later to resolve, if possible. I

feel I get along with all my neighbors extremely well.

11. Culturally Unique -Kauai Cove is a one-of-a-kind rental. The artwork and wall hangings

include pictures of old Kauai from the Kauai Museum, and I teach people the Island

history through the many books I provide about the culture of the Island. It is "Old

Hawaiian-themed" giving guests a unique culturally-enlightened historical perspective of

Kauai.

12. Tax Support -I estimate the lost tax benefit to the County to be approximately $15,000

per year if my operation stopped because of lower property taxes and also because of

lost KVAT revenue from guests that may otherwise stay elsewhere. I have always paid my

taxes accurately and on time.

13. Community Business Support - My guests are couples that typically dine out here,

supporting nearby Poipu restaurants, rather than big groups loading up at Costco.

Thank you for your consideration of this appeal. After 28 years, I hope I can keep my TVR and 

continue a bit longer while my son is in school. Mahala, E.J. (Jens) Olsson 



CADES SCHUTTE 
A Limited Liability Law Partnership 

MAUNA KEA TRASK 8418 
P.O. Box 1205 
Lihue, Hawai'i 96766 
Telephone: (808) 521-9297 
Fax: (8080 540-5015 

Attorney for Appellants 
BBCP KUKUIULA 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE 

COUNTY OF KAUA 'I 

In the Matter of the Appeal 

of 

BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC, 
Appealing the Action of the Planning Director in 
the Administration of the Subdivision Ordinance 
as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai County 
Code, as Memorialized in That Certain Letter 
Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision Application 
No. S-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2, F2, F3 for 
properties located at Lawai Ahupuaa, Kona 
District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key No. (4) 
2-6-022:020.

CONTESTED CASE NO. CC-2025-7 

NOTICE OF WITHDRAW AL OF 
PETITION TO APPEAL THE ACTION OF 

THE PLANNING DIRECTOR; 

EXHIBITS "1" AND "2"; 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

NOTICE OF WITHDRAW AL OF PETITION TO APPEAL THE ACTION OF THE 

PLANNING DIRECTOR 

Notice is hereby given that Applicant, BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC, 

("Appellant", "Applicant" or "BBCP"), by and through its undersigned counsel, pursuant to 

the terms of the Settlement Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit "l" and that certain letter 

+\.?J .a
NOV 10 2025 



signed by the Planning Director dated September 10, 2025, attached hereto as Exhibit "2", BBCP 

hereby withdraws its appeal in CC-2025-7. 

DATED: Lihu'e, Hawai'i, September_, 2025. 

CADES SCHUTTE LLP 

MAUNA KEA TRASK, ESQ. 

Attorneys for Appellant 
BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
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BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE 

COUNTY OF KAUA 'I 

In the Matter of the Appeal 

of 

BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC, 
Appealing the Action of the Planning Director in 
the Administration of the Subdivision Ordinance 
as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai County 
Code, as Memorialized in That Certain Letter 
Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision Application 
No. S-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2, F2, F3 for 
properties located at Lawai Ahupuaa, Kona 
District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key No. (4) 
2-6-022:020.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on September _, 2025, the NOTICE OF 

WITHDRAWAL OF PETITION TO APPEAL THE ACTION OF THE PLANNING 

DIRECTOR; EXHIBITS "1" AND "2", was duly served upon the COUNTY OF KAUAI 

PLANNING COMMISSION, via hand delivery, addressed to it at the COUNTY OF KAUAI 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT, County of Kauai, 4444 Rice Street, Suite A-473, Lihu'e, Hawai'i 

96766. 

DATED: Lihu'e, Hawai'i, September_, 2025. 

CADES SCHUTTE LLP 

MAUNA KEA TRASK, ESQ. 
Attorney for Appellant 
BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 



CADES SCHUTTE 
A Limited Liability Law Partnership 

MAUNA KEA TRASK 8418 
P.O. Box 1205 
Lihue, Hawai'i 96766 
Telephone: (808) 521-9297 
Fax: (8080 540-5015 

Attorney for Appellants 
BBCP KUKUIULA 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE 

COUNTY OF KAUA 'I 

In the Matter of the Appeal 

of 

BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC, 

Appealing the Action of the Planning Director in 
the Administration of the Subdivision Ordinance 
as Provided for in Chapter 9 of the Kauai County 
Code, as Memorialized in That Certain Letter 
Dated July 22, 2025, Subdivision Application 
No. S-2023-1; Kukuiula Parcels A2, F2, F3 for 
properties located at Lawai Ahupuaa, Kona 
District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key No. (4) 
2-6-022:020.

CONTESTED CASE NO. CC-2025-7 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") concerns BBCP KUKUIULA 

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, ( "Appellant", "Applicant" or "BBCP"), and the County of Kaua'i 

Planning Department ("Department") by and through its Planning Director ("Director"), 

hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties". This Agreement sets forth the terms and 

conditions of an agreement to settle BBCP's appeal of the Planning Director's action 

memorialized in that certain letter dated July 22, 2025, regarding Subdivision Application No. S-



2023-1 (the "Appeal"). This Agreement is legally binding as a contract formed under Hawai'i 

law. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Kaua'i County Charter ("Charter") section 14.04, the Director 

is the administrative head of the Department; 

.WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 14.05 (B) the Director is charged with the 

administration of the zoning and subdivision ordinance and the regulations adopted thereunder; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 14.09 (A) the Kauai County Council 

("Council") has enacted the Subdivision Ordinance for the County of Kaua'i ("CSO"); 

WHEREAS, BBCP owns the fee simple interest in that certain 136.378 acre parcel ofreal 

property located at Lawai Ahupua'a, Kona District, Island of Kauai, Tax Map Key No. (4) 2-6-

022:020, also identified as Lot 13 of the Kukuiula Parcel E Subdivision (the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, BBCP, filed Subdivision Application No. S-2023-1 (the "Application") 

with the Department to subdivide the Property into twenty-four.(24) residential lots, four (4) 

remnant parcels and three (3) roadway lots (the "Project"); 

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2022, the Department routed the Application to various state and 

county agencies; 

WHEREAS, on October 27, 2022, the State Historic Preservation Division ("SHPD") 

issued its determination of "No Historic Properties Affected" for the current Project, and 

indicated it had no objection to the Application; 

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, the Kaua'i Planning Commission ("Commission") 

granted Preliminary Subdivision Map approval subject to various conditions; 
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WHEREAS, on November 28, 2023, BBCP received a revised determination letter from 

SHPD calling for a Reconnaissance Level Survey ("RLS"), an Archaeological Inventory Survey 

("AIS") and an Archaeological Monitoring Plan ("AMP") (collectively the "Submittals") based 

upon the identification of: (1) a rock fill facing associated with a railroad trestle, (2) a segment of 

a previously identified earthen ditch feature, and (3) a sub-feature of a previously identified 

feature comprising a culvert running beneath the cane haul road and former railroad bed; 

WHEREAS, in the November 28, 2023, letter SHPD requested the Department withhold 

issuing final subdivision approval until the Submittals are reviewed and accepted at which time 

the permits issuance process may continue; 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2Q24, BBCP's consultant Cultural Surveys Hawaii ("CSH") 

submitted the RLS and the AMP to the Hawai 'i Cultural Resource Information System 

("HI CRIS"); 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2024, CSH submitted the AIS to HICRIS; 

WHEREAS, following approval of the preliminary subdivision map, BBCP prepared and 

submitted the requisite grading plans, construction plans and specifications showing details and 

road construction, drainage structures, sewers, water mains, and all other utilities proposed to be 

constructed in the subdivision (collectively the "Construction Plans") to the Department 

pursuant to CSO §9-3.5(a); 

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works, the Department of Water, the State 

Department of Health, Kaua'i Island Utility Cooperative ("KIUC"), Spectrum, Hawai'i Gas, and 

Hawai 'i Telcom have all approved the Construction Plans; 

WHEREAS, SHPD has not commented on the Submittals to date; 
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WHEREAS, BBCP and CSH have diligently complied with the requests of SHPD to 

complete the historic review process as it relates to the Application and obtain approval of the 

final subdivision map; 

WHEREAS, BBCP, CSH and BBCP's counsel have sent multiple letters and emails to 

SHPD in an attempt to have them comment on the Submittals and compete their historic review 

without any success; 

WHEREAS, On Jul 21, 2025, BBCP, through its counsel, submitted a letter to the 

Director explaining that due to state and county law SHPD is presumed to concur with the 

Submittals and requesting the Director approve the Construction Plans pursuant to the CSO; 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2025, the Department responded to BBCP saying they had not 

received the requisite review and comment letter from SHPD concerning the proposed 

construction plans associated with Subdivision Application S-2023-1, and the Department cannot 

approve the subject construction plans without review and comment by SHPD; 

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2025, BBCP filed the Appeal; 

WHEREAS, the Parties engaged in good faith negotiations regarding state and county 

law concerning the maximum time period to grant or deny a business or development-related 

permit, license, or approvals; 

WHEREAS, HRS§ 91-13.5 provides that agencies shall adopt rules specifying 

maximum time periods for acting on a business or development-related permit, license, or 

approval, and that any application not decided within the established time frame is "deemed 

approved." Kauai Springs, Inc. v. Planning Commission of Kauai, 133 Haw. 141,159,324 P.3d 

951,969 (2014); 
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WHEREAS, SHPD promulgated its rules concerning maximum time periods to grant or 

deny a business or development-related permit, license, or approval as required by HRS§ 91-

13.5, and codified the same in Hawai'i Administrative Rules ("HAR") Ch 13-284; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HAR§§ 13-284-5(5)(e), 13-284-6(d), 13- 284-7 (c), and 13-284-

S(b)&(c), SHPD shall make the required concurrences and/or determinations concerning the 

Submittals within 45 days of their submittal or by a mutually agreeable date; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HAR §13-284:-3(e), if SHPD fails to make the required 

concurrences and/or determinations concerning the Submittals within 45 days, "then SHPD is 

presumed to concur with the submittal;" 

WHEREAS, under the relevant administrative rules, SHPD was required to comment on 

the RLS by August 1, 2024, at which time SHPD was presumed to concur with the same; 

WHEREAS, under the relevant administrative rules, the AMP is a form of identification 

or mitigation measure (see, HAR§§ 13-284-S(a)(l )(C) and 13-279-3) and SHPD was required to 

comment on the AMP by August 1, 2024, at which time SHPD was presumed to concur with the 

same; 

WHEREAS, SHPD was required to comment on the AIS by January 30, 2025, at which 

time SHPD was presumed to concur with the same; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CSO §9-1.4, subdivision applicants shall be held to the 

minimum requirements necessary to accomplish the purpose of the CSO; 

WHEREAS, CSO §9-3.4(b) requires SHPD to complete its review of the preliminary 

subdivision map within 45 days; 

WHEREAS, CSO §9-3.5 (b)( l )  requires SHPD to take action concerning their review of 

the subdivision construction plans within 60 days; 
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WHEREAS, CSO §9-3.5 (b)(3) provides that if SHPD fails to take action within the 

allotted time, the Construction Plans shall be deemed approved; 

WHEREAS, CSO §9-3.5 (b)(2) provides that after action is taken by the agencies, the 

Director shall take action on the Construction Plans within fifteen ( 15) calendar days; 

WHEREAS, SHPD has failed to take action concerning the Construction plans within the 

time limits prescribed in CSO §§9-3.4 and 9-3.5, at which time SHPD was presumed to have 

approved the same; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HRS §91-13.S(c) the Department shall take action to grant or 

deny the Subdivision Application within the established maximum period of time, or the 

application shall be deemed approved; 

WHEREAS, BBCP has not agreed to extend any deadlines concerning the review and 

approval of any of the Submittals under state or county law with either SHPD or the Department 

or any other department or agency of the government; 

WHEREAS, all departments, officials and public employees vested with the duty or 

authority to issue permits or licenses shall conform to the provisions of the CSO; 

WHEREAS, there are no state or county laws, rules or regulations that allow the Director 

to delay approval of the Construction Plans beyond the time limits provided in the CSO; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 7.05 (A) the Director must administer the CSO 

honestly, efficiently, and lawfully; 

WHEREAS, the Director is compelled to approve the Construction Plans pursuant to 

CSO §9-3.5 and HRS §91-13.5; 

WHEREAS, any person, firm, or corporation, whether as principal, agent, employee, or 

otherwise, violating or causing or permitting the violation of any of the provisions of the CSO, 
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shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine of not 

more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) for each offense; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Charter section 23 .10, any violation of a charter provision, any 

ordinance, or duly enacted rule or regulation having the effect of law shall be subject to a fine 

not exceeding $1,000 or one year's imprisonment or both unless the charter, ordinance, rule, or 

regulation provides for a specific penalty in which case the specific penalty shall control; 

WHEREAS, by this Agreement, the Parties intend to settle and fully dispose of all of 

BBCP's Appeal; 

WHEREAS, the Parties believe this Agreement is fair, reasonable, and adequate to 

protect the interests of all Parties. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, and the following terms 

and conditions, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby expressly 

acknowledged by each of the Parties, the Parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Approval of the Construction Plans.

The Director agrees to determine that the Construction Plans conform to the preliminary 

subdivision map, as conditioned by the Commission, and approve the Construction Plans as 

provided by CSO §9-3.S(b). 

2. Completion of Subdivision Improvements, Agreement and Bond.

Upon approval of the Construction Plans as provided herein, BBCP may proceed to 

construct the required subdivision improvements prior to seeking approval of the final 

subdivision map, or BBCP may enter into an agreement with the County guaranteeing the 

construction of improvements at its own expense within a reasonable time period specified by 
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the Commission in which case BBCP may seek approval of the final subdivision map prior to 

constructing the required improvements as provided by CSO §9-3.6. 

3. Withdrawal of Appeal.

Upon the Director's approval of the Construction Plans as provided herein, BBCP agrees 

to withdraw its Appeal. 

4. Release of Claims.

In consideration of the benefits and protections afforded by this Agreement, BBCP 

hereby fully and finally releases and discharges the Director, the Department and their 

successors, assigns, officers, and past and present agents and employees ("Released Parties") 

from any and all claims raised in the Appeal, or that could have been raised in the Appeal 

("Released Claims"). The Released Claims do not include any claims to enforce the terms of 

this Agreement. 

5. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between BBCP, the Director and the 

Department with respect to all of the matters discussed in the Agreement, and supersedes all 

prior or contemporaneous discussions, communications, or agreements, expressed or implied, 

written or oral, by or between the Parties. 

6. Binding on Successors.

This Agreement shall be binding on all successors, assignees, employees, agents, and all 

others working for or on behalf of the respective Parties. 

7. Rules of Construction.

The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair 

meaning, and not strictly for or against any of the Parties. The terms of this Agreement are the 
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product of joint negotiations and shall not be construed as having been authored by one party 

rather than another. Any ambiguity shall not be construed against any Party. Where required by 

context, the plural includes the singular and the singular includes the plural. 

8. Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be considered an 

original, but all of which, when taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument. 

9. Governing Law and Enforcement.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Hawaii and may be enforced by the Fifth Circuit Court. 

10. Modification in Writing.

This Agreement cannot be orally modified. The Agreement can be modified only with a 

written agreement that expressly recites the Parties' intent to modify a provision of the 

Agreement, and that is signed by authorized representatives of all Parties. 

11. Review of Agreement.

The Agreement has been carefully reviewed by each of the Parties, or their responsible 

officers, and their legal counsel, and its contents are known and understood by each of the 

Parties. The Parties each acknowledge that they are entering into this Agreement freely, 

knowingly, voluntarily, and with full understanding of its terms. 

12. Waiver of Breach.

The waiver of a breach of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any 

subsequent breach. 

13. Authority.
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The persons executing the Agreement each represent and warrant that he or she has the 

authority to enter into the Agreement, and to resolve the matters set forth in the Agreement, on 

behalf of the Party for whom he or she is executing the Agreement, and that no further approval 

is necessary in order for the Agreement to be binding on the Party for whom he or she is 

executing. 

14. Attorneys Fees and Costs.

Each party shall bear and be solely responsible for their respective attorney's fees and 

costs. 

15. Notices.

Any notice or communication provided under this Agreement shall be made in writing 

and shall be delivered or sent by email and/or by registered mail or Federal Express to the 

addresses below or to such other addresses as may be specified in writing by any Party. Should 

any Party's contact information change from what is listed below, that Party shall promptly 

provide written notice of the updated contact information to the other Parties. 

To BBCP 

Maua Kea Trask, Esq. 
P.O. Box 1205 
Lihue, HI, 96766 
mtrask@cades.com 

To the Director and/or the Department 

Matthew M. Bracken, Esq. 
Christopher Donahoe, Esq. 
4444 Rice St, Ste. 220 
Lihue, HI 96766 
mbracken@kauai.gov 
cdonahoe@kauai.gov 



IN WITNESS HEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this Agreement on the
date set forth below.

DATED:
--------

DATED:

BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC

By: __
Its:

--------------

/J1/7il I/ 

�ECTOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: The below attorney signatures are not intended to impose 
obligations on the attorneys other than to facilitate notices and communications necessary 

to implement the settlement terms. 

DATED:
--------

CADES SCHUTTE LLP

Mauna Kea Trask, Esq.
Attorneys for Appellant
BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC

OFrf lpOJ THE COUNTY ATTORNEY

---=-�-�o�....____ .. _ Christophe.:-Oonahoe, Esq.
Attorneys for Respondent
PLANNING DIRECTOR

I l 



IN WITNESS HEREOF, each of the undersigned has executed this Agreement on the 
date set forth below. 

BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

By:Y¥�� 
Its: ;;a�1PWT-�/A/G. 

DATED:. _______ _ 
PLANNING DIRECTOR 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: The below attorney signatures are not intended to impose 
obligations on the attorneys other than to facilitate notices and communications necessary 
to implement the settlement terms. 

DATED: � 'Z{D, UJ-Vb

DATED: 
--------

CADES SCHUTTE LLP 

C::una ;ea 2. E:. 
====----

Attorneys for Appellant 
BBCP KUKUIULA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ATTORNEY 

Christopher Donahoe, Esq. 
Attorneys for Respondent 
PLANNING DIRECTOR 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

September 10, 2025 

Mr. Mauna Kea Trask, Esq. 

CADES SCHUTTE LLP 

P.O. Box 1205 

Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 

Email: mtrask@cades.com 

Subject: 

Dear Mr. Trask, 

Commencement of Construction 

Contested Case No. CC-2025-7 - Settlement Agreement 

Kukui'ula Parcel A2F2F3 Subdivision 

Subdivision Application No. S-2023-1 

Tax Map Key: (4) 2-6-022: 020 

Lawa'i, Koloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

Applicant: BBCP Kukui'ula Development, LLC. 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Please accept this letter as confirmation that, pursuant to the executed Settlement Agreement between 

BBCP Kukui'ula Development, LLC and the County of Kaua'i Planning Department regarding the subject 

subdivision application, the construction of the required subdivision improvements may commence in 

accordance with Section 9-3.6 of the Subdivision Ordinance, Kaua'i County Code (1987), as amended. 

Please be advised that the construction plans for Subdivision Application No. S-2023-1, were approved 

by the Planning Director on May 15, 2025. This approval remains valid. 

Should you have further questions regarding this matter, please contact Kenneth A. Estes of my staff at 

808.241.4050. Aloha! 
---/ 

<-_ '--� 
·-)=\----

KA'AINA S. HULL 

Director of Planning 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • Uhu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 



KALALEA TRUST 
% 4470 Wailapa Road 
Kilauea, Hawai•i [96754] 
+l 808 652 4140

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
STATE OF HAWAI'I 

KALALEA TRUST, 

Petitioner, 

VS. 

HARLAN Y. KIMURA, Hearing Officer, 

Office of Boards and Commissions, County of 

Kaua'i; and 

KAUA'I COUNTY PLANNfNG 

DEPARTMENT, Respondents. 

Case No. SCCV-25-0000022 

PETITIONER'S EQUITABLE OBJECTION TO 

COUNTY OF KAUA'l'S MEMORANDUM IN 

OPPOSITION TO ENTRY OF OEFAUL T, 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF AND ENTRY OF 

DEFAULT, 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE, 

Exhibit A - BOC Conv vane 

E><hlblt 8 - Notice of fin 

PETITIONER'S EQUITABLE OBJECTION TO COUNTY OF KAUA'l'S 

MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSITION TO ENTRY OF DEFAULT 

Affidavit of the Truth of the Matter stated: 

I. Preljmlnary Statement

Petitioner, the Kalalea Trust, by and through its Trustee, respectfully submits this 
Equitable Response, verified by affidavit, to this Honorable Court to object to and 
formally rebut Respondents' alleged facts and their attempt to circumvent the law in 
order to avoid a ministerial default. In the County's Memorandum in Opposition to the 
Amended Request for Entry of Default Judgment, filed September 24, 2025, the County's 
filing is procedurally defective and substantively insufficient. Respondents have been in 
default for more than six months and have shown no good cause for their failure to 
answer. Equity aids the vigilant, not those who slumber on their rights. 

II. The County's "Background Facts" Are Irrelevant, Objected to as Hearsay

1. The Petitioner is the Kalalea Trust, not Carl Langschmidt individually.
2. The Kalalea Trust never appealed or petitioned the Planning Commission or any de

facto administrative tribunal.
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3. Trustee Carl Langschmidt in good faith merely responded to unfounded notices so as
not to acquiesce or default to any alleged claims or controversies.

4. "Langschmidt" is not a party to this matter.
5. Hearing Officer Kimura acted without credentials, oath, or authority, and created a

petition in the Trust's name ultra vires.
6. The tenant, Garden of Eden, has held lawful tenancy since January 1, 2023 (Exhibit

A). Therefore the Kalalea Trust is not the party of interest for any alleged violations
as expressed in the meeting with county inspectors, Joan and Bambi, on Sept 16
2024.

Ill. Jurisdiction Was Never Established 
1. No injured party has been identified.
2. No sworn statement, affidavit, or wet-ink signature exists to show bona fide claims.
3. The Trust Indenture requires controversies to be heard only in a court of record, not in

a private hearing before Mr. Kimura.
4. Equity recognizes the maxim: "He who acts without authority does so in vain."
5. Without jurisdiction, the County's NOV and COZ are void ab initio.

IV. Procedural Default is Clear
The Writ of Prohibition was filed February 4, 2025. The County failed to file a timely
answer. More than six months have passed without response. o good cause has been
shown for this failure. Equity will not relieve a party from its own neglect when it has
had full notice and opportunity.

V. Respondents Cannot Sh eld Themselves with HRAP Rule 21
Respondents misapply HRAP Rule 21. That rule governs extraordinary writs in the
appellate courts, not original petitions filed in the Circuit Court. Here, HRCP Rules 7, 12,
and 55 default principles apply, and Respondents' opposition cannot retroactively cure
their failure to timely respond.

VI. Irreparable Harm, Breach of Trust and Destruction ot rights.

I. The County continued to act without jurisdiction ever being established, even after
jurisdiction was challenged at the onset.

2. With notice of the private Trust, the County nonetheless dragged the Trust into the
public, breaching the Trust and attempting to validate administrative proceedings
without consent.

3. The County and Hearing Officer Kimura breached the Trust and caused irreparable
injury by threatening $90,000 in unverified fines (Exhibit B).

4. These fines are void ab initio and violate the protections of the Eighth Amendment -
Excessive fines.

5. The County and Hearing Officer Kimura further breached the Trust by committing
trespass and destroying rights secured to the Trust and the Constitution.

6. Mr. Kimura, acting as trustee de son tort, is personally and professionally culpable for
his unauthorized actions.

7. The County's adoption of his unlawful recommendations is to its own peril.
., 
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8. Respondents have failed to provide lawful authority for bringing any claim against
the Trust.

9. Respondents have failed to provide their Government ID's, Oaths of Office and
Bonds.

VII. Equity Requires Default to Be Entered

Equity favors substance over form. The maxim applies: "When there is a conflict
between the rules of law and the rules of equity, equity shall prevail."

As Pomeroy's Equity Jurisprudence explains, even silence may create estoppel. Here, the 
County's silence and failure to answer for six months is far more. To pennit them to 
proceed now would reward neglect and perpetuate injustice. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

For the foregoing reasons, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court issue an order 
sua sponte granting the following relief: 

I. Deny the County's Memorandum in Opposition as untimely and irrelevant;
2. Enter default against the Respondent, Kaua•i County Planning Department, pursuant

to HRCP Rules 7, 12, and 55, as default principles apply;
3. Grant the Writ of Prohibition restraining the County of Kauai Planning Dept and

Hearing Officer Kimura from further ultra vires acts against the Kalalea Trust;
4. Void all Respondents' notices and orders, including but not limited to the demand for

ninety thousand dollars ($90,000) in purported fines, as unlawful and excessive, and
recognize them as wrongful monetary damages asserted against the Petitioner;

5. Enjoin the County and its agents from entering upon or trespassing on Trust property
without prior permission of the Trustee or a duly issued judicial warrant; and

6. Grant such other and further relief, whether general, special, or extraordinary, as
equity and good conscience may require.

I verify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

uesday, September 30, 2025 

I 

y: Carl Langschmidt, Trustee 
Kalalea Trust 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing document was duly served 
upon the following parties by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage 
prepaid, on this 30th day of September, 2025, addressed as follows: 

Office of the County Attorney 
County of Kaua' i 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 220 
Lihu·e, Hawai'i 96766 

Planning Department 
County of Kaua•i 
4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 
Uhu e, Hawai'i 96766 

Harlan Y. Kimura, Hearing Officer 
Office of Boards and Commissions 
County of Kaua' i 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 300 
Uhu·e, Hawai'i 96766 

nn11U 
Ca�idt, Trustee 

Kalalea Irrevocable Common Law Asset Trust 
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EXHIBIT A 

LAND COURT fr\() 

Pkg 12596885 OFC 

/S/ MIKE H. IMANAICA 

REGISTRAR 

Conveyance Tax: S0.00 

t-· • REGULAR SYSTEM
(AREA ABOVE RESERVED FOR RECORDING INFORMATION) 

After Recordation, Return by Mail D or Pick-up D Phone#: ____ 

FILL IN NAME ANO ADDRESS BELOW: 

(j 

P.o

DOCUMENT CONTAINS ..5_ PAGES



NOTICE OF LEASE 

1. This Notice of Lease is made and entered into as of this 12 day of June, 2025, by and
between:

LANDLORD:

Kalalea Trust
By: Carl Langschmfdt. Trustee
Mailing Address: 4470 Wallapa Rd Kilauea, Hawaii [96754]

TENANT:

Garden ofEden,
By: Craig Ferrie, Trustee
Mailing Address: P.O BOX 30843 Anahola Hawaii [96703]

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes §502-31 that:

1. Lease Agreement: Landlord and Tenant entered into a written lease agreement
concerning real property located in the County of Kaua'i, State of Hawai'L

2. Effective Date: The lease commenced on January 1, 2023.

3. Term: The term of the lease is ten (10) years, expiring on December 31, 2032, unless
extended or sooner terminated as provided therein.

4. Premises: The lease pertains to the entire parcel ofland held ln trust under the Kalalea
Trust, identified as:

a. Tax Map Key (TMK): 490030010003

b. Legal Description: Hui rd, Kalal ea Plantation Lot 3, lot 74 of Moloaa Hui Lands,
Aliomanu, Kaualhau, Kauai, HawalL

c. Survey Attached as Exhibit A/page S.

S. Purpose: The Premises are leased exclusively for religious, agricultural, and community
purposes in accordance with the mission of The Garden of Eden.
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6. Non-Public Lease: This Notice is provided solely for the purpose of recording notice of the
lease and does not set forth the full terms and conditions thereof.

IN WllNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Notice of Lease as of the dates 
written below. 

LANDLORD: 
Kalalea Trust 

By:,C.....-\: l...n�c:1,,.�,Jt •
Carl Langscbmidt, T ee 
Date: Friday, June 13, 2025 

TENANT: 

Craig Ferrie, Trustee 
Date: Friday, June 13, 2025 

State ofHawai'i 

.tt 
County of Kauai 

On this 13th day of June, 2025, before me, the undersigned Notazy Public, personally appeared 
Carl Langacbmidt, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 
whose name is subscribed to the within "instrmnent and acknowledged that he/she executed the 
same as Trustee of Kalalea Trust, and that such execution was made of his free act and deed 
and, if applicable, in the authorized capacity stated therein. 

m
WHEREOF, I have berellnto set nr:, hand and official seal. 

Page3 of5 



State of Hawai'i 
..ss. 

County of Kauai 

On this 13th day of June, 2025, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared 
Craig Ferrie who proved to me on the basis of satisfactoey evidence to be the person whose 
name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he/she executed the same as 
Trustee/Authorized Representative of Garden of Eden. and that such execution was made of 
his free act and deed and, if applicable, in the authori7.ed capacity stated therein. 

Page4ofS 
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DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA. MANAGING DIRECTOR 

VIA CERTIFIED U.S. MAIL. RETURN RECEIPT REQ ESTED 

AND FIRST CLASS U.S. MAIL 

Kalalea Trust 

4470 \\ ailapa Rd 

Kilauea HI 9675-4 I 139 

Kalalea Plantation 

Kalalca Plantation LLC 

PO Box 1139, Kilauea, HI 96754 

i-,:.aLilea Plantation LLC 

6623 Las V gas 81\'ll nit 3-W 

Las \'egas '-!V ,'91 I() 

Sun1isc Hui Fann LLC 

2955 Aukek Ste 20 I 

Li hue HI 96 766 

SEP 2 6 2025 

FINAL NOTICE FOR REi\llTANCE OF FINE PAYi\lE T 

SUBJECT: COMPREHENSI\'E ZONING ORDINANCE (CZO) VIOLATION ON: 

Hui Rd Master Anahola, HI 96703 

Tax i\lap Key: 490030010003 

The purpose of this letter is to give FI AL 1OTICE FOR REMITANCE of money owed rcgar<ling 

your levy and order to pay a fine of ninety thousand dollars ($90.000.00) frir the violations of Sec. 8-

3.1 Zoning Pennits. Section 8-8.7 Developed Campgrounds in Agriculture Zoning Districts and 

Section 8-1.-4 Uses in Districts of the Compn:hensive Zrining Or<linance. 

You were mailed multiple "Notice of Violation & Order to Pay Fines" \\·here ynu were levied and 

ortkre<l to pay tines in total of ninety thousand dollars ($90.000.00). As of THIS DATE this penalty 

remains unpaid. 

SUBMIT PA 'YMENT IMMEDIATELY 

Unkss the Plaiming DL:partment receives full payment within 14 days of the date ufthis notice. legal 

action against your penalty will he taken. Failure to remit the fine amount of ninety thousand dollars 

-!444 Rice Street. Suite A473 • lihu·e. Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (bl 

An Equal Opportun11y Employer 



Notice of Violation and 

Order to Pay Fines 

TMK: 490030010003 

Page 2 

(S90,000.00) will result in th!.'. Director instituting a ci,·il action seeking enforcement of the order 
under Kaua'i County Code. Section 8-�_5(h) (4) (5). Failure to ray the total amount of the civil fine 
imroscd within thirty (30) days of this Order may result in a lien placed on the subject propeny. You 
arc advised tn give this matter your immediate attention. 

I 
KA"�,�\S_-:::!J._ 

lo > 

Diri.:L·tm nf Planning 



DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAVEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

REIKO MATSUYAMA. MANAGING DIRECTOR 

TRANSMITTAL OF SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: October 23, 2025 

PERMIT NUMBER(S): Z-IV-2025-6, U-2025-4, and SP-2025-1 

APPLICANT(S): OLU PUA GARDENS LLC. 

Attached for the Planning Commission's reference is supplemental information to project's application. 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) • (808) 241-6699 (f) 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

\<. \.{A. 
NOV 10 2025 



MAX W.J. GRAHAM, JR. 
JONATHANlCHUN 

JANK. JUNG 

Federal 1.D. No. 99-0317663 

BELLES GRAHAM LLP 
ATIORNEYSATLAW 

DYNASTY PROFESSIONAL BUILDING 
313 5 AKAIIl STREET, SUITE A 

LIHUE,KAUAI,HAWAII 96766-1191 

TELEPHONE NO: (808) 245-4705 
FACSIMILE NO: (808) 245-3277 

E-MAIL: mail@kauai-law.com 

October 10, 2025 

OFCOUNSEL 

MICHAEL J. BELLES 
DAVID W. PROUDFOOT 

Mr. Francis DeGracia, Chairperson VIA EMAIL & REGULAR MAIL 

Planning Commission of the County of Kauai 
c/o Planning Department 
4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766 

Attention: Ms. Marisa V alenciano, Planner 

Re: In the Matter of the Application of Olu Pua Gardens LLC 
for Use Permit U-2025-4, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2025-6, 
and Special Permit SP-2025-1 
Olu Pua Gardens 
Parcel First (8.504 acres) 
Parcel Second (3.781 acres) 
Wahiawa, Kauai, Hawaii 
Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 2-4-007:016 
Owner: Olu Pua Gardens LLC, a Hawaii limited liability company 

Dear Chairperson DeGracia and Planning Commission Members: 

I am writing to you on behalf of Olu Pua Gardens LLC, the Applicant in the above­
described Application. The Planning Commission heard this matter at its meeting held on 
January 14, 2025. The matter was not completed, and at Applicant's request, was continued 
until June 10, 2025. The Planning Department subsequently received a letter from the 
State Historic Preservation Division ("SHPD") dated February 21, 2025, requesting that 
an archaeological literature review and field inspection ("LRFI") be prepared for the 
Project Area. The Applicant is in the process of having a LRFI prepared, but it still has not been 
completed. 

The Applicant previously requested an extension until the Planning Commission 
meeting scheduled for December 9, 2025. It now appears that the LRFI will not be completed in 
time for the December meeting. In order to have the LRFI completed, to obtain the necessary 
approvals from SHPD, and to have the Planning Commission take final action in this matter, 
I am requesting a further extension until the Planning Commission meeting of January 13, 2026. 
As a condition of this extension, the Applicant agrees to all of the timelines contained in 
CZO Section 8-3.l(f). 

4910-2335-0897, v. 1 (27272-6) 



Mr. Francis DeGracia, Chairperson 
Planning Commission of the County of Kauai 
c/o Planning Department 
October 10, 2025 
Page2 

Thank you very much for your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely yours, 

Max W. J. Graham, Jr. 

MWJG:jgm 
cc: Dr. and Mrs. Joerg Hohnloser (via email only) 

4910-2335-0897, v. 1 (27272-6) 



Shanlee Jimenez 

From: Kaaina Hull 

Sent: Monday, October 13, 2025 11 :46 AM 
To: Marisa Valenciana; Dale Cua; Shan lee Jimenez 
Subject: RE: Further Extension Request re: Olu Pua Gardens 

Hey Marisa, 

This should actually go on the Nov agenda, and we just defer it out to January. Mahala! 

From: Marisa Valenciana <mvalenciano@kauai.gov> 
Sent: Monday, October 13, 2025 10:28 AM 

To: Dale Cua <dcua@kauai.gov>; Shanlee Jimenez <sjimenez@kauai.gov>; Kaaina Hull <khull@kauai.gov> 

Subject: FW: Further Extension Request re: Olu Pua Gardens 

Kaaina, Dale, and Shan, 

Max transmitted the above letter for Olu Pua Gardens requesting an extension to the January 13, 2026 PC 

Meeting. Based on the attached letter, I was planning to transmit to the Commission as part of the December 9, 

2025 PC agenda packet. Can you please let me know if that would work or if the attached letter would need to be 

transmitted as part of the November 10, 2025 PC agenda packet? 

During the August 12, 2025 meeting, Max asked commission on the floor to extend to the December 9, 2025 

meeting even though his July 2025 correspondence asked for the extension to the October 2025 PC meeting (no 

quorum anyways). 

I already put a placeholder on the white boards to pencil in Olu Pua for the Jan. 2026 PC Meeting under unfinished 
business. 

Please let me know if there is a preference to transmit this letter for the November or December meeting. 

Thank you, 

Marisa 

From: Planning Department <planningdepartment@kauai.gov> 

Sent: Friday, October 10, 2025 2:23 PM 
To: Marisa Valenciana <mvalenciano@kauai.gov> 

Subject: FW: Further Extension Request re: Olu Pua Gardens 

Please see email below. 

Mahalo, 

Gt1/I.Q/ 1/,tp)ct 
CZM Account Clerk 

County of Kaua'i I Department of Planning 

4444 Rice St. Suite, A473 I Lihu'e, HI 96766 

Dept. Phone#: 808-241-4050 
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Planning Dept. Website 

� 
workday. 

RISE to • N �w WIIY with workday 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the 
intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. Please do not forward or disttibute this message to anyone. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. 

From: Julie Mararagan <JGM@kauai-law.com> 

Sent: Friday, October 10, 2025 10:42 AM 

To: Planning Department <planningdepartment@kauai.gov> 

Cc: Max Graham <MWG@kauai-law.com>; Marisa Valenciano <mvalenciano@kauai.gov> 

Subject: Further Extension Request re: Olu Pua Gardens 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the County of Kauai. Do not click links or open attachments 

even if the sender is known to you unless it is something you were expecting. 

Dear Chairperson DeGracia and Planning Commission Members, 

Attached please find Mr. Graham's letter to you dated October 10, 2025, regarding the 

above-identified matter. 

The original letter has been sent to you via regular mail. 

Thank you. 

Julieta Cio.v\.Otisi /Vto.rnv-o.90.V\. 

Belles Graham LLP 
Dynasty Professional Building 
3135 Akahi Street, Suite A 
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766 
Phone: (808) 246-6962 
Fax: (808) 245-3277 
Email: jgm@kauai-law.com 
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CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e-mail and any attachment is confidential and is intended only for 
the intended recipient(s). This e-mail may be attorney-client communication and, as such, is privileged and confidential. If 
the reader of this e-mail message is not the intended recipient (or the person responsible for the delivery of this e-mail 
message to an intended recipient), you are hereby notified that you have received this document in error, and that any 
reuse, review, printing, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
e-mail in error, please reply to inform the sender and delete it without printing or making any copies of it.
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